
 

Oklahoma Works, a proud partner of the American Job Center Network 
Green Country Workforce Development Board  is an equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities. 

This presentation was financed in whole or part by funds from the US Department of Labor as administered by the Oklahoma Office of Workforce Development. 
TDD/TTY: 1-800-722-0353 

Green Country Workforce Development Board  
Meeting Agenda  

 
 

Date: 04/15/2021 Time: 8:30am-10:30am        
 Location: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83410651656 

  

 Activity / Item Who Pages 

 
1. Call Meeting to Order Delaney Rea 

 
2. Introductions and Roll Call 

 
  3. Review & Approve: 03/01/2021 Green Country Workforce 

Development Board Special Meeting Minutes 
Chair 1-6 

   
 
 4. 

Review & Approve:  Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act - Title 
I Integrated Services for Adults, Dislocated Worker & Youth Programs 
Request for Proposal 

Chair 7-82 

 
 5. Review & Approve: Consent Agenda  

All items may be approved together, or any item(s) may be voted on 
separately at the request of any Board member.  Copies of all 
documents are included for review.  
The following items were reviewed and approved by the Executive 
Committee on 04/08/2021: 
 
A. Center Certification Policy 

• Policy (pg.83-85) 

• Attachments 

o Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked 

Critical Success Factors (pg.86-190) 

o Checklist for Compliance with Section 503 of the 

Chair 83-282 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83410651656


Oklahoma Works, a proud partner of the American Job Center Network 
Green Country Workforce Development Board  is an equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities. 

This presentation was financed in whole or part by funds from the US Department of Labor as administered by the Oklahoma Office of Workforce Development. 
TDD/TTY: 1-800-722-0353 

Rehabilitation Act of 1973, As Amended (pg.191-206) 

o OOWD Integrated Business Services (pg.207-212)  

o Physical Site Accessibility Checklist (pg.213-249) 

o OWDI #1-2019 Evaluation Summary for Oklahoma 

Works AJC Certification (pg.250-259) 

• Operating Procedure: Center Certification and Process 

(pg.260-268) 

o Attachment: Center Certification Checklist (pg.213-

249) 

B. Demand Occupations and Skills Policy (pg.269-271) 

C. Fraud and Incident Reporting Policy (pg.272-276) 

D. Monitoring Policy (pg.277-280) 

E. Policy Development and Revisions Policy (pg.281-282) 

 
 
 

6. 
 

One-Stop Operator Report 
• Tulsa American Job Center Progress Photos (pg.283-290) 

John Collins 283-290 

 
 

7. Service Provider Report: Odle Management Group Sherry Beadle 

 
 

8. Service Provider Report: Dynamic Workforce Solutions Corbin Anderson 

 
9. 

 
Chair Update 
 

Chair  

 
10. Executive Director Report  

 
Rachel Hutchings 



Oklahoma Works, a proud partner of the American Job Center Network 
Green Country Workforce Development Board  is an equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities. 

This presentation was financed in whole or part by funds from the US Department of Labor as administered by the Oklahoma Office of Workforce Development. 
TDD/TTY: 1-800-722-0353 

 
11. Business Services Director Report Wesley Mitchell 

 
12. Fiscal Agent Report Gail Armstrong 

 
 
 

12. 

 
Committee/Council Reports: 

• Board Development Committee- Ken Busby 
• Business Development Committee- Amber Hatten  
• Finance Strategy & Oversight Committee- Celia Armstrong 
• Innovative Workforce Opportunity Council- Kelly Beyer 
• Youth Council- Jay Littlejohn 

 
 

13. New Business Chair 

 
14. Announcements Chair 

 
15. Adjourn Meeting Chair 

 The Next Regularly Scheduled Board Meeting is Scheduled for  
Thursday, June 17, 2021, 8:30 am - 10:30 am 

at Workforce Tulsa 
 907 S. Detroit Ave., 1025A 

Tulsa, OK 74120 
 

Board members attending via Zoom: Kathy Adair, Tom Albaugh, Rhonda Archer, Celia Armstrong, Jennifer Bentley, Kelly Beyer, Daniel 
Bradley, Robert Brown, Ken Busby, Eloy Chavez, Cody Cox, Ted Cundiff, Diane Eason Contreras, Mike Ebert, Joe Epperley, Bruce Force, 
Joseph Fuller, Terry Goodson, Traci Gower, Susan Hartzler, Amber Hatten, Tony Heaberlin, Rachel James, Ted Jenkins, Diane Kelley,  
Falen LeBlanc, Chelsea Levo-Feary, Jay Littlejohn, David Oliver, Jennifer Overmeyer, Karen Pennington, Janet Pieren, Ron Ramming, 
Delaney Rea, Peter Selden, Jacob Shivers, Lesli Shoals, Lisa Smith, Amy Spencer, Sarah Stisser, Danielle Storie, Tim Thompson, Lorie 
Trentham, John Vanderheiden, Landon Varnell, David White, & Jason Winters. 
 

 



Page 1 of 6 
Oklahoma Works, a proud partner of the American Job Center Network 

Green Country Workforce Development Board  is an equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities. 
This presentation was financed in whole or part by funds from the US Department of Labor as administered by the Oklahoma Office of Workforce Development. 

TDD/TTY: 1-800-722-0353 

Green Country Workforce Development Board 
Special Meeting Minutes 03/01/2021 

10:02 a.m. Delaney Rea called the meeting to order. 

Attending Board Members: Kathy Adair, Tom Albaugh, Rhonda Archer, Jennifer Bentley, Kelly Beyer, Daniel 
Bradley, Robert Brown, Ken Busby, Eloy Chavez, Cody Cox, Ted Cundiff, Joe Epperley, Bruce Force, Joseph 
Fuller, Terry Goodson, Amber Hatten, Rachel James, Diane Kelley, Chelsea Levo Feary, Jay Littlejohn, David 
Oliver, Jennifer Overmeyer, Karen Pennington, Janet Pieren, Ron Ramming, Delaney Rea, Peter Selden, Jacob 
Shivers, Lesli Shoals, Lisa Smith, Amy Spencer, Sarah Stisser, Danielle Storie, Tim Thompson, Lorie Trentham, 
John Vanderheiden, Landon Varnell, David White 

Absent Members: Celia Armstrong, Diane Eason Contreras, Mike Ebert, Traci Gower, Susan Hartzler, Tony 
Heaberlin, Ted Jenkins, Falen LeBlanc, Jason Winters 

Board Staff: Alex Whitfield, Amber Cutshaw, Cherie Stierwalt, De’Andre Fahie, Elaine McDaniel, Joshua Lewis, 
Julie Sorrels, Martha Webb-Jones, Mautia Hall, Taylor Austin, Wesley Mitchell 

Guests:  Corbin Anderson, Leon Warner, Scott Amey, Scott Obomanu, Terri Leisten, Cherisa Price-Wells, Larry 

Item Description / Discussion Action 

1. Introductions took place. Quorum was established by roll call. No Action Necessary 

2. 

Reviewed & Approved the Green Country Workforce Development 
Board (GCWDB) Bylaws proposed to be established by Chief Local 
Elected Official (CLEO), Creek County District 2 Commissioner, Leon 
Warner. This will be a Review & Approve item on the agenda for the 
03/09/2021 meeting of the GCWDB Board of Local Elected Officials.  

Motion to Approve: 
Joseph Fuller 

Second:  Tom Albaugh 

Vote: Approved by roll call 
vote.    
The following Board 
members were not visible 

1



Page 2 of 6 
Oklahoma Works, a proud partner of the American Job Center Network 

Green Country Workforce Development Board  is an equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities. 
This presentation was financed in whole or part by funds from the US Department of Labor as administered by the Oklahoma Office of Workforce Development. 

TDD/TTY: 1-800-722-0353 

and did not vote: Daniel 
Bradley, Bruce Force, & 
Landon Varnell. 
The following Board 
members were not audible 
and did not vote: Diane 
Kelley, Lisa Smith. 

3. 

Reviewed & Approved the election of Delaney Rea to serve as Board 
Chair. Board Development Committee Chair, Ken Busby, reported that 
Delaney Rea will appoint to be the makeup of the Executive Committee 
those listed on the slate contained in the meeting packet. 

Motion to Approve: Ken 
Busby 

Second:  Tom Albaugh 

Vote: Approved by roll call 
vote.    
The following Board 
members were not visible 
and did not vote: Daniel 
Bradley, Bruce Force, & 
Landon Varnell. 

4. 
Reviewed the Board Certification of the Green Country Workforce 
Development Board. A Board Roster was included in the meeting 
packet. 

No Action Necessary 

5. 

Reviewed & Approved the Board Policies Consent Agenda as contained 
in the meeting packet. 

A. Mission and Vision
B. System of Manuals, Handbooks and Monitoring
C. Conflict of Interest and Firewalls
D. One Stop Operator Procurement
E. Uniform Personnel Standards
F. Code of Conduct
G. Hiring and On Boarding
H. Total Rewards

Motion to Approve: Diane 
Kelley 

Second:  Ken Busby 

Vote: Approved by roll call 
vote.    
The following Board 
members were not visible 
and did not vote: Daniel 
Bradley, Bruce Force, & 
Landon Varnell 

6. 

Reviewed & Approved the Transfer of Program Year 2020 Formula 
Funds from Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) 
Dislocated Worker (DLW) funds to WIOA Adult (AD) funds as requested 
by Dynamic Workforce Solutions. The request, as contained in the 
meeting packet, was presented by GCWDB Business Services Director, 
Wesley Mitchel.  

Motion to Approve: Ken 
Busby 

Second:  Jacob Shivers 

Vote: Approved by roll call 
vote.    

2



Page 3 of 6 
Oklahoma Works, a proud partner of the American Job Center Network 

Green Country Workforce Development Board  is an equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities. 
This presentation was financed in whole or part by funds from the US Department of Labor as administered by the Oklahoma Office of Workforce Development. 

TDD/TTY: 1-800-722-0353 

Abstention: Kelly Beyer 
The following Board 
members were not visible 
and did not vote: Daniel 
Bradley, Bruce Force, & 
Landon Varnell. 

7. 

Review for Approval will be based on a draft proposed by Board Ad Hoc 
Committee for the Request for Proposal (RFP) for Program Year 2021 
Service Provider for the Workforce Investment and Opportunity Act, 
Title 1 Adult and Dislocated Worker and Youth Program Services for the 
GCWDB Area. The Chair asked members interested in serving on or 
questions about the RFP Ad Hoc Committee to contact GCWDB  
Executive Director, Rachel Hutchings. 

No Action Necessary 

8. 

Reviewed & Approved the Request for Proposal (RFP) to procure a 
separate provider to handle the procurement of a One Stop Operator. 
Rachel Hutchings explained that the Board cannot release an RFP on 
which the Board intends to bid.  

Motion to Approve: Karen 
Pennington 

Second:  Lisa Smith 

Vote: Approved by roll call 
vote.   
The following Board 
members were not visible 
and did not vote: Daniel 
Bradley, Bruce Force, & 
Landon Varnell. 

9. 

Review & Approve the selection of the Eastgate Metroplex as the new 
Tulsa American Job Center location as recommended by the Chair on 
behalf of the Executive Committee. The Chair reported that One Stop 
Operator, John Collins, worked extensively with key stakeholders to 
provide the lease proposals as contained in the meeting packet. The 
chair reviewed the lease comparison contained in the meeting packet. 
John Collins, in response to David Oliver’s suggestion, reported that he 
will be asking for a cap on the common area maintenance charges. 

Motion to Approve: Eloy 
Chavez 

Second:  Janet Pieren 

Vote: Approved by roll call 
vote.   
The following Board 
members were not visible 
and did not vote: Daniel 
Bradley, Bruce Force, & 
Landon Varnell.  

3



Page 4 of 6 
Oklahoma Works, a proud partner of the American Job Center Network 

Green Country Workforce Development Board  is an equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities. 
This presentation was financed in whole or part by funds from the US Department of Labor as administered by the Oklahoma Office of Workforce Development. 

TDD/TTY: 1-800-722-0353 

10. 

Chair Update: The Chair reported about the following: 
• Rachel Hutchings’ Merger Communications - includes drafts of future

policies that will be brought to the Board to review for approval.
• Weekly merger meetings with Thomas P. Miller and the Oklahoma

Office of Workforce Development (OOWD)
• Combined Budget
• Next Regularly Scheduled Meeting
• Virtual Meetings
• RFP Ad Hoc Committee- urgent
• Packed Board Agenda- not the norm
• Committee/Council Assignments – Connect with Rachel Hutchings if

not yet appointed to a Committee or Council. Participation required in
bylaws.

No Action Necessary 

11. 

Executive Director Report: Rachel Hutchings reported about: 
• Merger Update Emails to the Board
• Conflict of Interest Forms
• All upcoming Committee meetings will include a section about Conflict

of Interest, Roberts Rules of Order, and the Oklahoma Open Meetings 
Act. 

• Confirming Committee Assignments

No Action Necessary 

12. 

Business Services Director Report: Wesley Mitchell reported about the 
following: 

• Financial Empowerment Center – In partnership with the City of Tulsa
and Goodwill Industries, we trained 6 participants  as Certified
Financial Aide Counselors to serve the community.

• Interns for Good – In partnership with Northeastern State University
and the University of Tulsa

• Recovering Oklahomans After Disaster (ROAD) Program - We have
four paid trainees rebuilding homes for Oklahomans after disaster
while earning their certification. This program can be replicated
statewide.

• Partnering with Central Technology Center to develop replicable
employee training for the North Tulsa’s Oasis Fresh Market.

• Partnering with Sandstone Hills Create Bridges Program
• Tulsa Methamphetamine Treatment Continuum – In partnership with

The City of Tulsa, 12&12, Oklahoma State University, and Health Minds
– From Entry to Exit with Employment

• Currently, we have 36 work-based learning participants:
o 26 Internships (Work Experience)
o 10 On-the-Job Training
o Across 22 Employers
o With 10 Prospective Employers
o Employer Projected Savings

The Chair shared made a statement as an employer who has utilized 
these services, the Business team has been fantastic in their 
communication and it really helped Melton Trucking this past year to be 
able to have a couple of interns through Work Experience and On-the-

No Action Necessary 

4



Page 5 of 6 
Oklahoma Works, a proud partner of the American Job Center Network 

Green Country Workforce Development Board  is an equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities. 
This presentation was financed in whole or part by funds from the US Department of Labor as administered by the Oklahoma Office of Workforce Development. 

TDD/TTY: 1-800-722-0353 

Job Training. By participating in these programs, Melton Trucking was 
able to train up the next generation without the normal associated costs 
and even during a pandemic and hiring freeze. They have since been 
able to bridge some participants into full-time positions. 

13. 

Committee/Council Reports: 
• Board Development Committee- Ken Busby reported about the

following:
o Board Certification
o Spring/Summer Diversity & Inclusion Training
o Re-evaluating Growing Talent for Tomorrow Event
o Welcoming Prospective/New Committee Members

• Business Development Committee- Amber Hatten encouraged
Board members to look at how their companies could benefit
from the services offered by the Business Services Team. This
Committee’s goal is for everyone associated with a business who
sits on this Board is utilizing one or more of the services
available. Amber Hatten asked members to also provide ideas to
Wesley Mitchell or her with ideas for additional services to meet
business needs.

• The Finance Strategy & Oversight Committee- In the absence of
Committee Chair, Celia Armstrong, Rachel Hutchings reported
that the Board will be adopting Fiscal Agent, Southern
Workforce Development Board’s financial policies, so this
Committee will be doing a lot of work around that and around
the budget.

• Innovative Workforce Opportunity Council – Kelly Beyer
reported that with the merger, the mission and goals of the
Council are being re-evaluated during several conversations
ahead of the next Board meeting.

• Youth Council – Jay Littlejohn reported that he is looking for
Board member participation for those who are interested in
making sure that there are not any gaps in services to the young
people in Green Country. Jay Littlejohn hopes to gather a large
Youth Council to share resources to support area youth in
reaching their career goals.

No Action Necessary 

14. 

Continuous Improvement Project Presentation was presented by 
GCWDB Human Resources and Quality Director, Martha Webb-Jones. 
The projects facilitated by Jerry Pykiet of Blue Book Consulting were: 

• Process Automation
• Client Assessments
• Fast Track Enrollment

Next steps: 
• Continue monitoring & improvement current projects,

No Action Necessary 

5



Page 6 of 6 
Oklahoma Works, a proud partner of the American Job Center Network 

Green Country Workforce Development Board  is an equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities. 
This presentation was financed in whole or part by funds from the US Department of Labor as administered by the Oklahoma Office of Workforce Development. 

TDD/TTY: 1-800-722-0353 

• Identify continuous improvement opportunities – focus on regional
impact, and

• Equip all employees to drive continuous improvement.

15. 

New Business: Eloy Chavez reported that he is working with Bradley 
Griffith of the Oklahoma State Regents for Higher Education in looking at 
a badge and micro-credentialling program. Eloy Chavez asked the human 
resources directors, talent managers, and everyone in the room, how they 
recognize badges on job applications, resumes, etc. and asked for 
answers to be provided to him via email. 

No Action Necessary 

16. 

Announcements: Karen Pennington announced that the obligations 
were met for the grant from Tulsa Economic Development Corporation 
(TEDC) for the Cares Act Funding and that the $100,000 was received in 
full.   

No Action Necessary 

17. 11:26 a.m. -- The meeting was adjourned. No Action Necessary 

Chair Signature:  ______________________________Date: __________ 

6



�

��������	
����
�
��������������������	���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

 !"#!$%�&' �( '('$)*��
� +,-+./�012�(2131.45.����6��6�����6���71280129+�:;;1<4/=1;�4;>�'3312/-;=/?�)9/�@�%=/5+�:�:;/+A24/+>�$+2<=9+.�012�)>-5/.B�C=.5194/+>�7128+2�D�E1-/F�(21A24G.�H��	����IJ�K2++;�L1-;/2?�71280129+�C+<+513G+;/�M142>�N�O������
���P�Q�R�S�T�U	
����VW�OX���� +5+4.+�C4/+Y�)32=5�Z[B�\]\Z�C-+�C4/+�012�(2131.45.Y�̂4?�Z_B�\]\Z�_3G�L$%�L1;/249/�(+2=1>�àbc�de�fgfd�hijkali�̀amn�oge�fgff�pqhi�krhqkms�hk�jnmnpt�&-;>+>�u?��vin�wkjxykjzn�{mmk|}hqkm�}m~��rrkjhamqhc��zh���vqhbn�{����������������������������������������������������������������������������������	�������	�������
��
P
�	�
���
����
���


�
��Q��U�
�����	 ����
��¡	�����
�����
�����
��������I�¡	��������
P���¡�� �����¢£������� �����¡�¤���������� 
�
��������I�V�
��� ��V¡¡
����¡�����¡�������P�
�� ���� �

7



�

��������	
����
�
��������������������	���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

 ! "#�$%&'(")�*�+����,-.+*�/*,//0�1�
�����	2���������
���3
��
����3
���
�4��2��
��.��54�6��

���
������7�	��8��4������
���	�����8
������������0��#9:;<� 9;=>�"?@;<�%AA9=B@CDBE�%FFD:G=�����������������������������HB;BG�"?@;<�%AA9=B@CDBE�%FFD:G=���������	���7�����4����������� � � I�
���2��I44
����4�����4�������3�
�82��������
��J�
��K�
�� ���������������� � � ����
���������+�L�J.������
���3�.�M�,�N� � � ���������������+���O�����
�����3��	��1	
����IP�LQ����� � � � � I�
���2���
�7��IP�L,��L�I44
��0�+�-.Q,-.L+QR���������������������������������������� � I44
��0�Q�N.+QN.+�-Q�62�

0����
��K�
�S�������	���7K����.�����������������������������62�

0����44
���S����22����.��3�� � � � � � � �1�����T
����
�8��������3�����
���T��K����8��8
��K
����8������������
���
��������8��8
��K
���	���8������������
���
����8
�������

�I�
���2����
�7����L��*���80UUKKK.��
���2���
�7.��2UL��.��2
/����1��U11�0�-��VL��V�,N,�O��
��
3
�	�
�
������W�
����J������2�7���������T��
���4���������
������

�
������X�����
���
���
�
���������
��T


�7�����8�

�
��
��44


��
������T�

�4������4���T���4
�
��
�����88

��������������
�������
7���������T��
���4��
�
Y����
8����8���
�
8��
���
����7��5I��1
�
��5V4
����
�

7����
�����8�����2�������
3
�7��T���X�
	����4��2�8���
�
8��
���
������
�������T���4
����4���	TZ����������
���
2
���
���	������������
����28
�72����
��������2
�
�����
����4����
���������
���K
�����7��5I��1
�
��5V4
����
�

7����
�����8�����2�������
3
�7.��������
8



�

��������	
����
�
��������������������	����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ���

!"#$%#$&��'�����	��
���((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((�)�������
�'�*��+��
��((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((�,���-�.�/0/12�32�1����3(((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((�,�/4'�'�'4'2��2-��/3�-1�((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((�,���-�-3/���-0�/2/1�'/3�(((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((�5��.26-�'7/���-�����-12��2�((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((�8��-1�'�/12'�4'2��((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((�8��/1/��4��-1�'2'-13�(((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((�8��6�1�/3���0/1�0/123���'26�����4���/9'33.�1�/�(((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((���3���
����(����������������

����((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((�����:	����*������;���
��<���=�3����	
��(((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((���>./32'-1?�13�/���/�'-�(((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((���3.�0'33'-1�-����-�-3�4��(((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((����-12���2�2/�0��/�'-��((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((���3���
����(�����;���
�'�*��+��
��(((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((���3���
����(��3;��
*
���
����((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((�@�6
 �9���*��+
� �-� ��
A��
���((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((�@���+;������
B��/+;
�C+����3��B
����((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((�,����������*��+������������+;

�����0��� �+����((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((�5�����
�����((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((�8�3	;;���
B��3��B
����(((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((�����+

C����������/+;
�C+���(((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((���3�


��2��
�
� �/���

+��������D�E��
���+���((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((���D�E�����
�������� ��+�(((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((�����
��
�C���;	
��
���(((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((�����	���3��B
����((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((����'-����	����F�/
�+����(((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((������������	���(((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((������������
;��������

�E����
���(((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((���3	;;
�+����
����������
������
B���	��
� ��3;��
�
�'�
�
��
B���(((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((����	���+���3��
�*���
���0���	��+����((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((���
9



�

��������	
����
�
��������������������	����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ���

!"�#$�%�&'�!"�'&�(((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((�)����
�
���
���������������*���
+


�
���((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((�)�,-./012�3425672898:8;842�((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((������������������((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((�<����������#=*��(((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((�<���
>
��
�?
����=���*�����((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((�<��������������@�
�����'A����
���((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((�B�&���
����(����������	�
�C���	��>����((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((�B���	
��D��
�
��������������C���	����((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((�B���	���C���	����(((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((�E���� ��>��������F��>�����C���	����((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((�E�&'�#"GH�<(�����
�
���������
�	����(((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((�I�&���
���B(��"��� ��������

J��=��F�&��J
��������"�F��>��
����������G��K&��*�&=���>�((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((()B�&���
���E(��&��J
��������������	����+=�#�
�����*���
�(((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((()L�&���
���I(��#����
��
����
�������������*������((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((�<�&���
���L(���	� ���"�F��>��
��((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((�B�&���
�����(�����*���
�'J�
	��
�����
���
�(((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((�I�&���
�����(�����*���
�"����	��
�����������*���
�G	�

���((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((�L���J���*� ��((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((<�����*��������������
�F��>��
������������
*�
����F��� ��
M��
���N*� ��

>
��D��O((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((<�����*������������
J���	�

�
� ���@�=�	�@


�*��J
����������FF���P	
����
���������(��N�� ��%
>
��D�IO((((((((((((((((((((((((((<��Q	�

F
���
�����F�&��FF(�N�� ��%
>
��D��O((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((<�����F��>������������F��>�����C���	���(��N�� ��%
>
��D��O�(((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((<�����J
�	��'A*��
����(��N�� ��%
>
��D��O�(((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((<��C��
���
� �����&�
FK'J�
	��
��(��N�� ��%
>
��D��O�(((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((<)��	� ���(��N�	� ���F��>������
��
	����
��*� ��

>
�O(((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((<)�����
F
���
��������&
 ���	���(((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((<��&"�H�#$�'����'�((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((<I��##��?C'H#���(((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((<L�RSTUVW�VX�RSTXVTYZ[\S�]�̂_̀a�bc�dedb�fgTV_hg�̂_[S�iec�dedd�(((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((<L�RTVjS\fSW�RSTXVTYZ[\S�((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((<L��##��?C'H#���N����(O(((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((B��
10



�

��������	
����
�
��������������������	����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ���

��������	�
����!��"�����#���������$���	
�������%��#��&
���'''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''(���))��*+,-)���.����'/'''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''(����������	�
����!��"�����#���������$���	���#��&
����'''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''(���))��*+,-)��''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''(0�123456�789:;<=6>:8�?:;<@�''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''(0��))��*+,-)���.����'/'''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''(���))��*+,-)���.����'/'''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''(A��))��*+,-)��''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''(B�����
!
���
����� ���
� ���	 C���������D
������E	
��"�����'''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''(F�����
!
���
����� ���
� �%�GGH
� �!����������������������%�������������D����
&��� ���"����''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''A������
!
������� ���
� ����!

����!�I��������''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''A���))��*+,-)���'''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''A0��))��*+,-)�,�''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''AJ����������������
11



�

��������	
����
�
��������������������	����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ���

!"#$%&'(#!%"���������	���)�����*�������+�
�,-����������.�����/�
������ 
���
�0��.�/�.1/����2,��*
�����,����
��������,��+
����3���*��������+
�������4�5�������������5	�
�������
������
�+���2��	��)��� 
���
��6�
���-�7��89::;�<=>;?9@�A=9BC=9D:EF�GHFFH=;�HF����*	�
������-
����+�
�,-����5)������
� ���
��
����
,�������5���*
���-,
�)��������4�5���������5)�,
��
� ���
��������)��3�

��,��,��
� �
��
+
�	�
��*�������4�5���*���-����37��������
�� �+������5)����������*��
���������,,�
�����5)�
���
���
�*�I
������6**
�
�
��
�������������3
�������6�
���-��6**
����*�����*�������+�
�,-����������������*�����J���+��
���6,,���	�
�)������*����K7�������
����-,������*�+�
	��������--	�
�)�
���������,������
� ��-,
�)������� ��
L���
�5������	���
��������,�������7�M����������*��
�������������
�������IN��	�
+���
�������.I�/�������+���������,������
������ ���*�8<AOPEF�QRHS@�=T:9R?H=;FU�VW:�XO�HF�>S?HGR?:S@�9:FT=;FHYS:�C=9�R;Q�=Z:9F::F�?W:�=T:9R?H=;F�R;Q�CH;R;D:F�=C�8<AOPEF�T9=[9RGF\�T:9F=;;:S\�R;Q�T9=D>9:G:;?�T9=D:FF:F�>?HSH]:Q�?=�D=GTS@�̂H?W�������
�����_������� 	
��
���7�M���,�
-��)����,���
5


�)��*�������
�����
����
*)�����3���*���������������
��	����*���������̀�����,��+
���,�

�)�����,�� ��-� 	
�����������+�
	��
����*�3���*�������+�
�,-����,�� ��-���������+
����������**����������-,
�)��������
�����������4�5��������7���������,����������,	5

�a,�
+����,��������
,���������+������������
)���*���5	

�
� ���3���*�������+�
�,-�����)���-������-����������������*�
���
��-,
�)��������4�5��������7�M�������*��������������������
�����*����
��������������������b�J�������b	��� ����6�-	
 ����6�� �����3�����_�c	�)����M	
���������� �������	��
��7�����-����
�*��-��
����5�	���������,
�����+
�
��3337 ������	���)3����7�� 7�M�
����c	����*������,���
�.���/�,��+
����,�����
�
����,��������3
���+
��
�5��� ��	���
�*��-��
������������
5����������
�������+
����� 	
��

����*����	5-
��
� ������,����������������
���
���,������7�������
�
����,����������������� 
)�����	�� �����d�e������������������*	

)̀�����e����+
����

���������)�
�*��-��
�����������c	���
�����������������
��
����
����������,�
������������,������������	��
���7�����
12



�

��������	
����
�
��������������������	����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ���

!"#"$%&�'#()$*%+')#�,$)-.$"*"#+�/+%#0%$0/�����	��1�����2� ������������3
����	�����2�����
����
�������4�� ��1�����

�5��
����14

�����6
���7�
���1��722
����2�����2�������3�
�41�������4���1�����2�8�5���������97���	
��������� 	
��
���:�;����� 	
��

������<	
��������4���	��1������������
����5������	�����
����1�����������4��3
����2���1�=
1	1�2���������4�����14��
�
��:����
�
���

>���6�����1�>���
>�5��1��������� ��
?��
����4������
� �������1�����������5


�>����4��2��1��	�����2	

>�	������������1����������
�
�����2��������������� ���1���:�;���4���	��1�����2��

� ������������3
�������

�5������	�������������1�=
1	1��=�����4����
��
��
����1������4��3
�
� �2	

������4�����14��
�
�������
������6
����44

��5
����1
�
�����
3����<	
��1����:��"&'!'@'&'+A�+)�$"/,)#0�;�
����<	����2������4���
�B���C�
���4����� ���
� �����3��
��>��2�4��4������4�
����������	���������������	
�
� ���
���
���6


�5�����4���
3����������	�������������������

�� ����2������� ��
?��
��:�7� ��
?��
�����5
�����1�������������
��
��4��
2
���
����2���<	�

�>��������������1���2���
��4��4���
�4���� ������������5���������D����	�4������2��1�����	��
� �5	�
�����6
���2�����
�����������2	������ ���
�������
�3
����������4���:���4���4���
3��4��4�����1	����22
�1��
3�
>���1������������4���
5


�>:���4���4���
3��4��4������5>��	51
��
� ���4��4���
������
2
�����������������
��1���������2�

�6
� ���<	
��1����E�F��������������
���5
������5��
�����<	����2
����
�
�����	����������<	
�������4��2��1�	�������
������
���5
�������14
>�6
���������<	
�������4��4��������:�F�G��������
�2�����>���������2�
��� �
�>��������
��:�F���������6
���<	�

2
��������

 
5
���������
3������6���:�F����
�� ���������
� �6
��������44

��5
�����
���
���������������
��
���:��H����������B�C�6


�5���6�����������>����4������B�C������
�D�������I��������������
������
������	�
� ������6����4������2�����4���	��1����4������:��J
���
�>���
���3���� ����3������K�6��������6�1��K�6����5	�
���������������	�� ���������4���������
�����:������4	�4������2���
��LMNO�PQRSTSURSV�WXQRTYWRXTU�YTS�TSZSTTSV�RX�YU�[NTX\XUSTUO]�[LSU\XQVSQRUO]�[̂\\_PWYQRUO]�XT�[����������:]���
13



�

��������	
����
�
��������������������	����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ���

!"#!#$%"�&#'!%(%)&*%$����+������,	�����,������������-���.�������� ��
/��
���
���+��
�-������,
�
�����+�� ��,��
�������������0
���������1	
��,������2���
�����3������������.��������
 ����������	�����+��4�0����2
���
�
��� �
�-��.�
	��
����2�������
������+��+����3�5���+	�+�����2�����+��4�0����2
���
�
��� �
�-��.�
	��
���
����������,
���������+��
�-��2������67879:6;9�76<=>?@=A?7>�A7�78:6=A:�AB:�867<6=CD�,������,
�
�����
.����1	
��,����������,�
���
��������1	����2
����
�
��-���,3����+������,	��E�F�G�����+���
G
������+������������G


�-����+��2��,��	�����2	

-�	������������,����������
�
�����2�����������H�F���,������������-���.���	22
�
����2
����
�
�����������+��.
������1	����0���
� ���+
��
�2����+����
�����I+�����H�F���,������������-���.������� ����
��2
����
�
J2
���
����+���
G


�-�����22J+�������
�,��� �,����K
��
	�
� ����22�1	�

2
���
���L������,��� �,�����2��+��
�
�+��M����H�F���.��0�

4��.�
�+���2
���
�������,
�
�����
.���-���,�����
����
2
���G�
�0H�F���.��������,
�
�����
.����+�G


�-�������,+���������������-��������-��	���������,����������
�
�����2���������������I���
-�����+��
2
��H�����F���.�����0
�� �������I+��
�����
��������

.��-��2�0���2�������.�
�+,�������.
�������
������
��������.
���+�� ��,3�����+������,	�����.������2
����
�
�����	������������G


�-����,�����
 �������������2�+	G

������2
�	�
��-����+���
G


�-3�N	�

2-
� �+��+������,	�����.��2
����
�
��-���,������������,
�
,	,�,��������2�

�0
� ����������O�5���2
����
�
��-���,��
�������������0
���������

-�����+��������	��
� ���
��
+
����,	���
��
	��E�F�
�2��,��
���+����
�
� ������-��	G4 ������������������0�������G

 ��
�����	��G

 �����G�
����������������I+���
�	���������
���,�H�F��+���������
��2
���
��-���,�����������	�
�G��
�H�F��22���
.��
������
�������
�������2� 	������������������	������
��+��+���	��H�F�����,+��
�����2����	�
��I+���
�	����0
���G	� ������,�	���H�F���	�������	,�����
�������	++��������	��
� ��������H�����F�+��+������� 
� ��2�����������������

����
��3�� �
����
�
��-���,��,	���G���	22
�
������E�F�+��,
��+��+����
����2���1	
������+����H�F�+��,
�������
� ��2��I+���
�	�������1	�����������G

����������������.������G����	����
��.
�
��
����2������++

��G
�������
��
���H�����
14



�

��������	
����
�
��������������������	����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ���

!�"��#
�������
� ��$�"�� ��#�
���#���"�����
�
������%
�������������������$	���&�� !��
����
�
���#
�
�����
��������'���#��#	�����#"
'�(
���������)	
��#�����$��� �����#��� �#���&��!�*$$������#	���+�����(
�� ��+
���$���������	������	
������ 	
��
���������"�

�
����$�����$	��
� ������#����#
�
�������	�������
����������&�,-./012345�60,15�708.,7.�9����	����
:�������$�������������������$�����
��"���	��#����
�������
�;	���
� ���<=��	�
>���
������&������?���@&AB@&C�A�����	���
� �D ������	���'(����&�� ��708E2548.2,F2.G�9�����	�����$�
��������#"��
�
>��+
��
� ���>
���#��������������

�����+����##	�
���
���+��(�����������$$
�
�
����#"
�'����������"��������
>�������"���
���
�>�
>���
������+
��
� �"��������������	
������������	�$�
����>���� �������'�"���'�(
������"������������(�����$�����������������&��9�
�����$
����
�

�'���)	
��#����+� 
������������'������������)	����$���"��"���
�H���I�
����>���
����������������������'������������������(����
��#���&���'���##	�
���
������
�++'
� ����
>
�
����	�
� ���
��"��
���+'���'�"�������
��
	�
� �+	������

#
��������+
�������
�++'
�����������	
�������$�+
����������>
���"��>
��������"�����
�
�>�������������'��$�����$�

�(
� ?��������������#�#+��������������$$�����������
�����"���
�������"���
	����$��#��������
�
� �JKL�MNOPQRSKP�SNQPRTO�QUO�VRTTOWPX�YSKZOWOKYO�JKT[SW�QUO�\WRQQOK�MNOPQRSK�]WSYOPP�TOPYWRVOT�+�
�(&�������
�
��""

����������������������"��������������
�
����+'�����#��
� �"������
���)	�����$������
������&�̂��	����
:���#������������	������$����"����������
��
$
���
�����������
������
�>�

�&���'�>
�
��
����$���
��"�������#�'��
�)	�

$'�����""

����&�_4841,F�70852.208̀ �*$$���������	
������
��������$�

�(
� � �����
�����
�
����
��"��"��
� ����"�����?�!������������>��������
 �������� ��
��������$
��
����#���$���'%���%�

��������������� ���#������(
���������
���������"�������������'��	������#���� ��
�������������	
���$���
������#�'�+������ ��
��������a����#������
������������	�����$	

'�#���������������$�����(���$�������>�
�"#��������&�!��

��������
����
'����
��
����
'���
������������"��"����
����$������"����������������������'����
�"��������
�����)	
��������	""
�#�������a����
��
$'���"��"���
��(�
���#�'�+����)	
�����+'��������������

�+��������
�����"���
+


�'��$�����+�����+'������""

����&�!�bQ�RP�cdefgXP�RKQOKQ�QS�YSKQWJYQ�\RQU�JK�OKQRQL�QUJQ�\Rhh�"��$��#��

�"�
#��'�$	���
�����$���
����������&�9��������������#�'��	+�����������'��$��������
>
�
��a$	���
���������
+���UOWORKi�bQ�RP�Oj]OYQOT�QUJQ�JKL�PNYU�JWWJKkOlOKQmPn�VO�TRPYhSPOT�RK�QUO�J]]hRYJKQXP�
15



�

��������	
����
�
��������������������	����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

 �� ���
!�"��	������#	���$��$���������

�%�$
����������$
����

���$
���������������&��' ������������� �� ����� �����#!���&�������������	
�
���(��#���
�� ���	��#�������

�
��
	�����������

����
��� 
���(�����&�������������!�"�)���*((�������
������(���(	��
���	�������
������%


�$���	$+������� ��,�%������-
�%�!�)�
��#�&�
��
	���$	������$��

#
�����������-
�%��(�����*((����.������������ 
��� �����	�����#�����#�����&���#�������	��
���������#
�
�����
-���&���#������ �����	���!����,�%������-
�%��%


����	�� �
��������������������
��
���!��/0123456�17428742956�:;908<1:1=6�<4>;55?12/4���&��
�����#�&�%
�����%����
��$
���
�����
�� ���������$&�%�
�������@	���������&��
#�� �
���������� �� ���
��	������������
#�!�A�����
�
������������(����������������-��������
������B�"��#�������%
�����%���
�����������&��
#�C�"���+������&������

��  

���
���C����D���"���,
��	����
�����!�� �

16



�

��������	
����
�
��������������������	����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

 !"#$%&�'(��)*#! �*&)�)!*)+$&! �,����
-�

������.��/�
�.�
��������
-����������	
���0���������1������2�3!45! #�6%3�73%7% *+ �83679� ":!)5+!�*;<=>=<?� )@<A����0������0����������11��B�
�� C����������	��1�

�D���������11��B�
��0������ �1�

��E����������
������������1	/

��� �1�

��F�����������

���0����
�����G	���
����� �1�

��F�������H�������I,�����1�����0����
�����G	���
������������ C�J�K������������	��� C�J����������������B
�.��� C�J�������	�����������
�
������������L����B
�.������I�
���
���� ������0�C�J��M������
/
�������0���I1��
�
�������C���
�������11��B��� C�J��N����������������O����
��
���� P	��������	�����������������
��� P	
J����������QRSTU��VWT�XTYXZ[\T�]WR̂\�Y_R̀T�abYc�def�gegd�[]�ThSiTjTZc�[jkRiSY\Sl��VWT�mRjkZTSTX�kiRkR]YZ�jn]S�WỲT�_TT\�kWc][mYZZc�iTmT[̀TX�R\�Ri�ki[Ri�SR�SWYS�XTYXZ[\Tl��op�cRn�kZY\�SR�WỲT�cRni�kiRkR]YZ�XTZ[̀TiTX�RSWTi�SWY\�_c�kTi]R\YZ�XTZ[̀Ticf�kZTY]T�iTjTj_Ti�SWYS�T̀T\�SWRnqW�SWT�kiRkR]YZ�jYc�_T�kR]SjYirTX�ki[Ri�SR�SWT�XTYXZ[\Tf�[p�[S�[]�\RS�iTmT[̀TX�_c�SWT�XTYXZ[\T�S[jT�Y\X�XYSTf�[S�Y_]RZnSTZc�mY\\RS�_T�mR\][XTiTXl���stuvwx�yz{uv|}~�����ww}���z}{����������uw��w�wx���w}{���t������wuz{|�w��|�wu{������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� (�)A<��=<�*>A(��'�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������#���@��%����'������������ � ����������������������%  =;A�:�����¡¢���*(£�<���¢���7(£(�£¤6�������
17



�

��������	
����
�
��������������������	����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

 !"#$%&'()'#*"+�,"+%&-�,./01234562�75882.90:�;<=�0>?;54�@.5442A�B>2045/A0�?2C5AA5AC�D.58<=E�)1.5F�GHE�IJIGK�L	���
����M�N�O���M�

��P����Q���������R�
�����S	���
��������
T���Q�
��������������

���R


�O������������
������LU��Q�������������R�O�
���RRRP�������	���NR����P���P�V	OM
��S	���
������W������
�X	���
���������	���
���Y�������	���NR����P���P����
�����S	���
����R


�O������Q�������
����������Z����N���Q�

��[������������W���QPMP��V\P�L	���
��������
T����]������
������

���R


�����O�����R����P�\����]��������Q����������������	���������T
�R�����R�O�
���]��S	���
N�������	������N�����]	

N��R�����]�����M�����	������
�]��M��
��P��

����R����
��	���
�����Q�����������Q�������S	���
����O���M��Q�����]���������������������Q������P��#!7̂ %##%&'�&D�,+&,&#)_#�]̀]
�
�
�����
Q���]�Q��Q���
��R


�O��
��	���ON����������]]P��\
M�
N���

T��N��]�Q��Q���
��
��������
�����Q���
O


�N��]�����Q��Q����P�����Q���
��M�N�O��R
�����R��	Q���R�
�������S	����
]�M����O�]�����������Q���������

��P�\���������]����	��
���Q��Q���
�����������R
�����R��R


�O���������Q���
O


�N��]�����O
����P�̀�����������Q���������

���
��Q��������

�Q��Q���
��R


�O���M������Q��Q���N��]������ �̀a�̀��b��̀��������R


�����O�����	����P����Q���
���	OM
�����
�����Q����������
�����������	Oc�������̀�
���M��̀Q�������������������M�N�O���
��
������������Q	O

��	Q�����S	���P�d�����	M�������
��
��������
��Q���	��M����R


�O��Q�����������������R
���M�����T�

�O
�������N�������Q������������N����������
e��
���	��

��]��������]	��
����R���P���N�Q��Q�
����N�
�]��M��
������	
��O���
���
N�M���������fghijhklmnhoPp�qd���W�r�]��M��
���M���������Q��Q�
����N�M�N���


�O������
������Q	O

��
�]��M��
��s������������N�������
�M���������]
��
����
�
������R����
��Q��Q�
����NPt�u&'$+)u$�$"+̂ �,"+%&-�������M�N��R�����������M������������q�t�]����������T
������

�������
������V��Q���]������
����
�����P�\�����������q�t����	
�
���]��M���
��Q���	��M����M�N���MM�����R
����������
�
���
�Q��
����]��QQ��v
M���
N�������qwt�M�����P��]�������������
�
���
�Q��
����������������q�t����	
�
���]��M���
��Q���	��M����R


�O��]���������q�t�N�������MP������������T��������
������������
����	Q�����R��q�t�����x�N�����������������R�
������
������	Q������
�]�����N�Q��]��M�����������������T�

�O


�N��]�]	���P��������������Q��]��M������T�
	��
���R


�O����S	
����������������]������N���P�\������������O	�����R


�O�������
��������	�

NP�d������N�T��y����N�]��R�����]�]	����R


�O��
��
	����
��������v��olnhz{�|i}mhn|m~����
18



�

��������	
����
�
��������������������	������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������ ���

!"#$%&'�()��*+&*&!,-�%'.&+/,$%&'��0�
����1	����2������3���
�4���5�
��
��	������3���	������6
���������3�����2�����
���
����6
�����

6��7��2���������2�����8���6��
�������933���	�
�7����:��0�
������
����
���������3���	������6
�������;���3���	������������
<���
����
��3���� �:��

�
��
6
�	�
�����=3��
����� ���
���������������
�
����	<=
��
� �3��3���
��=	���<���>�����2�����

=
���
�����������
����
������
��?�@����3���
����
������2�����6
�>�>


�<���6�
	���������=�7�<���� ��
����:������������6��������
 ������2	����

����=������������2�����3��3���
������
6��:�0������	�
��=�	����2���7���������������
��>�
�����
���	<A��������� ��
��
���3�
����������2
��

B��
����2�������������:�0���3��3���
�����������=������6���� ��	�������������2�������6�
�3=���������
�����=���2�<����1	�

�7����������>


�<������==������2�������������� ��
��
���:��@����3������=�7�<��������2����
��
27
� ������=�������������������3�
����������	�
� �������6
�>������� ��
��
���3������:�0����������=�������������>


�<����1	��������
7�����
��
27�
��=���
����7�
��
	����
������3��3���
������>����	<=
����:�0��������=�������������3��6
����<7�����3��3�����>


�<������
���������<����3�����2�����3��3���
:��@����3���
����
������2�����6
�>�>


�<���6�
	�����������
� ������
���
������2�����
����
��3��3���
�3���� �:�C�=���6�
	��
�����
���
��>


���6��=
�
=	=�����3��<
��������������=	���<��=��:���

	������=��������=
�
=	=��������>


��

=
���������3��3���
�2��=�2	�������6�
	��
�����������
�����
��:����3���
��>


�<���6�
	�����<7����������==
����:�0�
��������==
�����>


�����
����2�������C��22�����D�������
3:��0���������==
�����>


�=����������==�����
����������2	

������:��0���������>


������=��������2
��
����
�
������������ ��
B��
��4�5����>�
��������������>


�<���>�����:��@�0���������==
�����>


���
7���6
�>�3��3���
��2���3�� ��=�������
��
	����������6
������1	������
����
��3��3���
�3���� �:����3������=�7�
��
	������
�
���
����6
���������3�����2�����3��3���
��<	������3��3���
�=	���������=
�
=	=�������
���������
�
� �������6
��������������3��
2
��

7����>�:��@����3���
���	<=
�����
�����3����������
�����������	<A�������9�
���=��93�������������������=�7�<���
��
������������3	<

��	3�����1	���:�E�����	=�������
��
� ������
��3���	��=����>


�<��3�����������������>
���=�����6�

�<
�������7�������3�������� ���7������� ��
B��
���	��

��2��������2	��
� ��>���:���7�3��3�
����7�
�2��=��
������	
��<���
���
7�=������FG�HIJKLJMNOFJPQR�4E���?�8�2��=��
���=���������3��3�
����7�=�7���


�<������
������3	<

��
�2��=��
��S������������7�������
�=���������2
��
����
�
������>����
��3��3�
����7:5��@�0�����������	���7�����2�������6�
�3=������������������<

�������3�����	����������
6����7�3����������
�3	������
�
=������ �
�6�����������=�7���
���2��=���
��3���	��=����3������:�����37��2���
��3�����	���>


�<��=�����6�

�<
�������7�3��3�����	3�����1	���:�0�
��3�����	��� 
6�����3��3���������33���	�
�7����3������������>��������3��6
����2�������6
�>��2�����3������������������=
���
������<��
��	���<7�����
��
6
�	�
������	��
� �������6
�>:�0������
����2��>�����������
����2�����3�������3�������>


�<��3��6
������������
=��3��3�������������
2
����2������	���=���2����
��3��3���
:�0�
�����
���>


�<��3��6
������������3��3�����>
��
�������7���2�����������2��>�����2����������������=�7�<��3��6
����6
���T=�

���
�������������<7���
�3���������<7��� 	
���=�

:�0���3�������3�������>


�3��6
���2�����=
�
=	=��2������7��2�����3��3���������	<=
����3������:�0������
����2�����3�������3�������>


�3��6
���
19



�

��������	
����
�
��������������������	������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������ ���


�!��"��
������������"��������������
�!��"��
����!�����
��
#
�	�
����$��"�����%�������"	���&���	&"
����'���(�)�
�����������
�����%��%���
�!��"��'�)�
��*+,��&��!�

�$��'��

���������$����������	�

���"	���&��!	

-��.%
�
���'�)����
 ���	���%� ��"	���&����"%
�������
 ��������������
/����������%��%���
�$


�����&������%����!�����#
�$'��(�0	&"
��
� �����%��%���
�$


������
�	�����
� �
��&
��
� ��!!���!�����%��
����!�����
���������������-��!��"�����������!������	&"
��
� ��!�����%��%���
'��(����%���������

������!!������%��#
�����-� ���	
�
����!�#����������-��
� ��!�"������-�#�
	�������-��!!
�����"�"&�����"%
�-�������� �����!������������1���
�2
������3!!
�
�
�����	�����""
����������������� ��
/��
���!�������%	�%�����!���#
� ����
�!
	���
� ��!!������$�������
���$��%��%���
������-�������%��%���
��	&"
���������	����'��(�4��
!
���
�������%��%���
���������#��&�����	&"
�����$


�&������%������
-�	����������� 	
��

���'�5�6�)�����
 
��
�%��%���
������$����	&"
�����"	���&��$
�����$�'�)���%��%�����"	���%��#
�����$�
�������7	�������$
�����$�������
 
��
�%��%���
8�����5�6�����"%
���
-���$�%��%���
�"	��������&���	&"
����'�9������ ���"�-�&��"�����������%��%���
��	&��7	���������������

�������'��(����:������������������������������!�%��%��
� ���
��%��%���
����������

�$�&
�������������������&��
��
	����
������%��%���
�&	� �������
����-����	
�
� ����������&	� ��'��(����%���������	
��&���$���������!	��
� �!����;3��%�� ��"��
���
$�-���	&<��������#�

�&


�-���������������
�
���'��	��
� �!���!	�	���%��
����"�-�&������ ����
 �
!
����
-�
!��%%��%�
��
����!����;3��%�� ��"������ �����
!���"� ��%�
������� ��$
��
������0��������
���
�$���!�������#�
�%"��������'��(�9���"%
�-�����!!
��������� �����!������
���
�� ������������1���
�2
������3!!
�
�
�����	�����""
����������������� ��
/��
������

�%���
�
%����
��������
���
����!�������������	%%������&-��;3��!	����
!������!

����!�
������������%�����
�
����!

����$�	
��&��
�#�
#��'��(����%���������

������� � ��
����-����
#
�-������$


������
�������

"
�������"%��
�
��'�=
�
��
����!���
��%��#
�
���"�-���	��������%����>��&
�����&����<�����'��(�)��������������#��������
 ����������������-�
��
#
�	�
��� ���-���"%
�-������� ��������

�����
����%��%���
��������������������$���"�-���#���.%��
��������?������$
�� ���!�����&
����>@�ABCBD����%��!��"��������?���7	�

!
���
��������������7	�������
�
���
�
�!��"��
���!��"���-������

�%��%�����'�)����������
��������#��������
 ����������	�������#
�$��!�����������-���"������%�����	�����
��
	�
� �����
��������
"
��
�&��� ��	������������!���-����
�-���
������!���!	��
� '�)�
��"�-����	���
�����&�!��������!���������$�����!���������������� ���"���'�4
���%��������
����!�����%��%����>���&


�-����%��!��"�����������
������%��%���
�"�-����	
��
�������

��
����!���-�������������� ���"�����$�����'�
20



�

��������	
����
�
��������������������	������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������ ���

�!�"��������������#


�$��%��
������$&�����������%��
��������%	�����'��������	�
��	�
��
��
	����
��������������(�)�����%��
�������	�
����������'
�#����*��%�+��������,���������
�� ���
���%�&��
���%��
��������	�
���������������������%	���$��-��'
���������������

����������������	%����������
�����#
�������-��*��%������*���
����������(��!�"�������������������
����
����������	 ����
������
���.-���������$��*�%


���#
��������/)�������� 	
��
���������--
&
� ����%�
����'�
�-
� ��������-���������������(�"������������,����/)��������
�����+������ ����#


���*���������������������$�����#�������-��'
��������
��
����
������������������������(�0123456�78��09124:42;34560�� "���*�

�#
� ������.�%-
����*��������������-��'
�
���������#


�$��
��
	����
��������������������#


�$����'�
�-�����������	
���*���
�����(�"����.������.���*��������������-��'
�
���%�&��
**����

 ��
&�*��%������.�%-
�����#�(������������'��������
 ��������

�
����� � �����%�'������,��������
 �����'
���-��'
��������'��
�	��-�� ��%��$�������������������%
����$&�-��*��%��������%-

�������-��
�

<��
��������,���
����=	�������'
�����

'��&(�"�
����=	����*������-���
��>���?�������-��-���
��*����� ��
<��
�������-��'
����
�����#���*��������'
�������@�$��������������%-
�&��������	 ������*	

A���'
���#���*�����������>�?���**


����#���*�����������>�?��BC�BDEFC�GFCHIJF�BKDLFDMGN�OGGBJIODFP�QIDE�RSTUVWG�QBCXYBCJF�GFCHIJFG�ZFDQBCX�IZ�OLL�DEF�FLFHFZ���	��
��(�[4\[]91̂:5̂ _46\�5̂ \;64̀;3456�"�����������������

��%-
�&����**����������=	�

*
�������
���������*	���
���������
 �A-��*��%
� ��� ��
<��
��(�������
������
� ��������������������.�%-

*
������	���%��A�$�������%����

�&��%���
� ������	���%������'
���
�����
 �������	�������$���'
�����*��	���
'������	���%���-�-	
��
���(���������������

����-�����	%��A������������
 ���--����������

�%��������*��	���%������'
��(�)-����
���

&����
��%��������
���*���%%������-���
� ���--��'�
�-�����������
%�������
��������	

� �����(����
����
�����������'
�����

'��&����
��%������������
� ��	���%���#�
���
%������
� ���*�����������
 ������	��	��������������*�*��%������������%���� 
� �
������������
������(��"���
�
���
����'
�����>
(�(�����
 ��������A%��� ����
�A-������%���
� �����������������(?����

�$���**���������	���%�����$	����������������

�����	�� ��������'�������	���%�������	�


<����#�����
���'��
'�����'
���(��� ���
�����*�����%�������*���

'��&����������������

�%�
���
��*��	������

 
$


�&�������%-

�������=	
��%����(�
21



�

��������	
����
�
��������������������	������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������ ���

���������������!!����

�"����#$�
�����!����
�������	#�������	��������"	�
��������%
���$��!���
���
��&���!	���
�������&���������%�����������	��������������%��
�	�����������
��
����!�����$�$	
��
�������'()*+,))�-.//(+*01�2*03*+�456789)�:,;*.+<�=0���#
�
#	#���

���������������!!����

���%����"��� ��	�������>$��
�����
�����
�
����%
������	#�������	�����������#
����"	�
�������#
�
�����
�������?����� 
���
������@�A������!!����������
�%��B$����
���
�C>��

�������

���������������!!�������D	
���������#$
�������
��	���EF���� �
G����	���#������%
�������
!
���
���$�� ��#@�H��������������
����D	
���������%��������������������
����������	���#���I��%
�����$��������
%��J�I�K����?����������L�%
 ���������������������
�
� �����&���
 ��
�� 	� �������
��"


� 	�
@�A!�����������������
������#���������������������%����
����$�"


�E�����
#���!��
�������E�#	���$��%
������
�
� �������#�������%�����#�$��%
������������%
����&
��
��M����E���!��
��@�A������#����
#������������������#	������	������������%
��������$��%
�����
�����&
���
�F��	�������	"���������������	����@��������
����##
�����������	�
� �
��
����!
���
%���!�������
�������������������!�
����
%�����$�$	
��
��@�5.+0:N-0.:�*)�:,O(*:,P�0.�,/QR.1�Q,:).+)�:,SR,-0*T,�.S�456789)�Q:*.:*01�Q.Q(RN0*.+)�N+P�),:T,�N)�N+��>�#$
���������"	�
�������##	�
�E�"E��#$
�E
� �
��
%
�	�
��&
���"���
��������#$
�E#����
��
	�
� ��U	��
��F
�%�
%���
��
%
�	�
���E�	� F��	
������

� ����	�������$�������&
����
��"


�
����%���������#


���E��#
 ������������
�!��#�&������������!������E�	��@������������
��!	��������D	
�����������"

�����#������!����$��
�

G��
����#�� ��	��$�
��
�E�$�$	
��
���@����

���������������!!�&


�"�������F���
�������$��%
������%
�����#�� ��

�&���!�����$�� ��#��	
��������� 	
��
��������"�����
�������	�


G���

�����"����@������������&


����
 �����!!����&����
��!	���
���
��$��U���F"��������?���$�$	
��
���F�"��������#������&


���

�"�������#�� ��

�!	���
����
��
	�
� �	�
%����
��#$
�E#�������%
�������	
������E�	���&�����>$��
������$$���	�
�
������


�����
�
� ��U�"�$
���#��������@������&


�"�����&
�� ��"
���!��

�&���!�����$�� ��#����� 	
��
��������� 	
��

���@��V+�0.PN19)�SN)0F$��������F��#������%
���#��������%
�����

%��E�#	���"��� 

����&
!����!!
�
���������%�
	�F�����@��E�"�
� ����$���
%����������������!����
%�������� ���!�U�"������������	������������#$
�E�����������
����D	
�
� ��

����!!����&��������!	���
���
���$������
E��!�����
�
���
�&�����
����&������������E@�H�
��#������������&�������
�������������&���!����������������$���
� ��������&���
� ���������
���$�������� ���
�������������$	"

��$
����������$��%
�
� ��

��������%
�����%�

�"
���������&���!������������@���������������

�����"

�����$�����������#������!������
�
� ����������
� ����!!��#�� ��!!F�
���
����
�����#�
���
�
� �$��������
���

��
�%�����	��
��@�����
22



�

��������	
����
�
��������������������	������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������ ���

!"#$%&'&()*+&�&#$,"-#&(.�)&%+*!&)������������/


�0��1
���	�
1����
�����
���1��
1���20
�32�������1
��������	 ���

�������/���4���������������������


���
����
���5��6���720
�32����8��1
����6��2����

�9����20�
�����4��
 �:���� 3�0��4���
���
� �����

����
���39�
��0��
�
����/��������9
�������
� ������������4������
��
1
�	�
�	�
1����
�;�9������������0��1
�������2�����00��0�
����
�1�
��4��	���2��:�����
�����1
���������


 ����5�7�������2�2�29������

��44�������0��1
�������� ���4����1
����
��
	�
� ��9	������

2
�������� �����
��	���2������1
��� ����
� �����
������� 	
��������	��������������1
����� 	
�����20
�32�������1
�����0�� ��2���
�����
����/������0�0��������
�����0�� ��2��

 
9


�3�����������2��� �2���5���������������

�����������44��2�� �������4	���
����������	�������
�	�	�������:���
�
� 5��6���
�
�
�
�
������������2�������1����������9

���9��
��
�4��2��
�����������3�4��������

�������2�������2����������
�
���������
�������1
�����
��
	�
� ��� 
�����
����������������������<	
�����������3���2���0��

2
���3��

 
9


�3��������1��
�	���=>�����?������
�
�2����0�� ��2�������
����
4
���
����4������

���@��0��

2
���3��������������
���5�����	�����

�;�9���������/


���1�����������������
�4��2��
���
����1
����������
4:���1
������
��/
���	�������
��
����������
�
���
��

 
9


�3���<	
��2����5����������
�
�
�
���	���
���������


��������2��������44�/


����
��������

����/
��� ��
�����
� ����� ��
����
�1�2����/�
���/


�
���������

����
��2��
� �2�����	���
��9
������
20���4	
��	���2������/�

������

����
�4��2��
����00��0�
����4���;�9���������/���2�3�<	�

43�4���0�� ��2�4	��������
1
�
��5�6���
�
�
�
�������2����/


��
�����
� ���

�����4���0�
��
�3�0�0	
��
����
�������������/
���4�����
�������������
���
���<	
��2����5��720���
��/


�9��0
��������0��������
� �	�
1����
�;�9����������0��4��2
� �������2������������4���
� �;�9:����3�0�� ��2�0���
�
0���������20
�3����93�	�


A
� �����0
0�

����4�<	�

4
�������
���������������93����������2������:��2������4����
�����;�9��00���	�
�
���4����0��
4
����


������5���	���2����/


�9���44�������20������
1��
�9���2������
�4��2��
����
����
4
���
����4�;�9�1�����
������


����������3�4������	0��
����
�:��2�����������
�1�����20
�32�����������
������
���
���� 
���
���������
���
������2
�����
�� �/
���
�4��2��
����������
� �;�9�������������0���/�3��������
��
����
�
� ����	���
����0�
�������������������
�������:9���������	������������1
���5����	2B�������1���
��������1�
�02����������
��
1
�	�
�9��
�����20	�����4�C��0������������0
�������	�����/


��
���9���1�

�9
��4���;�9:������
� �������
�����0	�0����5�7:���
������
����
� �/


�9���1�

�9
��4���;�9���������/�����<	
��� 	
�������������4�������
��9��
����20	�����0����
����������1
 ��
�����


�5��

�����	�����/


�9��4	

3�������
9
��������20

����/
����2��
�����
��9


�
���������<	
��2����5��
23



�

��������	
����
�
��������������������	������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������ ���

��������������!!����"���������#������������	����$������%���
� ���&������#��������������%%	�
�'����
$
�
���
�������������	��
������������������(%#
�'%����)��$
�������!!����

�*�
��
'�#���
�
#��������#��$
���	�
$����
��%#
�'%�������$
�������#���
�
#��
� �*�+��������,������������&


��
�����#
�'�(%#
�'%����)��$
�������!!����
����
����&���������%�+

��	�
��
����%#����

'����
 ��������#��$
������$
����$
������	����!�����%�+

��	�
�,��-./01234�-150670�8349:73/������������&


�#��$
���
�;+�	��������	�;+�	����	���%��������������$
�������<��%#
�'%����=��	�������
�
%���������	�
$����
�*�+�������������#��$
������%�&
���
�!��%��
�����
�$�������*�+�#���
� ����%#
�'%�������$
��������
�
�%����#�� ��%����
�
� ��$������*�+�����
������$������������!����
��������(%#
�'%����)��$
����>��%,������������
������	�� ������	�


?������� ���!�%�������!�����������
��
	�
� �+	������

%
�������#�������

����%�

�����@���'���%�����
�
�%��
��������'�������������%�'���$�
�#��$���������	�����!��������%��!���
����������,��-A8BC�DBEFGEHAI-BC�AIJ�-GHDKLAI-B�HAIAMBHBIN������������&


�+�����#���
+
��!���#��$
�
� �#������

?������$
�������������

���������	 ������� ���!����
$
�
���
��
	�
� �
����������������%����������%��� �%��������
�
� �#
���%�����*�+���$�
�#%������	##���
$�����$
���
��	����"��!����
��#��!��%���������
�%�����������%#

������!�����!�

�&
� �!�����
�#�� ��%���������$
����
��
	�
� O�P��=Q����	
�������
�
��������������P��=Q���
�
������������������>�������*	��%�������
�������R>��S�R%��� ���*�
��
'�!�����;�����

%����&������##

��+
�S�P��=Q����	���R%��������

��+�
�&S�P����������� �$���%����!	�����&���!�����#�� ��%�,����%#������
$��������%�����!������#���
�
#���T��+��
����


������	#��
���
���


�����	���
���
�+��� ��	����#�
���&�����@#��
�������%#
�'�+


�'���������
�����������#�
�	�����!
����
�
���������������������!����	##���
$�����$
����&


�+������	����,�������
'�
���!���
��
�!��%��
���
������+��
��!������

��
���%#
�'%�����������
�
� � ��
���&�
���������������������!!�&


���$�
�#�
�������=��
$
�	�
"��%

'�(%#
�'%�����
���&
��������##

�����
���������%��������
����&
������������)#��
�

��"�����,����
�
���
�
�+���%������
�!��%��
�����	��������%�������	#��
��������
;�
%���%#
�'���$�����
�������
�
� �UVWXYZ[V\]�Ẑ_̂̀�̂aZ�̂�\b̂a�Wc�\dUUWV_YX[�\[VXYb[\�Wcc[V[Z�ef�W_g[V�̂h[abY[\̀�\ĝii�e[�hYX[a�_W�_g[��##

���������������"����%�'�%����
�!��%������
���,��>�����������������

����	��������+���
��������%#
�'%����������
�
� ������$����%��+'�������!����
�����##��#�
��������	�������������������	���%���!��
���������"�������������$������
�����
�$
� ��
�"����������� ��
�,�=��
���
����������#���
+


�'��!���������������!!�������$����������$������!��������	���%���
������
� �
�!��%�
�����
	�
��������%#
�
������ ���
� �j	�

�'��!����$
���,������	�������=Q���� 	
��
�����
24



�

��������	
����
�
��������������������	������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������ ���

���!
��������������������
��
"�
�#��$��
���
������
#%���!
�������&�
���$	���'�����##%����
������
��
	�
� ��()����������������!
��������
�
� ������	))���
!�����!
����&


���*	
��������$
���
����#��

 
'


�"+����������������

��
&�"��'��#	

"��&�����#�����
$)�����������'��
��$
�
$	$�����
�$�����#��

�,�
���$��,##
����#�����#�������!�
�)$����-�.,��)��#��$�����$���	����#��������	�������������������������������	'��*	������������������������+�/�&�����������##�������������������

�$��� �������

����'����	���������#�

�&
� �)�����	���0�����
!������
�
)����0�1	$'����#��� � �$�����&
����	���$���&


�'��)�������$
����'"��	���$������������	 ��������$����&
�����$
�
$	$��#������	�����#	
��� � �$����)���$����+���������������	$����*	�

�"��������	��������������������������
�
�����2	��
#
���
������������	$�����
���$	���'�����������#��������)���
�
)����
�����
�������#

�������������������
�����

���
�!��������'����+��3(
�
� �����
�
)����0��������������������$��������	�������������
$���#�)�� ��$��(
�����	���

� �����#�

�&%	)����

�'��)��!
����#����

��(
�����������������&


�'��$�
���
���������$
�
$	$��#�$����
"�'	��)��#���'
"�$�����#���������������"�������	������
�!�$�����#�)��
�
!���	���$����	���$��4�#���	)������"����#����.,��)���
�
)����+�����#�����5"���$�,)����������##�&


����
���&�����))��)�
����
��#�

�&%	)����
!
�
���������	$�����	���$����	���$��+�/����	 ������������������
�
�����2	��
#
���
������������	$�����
���$	���'�����������#��������)���
�
)����
�����
�������#

�������������������
�����

���
�!��������'����+��6789:;7<8�/�����	���������
������
�!�
��#����##�)���	��
!
�"����������������

���!�
�)�����##���
!�������##
�
�����"���$�����*	
��'
"��
���
'	�������
����+�5�$��)�� ��$��������$��
�
�
��
!�����!��!��
�'
��������$�"���#
����
�����
����������
������$�� ����##+������(�$)
������##������$��� ���
 �%$�
���������)�� ��$�����	
����!����
�&�������
���������
�&%$�
���������)�� ��$�����	
����!�����
 ���������
���+������������&


���)�������
!���������%���
!������
�����'"��������5)��
�

���������������������$����
"�'��
�+�����������-���$��� �$����
�!�
����##����

�������!��������
���+�5��	
������
��������)�'�
�&�����������������������������

����
 �����##����������#	���
��������	))�����!���

�&���#������"���$���)��
�"�
��
	�
� ��	��������	�
!����
��$)
�"$�������!
����������
�
� ��&������)�#��


���
����
����������������$��������+������$�"�
��
	�������$)����"������
 �$�������������)�� ��$������&���#������������+������������$�"����
��������##�����)��
�
�)��2����������$�"���!��
��������������'�!��

�����$
�
$	$�����
�����'	����*	
���!�
	�%��������	���$��%�����
�������
�� ��
�!�
����!
���+����������������

����	��������)�� ��$����
�!�������$�
���
�������=>��#������
��� �
�"�������$)

�������������������

��
$��+����������##�&


�&����&
��������������
������	��
� �)�����
!������)��!�����
!��)�� ��$���!
�&��'�����������������?���
���������$���+��������$)

�����
��	�������
����
#
���������������&


�$����
$$��
�����������
��������&


�����)�������������
��
����
�����������!�
��#	�	���������+�
25



�

��������	
����
�
��������������������	����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

������������ ��������
�������
���
�	�����!��
���
�������
���� ���
���"������#�
��
 
�	�
������
�������$��%�
�"������������

����������� 
�����

 ��#�
��
���
����
��
	�
�������
��	������&����
����
 �'��()**+,-./0�(0,/.10(�2	$$���
 ����� 
��������!��������$�� 
�����!$����#��	$$����
����$��!$��!�����������3�%�������������
������

���
����"���&�����$�����!��������%
�����!�����	�����&	

#���!$
�������������
�
�������	���
��%
���!$
�#!���'���������������&&�!	���"



��
#��&&�������
����
&#������

���4�������&����	$$������� 
������������
!���&�
�
�
�
�������!�����%	���������
��
#�"��������&&
�
�
���� 
���
��$�� 
���������	$��������!
�
�������3�%���������

�
%
��&����	$$���
 ����� 
������&&�������
��	���$$��$�
������� 
����$��������

�"�%


�#������ �

�%


�#��&�&	��
��'�2	$$���
 ����� 
����
��
	���%	����������

!
���������

������������$�����
������
���������5������
����������
��#����
�����������
���	�
&��!����� ���!�����������$	�����������������
���&���

����
����������
&
���
���&����!$
�#!���'��678.9:�10;-0,0<�08*9+:80;-���������������

���

�%������"
������������������	���$�����������
!!��
����&�!

#�!�!%����=�$�	���>�
%

���?��� ����������������&	

��������&�"���&�������� 
����� �

�%
�'������������"


�"������������!
���"�
����
&���#�����
�
�!����$�����!��$�����������
!!��
����&�!

#�!�!%����!�#�%���

�
%
��&��'������!
�
!	!����������������

����	��������$���������>���
!!��
����&�!

#�!�!%���
���&&�����%��
��	�
 ����
��!$
�#!������� 
��������%�������������$�����&���������
��

�������� ���$�$	
��
��'��(@.99(�-,7.;.;A�0;,+9980;-�7;<�B+C�*971080;-����������&	��
���� �

�%


�#��������"


�$�� 
��������������"
���&	��
����������

��

�
%
��$���
�
$�����
����
��
 
�	�
����
�
�������	����
�������������"
���������!����D��	$��
����E
��'������������"


����&���"
���������������!�����!������������!
���"�������!�
���
����$�����������
��������

���"
��
�� ��
�	��
�F��!�������������������������������

��

�
%
��$���
�
$�����
�������
�
���$�����!�'����

���

���������$���
�
$��
���
�����
�
�����	�����������������"


�$��$����������	������&��������
�
������3�%�$
���!����"
���3�%�����
���������3�%����������� 
���'�����

�
�����

�������!$
��
������
�
�������3�%�����
�����$�����!����	�
�����2�� 
������$��������
 ���=������2��&&?�"


����
 �
#�$��!������������	�����������
���
��!$
�#��������$
����������	������
����3�%��"
��
������&
�
���&����������	�#'��B+C�,07<.;0((�*,+A,78(������������"


��� �
�$���"
����������&�
��� ��
 �����
� ��������������
���3�%�����
��������
 
�
����	�����������$����	���
$��������
��#�&	���!����
���$��&���
���
������
����%	�
�������
G	������%	�
�����"�
�
����
���� 
�"
�����


���&
����
�
�

�����#��
�������
$��� �
�$!���������!���'��*,.+,.-:�*+*)97-.+;(���
��
�#��&���� 
���!	���%���
 ���
�������������"
���&�����
�������������G	
��!�����=�'�'�� ������������G	�

&#
����$�	�����&������#�	��������&��!���&������#�	��?'�
26



�

��������	
����
�
��������������������	����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

� !"#$�%&'()*&%�+,-./�012345�2�0678679:�2;<�=83>5�8;�546?7;@�9A4�:8>9A�8=�+,-./B5�64@78;�98�C2D7C7E4�800869>;79745�F�����	���
���
�����
�G�����H�����IJ��
�����������	���
��K
��L�K�J
���G���M�����	��������NO�������������I����������P�Q���������G����J��J
���K�R���S��8�;89�38;57<46�9A4C541?45�T:8>9AUV�,8;9623986�75��IJ��������������
K���J��G�������GG	�
�������������R������Q�	�����	
��J�J	
��
���W
�X�����
�Q�	�����	�X�FX�����
�Q�	�����	
������

������	�����Y������	���
���R��
R�����

������������
�R����G�������������	����	�����F	
��������
���
��G���M�������������H


�J��R
������R
����������
���Q�	�������Q�	�����	
���
���K��
�
���������	���
��������GJ
�QG������


�����������������
�
���
��������H���F�����	����������NO����	���������GM������������H


�J��R
���Q�	����

�����H
��������������

����������R
�����FF����������	
������J�
��
�Q�J�J	
��
����

�����J
	�����������R
������Z	
����
�������NO����	����P�[
�G�����W

�����K�
�HYM��\��������������H


����
���������J��
�

]������FF�G�GK��������	���J�����G���������R
����H���	�����92;<5�9A4�?2678>5�3A2623946759735�8=�9A4�:8>9A�080>12978;�̂79A7;�+,-./B5�64@78;_��������������H


�K�����J���
K
��F�����R�
�J
�������G�
���
�
�������������
R��Q�	���J�����G�F���K����T̀>9X�FXa3A881b�2;<�Tc;Xa3A881�d8>9AV�e25�<4=7;4<�f:�-c̀g�64@>12978;5hU�f:�����	��
����	��������J��R
�
���
����������������G����������G�����G�����L�K�F�
����
���R��
R��Q�	���
�
�
��
R���������
���
���������

�K����
������J��R
����	JJ�������R
�������������P�J�����G��
�G����M������������H


�
����
FQ�������

�K������H
��������������
�����������R������Q�	���J�J	
��
�����

G
������	J

���
���������GJ��
�
����G���������
���������IJ���������������F����R
���M�������������H


�������������Q��������F��NO��������Q���
�������Q�	���
��
	�
���W�����	KL������������������

���H
����NO���	
��Y�K	������

G
������i���Y���Z	
��G��������IJ�������j����K

�������G
�
G	G��F�klm��F�Q�	���F	�������O	�X�FXn����
���	���WOn�Y�KQ�o	���p���F������F
���
�Q���q�����KY�F�	�����
�
���
�J�����G��
�G����i�F	���G����
���


���F
����
�
�

�����Q���	���
���������J����	�
�
���


�����
�
��������
�K���G������
�F��G��
����K�	��
�X��G����
��	���Q���������������	J��
�����R�

�K
��
������
���
��������	��������������IJ
����
������������H����������������������	���

�����������
R
�
����������
J�Q�	���J��J����F������������
�
�������J���X��������Q���	���
����������
�
��M��������
27



�

��������	
����
�
��������������������	����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

 !"#�$"%&'�()�*+*,*-&.�/���	00��������
�1�����2���������3������
���10
��
��������3�
����0���4��������3���	���
�������������������
�����������������5


�0��6
������3�	���0���
�
0����������78���9���	���:
�1�����;���6
���<�=�
�5>��?�/	���
������	�3���


�����
�
����
����	��
���������6
�����4=��������0�	��0��6���
�����������6��3��������
����?��
������
6����������3������
����6
�����������0�	������6��3����6
����@?�ABCDEFG�HEIJ�KLAMNOP�NQPEFRPP�SRCTEURP�VRWX�YBC�Z[WURXRFI�EF�ZWE\�WF\�QFZWE\�HBCD��]0��
�������������6���������10�����������1
���������	0��
���
���	���
����5�
���1�3�
��
	��>��?� 	̂11������_����2��������
��10
�31�����00���	�
�
��̀�=?����4�00����
����
0�0�����1�̀��?�7�������
0������a�=������5
��̀��?�8�4���4a�=����
�
����00���	�
�
���9?�8��	0��
���
���


�����
�
����5�
���
��
	���0�
��
�3�����
�����
���2������
�
���0�����1��������
�������������
b���0���4��������3��������
�
������������

�����5
���
�4��1����
��	���3���������������	0��
����
������
���
�����?�c?�:�	���
����22���������	�����
3�5
�������
��������1�������]�����5���2�����0��0����
������
6
�
����������
�
���2������0��
2
�����	0��
���������	0��
���
��
	�����d?�e�������
0���6�
�01�����00���	�
�
����5�
���1�3�
��
	�����11	�
�3����6
�������0���4�������������
6
�
���f?� 	̂00���
6�����6
����g?���	
��1�����
���2�����0��
����2�0���
�
0��
����������	=��h	����0��
����2���������
��2����
������������1��������i?���

�5�	0����6
����2������
������������1�������2����������10
��
����2�0���
�
0��
�����?���10������
6���	
������������	���

�����?��
����
�
�

�����3���	���
������?�:����0����	�
�
���


�����
�
����@?�̂��6
���������0��6
���
�=���1�����������10
�31����
�2��1��
����=�	��
�4��1����
��	���3���������������	0��
�����6�

�=
��
������
���
�����?��9?����
6
�
����������
0�3�	���0��0����2������������
�
������0�����������3���	���
����������
�
����j".&*k�$"%&'������������5


������
�����5
���0�����������a�
��
3����6��2������3�	��?�l#k&-*k.'!l.�#-m�n"++#o"k#&!"-.�LBFICWUIBC�HE[[�HBCD�HEIJ�KLAMNOP�pFR�SIBZ�pZRCWIBC�IB�RFGWGRq�ZWCIFRCq�WF\�UB[[WrBCWIR�HEIJ�BIJRC���11	�
�34=����������
b��
�������1�]
1
b������	������������	��������	0

���
����2����6
���?�.%ll+*,*-&#+�sk#-&.t�#+&*k-#&!u*�j%-m!-st�.l*n!#+�!-!&!#&!u*.�������1�3��=��
��2	��������	�����������0��������
0������_�����

�=����
���������5


���h	
�����������������0��6
������6
������
��
�������10
�31��������
�
�������a�=�0
���1����5
����	���1���
28



�

��������	
����
�
��������������������	������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������ ���

�!��
"
��������� ��������"	��
� ���	���#�������!!��!�
����������

��������$������!�����"�������
�
�
��
$���%	���&���&���&������'��(����

���
��������
�
���
��)*�����'���������+���"�����!�� ��%�����������
&	����	�����"	

,���+�����!��"��%�����%���	���#�������+


�����&

��� ��
���!��������������!�����	�����!��
"
�����������!��
�
�!��-�������
�
�
��
$��!�
������
�	���#�./012345�0617086.1729�3460/543491�:��������������+


�!��$
���;	�

�,��	���%������$
������-�&�������������!�� ��%�!���
�
!���������%�
���
������
�	�	��
%!��$�%���������� 
����������
� ������
%�

������"����$
�����;	�

�,��"�
�"��%��
���!��$
��������;	�

�,��"����$
�����

$��,#��	���%������
�"���
����	�$�,��+


�&����$
�+���;	�����
,#�<����� 
���"���
%!��$�%����+


�&����$�
�!���������������	���%���"���&�����&��
��������	 ������$��
�	���	�$�,�#�=751/6>�045=7.40�:�����������������	
����%��������������&


�,����!��$
���$
��	�
����$
�������+�

������$��!
������������	�����
��!
���������+


��

�+����""����+������%���
,�+��������
�
����+������#��)���
�	��
�����	���������
�&�
������%
������?���%��+��������$�����
��
��
%!����
$����������$
��������
�	��+
���	��
�����	!�
��#����6@@717296>�.29156.125�540A2907B7>71740�)�����
�
������
����	�
����������!���
&


�
����������"������&�$���������������������

C�D�����
�
!����+
������������""������$�
�!���&	�
����������!���
� �!
������
��
	����

����
$
�
�����
%�

�����&����%������!���
�
!��������$�����	������
��
�����������#����
���

 ���+
��������������� 
��!
��#�D���

�+�������%!
,�+
����

�������!�� ��%��"
����
�
��������%
�
�����
$��!�

�
��������� 	
��
���#�E!������$���
����+


�&��%�����$�

�&
���������������������+�&�
��#�D�F��� ��!�� ��%�&	� ���������
� ����"
��
��

����
�������'����%���%�����
��	���&,�������������%!
,�+
����?!���
�	���������!��� ����'�����������;	
��%����#�D�G�$������"
�?
&


�,����	�


H��!�� ��%�&	� ���"	���������������,�+
��
����������� ��,�&	���������%�$��"	����&��+�������� ��
��#�E�������%�$�%�����"�"	����
���	&-����������	�
�,����������
��
���+����!��"��%����������%!

�����
��	����?
��#�D��
��
�������,���"������?��	�
����"���
�����������������������+


�!����������������%��� �%���������""�����	
�%�������&����
� ����������
�
���!
���+�
���
��
	��������!
!�

���"���"	

�����!���(�
%�����""�����	!!�����

�!�� ��%�#��D�I��	����������������""����
 �������%��� ����
�����������
����%%	�
������+
������'���
��� ���%��������

����
$
�
�����
�����������������%��� �%�����
��
	�
� ��

�!��
!����
����
$
�,�&��+����!������������""#�D�F����+
������������$
���!��$
����'������������������� 	
���&��
������
��	������������� 
H����+�����!��"��%������!�� ��%���%!

���������;	�

�,����������
��
��������&	�
�����
���


 ������"	�	���!
������$�������������
$
�
��#�D�����
�
!����+
������������""�
��
����
",
� �����!
���
� �"���"	�	���"	��
� ����'���� ������!!���	�
�
������
��
	��������
���
����"�!�� ��%�����&	� ����,�
%!���#�D�I��	���������������%!
�,����%��� ������%�
���
��������"��


�,�	��������;	
!%�����������
29



�

��������	
����
�
��������������������	������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������ ���

��������������!�

�
����������"�����#$����������%�&�'��	��������������������(!
�$��������
)������
�	
� ���	���
���������$��	������*
���!�� ��(����� �������(�
���
���+��

�����	���(������)
���
���

��	���(����������%�&����)
�������

����""����
������*��!��"���
���
���)�
�!(������	�������
��������!�������
(!��)�(��������!��,����(��� �(���%�&��	

������
��������������	���"	
�������((	�
�$�!��������
�������������	��
���	��
��%���-./0123�4536783919:9;953�<=>?@AB�CDBEFGBHIHJHKHDB�CDJLKHGM�KF�KND�=FGKCLOKFCAB�PLGLMDPDGK�LGQ�FEDCLKHFG�FR�KND�>FCSRFCOD���������*


�
��
	����#	����������

(
������������"�

�*
� T��&����)
��������� 
��)
�
��������
����
�������	 ��������������������
)
�$���������(
����)�
�!(����������((	�
�$�!��������
!�U�&����)
�������������� �����"	��
� ��

����
��������*������ ���������	����������!�� ��((��
��#	� ����

����
���U�&����)
���������������

���
�)���� ������ ���(���������,�
��
$����	���	���������
� ��"��������� ������#,���
)�����+!�����
�����"	��
� ��

�*�����������	���(��U�&����)
�������

���
����	��
����� 	
����������V��������W!����
� �������	����"����!��
�
�!��,����U�&������,�
��
$�� �������������	���!���	��(�����"��� ��������X������)
���������(�$�
�����#�����
 �����������������%�&�'��	���������������������,�����
�������
����((	�
������*
������X���
��� ���(��������

����
)
�
�����
�����������������(��� �(�����
��
	�
� ��

�!��
!����
����
)
�$�#��*����!�������������""U�&����)
��������
��
����
�������������	���!��"��(�����������(!

�������Y	
��(����U�&�')�
	��������!��������������������Y	�����"������������(��
"
���
���U�&���

�#������*
��������������
��!��)
�
� ���$��	!!������������	�������Y	
����#$����������������������	��������	�������"��������)
�������#��!��)
����!	��	�������������������U�&�')�
	��������X!�
���������	#(
�����#$��������������������(
���������������#
�����%�&��!!��)������!���������Y	�����"���!�$(���%�&����)
����

������������'(!
�$����*
�������"��*����
����
�"��(��
�����������
�
� �"�����"��$��Y	
!(����*
������!���������$���Z����	���	#���������������
�
�������*�
���������������(!
�$����(�$�#���+!������������*����
����
"���Y	
����#$�
�*%��
���	��

(
�
� ����� �����

�$��"�����"��� �
� �#���	�������������������
������"��


�
���
��*�
���������������(!
�$����*���%�[��
��� ����������������
��!�
(��

$����!���
#
��"�����(!

�����*
�������W��	!��
���
�V�"��$�����\��
�������������(!���#
��������
�*�������� 	
��
���������	����U���������+�����������
�*���!!
$���������������'PEJF]DDB�̂FCSHGM�LK�KND�̂FCSBHKD�DPEJF]DCAB�RLOHJHKHDB_�=FGKCLOKFC�̂HJJ̀�LK�KND���Y	�����"��������
����	���
����(!
�$������� �����
���"��$�(�������
�������������*
���
�"��(��
���!��)
�������������������(!
�$����#$�����*����
����(!
�$���*�����"��


�
�����������BHKD�FR�̂FCS�EDCRFCPDQ�I]�KND�=FGKCLOKFCAB��(!
�$���%�&����������X����������
 �������
���
�� ����*


���(
�
����������

������

���%�a���������
��
	��T�&��(�	����!�
������	 ��[��
)
�	�
�a��
�
� �����	���%�&��(�	����!�
��"����	!!�������)
���%��
30



�

��������	
����
�
��������������������	������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������ ���

!�"#$���
%&	���%���������%'
�(���)�!�����������
�����*
���'���
�
'����+�*� ���*�

���� � ���
���������,-'��
��������
.
�()�!�������/����'��
�
�'��0������''��.���&(���������������*���/������(���%�%��� �%�����������	�


�
����
���������������/�����
�*������ ��	����%�
�����������1	
'%����'	����������1	
'%����%�
�����������1	
'%������/�*���������������%�����	''

���/���"��23��'�������������"�
���%��������"//
���4����
���)���56789:58�56;8;��

�����������������''��.���
�������������%	���&���������&
��������������(��������(��	������'
������/	���
���)�$���������%	���&���

�*�&
�������

���&
���������'��'��� ������������������� ��
��)�</����������������
����'	&

�����
�(�������2'��/
�����
�(���������������*


�����
��
	�����'��.
�
���/���'��/
�)����/
��%�� 
���*
���/��2'��/
���� ��
=��
����*


�&���� ��
�����'�
����������������������/�������������)����/
��%�� 
���%	���&���������&
�������������&��&����������'������� ���/����	�
������)��56789:58�8>?@�$����	�����/	
�'��'�����%�(�&���//��������������
%&	���%�����/
-���'�
������'��/��%����2&�����������������'���
� ���������('���/����
�(������
���//���������������)�$����	�����/	
�'��'����A�B�*


�&����������������/�������������	���(�����/�������.�
�'%���������)��$���������������������*


�&����
%&	�����/��������������%����
(�&��
�)��$����	�����/	
�'��'�����*


�&���//����������������*
���'���
&
��'��/��%�����
�����
.�)����/
�����	
��&��&��������������%'��
���C���//����������
���
�����
�.
� �'��/��%�����%���	�����	�

����&(����������)�"���������
�����
�����������	���/���*����1	���
/(
� ������''���	�
�(���������'��/
��������/��������
������������
���1	
�
�
����� 	
��
����������*
������*������������)���$���������%�(���'�����%�-
%	%�'�����
�
�'��/
�����������&���������
�������������*
�������'��/��%��������	
�������/	��
� ��.�

�&


�()�����2'��/
�����
�
�������������'�������������	&���
'
������/���/�����
��*��������%	�����������������D�
/��%��	
���������*�

�����"4��-��'�
�����
��
	�
� ���(���1	
��%�����
����
/
���&(��"4C���-��'�
�����������
��
��
	��������'��.
�
�����/��	�
��������������������������1	
��%����)��59EFE7:G�HE;869>�9@?698;��$��������������������	
���/��%���
������%�(������
������1	
��%������������������������'��.
������	������A*
��
������'�������%�����B��������
�/�����(�"3�<���
%
��
��
����(���'��������

�
��
.
�	�
��*���
� �
����(�%������/������������������
/�����
��
.
�	�
�*


�&��'��.
�
� ����.
�������*���/������	���%���)�$�����
%
��
��
����(���'�������

�&�����%������&�����
�/�����(�
/�
�������
�������
����(��/���
%
��
��//������*�
���*�	
��&������
��������
%���*�
���'������������ �������	���%���)�$�������'������
/���1	
�����%	���&���	&%
�������������<"���
���
�� ��������
��������������(��'�
���������������	
���&� 
��
� �������/�'��/��%�����
31



�

��������	
����
�
��������������������	������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������ ���

	�����������������!�"#�������$��������������	%&
�����%'����������

�����������������(


�%�����
��������%��)�
���������$�'&�����(


�%��&���������������������!�*���������#�������
&
��
��
����'���$�����(


�%��$�
��%'���������������������������%��
��
	����
��������������������!�+,-./0+.�/1-1203�0-4�15.1-67,-��*��������������������	
���#��&���
������&�'���)����$��)
�
���#����8����
��!�*������&������
�� �����#���'��8����
���(


�%������%

�����%'���������������(


�%��
��
	����
���������������$��)
�
���!��

��8����
����&	���%�����	&������
����&��
#
���
������������������!�9�����8����
���&	���%��#�������&�������������'����������&�8
&	&��#����8����
����
��$��&
����!�98����
����(


�%������
� ����	$������������������:����	&����������)��
#
�������%

�����$��#��&����!�����������;� ��
��������#��&�����<���	��������������������	�
�<���	����=���(��%�
�(>�&	���%������
�������
��
������
�����������%������
������#�������������8����
���!����61+.7,-�?@��+,-./0+.A03�B106A/1B1-.6�C+DEFGHIFDG�JKGLDGMHEIK�NOPP�QK�QHRKS�DE�FTK�LDPPDNOEU�MKHRVGKRW�04A3.�X�4763,+0.14�2,/Y1/�B106A/16��!�ZVSUKF�BHEHUKMKEF�HES�1[\KESOFVGKR�]�̂#������
������

������

����%	� ������������_��)
������)
��������%

 ����#����
������	���&������������
������̀a�(


�%���%

 ����������'����%'�<�����b���!��c�a�&	���%���%

 �����������
�
� !����	&�����
�����	�����(


�
��
	���%	� �����$������	%&
�����������������##�
��
	�
� ������������d����
� ��̂��	$��
���
�_�


��*��
�
� ��_	$$���
)��_��)
���������'��������%

 ��
����%'��	���&���!����!�/KRDPeKS�BDEOFDGOEU�HES�-D�4ORHPPDNKS�+DRFR�]��%�������#�	�����
)���&��
���
� �
��	��������%�������#��
��

�(�������������)
�����%'�&��
���
� ����f����	�
��%'��̂ d��̂ �̂���������&��
���
� ����	&�����������������������#������g	�������#���
����������!�b!�6KPLh6VLLOIOKEIi�1M\PDiMKEF�]�̂#���������	
��������
�
�������������������
)
� �̂��	$��
���
�_�


��*��
�
� �����
�����j̀a��#��������8
�
� �%��(����k	
'���������<�����b����(


��������&$
�'&����&��
� �����
#]�	##
�
����(� �!���*�
��(


�%��&���	����%'�����
)
� ���

���#��&�����_��)
������)
�����#��

���	
�������
�
��������������$���
�
$���������

���
��̂��	$��
���
�_�


��*��
�
� �����������(�����)���8
�����	�
� �������������
&��#��&�!���lmn�onmmp�mp�qrosmtrquv�w�xmot�mp�vyq�ownvzxzowuv:{�owtxyqx|�xwu�}q�	$
������������
�$�����)��
#
���
���&�'�%�����	&������(
��������&$
�'���)��
#'
� �����������&$
�'&����%� ������	�
'�(� �������
��'��������&�������
�
���#�����$������$��)
�
� �����
�#��&��
��!��*�
��
�#��&��
���(


�%����)
�(���#������	���'�����$��#��&�����)��
#
���%'����������##�
�������������(
���������$�

�'!���
32



�

��������	
����
�
��������������������	������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������ ���

!"#$%�&'()#*')��+�",-./0.)12//3�!/,-2�4����
�����5�6��7�8�	����������������

���
���9:�����
;
�
���<


�=��:	���7�>����
���	��+�����	?�����
�����@	
���A�:>B�����
?����;��
7
���
��+��C�
��
�7��?��
���<


�=����;
�<���7������	���8�����D��7��?�����;��
7
���=8����������77+���+�%EF2�G12//3�HEI3/JK�/L�'M,ENK3OP1Q�R�:7�����:	��4�74>����
�8�	���<������������;����S
 ��>����
��
D
�?������@	
;�
�������D�� ��?��������������
�����T�6��7�8�	���<����U
�����	�
� �����D��
���V	
8���������	 ��W�����X����<


���;���=��
������S
 ��>����
�Y@	
;�
���8�ZS>Y[����S
 ��>����
��
D
�?�+��C�
��<


�=�����	?������7��?���

����7��

�:	�4�74>����
�8�	���<����U
�����	�
� �������������
?��7��?������<
� ���	���
���
�����	����������������
�� �<
������	?�����
���7��?�������<�����;���=��
�������
��S>Y����S
 ��>����
��
D
�?�+��C�
��
�7��?��
���<


�=����;
�<���7������	���8�����D��7��?�����;��
7
���=8����������77+�����X+�\]̂�)IOP_EPF�*OM,ELOJOP-�4�W	���?��������̀>��:B���@	
������6������YUD��
������D���
� �
�;�
��7����	�
�D�� ��?�7	�����UD�����������8���+����	?�����
�����	�����<


�
��
	���=	� �����D������	=?
�����������������77+�C�
��
�7��?��
���<


�=����;
�<���7������	���8�����D��7��?�����;��
7
���=8����������77+����a�����������;��������
 ������?��
78����b����
��
78�����?���	�����	�
� ��� ��
��
���+���C��������?
���
����7�<��������������������������?�������U�����������D��7��?�����
��?�����<���=�;��<


�=��?��������7�W�����X�����7��������������D��
��+�C��=�������?
���������;�����
�7�����8�D��7��?���������������������?	���?��������D��7��?�����?���	����<
������?���	���7�


� �=�
�<�5�6������	��������������@	
��?����+��Y;������	 �����������������?�8�?��������U���������D��7��?�����?���	�������<���=�;�����������������?	����
����	=?
�������
�7�����8�=	� ���7��������U����
���D��
��+��C���=	� ���7��������U����
���<


�=���� ��
����+���c*"d*(&�(eH�c'*f"*&(eg'�&'()#*')��C��������������������	
���7��?���
������<


���;�������
����@	
��?�����7���D��7��?����+�C������������?�8���@	
������������������������	=?
����D������7��UD���
�	������

��������;���� ��
��;���	�����	�
�D��7��?�������D�������9:��D��7��?�������D�������	�
������;
�<��?����=8����������
�
�������������
�7��?��
��������
����������8�7�����������������;�
	��������D��7��?������7���������������+�C������������?�8���;��D��;
�
������@	
�
� �?
�
?	?�D��7��?�����
�;�
�����=�����
�;���=�7����7	��
� �7�����?�
�
� �D��
����
���;�

�=
�+�C������������?�8���;����D��;
�
���������	�������

?
�����7	��
� �7���7	�	���D��
����
7������?
�
?	?�D��7��?�����
�;�
�
����������
���+�9��
���
���D���
=
������

?
������D��
7
�����;
���������7��?�����������������	
�����������������7�

����?����?
�
?	?�D��7��?���������������
��������7����������+���
33



�

��������	
����
�
��������������������	������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������ ���

!"#$%&'�()�#&'*%$%&'!�+'*�#,+-!"!�$./0123240205�6�7��������������8


�9����:	
�����������
�	�����;��<
������<
��������	���=������������������
�
�����>��=�����;��<
�	������������������
��;��<
�
� ��������<
����
��
	����
����
��;��;���
?�7�����8������������=	������	��������������
 
��
�;
����>����<
����>��������	���=���8


�9��>�

�8���8
������
�����	;�
����
�����<
�����������	���=��?�������>���������@�����
�
���AB�CD�@
����
��AB�EF���=����=	���9��>��������
�����������������������
��
	����
������9	� ����>�����
��;��;���
?��"/.GH�$I.J20/32401�6�7��������������������	
���>��=���
������8


���<��;��<
�
����>������=
���
����>��������������>���>�

	���������
�>�����

K�;��>��=����������������������:	
���?�7��������������������	
���>��=���
������=�K��
�����<��;��<
�
����8�
����

�8��������������;���
�����������
�������������������K��
=��9K�;��<
�
� ���<��������
���������������������;���
��?�7������������8


��
���;��<
���>������=
���
����>��������������>���
�����>�>	���?�� L4M2N2O/32401�6�7������������8


���<����;��<
�
���>���=��
>K
� �������������?�P��
>
���
����=�K�9����������K����
����;���������� �����:	
����9K�������
����Q�����
�8������;�

�
��?�P��
>
���
����=�K�9����������K����
��������������������>	����������������������
>�>	����9���=���<�

�9
������	 ��R��
���
�S=�� ���K���������7�������T	��=�������
������������������	����?�����
�
���
�=��
>
���
����=�K�9����������K����
��������������������>	����8�����
��	=�������������8�����������8�����>�������9
����������
=���>�;���	��=��������8�
�����:	
�����6�� ��
��
����>�����������������U������
�
���
������������	��
���T�
���� ��������:	
�
� ���
�� ������<
�������?��+11250JI03�/0M�!VWO403./O3205�6���;�����>�����;��;���
��<�
	��
���
��9�����	;�������;��<
�	���X;��
������>�����;��;���������
������>>?�7������������8


������
����;��<
�
��������;���
9
����	9��������
� �������
 �
� �����8�������9��;��>��=���8
���	������8�
�����;��=
��
����>����������?��%0MIJ02N2O/3240�Y�7������������8


�
��
	������
���=�
>
���
����
�	��?�7���
���=�
>
���
����
�	���8


����������������;��;�����Z����������[����

�
���=�
>K�������
�����=
��������Q������>�\�
���=�������]?�Q?���;���=�����>�̂�9����������������	���K�����>�������<�
�;=�����������������������	���K�����>�������<�
�;=�����������>>
������� ��������������	���K�����>�������<�
�;=�������������������	���K�����>�������<�
�;=�����������>>
����������=;
�K�������������_\��̂���
�S
������\>>
�
�
��>��=�

�9


�K��>���K����	��������
����
��
	�
� ���������X;������������������K�>�����>�������������	����>���K����
������
�
=����	
����������=� ����>���K�����������8������<�����
�
� ��	���>���K��� 

 ������������=
��
����>�����;��;�����Z����������[������K��>�
����=;
�K������ ������<�
	���������	9������������������;��������
<��?��
34



�

��������	
����
�
��������������������	������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������ ���

!"#$%&'�('#)*%&")+�,�-������������.


���/����0��/
�
���1����
�0	�������
	�
��2�-�
��0��/
�
���.


���3	
���������������������	�����4
�
�����
/��0��������������� ��
��
���
������40�
� ��������
/���
�0	������
�
� �1��4���
����������2�-������������.


���3	
�������������������������
�	�����0��/
������/
����.�

�������
�0	���0�������
���� �
� 2��5%6"&�("78&#�9�-������������.


���/����0��/
�
���.�
���.


��

�.������
���
�� ����������������1�:�
���4�������;2�<2���0���4�����1�=�>����������40���

���������
��1�����;�
����<���������?��1����
���	
?��	����
@�����0��������
/��������������.
�������	���?��	�
���
 �������0��1��4��	�
����1�����������>
����/��������
��������������������������?��
4���	�
� ��������������0��
������.
��
��1
/��ABC�?�����1��4�����������1�1
��
�0�?4�����1���
����������2������?��
4���	�
� ����4�
�>	�
�������	�����������1��������
���
�� ���������?��1������>�/��0���
���4�?����4���������?��������������������

�4�����/�

�>
��������
���	
?��	����
@�����0��������
/���1����D�4
���
�����

�
�����������.
������0��������

�4���������/�����>?���
����������2�-����
���
�� ���������<������1�:�
���4�������;2�<2���0���4�����1�=�>����������40���

���������
��1�����;�
����<������������?��1����
���	
?��	����
@�����0��������
/������

���/���	����
�?�����	�
����D�4
��������4�����D���0�������������
0���1��4����?�>���������	4������0�0������������������1����������������.�
��������
����
?�0���
����������
������������
��
	�
� ��

������������
�/�
�����4����
�
���0�?��

���0�������
��������������
�
�����1��40
�?4����������������������
��
� �����

�4���������/�����>?���
����������������3	
����>?�0������1�����:E��;�
1��4��	
���������2B��,���2B��2�5FF'##�&)�('F)G6#�H+6�('F)G6#�('&'+&")+�,�-������������.


���/����0��/
�
�����
��
� ������������������
��2�-����0��/
�
���.


���3	
���������������������4�
���
���

���������0���
����������
������������
��
	�
� �1
����
�
������
��
��
��0��0���?��0���
�
0������������������	00���
� ����	4�����
��2�-����������������

�>��0�����/�������4�����/�

�>
�������������������
���� �����1�����0��
����1�1
/��ABC�?������1��������������1�1
��
��
����	���1���
����������2�I�.�/����
�������/�����1�����	�
��������������

�>����0��>?����������������1���J�?�����0������?��	�
�����4��
���
� �����
	�
����/���
1�����0��
���
��
�� ��������B�?����2�K1����������������
��	��>
���������
��������������?�0���
�
0��������1
����
�
���������1���������3	
����0��
����������������������

������1����	�������������������2�<	��������������

�>�������4
���������
���
�� ����1�������0������
����������
?�1���
���.
������	4�����0��0��
?�
�>�
�������1

��������
���������0��>
������
�
���1�������� �2�����������.


�>���	>L��������0��/
��������������������������3	
����>?�����:E��;�
1��4��	
������0��������2JJM,���2JJN���������2��������00

��>
�2��O)$PG"78&#�H+6�("78&#�&)�!H&H�,�-������������.


���/����0��/
�
�����
��
� ������0?�
 ������������2�-����0��/
�
�����3	
����������������������� �������������:�
���4��:11
����1�����1�������/�
�04���������<������1�:�
���4�����������;2�<2���0���4�����1�=�>������

���/��	�

4
�����
 ���������?������1
����0���	���������

/�����	�����������������2��
35



�

��������	
����
�
��������������������	������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������ ���

!"#$%&"##'#()�*+,)�*-./,#�0�1������������2


���3����4��3
�
�����
��
� �������0� ���5���������6�1����4��3
�
���2


������������
�������3������7��
 ���	������������������������5�����	8��9	�����������8� 
��
� �������:����������������

�2�8
���;4���
�	�����:�:	����8��2��������8� 
��
� �������:���
����������������������	�
��
 ���	���������:��������������2


�8���

�2���:������5��������������
��������7��4�
�������������	�
��
 ���	����������:�������������6��<#$+=->&.)>+(,�0�1��������������������	
���:��5���
������2


������
���
�	������ ���
� ��3�

�8


�7��:�:	���6�1������
�	����2


��

�2���������������������������

5
�����:	��
� �������������������
:�:	��
� �5�����3�

�8
��
�������	::
�
��������

�2�:���:	

�4�75�����:�������������6����������
5���������������
��2�
�������������	�
�:	��
� ��5�	����4��3
����:������ ��5�����������:�����	
�������
�
��������������2


�����8���3�

�8
�6��?��
��

��
7������������
7����2��:	��
� �2


�8��:�������4��
����:�@	
7�������A�����	 ��@	�����������6����	������ ��5�����������:	��
� ��5�	����5�7��
���8��	����2��:�������4	�4������:���
����������6��?:����
�
���
�:	������������
3���:�������4��
���8� 
��
� �@	
7�����������
�����������5�7�8��5��
:
����	8��9	�����������8� 
��
� ��:��������������4��
��������:
�������� ��������������������7��	��������	�
�:	��
� ��5�	��������
3��6����7�8	� ����5�	������5�
�
� �:��5�8	� ����������������:�����7����5�7�����8������
����3��������;4������
�������;�������4��
���
:��������������
���;��������:����������
 
��
�4��
��6�1�������7�3����:���7�:	����
�����
��5������5	���8���� ��
�����2
�������������:�������2���:�������3�
�45��������6�� !">B#�%CD/,)'#()�0�1������������2


���3����4��3
�
�����
��
� ������
�����E	��5���6�1����4��3
�
���2


������������
:��������������2����� ��
�����
����

�����	4��������������	44

���87��������������������������������E	�������4�
�������;�
	�����7��
 �
:
������	5�87�2�
�������4�
���2���
���������8���	�����������������������	85
���������������
��������
 
��
�4��4���
�2�
���2����������	��������54
���������	�����6��F(,/".(B#�0�1��������������������	
���:��5���
������2


���3�������
����9	
��5�����:���
��	�����6�1�����
�������9	
��5���������4���:��:�
��	������8���	85
�����2
�������4��4���
��8	���3
�������:�
��	������5	���8��4��3
����	4�����9	���6��1���������������4�

�7��� ���
� �
��	�����������
����9	
�����:�
�����������������6�1�������9	
��5�����2


�8��
��
	����
��������������6�1�������9	
��5�����5�7�
��
	��� �����
�

�8


�7���3��� ���:
��G���:��
��	���������4��4���7��
��	������:���5�����3��
�
���	����87��54
�7�����:�����������������2���������54�����
��������8
������8������3��� �6��HHI�J#K/>"#'#(),�L��

��
������
������
�:��5��
���������
� 7�5	���5���������44

��8
��������
8


�7������������:��M��6�6�6�N���AO������96�����P���
���Q�R��:���������8


���
��������:��AS�������5�����6�T�A�
36



�

��������	
����
�
��������������������	������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������ ���

!"#"�"�$�%&'("�#)��
*
��

+������*�

�,
� �#���
���-�.������
��
�����������/�+�0���))

��0
�1�2�#�*�,�����))

���
��������3)����
� �#+���/��4�5��"�"�"�$���&'"��(2���060�����7������������7��������7�*��/��
��������))

���
����4�5��"�"�"�$���&'"��(�2�8
�������9	
�
/��
������	����4�5��"�"�"�$���&'"�'("��������������������/	���������/
�
/	/������������
�:�
��*���/)

��������������))

��0
���� 	
����+�����
��"��;<=>?@AB?C?=DE?<=�D=>�FGHDI�JKK<BEH=?EL�M@@HBD=AN@�O������������/	�����/)
+�,
���#���
����..��*��73���,�
���)���
0
����
���
/
���
���� �
�����

�
��
:
�	�
��
������!�
����#�������������0��
���*���������
������

 
������P�4
��
	�
� �)�� ����+����

�0
�����������
�����/��
��
�����
�
���������� ����������	������� ������
����
�+(�����
���
���
 
��4
��
	�
� �

/
����Q� 

���)��*
�
���+(��� ����
��0


�+�����)�

�
��
��**


��
������0�

�*������ �
����0���*
�
��
����������0��
���*��
������
�
R����
)�����	�����)���
�
)��
���
����+��73��O
�
��76*
����
�

+����
�����)�� ��/�������
:
�+S�O
�
��87��*������
:

��
 ���������*��&5'������/�������,�
���)���
0
����
���
/
���
����������0������*���������
����������
���
���
 
�S�#���
���-�'��*���������0


���
��������*��&%�������/�������,�
���)���
0
����
���
/
���
���� �
����T	�

*
���
��
:
�	�
��,
����
��0


�
��S�O���� ���
���
/
���
��������*��&%-������/�������,�
���)���
0
����
���
/
���
����������0��
���*�� �S�����O
�
��7U��*�����Q�	���
����/���/������*��&%�������/�������,�
���)���
0
����
���
/
���
����������0��
���*���P�
����	���
���
�)�� ��/�S������

���������
�:������ 	
��
����
/)
�/���
� �����
�,��

������0�:�"�4�&�����������.("���O�������������
������	������/)

�����,
����&�����������.������

��������� 	
��
����
/)
�/���
� �����
�,��

������0�:�"�O�
�����	�������))

������VWX�YZ[V\X]̂�_YX[ZV\_̀�_a�VWX�bcde�f\VgX�c6*
����
�

+����
�����)�� ��/�������
:
�+����������

�� ���/������������+��	�������73��O
�
��76*
����
�

+����
�����)�� ��/��������
:
�
��"�O��������������	�������������������!�
����#���������������
 �����������h	�
�
�
���*����/�����*���
�����	�����"�O�����������������

�������**
�/��
:�����
���������	��������T	�

*
����))

������*��/� ��	)��,�
�����:���
����
��

+�0�������
����T	�
��))���	�
�+�*����/)
�+/����0���	����*������0�:��*����������

�0��)��:
����������������������	�� ������)���
�
)����
���/)
�+/�����������
�
� ����
:
�
��"�O��������������� ����������:�
�)�����
/)
�/��������**
�/��
:�����
����
������93��49��������*���/
�
�����
��(������*��/�
����	���������� 	
���*�����/)

�����,
���QQ3���T	
��/����"�iDBE?A?KD=E�jB?NkD=AN@�l�O������������,


�
��
	�����)��:
�
����������T	
�������������������������)��)�����	����*�������
� ���������
:
� � �
�:������������/)
�
������
�
� ��	���*���
������������
�����*��/
�+�,
��������̂������0

�����)�

�
��"��O��������������� ������������+��	���/��� �
�:������
�
�
�������������	
���*���
���������������
�*��	�����
���0+�����������m�� �
�:�����)�����	�������

�0������
:�����������
:���
�������������,
��������̂]���
�:�����������	��"�O�����������������

��0
���0+��
��
������/
���
����
��	���	����������̂�� �
�:�����)�����	���"�
37



�

��������	
����
�
��������������������	������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������ ���

!��������������� ��������
�"��#��

��	$�������������
��
	�
� �%&!��#'
�(������"������)�

�$


�(��"�����������*�� �
�)�����'�����	�����"���	���$(������	$�����������
�������)���������	$������������������ �
�)�����'�����	�����"�
����+�,�-./012345�6.78179�:�!������������+


���)����'��)
�
�����;	
�
� �������������������� �����������(�����������<=�>�����+�
��������
����(��

������������������	�����#�(�����$��
��
	����
������������"�������������,�!��������������#	���
�"��#�����������
"�����������������''

���"����������
)���"	����+�
����""����������������'��"��#������"�+����	�������
�����������������+����������������'
��������

�������	'

������"	���,�!���������#	�����)�������
 ���������� ��
�������������������
��
)������������� �������,�!�
��'��)
�
���+


����
"(���������������������%�
���#��%""
����"�����"�������)�
�'#����"�����
�"	��������$��	������
(�����	''
�#�������
�
� �����	������)�

�$
������	 ��?�	���
������
���������� ��#�,�%�
���#��%""
����"�����"�������)�
�'#����"�����
�"	����#�(�$��	����
�����@	���
���+
����?AA��B?%�������������'�� ��#���$	��"	����"��#��
""��������	�����#	���$��	�������'�(�"����
""���������)
����+
�������	'

���
��,�C3D4121/374�E19F4G�:�!������������+


���)����'��)
�
����������
� �'���
�
'�����
 ���,�!����'��)
�
���+


�����������������#
�
#	#H��?#'
�(#����!��#�������"
������������
� �����
�
�����

�
��
)
�	�
���#'
�(���
���	$�
�
I���@�$�����

�$��'��)
����$���"
�������+���
� �����
�
�������������#��
�)�
��������������#���J���������������#'
�(����+���
� ����
#

���
�� ����"��
#��������
� �������#���('���"�+������J��'����������"	�����)�

�$
��	�������
�����������#�(�$��	����"��������
$	�
�������$���
"��"���(����
����������
��#�����(���#�����'
���,�KD1574341L7��

�'���
�
'���������

���	�������
��������������

�$����
��������$(���������������
���� �����������
� �
��� ���������)
�����'��@���� ��
���������
�
� �����
�
�����
��
	�
� H�M�N����������������'	���	�

�(����������O�M�N����
�
� ��������������)
����+�
���+


�$��#�����)�

�$
�O�M�N�������'��@�����J'�����
���,�!�
����
�����
������

������'
�����	�
� �����'���
�
'���*��"
����)
�
�������+���"����������������+


�$�������$(���������������"",��-1G21/0173DP�Q241L7���������������

����
"(������''��'�
�����������""
������"���
����)��������'���
$
���"����)
�����+����������
�
� ���
�����'��$
�#��
�)�
)
� �'���
�
'����,�!���B��)
������)
�������

�$���""������)��(��������$
���''���	�
�(����+����+
��������
����	'��)
������������'���
�
'�����������
)������'��$
�#,������'���
�
'�����	�'���
���������#
���
����''��������$����������(�������
����	'��)
�������

� 
)�������������""
�����)��������
���$(���
�'����,�R���J���#��������������
���#�(�
##��
���
(��	�'������'���
�
'����"������ ���	������	��� ��	��$���)
���$	��
�������������

�����'���
�
'����$�����#
������+
���	����)��������
���$(���
�'�������������''��'�
�������������""�#�#$��,���SL7T1857413014P�U43783D8G�
38



�

��������	
����
�
��������������������	������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������ ���

!"��
��
��	����"����
������������
����#	������$%�����&	$

����	������'������"�(�
���)�����"
����
�

�%���������������*
�
��+��,'��++�����))��
%����-�����.*�����
/��%����.��&����
�
� �������������"�&���
�
&�����
���
���
�� ����&�� ��)������

��&&
%0��12345657284�92:;4<�=�*������������-


���#	
������������
�
�����"��)&
�%)�����������
�
� ����

�$���&&��&�
���������������$
��
��

 ����"��	���"���������������%&���"�-����� �� ��&�
��
��� 
��������&��"
�
���%��"��������
���0������
�
&�������
���������

���	���������������������

�$�����#	���
%��	&��/
�����	�
� ����
�
� ���	�������$��&��/
����-
�����"�����
�
� �����
�
���������������)
�
)	)�����

����"��)�����������
���������"��%��� 	
��
��������$

�����$%�����'������"�(�
���)�0��>?@7A5286;�B54C�D2B�=�*������������-


���/����&��/
�
�����#	
�
� �������������������)�
���
����)&

��������"�

�-�E�!��������
� �����&��"��)���������	��������������������

���)&
%�-
���������#	
��)������"���������"�����!���/��
�������(&&���	�
�%�����F�!(�G��	$

��H�-����I��J��-
��������� 	
��
����&��)	
 ���������	����������-
�������"�

�-
� E�K��&&

��$
��������
�H�-����� 	
��
��������(L��,�
"��)����	
�������K�'���������H���
�H�-���K��!(����

�
����K�*�����������	���%�����"�������/�
�&)���������MN�H���
��!(���
���K���������

�
�������������	��������&&

��$
���K�,0�'0���&���)�����"�H�$���'����)�����O�����������J��� ���
� �����P��I�
���
)
���
����K�Q#	�
�(&&���	�
�%����/
�
�����"���������"�����!���/��
�������(&&���	�
�%������"����R�!�������/�����"������"

���$��-�����	���
�-�������� 	
��
���������������)���"���
��� ���)�����&�������������

�$�� 
/����������
�-�������� 	
��
���0�S;7?3458T�=�!�����
�
��������)&
��
����"�������)������F���U���������"��)����G0*��������������� ��������&��/
��������
����&��������������������
��
� ���������V&���
�	�������&��"��)������"�-����	�������
����������0�*���������������&��
"
��

%�� ��������&��/
�����)����
%������)
���
����"��V&���
�	�����
���
"
�����������������������������

%��������	����
%������)
������������ ��
��0�*��������������� ��������&��/
�����&����������������������W���H���
�Q
������(""
�
�
���� ���
� ��	���
��)�������������������V&���
�	������V&���
�	������)&������������$	� �����	������&�� �������-����)���
� �&��"��)�����)���	������	�
����&������)��
���
� ���&������&���
�
&������	����������������&�������������������)
�������$����������%0�!��)�������)�%�$����#	
�������$����&��������������������)����
%�$��
�����E�K�P	)$����"�����
�
&�����$� 
��
� ���	���
��W���
�
� ����
/
�
��0�K�*����%&����"����/
���������-����&��/
���0�K�*����������"����������/
����K�P	)$����"�����
�
&�������)&
��
� ���	���
��W���
�
� ����
/
�
��0�K�P	)$����"�����
�
&�������)&
��
� ���	���
��W���
�
� ����
/
�
������������
/������������
�
0�K�!����
"%������%&��������	)$����"��������
�
���������$%��%&�0�
39



�

��������	
����
�
��������������������	�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ���!���

"�#	$%����&�����
�
'�����(�����$'
�������	���
��)���
�
�!�������������	��	%�
�
*����$'
�+$���,�"�#	$%����&�����
�
'�����(�����������	��	%�
�
*����$'
�+$�����&�������
�
�!����������$'
�+$����
������&
��������&�	����-	������&�

�(
�!�����
�
�
�
�'
���$���,�"�#	$%����&�����
�
'�����%+���	��+������.'���
�	������

�������������$	����	%$
�����	$	
��
/����'����&�������'��
���0	
+�������������	!��0	�����������,��1���&
��
���'����$	����
�������&����������	$%����&�'���
�
'��������������
/������/
����������+'����&����/
���������(����'��/
�������'���
�
'����,�1���&
��
���'����$	����
�������&�������&
��
��
�'��
�
����&��''

������
��2�%�'
���$�������'
���$����
��&	���������
�
�!,���1��������������������	
���&��$���
������$�+���/�����
�
���
���-	
��$�������������������������$������!	
���'��������
������������������3���
�4
������5&&
�
�
�������������
$

���!��	'�,�1�������'�����$�+�
��
	���
�&��$��
�������	���$������	���$���������
����
&
�������/
����%�
�!�'��/
����&����	���$������$'
�+������������'��������'��!��������������%����$�������$���
�!��������
��
$��'��&��$�����$���
���������
$

����+'����&�
�&��$��
��,��67897:;�<=>8;?�@�1������������(


���/����'��/
�
�����
��
�!�������!��$�A���$�,�1����'��/
�
���(


������������
&��������������������
/�����+�'��!��$�
���$����������	
���&����
/
�
���&	�����	�������
����������������
���$��$	���%��'��'��
+�����	�����&��������������%���'����(
���	����/������������''��/�
,����!��$�
���$��$	���%������	�����&���������
�!����������-	
��$������&������''

��%
��5B��C�
&��$����	
������'�

�
����&�����5�
���$��5&&
����&�����&�������/�
�'$�����D������&�5�
���$������)��������A5��������!	
��
���,��678E?7FGHI:EJF:K�LME?=NJFO7?P�@�1������������(


���/����'��/
�
�����
��
�!�������'���+)��'
��
�4.'���
�	���,�1����'��/
�
���(


������������������������������

�&�

�(����
�����$�
�'�����	����
��'	�����
�!������
�!�����
���
�!���+�'��'���+������
%���
���������2�����	�!��,�����	��$����'�����	����$	���%��
����$'

�����(
�������'�

�
����&�����D������&�5�
���$��&����A5������	�

����
������'�

�+�!	
������'��/
����%+�����D����,��1���'��/
�
���(


���
'	
�������������'��'���+�$	���%������
���
�������������(
����������'���+�'�

�
����&�����D������&�5�
���$�,�#�����'���+)��'
��
��.'���
�	����(


�%���

�(���(
���	��'�
����''��/�
��&������,��I877?>FJQ?�R>FJ8=�@�1������������(


���/��'��/
�
���������
%
�!�'�����������
��
�!�����������
/�����
���,�1�
��'��/
�
���(


������
%�����
������������������������������
/�����
������'����������
/�����
���'
������
$�&��$���������
$

���'��/
�
���,��1��������������������	
���&��$���
������(


���/�������
����-	
��$�����&���'��&��$����,�1������������$�+���-	
������������������������	%$
����'������&��.'���
�	������	���$�������/����!��
��/���	�����	�
�'��&��$�������'�������A5��'��&��$�������'�������	�
������/
�(��$����%+����������
�
�������������
�&��$��
��������
����������+�&�����������������/�
	��������'��&��$������&���������������,�1������������
40



�

��������	
����
�
��������������������	�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ���!���

"


���#��$��#
�
������%	
�
�!�&
�
&	&�$��'��&�����
�#�
�����(�����
�#���(�'����'	��
�!�'�����&�
�
�!�$��
����
���#�

�(
�)�*������������&�+���#����$��#
�
���������	�������

&
�����'	��
�!�'���'	�	���$��
����
'������&
�
&	&�$��'��&�����
�#�
�
����������
���)��,-./-01234�567846.9�:�*������������"


���#����$��#
�
�����
��
�!����;����!
(
�����$���+��������������
��<=��>�
'��&��	
������$�������)���)��*����$��#
�
���"


������������
'�$���	��������$���	����	�������
��������������"�
�����$������
��!������������$�������
!�������

�(�
��!�������������������?������'�<�
���&����������>)�?)���$���&�����'�@�(��)�*�
��$��#
�
������

������$$
+����$���	����$���	����(+�����������������������������
����������������"�
�������	����
������$��'��&������'�����"������%	
����(+���
����������)���A4B6C1.D4-.�7E�5/6.1B18/-.F�G�*������������"


���#����$��#
�
����������
�!���������	
�&�����'�$���
�
$����)�*��������������"


�(�����$���
(
��'�������	
�&�����'�$���
�
$�����
���	''
�
�����	&(���������+$��������������	''
�
����
�#�
��'�
���
��;<���H$���
�	��������(��&�
���
���)�*������������"


��H$
�
�������
'����	''
�
�����	&(����'�$���
�
$�����������������	
������������

�����������������'	��
�!�
�#�
��&�+�(����!��
����������I	������''
�!�
�#�
��'	���������	!��������������)��J1F/337K4L�M7F.F�:�*��������������������	
���'��&���
������"


���#�������
��$��#
�
������!���
�!��
��

�"��������������	�
�N&��
���
�!�'
��
�!�)�*������������"


���#��$��#
�
�����������%	
�����������������������$�+���+��H$���
�	��������
��'�	������(��	��

�"�(
�)�*������������"


���#��$��#
�
������%	
�
�!���������������������&��+���+���'
�
���
���'�	���
���	�
������&��
���
�!���$�����$�
���������
�
���
��H$���
�	����������
�
���
�����
$����'�'	���)��M7-.6/B.�OLD1-1F.6/.17-�:�*��������������������	
���'��&���
������"


���#�������
����%	
��&�����'��������������&
�
�����
��)�*��������������"


�(����%	
���������&$
+�"
����$$��$�
����<=��>�
'��&����	
�������?������'�<�
���&��$�

�+�!	
������������$$

��(
��
���
�$�

�+�!	
������'��&����������)�*���$��$�����&	�����#�����������
��
���&$������������H$���
���
��&���!�&����������&
�
�����
������$��$��
+���&
�
�����������������)��M7-.6/B.76�P43EQR7-1.761-0�:�*��������������������	
���'��&���
������"


���#�������
����%	
��&�����'�����
':&��
���
�!)�*�������������S�T�"


�(����%	
�������$��
��
��

+�����	�����
����
':&��
���
�!�������	�����&$

�����"
����;<������
���
�$�

�
����(	�!�����$��'��&�����&���	����������
&

���&���	���)�*���������&�+���%	
����������������������	(&
��$��
��
����$��������
�����
':&��
���
�!��''����)��,-.406/.4L�P46U1B4�J431U469�:�*������������"


���#��$��#
�
������!���
�!�����$��#
�
����'�
���!���������#
�������N������#
����(�
�!���

#�����
����'	���
���
���

#��+��+���&)�*�
��&�+���%	
���������������������$��#
�����&�����#
�����������������
�
���

+���

#�����(+����������
�
����������������:���:
�����

�"�(
�����#
���)��;������
���!��������

#��+��+���&�����������
�
���&�+��
���(����%	
���������

#�����&���'��������#
�������������
��
	����
�����������&�����'�"�����'���
����������)��*������������"


�
��
	�������%	
��&������������''�$��#
����(+�����?��#
������#
����"


�(��'	���
���

+��	$��#
����(+����''��'�������
41



�

��������	
����
�
��������������������	�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ���!���

���
�
���������������
��
�!�
������"��#
�
����$����#
����
������%���$������&���'�����������������������(�����$$��	"��#
������$$��$����������
�
���%���
�!�
������%���$������������)��*+,-.�/01+.23+�4.05676017�8�9������������'�&���#��"��#
�
����%�
����������������
:���
����
�����)�9�����"��#
�
����'�&�:����������&��	���������!���
���""

��:
��
�%�������!	
��
�����"��#
�
�����������������!��������$
������!��
��
����'�����	:��;	�����������
��	������$���
���������;	
��'������������%����������
'���$�����
��	������$���
�����������������������)������������������������<=/>?*@�AB��?@>=CDE>=F�F=G?H=DI�*J�<=DH?/=<�E@F�?@J*DKE>?*@�*@�>L=�*@=M<>*4�<I<>=K�
42



�

��������	
����
�
��������������������	�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ���!���

"���������������
����������#�

�$
�!�
����
����#���%�
���&���������&��
����'�(���������
�����
���
�)���*��+���	��,�$���#�������)�
�-&��������.��"���������
���
���
���
�!����$�,�����
&-��)������/	�

�,�����/	���
�,��#����)
�����)�

�(
������	���&��������	!�������������.������������)��������
!������
����
#,�����&�)����������������0�����##����������
����
��������������.��"������������$��(�
�$���-�������������	������-��
�
�������������#


���
������%�
���&���������&��
����'�(��������.�"�������������������������	!����
������$


�(���1-���������-��)
���"
�
��2����)
����
��������#�����������������$�)�����������#
�1
(


�,����-��-�����
##���������##
�!�&���
�3
�)�
�.����4567895:;�5<�=5>?<5>6@�A@:8@>;�7:B�AC>>@:8�D@E9F@>G�H@8I5B;�

JI@�6I7>8�7K5F@�;I5L;�8I@�=MNO�J98E@�M�P>5Q>7R�6@:8@>;S�7:B�6C>>@:8�;87<<9:Q�L98I9:�8I@�TE@F@:U65C:8G�>@Q95:V��

A@:8@>�4567895:�D@E9F@>G�WG;8@R� AC>>@:8�W87<<9:Q�X>5F9B@B�KG�=MNO�J98E@�X>5Q>7R�YC:B;�N?RCEQ@@� Z-��
�

[������������

)��
�!�
���!���������)
����$
���������%��\Z��-��������������-��)
�����	���Z��)
���� ].����"��������̂���!�������-��)
�����

)��,��#��2%��"
�
��2����)
���.��.����"�2����������	����Z-��
�

���HC;?5Q@@� �##


�������������

)��
�!�
���!���������)
����$
���������%��\Z��-��������������-��)
�����	���Z��)
���� �.����"��������̂���!�������-��)
�����

)��,��#��2%��"
�
��2����)
���.��.����"�2����������	����Z-��
�

���J7IE@_C7I� Z-��
�

[������������

)��
�!�
���!���������)
����$
���������%��\Z��-��������������-��)
�����	���Z��)
���� �.����"��������̂���!�������-��)
�����

)��,��#��2%��"
�
��2����)
���.��.����"�2����������	����Z-��
�

���JCE;7� ��&-������
)�����������

)��
�!�
���!���������)
����$
���������%��\Z��-��������������-��)
�����	���Z��)
���� ].����"��������̂���!�������-��)
�����

)��,��#��2%��"
�
��2����)
���.��.����"�2����������	����Z-��
�

���W7PCEP7� �##


�������������

)��
�!�
���!���������)
����$
���������%��\Z��-��������������-��)
�����	���Z��)
���� �.����"��������̂���!�������-��)
�����

)��,��#��2%��"
�
��2����)
���.��.����"�2����������	����Z-��
�

���TC<7CE7� %�
���&���������##
���
����
����##��
�!�����������)
���� �.����"��������̂���!������-��)
�����

)��,��#��2%��"
�
��2����)
�������	�
)����
��	���&���.���W89EL@EE� %�
���&���������##
���
����
����##��
�!�����������)
���� �.����"��������̂���!�������-��)
�����

)��,��#��2%��"
�
��2����)
�������	�
)����
��	���&����W7EE9;7L� %�
���&���������##
���
����
����##��
�!�����������)
���� �.����"��������̂���!������-��)
�����

)��,��#��2%��"
�
��2����)
�������	�
)����
��	���&���.���OEE�A5C:89@;� Z	--����Z��##����
��
�!�
���

������	��
������)
����(,����������.������
��������������������̂�2�������^	���!����%�&	
!����%��!�����$�����Z�/	�,����"	
����������!�������	��
��.� �.����"�%-����
����̂���!����.����"�̀	�

�,����	������Z-��
�

������
�
���
����
�
���������!��
����.�
43



�

��������	
����
�
��������������������	�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ���!���

"���������#


���$%��
�
&�
'���
��������(���)��%�(%�����������	!������%���������������#


���&��*	���
���
�$���!�$�������$%

�����������&���
!����*�����(�
���$���������$��
����+�,�������������#


�,��-./012/345.�61-�78.�911-:32;7312�16�;55�/</7.=�0;-72.->/�/.-?39./�78-1@A81@7�78.�-.A312B��C2�;::3731����������$��!����#


�,����
������
��������*������������D��"������**������
��%��&
�����������#���*�������������$�'���������$%����'����%��$������,��
���,�����
!�������#����
��������%��
�
����#
��
�������������D��E����$��
�������������**�#���
�!�
����*	���
���
�	�
��$�'�,���	%��&
����,'����**�#���
���$%
�'���,'�������
�'��������������������������D�F�#�&����*���$��������	������%�'��

��%�������
�����&�
���
��
%

���'����
��������D�����**�%��&
����,'����������������#


�,�����%���
,
��������
���$%
�'������������������D�����%���������	
���������������'�����������G	
�������%��&
���������	�


�
������
�%��������&
����
�����������&
�����	%%

���	����,'�#���*������	���$�����
�#������!��	����$�
�����������G	
%$����%	����������G	
%$����$�
�����������G	
%$������*�#���������������$�����	%%

���*�����$%������
&�������������)���


���(**
���D��F�#�&����
�������&�����	���$������G	
�����G	
%$�����%��
*
������������&
���%��&
����#


�����,����&����D����������������&�
�%�����HI-��	�����JK�L����������$����MN������
����

��
�!��*����&
�����������
�
�!�#�
���$�'�,���&�

�,
�����#���*������'���$��	���$���D�"���HI-��	�����JK�#


������
�����&
���������%��$����"�
����E$%��&�$�����M�������������+�,�����
,
��)�


������(��	%��
���
�)�


�D�"�
����
$%��&�$����$�'�
��
	���
��$���	������

*��$���!�$������


���

�����'�������	
��,��
����	���
����M)O����$%	������


���*�	����
������
�
�!�����D��M���
�!�����,����+�,�����
,
��$�'�
��
	���
��$�����������������������P�,�����
������P�,�����
�!�����P�,�!���
�!���


�D��(��	%��
���
�)�


��$�'�
��
	���%�
��#�����J%��
������(+"����!
��������%%����
����
%���
�������
%����	���$
Q������
�
�!���������
�!�����!��������������
�
D�E��������	�����*�%��&
�
�!����&
�������#���*������	���$��������**��*����������������$�'�,����*���
�!��	���$����*�����$���*�����������	��������**�$�'�%��&
�����$���*���������	���������%�����*����
��#��������������������������**�$�'���G	��������������%��
*
������	���,��$�����&�

�,
���*����%���	��$���D�"��������������#


���
'�,����G	
�������%�'������������*����**�#�!���������
�����������*��E�����R"���)R"������#���������$%�����
���
��	�����D���� �
44



�

��������	
����
�
��������������������	�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ���!���

� "#$%&'(�)*��"#+,&$#"�%'�-#�.+'$/+#0�-1�%2&"�.+'.'"34�� 5��������������6


�7��8
����������99������

8���5
�
��:����8
��������	!��	�����������;<��
�8�����	��=�����>���5��������99�?�?@����6


����
���A���B��7����������
������7��8
�
����9����8
�����������A�
���?���������?��
����C�@���������6
��
������6���9�������8�
�7?��������>�5��������99�?�?@����6


�7��8
������8
����
�������������6
���������

�
�������������	��������!	
������9��?�����A�
���?��A99
����9�����9�������8�
�7?������������DB���7���?�����9�E�@��>��5��������������6


�@��6���
�!�6
��������������8�
�7���6����8
����9���F�@��������	���?�������@��
��
	����
����������	�����G�H����������?�����I>�5����������������
���������7��8
���
���!���������8
�������������	
�������
�
���������������6


�7��8
������99����6����6
�����8��
��=��9�7�������������

8������8
����
��A�
���?���������?��
����C�@��������>��5������99�?�=�@����J	
����������8��
����8��
��=��9�9	���
����
��
�������A�
���?���������?��
����C�@��������>��K�6�8����?�����9�����6��������@���
��
�!	
�����
��������������!��
��L�����
������������8
�����:��
8
�	�
�����������8
���������5��
�
�!�B��8
����9�����	
�������
�
������������������6�

����������	���M
�?����>���	�����
=�����?���
�	����
������
��8��=�

���������7���
�
7���������?�8�������	!��������

8��=��9����8
����
���	�����9���
��>���-NOPQ�$NRSSR�"SRTPQSO�9�����	
�������E���	���?�����������������9���������>��5��=������8�

�@
�������=�7������6���6�����������������������8
���>��5��=�?�=�@��7��8
�����
������
��

=����@=����99>����
���������B��8
�����������
!���������
7�F�@���������!�����F�@�����7���F�@�����!�����@������F�@>�����
���������B��8
������������9�

�6
�!L�U� M

!
@


�=�9���B��8
����U� A	��������
���������
�����
���U� :�
�
�
�������?����U� E�@����G����!�����8
����U� ��9����
�����7��!��?���U� E�@���?������
�9��?��
���U� ���9��?��������������
�9��?��
���U� B	77���
8�����8
����
�9��?��
���U� :�9��?��
������D:�U� �
����
�
��
��
�9��?��
����U� C�@�A7��
�!�VE
��
�!��U� �
���?����B��8
����U� M?7
�=?���������������:�9��?��
���U� ��?7	�����������U� C�@�B���������
�������
45



�

��������	
����
�
��������������������	������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������ ���

����	
�
� ��	���!�������"��#
�
� ��	����������
�$��!�"�����
�
��	���!�����$�����%���$
����$�&���
� �&
���'�
���!��������
��������������������#
��(����'$���������������"��
�
��$$��������"��#
�������	
�!��������
��%	�
�������
���
� �$�����&��!"
�)���(��*��
���
�����	�
�
������&����������)�	�������������%�	����� ���	����$��!��
 �������
���������%� 
��
� ����!��������������
�
���(������
�
� �"���+��������)� ���	��������
��
	����������,����������

� �� ���	�����
�����������
������������)�$���-.//0�12304.567��%


�)���� ��&��������$$�&


�%����8	
����������	������������&
���
���
�����������������

� �������	�
#���
�
��������	
�
#���������
��
����
��"������(�� ,��������������&


�%�����"���
%
��$������	�
� �8	�

�)�����������#
����������

#���������

��	���!���(��9
����������	���!���!�)��������$��!��������)��$��������#
���������
"�!�����
�:����
��
#
�	�
��!"
�)!���� ��
�����������"��$��������#
���"�������!	���%	

������������"�%�$����
��&
�����!��#�
	�������(��*��
���������"���
%


�)��$�����'�
���!���������!��
����;�%������������$$�������	��������	���!���
���
&�)���&�����$����
����<�����"�
������"������(���

����$$�!	���%����!"�����������%
�����"��#
�������������#
���(��=>�?@AA�BC�DE�>F�>GC�HCIJ@KC�EIFJ@LCI�>F�EIFJ@LC�MEEIFEI@M>C�H>MNN�MOL�HDEEFI>�ECIHFOOCA�NFI�CNNCK>@JCP�KFQEA@MO>�LCA@JCIR�FN�HCIJ@KCHS����=OL@J@LDMA@TCL�UMICCI�VCIJ@KCH�����������<��
�#�
��$����#
��(��,��������#
������8	
���!�������$$����
�������������������)"
��

)�$�	���
��%��
������������#
���(���	���!����&���"�� ����������
��
�#�
��$����#
�������2W4/0�X0�0//Y�2W�7Z/[XWX[�\7]X̂̂7_�X0�2.Y/.�42�̀/̂Z�4̀/a�WX0Y�73X4bĉ/�/aẐ25a/04d��,�
������ ��)�
��
	�����	���!����&�����#�������%��
�����!"
�)!�����$��������
#
� �%��
������������#
���(��*���������������
#������%���$
��$��!�*��
#
�	�

e���9��#
����
��
����������)����������!"������
#��������!����%����!"
����(��,�
��������!����"��#
����������	���!���&
���������

������������!"��
%


�)���"���������&


��
�����!�������)�&����&
������$$������!"
�������*��
#
�	�
�f!"
�)!�����
��(��*��
#
�	�

e����������9��#
����
��
#
�	�

e���$��������"���
�
"���(����

����#��
��)��$����������#
����&


�%���$
��!�����$������	���!����
����&���$�������������������	���!���!	�����#�����
��"���
�	
����������"���������%������g�%������������$
�����
���
��	!�������(��*��
#
�	�

e����������9��#
����
��
	���%	����������

!
�����������$�

�&
� h�i���!"������
#��������!����i�*��
#
�	�
�f!"
�)!�����
���i��������"
���
� ����	���

� �i�9����+���!�"��#����
���
����#
����i�*�������
"�����������f<"��
�����i�����$��������"����
������
#
�
���
46



�

��������	
����
�
��������������������	������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������ ���

!��
����
�
�

�����"�!�#	���$������%�&��������!�'� 

���
�� 	� ����(	
�
�
���!��'�����)����
���!���$����
�����*	
��&
����������*��+
����!�*	))���
+��*��+
����!�,����+
�-�*�


���������)�!����	.����
�
� ��������)�!�,��
+
�	�
�/�&���+�
�).����!����
����.)	����*�


��!���.��
��
����$�0
�����"����1	.����"�*�


��!���	
�����
��'�	���
����	���.����-���	�


2�����������+
�������	
��$
������
��-�"�������
.)��+����.)
�".����)�����
�
3��4�����������"����$$��
.�����-����-
����	���.����-����������+���� ���$�,��
+
�	�

2����������*��+
����
������������.��
��

"��+���������-���������
"����+���-
���&��
������������+
���3��4��"�.�"��
�����������-����
����$���
����������
� �������
��,��
+
�	�
�'.)
�".�����
������������"���+����������������������"����)�����.�+��$��.��������+
������������5�����+
��3��,��-


������
-�"��&��)���
&
��$������	���.������&���$
��$��.���+���
��$����������+
����
�����������
.��$��.�3��������$$�-�����-
����	���.��������"�.�"�
����
$"����������+
�����������������������+�

�&
��-
��
������%�&������������-�	
���������$����	���.���������)�������� ���"�$������+
����&�$����
��
���))��)�
�����������
�	��-
�������,��
+
�	�
�'.)
�".�����
��3��*�


��������.�"�&���	���.����-��������������5��
�+�
��$����+
����6�4��
�
� �*��+
���3�� 789:;:;<�=>8?:@>A������$$��������������)���
�
)�����-�����������
�
���
����	)��
���
����
�
� ����$
����.)
�".���������-


�)��+
����	���
��&
��-� ���$������.��������
��$�.

"3������
������$������
�
� �.	������-���������"�����
����������
�������
� ���������������
�����������������	���"�����$�������+�
�).���������BC�DECF�GH�IJKLMI�GNNOPLFEGMCQ�LRDJ�FG�RJMJHEF�LMI�HEMECS�FSJ�MJNJCCLTU�FTLEMEMV�EM�GTIJT�FG�VG�FG�WGTX�
����������	)��
�������.	���$�

�-
��
�����������BC�YTEGTEFU�GH�ZJT[ENJ�YGDENU\��]SJM�EF�EC�IJFJTKEMJI�FSLF����	���.���-�	
��&���$
��$��.����
�
� ��
��������	)��
��������
����������BC�IJKLMI�GNNOPLFEGM�DECFQ���������$$�.	���-����-
���������	���.�����������.
�������.�����))��)�
�������
�
� �
���
�	�
�����������������)��
$
�����	)��
�����������))��+������
�
� �)��+
����

��3��*��$$�-


�-����-
��������	���.�������
47



�

��������	
����
�
��������������������	������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������ ���

���
�
� �!��"
����������	����������������

#����
����#!
�����
�����
#�
$�#��������������������	���#���������"��$�������%�
�
� �!��
��&��'��((�%


���"���
����$�#���������
�������	 ������������#����!������������������	���#���
���)
�������#!
����������	���&��'��((�%


��
������	�������������	���#���!�������������#������
)	�������%��)$�!��!
��%��������	�����(	
�
����
������������	!��
��&���(���������	���#������������������
�
� ��
��
��
#!����
"����������((�#�
���
����������%
������#����!��"
���*+,-./01-2�3-4�/-*+,532/6/-78��973::;.�<+=�1.�7+�/-.,5/�7>37�1:�3-?�=3551/5.�7+�.,**/..:,0�*+6@0/71+-�+:��������
�
� ���
�����������$�����
����!��
�
������%����%
��������	���#��������"����#��������)���
���&��'	�����(	
���#!
��
��������#!
�$#����
����������	!��
���
��������A	
�����	���#�&����B��������������%���%


�)��!��"
�
� �
��� ���������"
���������	
��������
�
���������������������	���'��"
����#	����
������((������	�������������������$�����!��"
�
� ������"
����$���#&��B�����������������	
�����	���������

����((��������
�������)���C!��������!��"
�
� �����(	

�����$��(����"
�����"�

�)
��
������D�
���#���������#��
����E�)��������&��D���
��%�
���A	�

�$��	���#������"
���
����A	
��������

��
#��&�'��((�#	���

��������������	���#������	���������������������(������
��
"
�	�
�����#	���#�����"��$��((�������!��"
��������	���#���%
����������
�����)���#��#�����	�����(	
&��B�
��#�������������((�%


���
!�������	���#������
����
($�����)����#
C��(����"
�������#�������
�������&��B�������(�����F���"��
�������D!!���	�
�$�������
!	
������������#
�
#	#��(�GHI��(�$�	���!�� ��#�(	����)���C!������(������"
�������D	���(�'����
���	��&�F����

"��
� ����"
�������$�	�����������"
���!��"
����JKLM�����	
��������#
����

 
)


�$�(������������

��	((
�
����$�	������������D	���(�'����
�����

�%�����%���(�������"�
�!#������������#������
����A	
��#���&��B������"
���!��"
����%


�#����������������	�
�#���	����������A	
����N�I��(��

�$�	����C!���
�	����)���C!���������D	���(�'����
���	��&��F�����
�
������I��(�����
�$�	���!�� ��#���

����#	���)���!������������OC!��
�������������#
����)$��

������(	���&����	������"
����
����
��%���(�������"�
�!#�������������!��"
����)$���"���
��
((�������� ��
P��
���&�B��������"
����������������)��!��"
����)$��������� ��
P��
����%


�)�����
 �����������
�������	�
� ���!���	��#����!������&��B���'��"
������"
����%


���

"���������	
����Q��������	������ ��#����
 �����#�%����'��"
���&������
�
���

$������'��"
������"
������	
��!��"
����

����!������(��������
�#��������
�� ����������
���������������
�����%
�������!��"
�
����(������
�#���&������C�#!
���
(���(�%����%�����"�

�)
����������((��(�����'��"
������"
������	
��!��"
�����	�$���


�����
�
� ��������'��"
������"
�����((
���&��'��"
����!��"
����)$����������������#	���)��!��"
������
$����$�	����������"��)���������#
�������#���������

 
)


�$���
���
��(����FD��B
�
��F&�F��������

 
)


�$������#
���
������"�
�!#�����(����F��
"
�	�
�'��"
���'����� $�����������
� �%


�)��!��(��#���	�
� �����������#���������$���#��%�
���
����!���
�
!����#��� �#����
�(��#��
����$���#������
��!��"
����"
��
������������

�%���(������((
����
��D�
���#�&������������R�S���
����������	 ����
������%


�!��"
�������(�

�%
� T�
48



�

��������	
����
�
��������������������	�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ���!���

��"��#$%&$'(�)*+,&-�.$'(*/%$0�%1�2%3'4�5%678�#$%&$'(+�9�78*�:$%&$'(�;*+,&-�1$'(*/%$0�%1�4%3'4�<%678�=��!��>��>	���
��
	��?�� @��

��A�����=��B
�
���������
����
��������������	�����

�C�������
������������=���������
!���A�����C�	���=��!��>����
B
�
���
��������������	���C�����A�������B�
�=>������������D�

����������=�

�
���
��	���EC������"�� @�F���������
B
�
���>�C�
�B�
B�����B
�����	��������!
�����
�����

!
E


�C������>
���
���������

���
����A�
�A��>��
�������	==����B��
A
���
����A��

!
E


�C�A������B
���"�F��>�C��
���
��
	���=��G������
�!�=�����
�
�=���
�
=���������!�����
���
�����
��������
AG��
=����B
���"�H��������
B
�
���
��
	�����A����
��������������B
����D�
���>�C�
��
	���=��B
������A��������=��!��>��
�>����"�� @����HEI���
B��������>����>	���>����������J	
��>������A��FH��K
�
��F�����
����=������������
����
A
������B
���������������>
��
�B�
���!��
���
������������


�
�B�
����E


�
�����=�
�	����������	==���
B�����B
��������������>���	����E���
�������������!���"�F��
��
	��������B
�D��A�E��
���������	=��
���
���


���=�
���D�����L=��
�������>=
�C�E


�C�=�����
�
�������B�
�=>����
������"�K������	
���A����������>����
�����F��
B
�	�
�M��B
���M�����!C"��� @�K�����B�
�=>�����A����F��
B
�	�
�M��B
���M�����!C�A��������C�	���=���
�
=���������>�����������J	
��>������A��FH��K
�
��F��
��
	�
�!�
����
AC
�!����������!��
���������
�����
����A�����������>�������	
���A��������C�	���=���
�
=���"�K�
��F��
B
�	�
�M��B
���M�����!C�>	����
���>�����

��A�������J	
��>������������B��E��������EC�M�����=�

�C"�� @����=����
���A���=�����������C���	���
���
��==���	�
�
��N�=��B
���

���!���E��D���������>
���������	=��
���
�
����
�!N�=��B
���=��=����
���A����>=
�C>���N�����=��B
����AA���
B���������
�������
����>��
��C���!��
O��
���������=��B
��������!�

�����������I�E�>�����������>=
�C���"���"����A����
��A�����	���K��������������>	������	��������������A����
���J	
��>�����
���FH��K
�
��F�A���C�	��������>��������
���>���

!
E


�C���
���
������>����
��
	�
�!?�� @����B
�
�!�C�	���D
���
�A��>��
�����!���
�!�����A	

�����C��A��==

��E
������==��=�
�������B
�����B�

�E
������	!�������������=��B
�����A�	����

!
E
��EC�����E���������H��GM��=�=�������N������ @���A���
�!��C�	�������==��=�
�������
�
�!�������	���
���
�=��!��>���������B��������=��
�C�������B�����>��
������������J	���
�
��������	������E��
�"��K�������������P�Q�>	������	��������������A����
���J	
��>�����
���FH��K
�
��F�A���C�	���������������>������������

>������J	
��>������A���=���
�	
���=��!��>����D����������E�����B���EC�����=��!��>�����>����
��
	�
�!?�� @���A����
�A���A	������������>����������������C������
49



�

��������	
����
�
��������������������	������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������ ���

� !���"����
�����##��#�
�������
�
� ������	���
���
�#�� ��$���������%��������#��
�&�������%�����$��
������������'	���
�
��������	������(��
�)���)�����%�
�#$����������%
�
����"������
��*
�$�����+,-.-/01�02�3-�452678-8�39�0:-�;-567<-�=52678-5����������	�����

�&�>�
���$������"�������%�
�#$����?��	�����@��A���B������ ���������	(��'	����
��	�����)��;4-<7C,�=52D-<01�=52421-8����#������$�&�E
������#�������
�"��$��
��������&��#��
�
�#��F��������������#��#�����(�

�%���E


�(���"�(���"
�����E���"������	���$���)�G��	
���������#��
�
�#��F�������'	
���������
�
���
��H#���
�	����"�"	���������#��#��������	
��
��
	���������
$�����"��������
�
���
��$�	����������(	�����	
������
��
	���������������
������#��#���
�(	� ��)���IC072/C,�+.-5J-/<9�K5C/0�L�MNN�;-567<-1�L�O2.4-07076-�K5C/01�?"�P��
���
�*$�� ���&�����������Q������������������
%��������G��%
������%
����$	���#��%
������%
���������������E��
�
�������E������)�?"���E�P��
���
�*$�� ���&�����������Q������������������
%���E�
�����'	
������
�
���
����""
� ����#��%
������%
���������G��%
������%
�������������������$�&��� ��
������$��
"
���
����������G��%
������%
�������������"�����&����
�
���
������������������'	
����
��#��%
�
� ����������%
���)��?"���������������
%�����&������� �����������
��
	������%
����(�
� ���

%�����
�������A���#���%
���$��������������G��%
������%
�������������������$�&��� ��
������$��
"
���
�����������H
��
� ����������������&����
�
���
���������'	
����
��#��%
�
� ����������%
���)����������
50



�

��������	
����
�
��������������������	�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ���!���

"#$%&'(�)*��%#$+(&$,-�,""&"%,($#�%'�./'.'"#/"�.0123456784�97::40;2<�=>?�2@A=76�B07664C�D@42671C2�A4E7CC7CE�F07:>?G�,307H�IJG�KLKI*�M	���
����N�O�P���N�

��Q����R���������S�
�����T	���
��������
U���R�
��������������

���S


�P������������
������MV��R�������������S�P�
���SSSQ!������	���OS����Q��!Q�W	PN
��T	���
������X������
�Y	���
�!�������	���
�!�Z!������	���OS����Q��!���
�����T	���
����S


�P������R�������
����������[����O���R�

��\������������]���RQNQ��ŴQ�M	���
��������
U����_������
������

���S


�����P�����S����Q�̂����_��������R����������������	��!������U
�S�����S�P�
���_��T	���
O�������	������O�����_	

O��S�����_�����N�����	������
�_��N��
��Q��

����S����
��	���
�����R�����������R�������T	���
����P���N��R�����_���������������������R������Q�����R������N	����
���P���S������������������������
��R�

�
�������!	
�������������U��P����
��	���PO�����W�������N
�
�����
U��̀��
�O������a�
���N��a__
����_�����_�������U�
�RN�������R��U
�	��!	
������_��N�a�
���N��̀NR
�ON����W��	�
�O���NN
��
���bàW�cQ�̂�����R�

�
�������!	
����������R��U
�����������
���
�S���_�������U�
�RN����������
������_��N��_�a�
���N������_�������U�
�RN����d��	������ba��dc����R��U
�	�
O�
��	���!	
������_��N�a�
���N��̀NR
�ON��������̂��
�
�!�d��	������bà d̂c������
���
������_��N��_�[�N�����	N�Q�̂�����!	
���������U�

�P
���������R	P

������	!������a�
���N��������S�P�
��Q��.01312402�2e1@H:�04874B�6e4�31H75742�>C:�=4=10>C:@=2�6e>6�>33H?�61�f&',�%76H4�&�301E0>=2�>2�6e4�$1C60>5610�5e124C�B7HH�A4�04D@704:�61�51=3H?�B76e�6e124�:15@=4C62*����N�!��R�
�������g�P���[������d�_��N��
����R��
_
�����������������	���O�����_�������U�
�RN��������������U�

�P
������	!������S�P�
�����_�����a__
����_�����_�������U�
�RN�������R]hhSSSQ��
���N�S����Q!�Uh��a�
���N����R���N�����_���NN�����SSSQai��NN����Q!�U��a�
���N��̀NR
�ON����W��	�
�O���NN
��
��]����R�]hhSSSQ��Q!�Uh����hQ�g�P���N������
�_��N��
����R��
_
�������
��S���_�������U�
�RN���������
���U�

�P
�Q��F10�E4C40>H�7Cj10=>671C�1CH?����������
��������S�����N�	����_���������S�������_�

�S�]��k����l���m���	��Q���	
��_	��
�!��k�nn�\��Q��	�����
O����
N�����_	��
�!���U�

�P
��_���R��!��N�O��������X���	
���k����o�n��Q��p��������_	��
�!�
�_��N��
���
���U�

�P
����������
N�Q�� �
51



�

��������	
����
�
��������������������	�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ���!���

� "#$%&'(�)*��+,-.#%�&(/'012%&'(��	�!���3��4������5��6
����
��7���
���8�9������4�����:��3���
�����;�<�����3��4���������=��	�������5�������>�	��5��5�����=	�!��;�?�
>�
��
	�����=	�!���3�������5��
���@	
>�������������	!��@	���A�������;�����B�=	�!���3��������	=��C	����5��
����B


�=����!��
�����5�
�����������
�!�����������D����
�����
3�����

�B��;����E��
����������������

�����������������=������!���������������������
>�
3�����5��5�������������55��6���
��
����������5
������������

����
���5
���
��
	����B
�������=	�!��;�<���=	�!������	
��=��5���������3�������5��
����3��
4�������
�����B��
��������������������

��������
����3���
�����;�<����	�!���E�3��4��
������4��4	���=��	��������4	���=����45
�����=>�����

�

���
��4�;��F	
�
5
��5�!����3�������3��4��4�>�=����������>;�E3�4	
�
5
��5�!�������	�����5
�����
�=�
����4��55��5�
���
>;�����5���������	
��
��
	�������

��������	�������=	������

4
������G��H�7��33����
�
����I�7�
��
���H�7��33���
�!������3
���J���>��

�<�D���J�K��45
�>4����E��	������J�����������45�����
���J�L��
���E��	������J����
��4����H�7��33�<��6�
M<��
�
�!�H���5>
�!M��
��
�!�H�������
�E��	������H������!�M���
!���H�?33
���7	55

���H�<�
�5����M��44	�
���
���H����!��4�F���!�4���M7	55����7��33�H����3
��9
3��55

��=
�:�����5���������	
��
��
	�������5>��3����
��4�����������N�!��
�����E��
����������������!���4�����
3��55

��=
�;�����5���������	
��('%�
��
	���
������=	�!������>��4�	����������������=��5�
��=>����������;�������B�
�������('%����=��
��
	����
���������6
���5��6
����=	�!�������G�H��4�	����5�
������	!��E��
6
�	�
�<��
�
�!�����	����H��4�	����5�
��3����	55�������6
����5�>4�����H�?@<���
4=	���4���������45
�>����H�����������
�����B
���5���
�
5����O�B�!���B�

����!�!���
���������PD5��
��������
6
�>�H�������3����5��
�
�5��Q������55��6���=>���������������B���3������>���4�4���!�4�����������	�


�
����
���������������3�����
�B������!��	����4�
�����������C	
54����5	����������C	
54����4�
�����������C	
54������3�B���������������4�����	55

���3���?��R7��5�������������?�
���4��������?33
���S����
���;�
52



�

��������	
����
�
��������������������	�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ���!���

�"������	�
�������
��	������	�
�!�����#��$��%������$��������������&


���'	
���������������	�
�������(���
���
(	�����%��!�)��
�	�����������!��
��������
$$������$	��
�!������%�*��"����%�	����$�$	�����)�

�(
��#���$	��
�!������%��+��	
����
�
��������������������	��,�&


�(��
����
$
����	�
�!����������������!��
��
���*�� �

53



�

��������	
����
�
��������������������	�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ���!���

�"#$%&'(�)*+��,-','"./�#0./1.%&'(�$-&%#-&.����2���
������
3����	4��5	���������������

���6


�����4����3
�6�����������
������7���7	��
�!8�9����
!���	���2�!��:	���4����:2
������
!��������������
;����������2��2���
�6


�����4������
�����8�� ��2��2���
�:	�������
3�����
���������2�
�������4������
�����8���2��2���
�����
3
�!�
�������������2�
����6


�4������
���������4��	�����2��4
�8�9�������
�:�<
:	:�2�
�������������4���6�������������8��9���7�

�6
�!���
���
��6


�4��	��������3�
	�����

�2��2���
�8�9����3�
	������6


��6������:����

�����������7�����2�
����������������6��7���������3�
	��
���
��:8�

=>?@AAB�CDEFGDHIB�JF?KELM�@EN�O@PFG�>QGRAQM�PQMDEKMMKM�SDAA�TUVUWXU�YZ�Y[[W\W]ZŶ�_�̀]WZ\a+�� �

#XŶbY\W]Z�&\Uc� -YZdU����� eYfWcbc�,]WZ\a�$]Z\YV\�&Zg]TcY\W]Z�YZ[�hUaVTẀ\W]Z�]g�'TdYZWiY\W]Z�j.k� ��l��� ���(YTTY\WXU�'b\̂WZWZd�"\Ygg�-UmbWTU[�jnk� ��l���� ���obŶWgWVY\W]Za�]g�"\Ygg�j$k� ��l��� ���,UTg]TcYZVU��YZ[�,UTg]TcYZVU�eUYabTUa�jhk� ��l�p�� p��,TUXW]ba�#f̀UTWUZVU�j#k� ��l���� ���e]ZW\]TWZd�YZ[�"Ûgq#XŶbY\W]Z�jrk� ��l���� ���nb[dU\a�jsk� ��l�pt� pt�"\Y\UcUZ\�]g�.[cWZWa\TY\WXU�.uŴW\v�jwk� ��l���� ���hUc]Za\TY\U[�,T]dTYc�xZ]ŷU[dU�YZ[�'uzUV\WXUa�j.̂k̂� ��l��t� �t�%]\Ŷa� {��l����� ����|�}�>?@AAB�CDEFGDHIB�JF?KELM�@EN�O@PFG�>QGRAQM�� ~t� �
54



�

��������	
����
�
��������������������	�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ���!���

�"#$%&'(�))*��+,'+'"-.�&("%,/$%&'("�-(0�+,'+'"-.�'/%.&(#���

����1������2	���3����������4�

�5�6��7�

�����8�9��
!������
!
��
�����
��
	������
!
��
���1:���;��������<=��4
������
;����6����������	���:�����4�������;�
�12������������>�=?������
���;��@�A�B�C	
����DE�>�����F2�

6���	���
�!�G!������	���:5����?��!��D���8�9��
!������
!
��
������
!
��
���1:�7<=C�3���	32
�����
����HIJKIL���;�
�1��5
�������MNOMOHINPQ�RJSI���������5����6��+NOMOHJK�TON�U$V0W�VONXTONYI�&RROZJ[\OR�JRL�'MMON[]R\[̂�-Y[�-L]K[_0\HKOYJ[IL�VONXIN�JRL�̀O][a�+NObNJSH�5�
�������������c���
����4�������;�
�1�?�<�����
:�5�
���
�������
d���1�1���
��1��1��
�!�:�	��1��1���
?������2�eD	�

���������<����3:����1�������C�
��1�!��
����
:�4���
����	��
�����������	
������3��
��
	���������1�����4�������21
�����1��1���
?��������21
������:�	��1��1���
�2	���3��
������4�

�5
�!���f	����6��C�����;���1�!��C���������
;������
����8�gh9�C�������
4
���
��������=
!���	�������
���8i9����j���������4��2��������2�8������2�����9��	�!���i�4��2��
������2��8������2�����9�����
�
���
�=
!��������
4
������8������2�����9�7������������	�
����1����k�2��
���
�!���1�������

�1�!���2	���3���	23����?�C�����;���1�!��2	���3��1�!��@�?��
���������������4��2���
�!��4�����1�!��������
�
�!�������?�F�����4�������1�!������	
��4
��������
�!
��1�!�?����	����21
�����1��1���
�2	���3���	32
������������
����
�������5
��
�������
2��

2
���������5��
����������1����!�?�� �
55



�

��������	
����
�
��������������������	������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������ ���

!"#$%�&'($�&)*+*,-.�/*)0�1*)23*)45�677*8-9:*7�-7;�"++*)9<7:9=�'49>?:9.5�6��6795@)-95;�A5)8:45,�3*)�';<.9,B�C:,.*4-95;�1*)25),�-7;�D*<9E�A5)8:45,��F�G����������	���H�����I�������J�
�KL����������� M�N�OP������
���J�P�Q�R���� F	
����ST�NU�������K�����V�I��L��
����W� �
�X�L�G���������G���X�L������F
�
���I���������������G��������F�
�����K���
��������K����G�����K������������
�F�Y�V����
I
���
���X	LZ��G�F���
��	� ����I�F�
�����K���
G���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������[�
56



�

��������	
����
�
��������������������	������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������ ���

!"#!#$%"$�&#'()&(�*'+#",)(*#'�)'-�-%$&"*!(*#'�#+�#".)'*/)(*#'�0!).%�1*,*(�2�34��5���6��6��������	
����7�������6���
8
��6���������������������6�����9�5�
��
��
:
�	�
����	
��8��;�7


���<
���������6�8


�
����;�����6��6��
� ��� ��
=��
�������<
�� ��
����������
� �
��
	�
� �;
����
�
�8	� ������������	
����:�������	����
�>������ ��
������������	�
�
��	������8���
;��;�����6��6����9�� �9� ?��
	�������;	

���7����
�
��������������
�6������	78������@7�

���������������9���9� ?��
	����������
6�
����;��������
�>��>6����������6�
��
6�
�;	���
����<�
�������6��;��7���8>�����6��6��������
�>9��A9� ?��
	�������� ��
=��
���
����������<
� ���7�������6��
�
���9��B9� ?��
	�������������<�
�� �>�	���� ��
=��
�������8����
��8	�
�����������<�
�� �>�	���� ��
=��
�������8����6��:
�
� ����:
�����
7

������������8�
� �6��6����9���!"%!)"%�)�')"")(*C%�#D(1*'*'.�E#F�G#D�F*11�!"#C*-%�(E%�$()++�"%HD*"%-�*'�(E%�"+!I��0!).%�1*,*(�2�J4���������
8����<�>�	�6
��������

:���������;��������:
���9��9������
8����<�>�	�<


���

:����������:
����
�����������K���;�����L��@M��6�M>���7�����?��� �����N�	���
���
�M>���7���<�

���6��
;
��

>��������
� ���<�>�	�<


�����
��6��
�
���������	�


=��6�����
7�����;;�
��
����
���9���9������
8����<����;;�<


�<����<
���L��@M��6������������;;�������
�:�����
��� �������>���7�<������	���7������:
�������6��;��7����������
 ��6�
��
�
��9��A9������
8��>�	���� ��
=��
���
�6�

���6�>������77	�
�>�
�:�
:�7�����;����:
�����

:��>����;;�<
���
���
��� ��
=��
������ ���
���������
������78�����;���77���������9�����6���
�
6��
����;����;;����8������������77
���������	 ��	�������� 
��9��B9�?��
	����������
6�
����;���>��6��
�
�6��O��������������6��6�����;��
��<�	
��8���;�8���;
�����<���;������	���7���9���9�?��
	����������
6�
����;������6��
;
�����

�� ������������ �����
�6�6	
��
��������?L��5
�
��?��

 
8
����	
��������
�
�������<�������;����
��7�
���
�
� ���
;@�	;;
�
���>�
�����PQRS������7>�����<���;����9�
57



�

��������	
����
�
��������������������	������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������ ���

�!"�#��
	����������
$�
����%�&�	��$����
'�����
��
��$��'
�
� ����'
��������
�
�������(�������(�����������
'
� ����'
��������	 ��)��
���
�*+�� ���&����������,�������-	��+�������
������"��."�#��
	����������
$�
����%�&�	��$����
'�����
��
��$��'
�
� ����'
��������

 
/
��&�	���(�����������
'
� ����'
���"���0"�#��
	����������
$�
����%�&�	���� ��
1��
���
�$�

���$�&�
��$��'
�
� ��	�
�����2��'
��������*+$
�&���*� � �+������������
�
$��������	
�+���"��345678795:7;<=�;8�=:588>�?@5AB�67C7:�D�EF�� �"� �����
/������G	�

%
���
����%������%%
� ������(


�/��$��'
�
� ����'
������������	���+���"���"� #%����%%������
����&�/������
������%�����
��$��-�����$��'
�����+�������$�
����H$��
������%���������%%"��I"� ���'
�����������
'�������
/
� �����+��� �+�������/����
� �$������������� �
� ����
�
� ��%��	$$�������%%������������+��� ���"��@BJ8;JC5<9B�5<K�@BJ8;JC5<9B�CB5=4JB=>��?@5AB�67C7:�D�EF�� �"� ���$������������
'����
��
� �&�	��	���������
� ��%�������%�����$��%��+�����+���	�����
��
	�
� �����������%�����
������+���	���"���"� *H$
�
��%	

&��������$��&�	�(


������������
�������
���
�(���%������&���+�
��+���
� �����$��%��+�����+���	���"���+$
�������-���������%��+��������+"��I"� �����
/���	�����%	
�$��%��+�����
������LMNONPQR��
����&�(
���(���%�������'�
�$+����$�� ��+�"����@JBS7;4=�BT@BJ7B<9B>��?@5AB�67C7:�D�UF�� �"� �����
/��&�	��$��'
�	�V�	�������H$��
�����
����

'��
� ��
+

���$�� ��+��������'
���"�� �"� ���'
�������������(


����(�������+�����������%%���
'�������%�������$�� ��+��������'
���"�,�
�����	
��
��
	���%
����
�
����(�

����$�� ��++��
����+�����������%%���
'�����"�
58



�

��������	
����
�
��������������������	�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ���!���

� �"� �����
#��$�����%$��
�����&
������'
���
���!���
����(	���
���
��	$��'
�
����
�(��)��
�������
�!��*�
��������)���!�)�����(�)	�	�
��

���������������
�
�!��(����(("�� +"� �����
#��$�����%$��
�����
��������'�
�$)�����(�,��
'
�	�
�-)$
�.)�����
����/����
)

������)
��
�!.0�(���$��!��)���
)

�������,1�"�,��
	����������
�.���)�����������$�������������
�$������	)#����(���(�������"��2345637548�94:�;<=>?<@9=A96534B��CD98<�=5256�E�FG���"������
#������)��
���
�!�������
(H�'�
	��
���$�����	���������&


�#��(�

�&��"��I�
�����	
��
��
	�������$�����������������
'
�
��������&


�#��)��
�������&���
�����$���
#
��(�������)��
���
�!������$�����	����#.�&�
�����(
�
���
����������������������"���"�,��
	����������
$�
����(�������
(H�'�
	��
���$�����	���������&


�#��(�

�&���(������
.J
�!��%$���
�	����'���	��#	�!������������)���	��)����"���"�,��
	���.�	���	�
��$
����
)�

��"��+"�,��
	�������$.��(�����)������������	�
���������������K���!�)����
��������!���
�!��	�
�"��/�	�
������
��
	����
��$�!��

)
���
��0���LA:8<6;B��CLA:8<6�>372;�436�54M=A:<:�54�D98<�=5256G�����������$��!��)�#	�!���#.�

���
��)�	�
�!������	�!���,�(��)��
������)�"����$���������	
����(�����������	�!���,�(��)��
�������
����(���������(������
�
���
�
�(��)��
�����!���
�!�#	�!����������"�I�
������
������	
��
��
	��������	�!���,�(��)��
������)����������,�HN
��������
#	�
�������)"�,(�����$��$�����&
��������)������))�������!���
�!�����#	�!���������$��$��������	
��$��$������������
'�����
��
	�����������))����"�DOPQPRS�T�;STSPUPRS�VW�9XUYRYQSOTSYZP�9[Y\YS]"��/��!��̂
)
��_��0��"�,��
	����������)�����%$
�
�
�!������.���)�������.�	���'��
��$
����������&����.�&


�$��'
���������)
�
�����
'���	$$���������
����������.��������.��	�����
�������"��"�,��
	����������
$�
����(�(
����
�
��.���)������
��
	�����������
'�������
#
�!�.�	��������

����
���$
��"��"������
#���.���)�����������
��$
�������$��'�����'����#

!��
�����(�(	���"�+"������
#��$�����	�������������
��$
����������	���$��$�������!
�!��(�������������������!��
����!�������������������������������������#*���
'��"��
59



�

��������	
����
�
��������������������	�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ���!���

� "#$%&'&"(%&)*+�(*,�+&-*(%.$#�"/01232451/�$/6507286�#9:5;�#<=;>?</81�)==>01:821?�@A��B����������C
���B��D
����	��������EFG�HIJK�LMN�IOO�PQRKJIPKS�KTIK�UVVK�KTV�WVXYRYKYQR�QX�ZXVWVJIOO[�ISSYSKVW�PQRSKJ\PKYQR�PQRKJIPK]�YR�̂_�EFG�HIJK�LM̀�ab�c	���
��
	��������d	�
��BB���	�
�e��
�	���B��D
����	������������f�̀_ĝhijN�YR�IPPQJWIRPV�kYKT�lmVP\KYnV�oJWVJ�__p̂LN�Zlq\IO�lUrOQ[UVRK�srrQJK\RYK[]�htM�FG�_pt_uN�_putvN�t�EFG�HIJKN�_uL̂ �̀wf����cBa��Ba�bbwx������c������ye�@A��	�
D��oJWVJ�__tzvN�Z{UVRWYR|�lmVP\KYnV�oJWVJ�__p̂L�GVOIKYR|�KQ�lq\IO�lUrOQ[UVRK�orrQJK\RYK[N]�IRW�YUrOVUVRKYR|�JV|\OIKYQRS�IK�̂_�EFG�rIJK�LMN�ZoXXYPV�QX�FVWVJIO�EQRKJI�����cB

��������!��c���@d	�
�lUrOQ[UVRK�orrQJK\RYK[N�}VrIJKUVRK�QX�~IiQJg]�"/01232451/�$/6507286�">810541��>0���>:0��587�+53/1?�+1587507��(41�����.�+�"���������������������BB

��y
����

������������C������ye��������̀������
����
�e�
���A����������������������
�D�
D�������cB
�ec�������c�����
������
�y������c	���
��
	�����B��D
�
���������cB

�����C
�������a�a�a�b��������b���������	BB
�c������ye���B���c���������y�����!	
��
������w�����������xa�����������a�a�a�b��������������������������������c	���y����d	
���������cB	�������C�!�������D��e�c�����
������
�y������������y��
����������������C����C������������	��a������
���A���������������������C����C����
��B��c
��
y
��B��D
�������������C������
����cB�������������������������
���������������������
���
c�������y��
����������B�e������

���	���C������
���A�������������	���
������C����C���a�������d	
��c������������a�a�a�b���������BB

��y
�����������	��
���C��������B��D
�����������
�y��������c�����
��c	���y����d	
�������C����
���	���	��
�!�����	�����C���
�!�����
�
����C�
�������	����
���e���������	��������!���	�a���������d	
��c�������������BB
e��������B	������������	BB

������c����
�
��������
�
������
���

e��D�

�y
����������B���c�����������������������������B�����
�����������c
��
������
���


!����a�"/01232451/�$/6507286�$26�1��1>�&8�/812>8���57/�.87/0�5�">810541�>3�(60//</81��X�KTV�FVWVJIO�IkIJW�UVVKS�KTV�WVXYRYKYQR�QX�ZX\RWYR|�I|JVVUVRK]�\RWVJ�tz�EFG��̂M_gp�hIj�IRW�KTV����
B
��������	y���
B
����C
��������������
���������������C
������c�

�y	�
������
�c�������B���
����!��
���
�����!���
�!������	y��
�	�
������B���
�������
!�c�������B�����c���������AB��
c����
��WVnVOQrUVRKION�QJ�JVSVIJPT�kQJ��\RWVJ�KTIK�ZX\RWYR|�I|JVVUVRKN]�KTV�JVPYrYVRK�QJ�S\iJVPYrYVRK�U\SK���cB
e�C
���������d	
��c��������b����������������ZGY|TKS�KQ��RnVRKYQRS��IWV�i[��QRrJQXYK�s�!��
���
���������c�

��	�
������
�c����������D���c�����������������������������B����
D��{|JVVUVRKSN]�IRW�IR[�YUrOVUVRKYR|�JV|\OIKYQRS�YSS\VW�i[�KTV�IkIJWYR|�I|VRP[g�"/01232451/�$/6507286�";/58�(20�(41�����.�+�"�����������9���587�1�/�'/7/05;��51/0� >;;:12>8�">810>;�(41�����.�+�"����¡�������¢�5��5</87/7�����������������	ỳ�C�����!����������c�	����
���A�����������������c	��������
����B��D
�
����������d	
�����������̀������
��C��������!���������cB
e�C
����

��BB

��y
�������������������������!	
��
����
��	���B	��	������������
�����
�����������a�a�a�����̀�f��dx���������������
���������

	�
���������
���������c�������bb��a�a�a�����̀�b£�xa�¤
�
��
����c	���y����B�������������������
��C���
�!��!���e�����������!
���
�s��
����������@�D
���c����
��������
����!���e��@��xa�
60



�

��������	
����
�
��������������������	������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������ ���

!"#$%&%'($"�)"*(#+%,*�-".(#/",$�(,+�0123",2%4,�56!7)�6889:;<�6!7)�:=8<�(,+�>?"'1$%@"�A#+"#2�:6BCD�(,+�:6E=DF�������������G����H�����������I�J���K�L	�������M��L�������N���
���

������������ �O���L���PG
����Q�
	�
����
������RS���L�T����G����U��� �L����HR�UK��
�������������G
�������VU�� 	
��

��������������I�������
LN
�L����WQ��	�
O��V���������XY�HZ�����N�����YI[���LNJ��NJ��IYK�������[IY�HZ�����\]̂_�̀aba�cde\fg�\f�hijkg�lmno]̂enp_�]pq�rst\nptudpfv�rwx�yz{|studpt�{dp_]upt�_}n�p]ent�d~�\]̂_unt���M��������	�N���������������G
����Q�
	����MS�� ���
�������G�

����N���
������
�����
��

 
M
��	���������	���S������ 	
����S��	����
�S������������WQ��	�
O��V��������XYJ�!"#$%&%'($"�)"*(#+%,*���#+��,$%��4..�%,*��/",+/",$�56�!7)�6889CB8�(,+�;:��909!9�:;B6F�������������������NN
S����M
��T�������G�����Q����
� ����������L	���T

���������	
��������
T
���
��J�W�����
�������
T
�����������
����M�O�������
��G


�����������������	����������
��NN��N�
�����T	�������N�S���S�N����������� ��
���
���T���
�T
	���
� ��������LN�
� ����
�T
	���������TT
��������LN
�S����T���S�� ���S����L�LM����T���� �������TT
��������LN
�S����T���� �������������LN
�S����T���L�LM����T���� �����
���������
���G
����M��
�
� ���S�������
����������� ����������S��������G������O�����MS�Z���JRJ�J��Z��J�W�����
���L	����
����
��
������S�
�MMS
� �G
������P������
�T	���������������N
����
���������
���G
����M��
�
� ���S�������
��G���J�R	����
��
��	��������T��G������T��L��
�������
���	N�����������P������
��G���J�!"#$%&%'($"�)"*(#+%,*��1+%$�(,+��''"22�$4�)"'4#+2��������������
T
��������
��G


���LN
S�G
���������
T��L��	
�������G


�N��O
������
����T�������LN
��
����T����	
�����	�
���������S���O�����T
��
� ��G�
���
LN������
���	MP�G����������	
����MS�N��������J���P���J���������G


�N��O
���������������������������	
����MS�N��������JZZ[�����JZZ����������J���������NN

��M
�J�!"#$%&%'($"�)"*(#+%,*�!4,&�%'$�4&��,$"#"2$�������������	���S�����T�������O�
�NL����������L�
���
�����G�
�����������T�����	�������� �O���������N��T��L������T�
���������U�LM������LN
�S���������� ������� � ���
�������G����������L
�
�����
����T����������J�����N��N���������
T
��������
��
���
����������G�����T���S�N�����
�
����T

�����T�
��������M��G����
���
T�����������������	���S�����T�������O�
�NL�������������������
T�������
����N�����
�
����T

����T�
��������M��G����
���
T�����������������	���S�����T�������O�
�NL���������������N��N��������

����
������
��N�����
�
����T

����T�
��������M�
�G��!"#$%&%'($"�)"*(#+%,*�!4/3�%(,'"��%$��7"+"#(���(�2�����N��N���������
T
��������
��
��
����LN

�����G
�������L��
�����G
����
��M


�
��������T��YY����� ���
���
L
���
��������T��Y�[����
O

��
 ���������T��Y[X�����	 P���������N
���������T��YII�����	 P���������N
���������T��YYI������������������������

����������T��YYX����
�
������T�����W�	���
����L���L������T��Y����Z���JRJ�J�R���
����Z�����	M

����G����P�I���R���
�����X��T���������M


���
��������T��Y�Z�H����L�����K���R
� 
���	�
�������T��YIX������NN

��M
��
61



�

��������	
����
�
��������������������	�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ���!���

"�#$��	�
%��&���������'��������()��"�*���
����++��,��-&���,����'�.���/��/���������
,
��������
��0


�/��%
���!	
��

����,����

����!�
�%�����/�����	���1��23456768956:;�:7�<;53;5�5:�=945686>953�6;�5?3�@;3AB5:>�C3D6E34F�BFG53H�.���/��/���������
,
��������
���
,���
������,������������������	!����
��/��/���
���!���������	//���������-&��&��I*��/������/�������!������������J

��������/����
%������K	�	�

L�J���,
�
�
���
��
����
/�J��0��������&��I*��/�������������/���
�
/����
������/
���
�!�����
K/
�K�����
����,�
��
%
�	�
�����K	�	�
��	�
�����J

!��
������������/���
J


�
���	������-&�1�.���/��/���������
,
��������
��0


�/���
�
/����
������
���
�
���!���
���/
�������0


�,	

L�/���
�
/����
������
���!��������

%��L��,����%
�����������%��J�����//��%���JL����������1��23456768956:;�:7�<;M3H;6768956:;�.���/��/���������
,
��������
��
���0������������
���K�
,
���
����
�	���0


�J��
��
	����
��������������������
���0��������������	
���,���
��/��/���
1�.���/��/���������
,
��������
��
���0�������������
���K�
,
���
����
�	���0


����������������/��/�����N����������O����

�
���K�
,L�������
�����K
����������������	���L�����,�������%�
�/K������������,,
�������!�����������K/
�L����������������	���L�P���
�#
������&,,
�
�
��,��K�

�J


�L��,���L����	��������
����
��
	�
�!���������$/������������������L�,�����,�������������	����,���L����
������
�
K����	
����������K�!����,���L�����������0������%�����
�
�!��	���,���L���!

!������������K
��
����,�����/��/�����N����������O������L��,�
����K/
�L������!������%�
	���������	J������������������/��������
%��1��23456768953�Q3R94M6;R�2:G5�.���/��/���������
,
���������������J�����,�
������0
��!������J�

�,�����������������	JK
�����
�����	��������K/
����������	��������������
K����
��/��/���
�
���	JK
����1���23456768953�Q3R94M6;R�S49;G656:;3M�2D63;5G�.���/��/���������
,
��������
��0


�������������
!
��
�/
����,����%
�������

��

��������������J�
�!������
�
�����,��K���/��%
�	�����%
���/��%
���1��

��������������TU����
�
VWXYZ������������

!
J
��/���
�
/������������������
%
�!��-&�����%
����������%��J������!
�������������-&���

����/�
�����������,,���
%��������,����������������
�
�!�,��K���
�����1�.���/��/���������
,
�����������%
������������������
�
������

�����0


�����J��
�����	/���1�� 23456768953�Q3R94M6;R�Q[=�2:;53;5�.���/��/���������
,
��������
������������

��,�����
�,��K��
���/���������
���������1�.���/��/���������
,
��������
��	����������������������������������0


���
���,��K���
������0


���%����������
�
�������
/	
��
�����������\	
��K���������������������
��������������������������������0


���%��������
�!�
�/��%
�
���������������������������	���K��L����������/��%
�
�����J	��0�
������������/��
,
��

L����0��
����
�����1�� .���/��/�����N/��/���]̂����/��������
%�O�J�
�!��	
L��0����	/�����������/�����������L�_�
62



�

��������	
����
�
��������������������	�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ���!���

"� #����$��%��	������������&'��(
�!�'��'���
����)���
*��*��������'���������������$���������
�+*	
��	����
�(���������,�"� #��������'�
����
����
��'��'���
���-��)�������
-������
���'������
(,�"� #�����������'��������������
����
(����
��
����
(���������
������(��!���&������%'��������
&'

����+
�����(����������	�
�'�����
�
�'��'�����������'��������-
�!�*���
����).���
-������������


�!��*������&�	�����*�'��'���
����������

&
�
�!��*������	&)����*�'��'���
�����'��'�����,�"� #�����������'�������������'�
���!
-�����������������'��&
�������'�(��!
-����������������������������/��������
���
��!���������(��**
��������&'
�(����*��������������/��������
���
��!������(�&���(������������
�!��*�-�
	���
��
	�
�!���(��'��
�
�����
�����
�����
������
����
(����
��
����
(��
������
�!����'���	�����
����������,�"� #�����	�
���������+
�����0	
����)(�
�+������'�
����0	�����
����
��'��'���
���-������)��������+


�����)�����+
�!
(��
��
�����)(����'�����	��

��*����'��'���
�������'����,�"� $�	�����������������
��'��'���
���'����������
�!�
��**������'��-
����������-
��������
�������
)�����������'�
���������������
�,�#�
��'��'���
�
��)
��
�!�*�����'��
����*�1����(��*��&�����������	)&
����,�"� #����)(��
!�
�!������	)&
��
�!���
��'��'���
������'��'������!��������������*���������
*
���
���������
����
����
��'��'���
,�� �

63



�

��������	
����
�
��������������������	�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ���!���

"#$%&'()*�+&$*������ �,
!���	����-����.��������.��������
/��� �01.���2�3������0
�
��� �2�3���-����.��������,	4���
4��������5�������4�-����3����
����������������������1��-�����������������������������������6���� �2����1��	4

����71���33
��
���89.
����::::::;::::::� � � � ,8�<��������������������������������������������������������������������������
64



�

���������	
���
�����������
�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
�����

�  �!"#$% ���� &'()*+�*,�&'(,*(-./0'�1�2345�67�8986�:;(*3<;�23/'�=97�8988��&(*>'0:'+�&'(,*(-./0'�� �+34:7�?)@4*0.:'+�A*(B'(���C���DE��F��

��
�
G�	
����H��I��J
����J�

���
�I�������G

	
��I�
K
��	���
�����K
���I����������
���I�������������
����	
���
�����������
��������������
J
�I�������H��I��J
����H��	����I�L��M��������N�O
����P�������Q��RSTSUVWX�VYS�Z[XX\]WS�̂Y[_�̀a\X�b[T̀YVb̀cX�STd\Te��
���
���K	���G��	�����fM�
��	����J���
�

�
���K
G���GM�I����
��
���
�
����
Kg�E����
����h���
	��
�K	���G��G

������i[T̀YVb̀[YcX�d[bj_ST̀Sd�VTd�kSY\̂\Sd�ZSŶ[Y_VTbS�[̂�̀aS�[j̀b[_SX�YŜSYSTbSd�]SW[Ug��lm���C
G������n�h���
��o� ��������
65



�

���������	
���
�����������
�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
�����

����� !"#$����% &$�'(� &$�)� �*�+�,#)-&)"�$ #�.��$/�)/.�0��/*+���$/�/+1�.#)23 #.�,45678�79�,45975:;<=4>��?@AB�CD�EFEC�GH57@IH�?@<4�JFD�EFEE��,57K4=G48�LMNMOPQRST�,;5G6=6U;<G�.45V6=4�+4V4AW� #<86<I�XYJFYEFEC� #<86<I�CEYJCYEFEC� #<86<I�JYJCYEFEE� #<86<I�ZYJFYEFEE�C'�&9�GH4�8654=G�=A64<G�87AA;5W�[@8I4G48�G7�GH4�W45V6=4�U57V6845�G7�7[A6I;G4�975�8654=G�=@WG7:45�=7WGD�;G�A4;WG�Z\]�̂6AA�[4�7[A6I;G48�4;=H�B4;5�[B�";5=H�JCWG'��,A4;W4�U57V684�GH4�U45=4<G;I4�975�4;=H�_@;5G45�A4;86<I�@U�G7�GH4�";=H�JCWG�84;8A6<4'���� � �� �� �E'�$7�@<54W7AV48�:7<6G756<I�6WW@4WY<7�86W;AA7̂ 48�=7WG'� � � � �J'�$@:[45�79��8@AGY/+1�U;5G6=6U;<GW�̂H7�54=46V4�;<�&==@U;G67<;A�.̀6AAW��5;6<6<I�.45V6=4'� � � � �a'��AA��8@AGWY/+1W�=7:UA4G6<I�&==@U;G67<;A�.̀6AAW�G5;6<6<I�̂H7�4b6G�[4Ĝ44<�?@AB�C�;<8�";5=H�JC�̂6AA�54=46V4�;�=5484<G6;A�75�=45G696=;G67<�975�GH4�G5;6<6<I�U57I5;:�75�̂6AA�4<G45�4:UA7B:4<G�;G�;�̂;I4�79�<7�A4WW�GH;<�GH4�c 1/def�fghijW@996=64<=B�̂;I4'� � � � �\'��ZF�87=@:4<G48�54=5@6G:4<G�;<8�7@G54;=H�=7<G;=G�U45�_@;5G45�G7�U57:7G4�̂75̀975=4�U57I5;:W�;<8�W45V6=4W�̂6GH�4:UH;W6W�7<�U56756GB�79�W45V6=4�U7U@A;G67<W�;W�4V684<=48�6<�_@;5G45AB�54U75GW�;<8�=A64<G�4<57AA:4<G�7@G=7:4W'� � � � �� � � � �
66



�

���������	
���
�����������
�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
�����

����� !"#$����% &$�'(� &$�)� �*�+�,#)-&)"�$ #�.��$/�)/.�0�1&*�!�.#)23 #.�,45678�79�,45975:;<=4>��?@AB�CD�EFEC�GH57@IH�?@<4�JFD�EFEE���,57K4=G48�LMNMOPQRST�,;5G6=6U;<G�.45V6=4�+4V4AW� #<86<I�XYJFYEFEC� #<86<I�CEYJCYEFEC� #<86<I�JYJCYEFEE� #<86<I�ZYJFYEFEE�C'�&9�GH4�8654=G�=A64<G�87AA;5W�[@8I4G48�G7�GH4�W45V6=4�U57V6845�G7�7[A6I;G4�975�8654=G�=@WG7:45�=7WGD�;G�A4;WG�Z\]�̂6AA�[4�7[A6I;G48�4;=H�B4;5�[B�";5=H�JCWG'��,A4;W4�U57V684�GH4�U45=4<G;I4�975�4;=H�_@;5G45�A4;86<I�@U�G7�GH4�";=H�JCWG�84;8A6<4'���� � �� �� �E'�$7�@<54W7AV48�:7<6G756<I�6WW@4WY<7�86W;AA7̂ 48�=7WGW'� � � � �J'��AA�̀3&��17@GHD�;I4W�CZaEbD�̂H7�̂454�;=G6V4�6<�GH4��6GA4�3�B7@GH�U57I5;:�8@56<I�GH4�U45678�79�?@AB�C�GH57@IH�";5=H�JC�;<8�̂H7�;54�684<G69648�;W�<4486<I�̂75c�54;86<4WW�W45V6=4W�̂6AA�54=46V4�;�̀75c�)4;86<4WW� 45G696=;G4�U5675�G7�4d6G'� � � � �b'�&@Ga&9a.=H77A�17@GH�̂H7�87�<7G�H;V4�;�H6IH�W=H77A�86UA7:;�;G�U57I5;:�4<G5;<=4D�Ĥ7�4d6G�8@56<I�GH4�U45678�79�?@AB�C�GH57@IH�";5=H�JC�̂6AA�H;V4�7[G;6<48�;<�!.#�75�!6IH�.=H77A�/6UA7:;'� � � � �
67



�

���������	
���
�����������
�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
�����

���� !!�"#$ �%&'()*�+,-.�/0123*�4)&�-56(�7'869,�()-�:-86&7�;'!<�/�()8&',)�=+8>)�?/*�46!!�-9(-8�-@:!&<@-9(�+(�+�4+,-�&A�9&�!-..�BCDE�BCF�GHIJKLM�KNDOP�DQQONRFP�MFST1.'AA6>6-9><�4+,-�&8�-9(-8�:&.(1.->&97+8<�$>>':+(6&9+!�UV6!!.�W8+6969,�� � � � �0���0X�7&>'@-9(-7�8->8'6(@-9(�+97�&'(8-+>)�>&9(+>(�:-8�Y'+8(-8�(&�:8&@&(-�4&8VA&8>-�:8&,8+@.�+97�.-8Z6>-.�46()�-@:)+.6.�&9�:86&86(<�&A�.-8Z6>-�:&:'!+(6&9.�+.�-Z67-9>-7�69�Y'+8(-8!<�8-:&8(.�+97�>!6-9(�-98&!!@-9(�&'(>&@-.�� � � � �� � � � ����������� �
68



�

���������	
���
�����������
�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
�����

�  �!"#$% �&�&'()*+�,-./012+3/-�4/015�����6�
���7
8�9�:::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::�;������<������	��9�=>�>��������������>��>������ �?*+23@�&'()*+�,+*1� �&2535�./0�?*+*013-3-)�+A*��1/'-+� ��('@+B?CD� �E/'+A� � /+2@�!/5+5��� � � � ��� � � � ��� � � � ��� � � � ��� � � � ��� � � � ��� � � � ��� � � � ��� � � � ��� � � � ��� � � � ��� � � � �� � � � �
69



�

���������	
���
�����������
�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
�����

��� � � � ��� � � � ��� � � � ��� � � � ��� � � � ��� � � � ��� � � � ��� � � � ��

70



�

���������	
���
�����������
�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
�����

�  �!"#$% �&�'!(% )*����+�
���,������-��./��0	����.�1��2	��
�34����
�5������6����
���
��2	���+����
7�+��+�
��8����+�
���,������1�77
�9�:��9�����������������:����;���������<����	�
�1��2��=�>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>�&?@ABC�DEFG�HDIJKLJM!N&JOL�NEFPQEFRB�IFEAFSGT�SU@�(VBFSCWEUT�X?YZ�L[�KOKL�J�X?UB�\O[�KOKK��&?@ABC�]CBG� �N](���@?YC� N](��ŴTYERSCB@�NEFPBF� �N](��_E?C̀�1
�
�	�
� � � ���	����,���6	�
� � � �0�7+��
�9�1�
66	��� � � �1�
66�0�
2��� � � �1�
66���2���+7���� � � �/��������
������<�
�
�3+��

��
+��	698� � � �abcdefghi�jklmfnnki�ofmgm��pfndjklmfnnki�ofmgm�1�++�	�
qr
���	
�
� � � ���	��	��q��+������	��� � � ���
�
��q1�	++	��� � � �
71



�

���������	
���
�����������
�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
�����

��� ��
�	!
�
���"� 
��	!�	��
� � � �#�
��
���$%���	��� � � �&�����'��(���
������)�
�
� � � �*+,-./012�3/4-5678/4462�9/808��9/4071:0+12�9/808����	��"��;	��
� � � �)��
���	���"��;	��
� � � �&�����)����
���
��)�
�
� � � �*+,-./012�9/4071:0+12�9/808��<4=>76:0�9/808� � � �?141@6A640�B668� � � �57/C>0� � � ��DEDFG�EHIJFDKELFG�MENDN� � � ��OPQRST�SUVTV�
������
����
�
�


��	
����W	���
�
XX�!��;	�	����	�������	����
��;	��
�
������
���	��
�W���X���������������

����	����XX	��Y��HQUZQ[\�][̂[ZR\R̂T�	
�������
�
�


��	
����W	����������!��
����;����
����
��	��
��	�	
���	������������
��Y�_��
����
�
�W������̀!	�
��̀�	�������������
���X���a�	����	�
��
���
��
��	���
�!���	����X�
!
�������
���������	�
�	��
�����
����	�	�	�
��
������	���X����	��
�
�������������


�̀�
��	�	
��
�	;����
�
Y�_���!��!�
�����
��
������ �������������
����b!�
	����	������ �������
��
�	;�Y��_��� 	�����W����������������
	����W���
��W����� ��
�
����
����	
��	 ���������������
�	��
�	������
��
����̀�!��!�
�����
��;�Y���cd�efg�hijklmnkemhl�fko�kl�kppihqgr�mlrmigse�ikegt�efgl�efgmi�pihphogr�mlrmigse�shoe�uhvwr�ofhu�hl�efmo�wmlgx�
72



�

���������	
���
�����������
�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
�����

�� !""#$%�&'( (�)�*+,- .�/#(-'0! 1+�2'3413�!$+�5', 6��137#01(���!-!3#1(8�9�������
���:�
	�	��
��;�	���;	���<����
�����������������
���
;
��=��������������><����?�:��:���;���;	���?	�������:�
	�	��������:�
	�	��@
����

�>�����A�

�
�A��	�
��	>���	
��	<��	�������9B��<A���
���
�����A��
���������><����?�>����
�����:�
	�	���;	���<��?	����=�CDE���
>����
�F�	
�
�
�>��?����
��?
����
=��*GG*&HIJKG�L�M&NKGOP��QRSTUV�W3'%3!XX! #0�&'( (8��Y1713!%1+�"3'X�' 613�W3'%3!X(Z[1(',301(8�
��� �
\�'"�W'(# #'$(� G# -1�]�MX,( �̂1�+1(03#̂1+�1̂-'_P� 3̀'((�I'$ 6-a��!-!3a�MbP� c�'"�G#X1� \�'"�I'$ 6(� 2dN*�G' !-�&'( �MbP� eVfTS�W3'%3!X�K!X1� �!-!3a�c� eVfTS�W3'%3!X�G' !-� L' 68�2dN*�!$+�eVfTS�W3'%3!XM(P�G' !-�MbP�� � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � ���

73



�

���������	
���
�����������
�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
�����

�  �!"#$% �!�!&'()*)+,(&-��!&'()*)+,()./�0&1,'2)/1�3&4,'5&/(6�78-9&/-)./6�,/2�:(;&'�0&-9./-)4)<)(=�#,((&'-���	>
�?�@�A�����B�
�

��	��
���CC�	�
���D��
�	E
�	�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������B�	
�����	F	�
�	���	
���G�	����H?����������
�	��
�	>C��>���	���IJ����	A��D�������KLM�
�������M����H
�>����
���N�
C��
	��
�
�����@����
OP�QRSTU�
��
�
��������>���
���V�W�B���C��
C���	A��
�H���	C	�����V	X�X����
����W�����	F	�
��������H�
���F�	�
����Y������
���H��	�F����
��	��
���	�
�C�	��	C
�
Z��V
W���������C��
����?���H
������
�
C�������C��C�
���F�����H
�>���������
����	���	�	H�������A�����
�	�?��J�������F��>���A�������
�

��	��
�H?�
�?������
����C
��>�������
����?[��VHW�\
A������Y	��	��
������]?�
��C��	���C�����	�����	
�C��C�

��H�������A	������F�����
��
��	A	��̂���>�������������
�
	�
�����>�F�����>>	

	����F�F�
������
���	>	�
���FF��
��	���������	���Y	����H�
	�	����
���>C�	�������H�
	������C��F��>	���
�C�H�	��V�����
���N�
����������
�W���
�

��	�����������
���������
�C�H�	����
�

��	��[�A	��
�	����F������
�����N�
���
��	���
��
�
���
������>>	

	����F��>H�EE��>��������F���F�����?��H�	H��?��F
�
	F	�
�	��������
�����	����F�������
��>
�	���F
�
��
�
��>���
���������	A	���
������C��C���?[��V�W���������C��
����?�	��	�����F�����������Y	
����	>	�
��?�����	A	��?���
�����H?�
���A���>�������	�?�V�����
���N�
����������
�W�Y	�����>>	

	����F�
�?��F������FF��
�
����>��
����	��C
�
��
C��V�WVHW��F���	
�����	F	�
�	��[�
����V�W�\
A������Y	��	��
������]?�
��C��	���C�����	�����	
�
CC�	�
�	��_C��C�

���
���������>����C�H�	����
�

��	��
�V�����
���N�
����������
�W����>	�
����F����
�
�������F
���X��V�W�����������C��
C���	A��
�H���	C	����	
���
H����������	F?����
�?��F�����
�
��>���
�	����	
�����	F	�
�	����
����C��
C���	A��C
��	�	C
���
�
���
��
���
���JC�
�
�	��������	
�C��C�

�X��N	��
�������������������������������������������������������������
��� ������������������������������������������������������������������������������������B?C���̀
>��
���B	�����F�������	E�����C��
���
�	A��� �
74



�

���������	
���
�����������
�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
�����

�� !"#$#�%"#&'�! (%!)#'(�)!*(+$!  �,&!-./%� �! 0*#! 1 '"2�3�	
�����	4	�
�	���	
���5�	����67����������
�	��
�	89��8���	�����������:���������9�
��������4���;;�����<����
����;��=�69
���������:���������9�
��������4����;>�3���
�
�����?@�A����:���B��>A>����:���������=�
�>�C�;�D�3	����E��=�6�	�������@C��F=<�G��B�C��F>=><>�G���:�G�GHD��IJ���;K>���?�H�L�M���8���:N	�����6
�8����
���
�
9��
	����
�����M���8���:N	�������:4����N���9�
��>���3�����
���������	4	�
���
��	��N	������N	�������	�������9��M	���
�����:4����N���9�
���67O��>�����6�	
�	���
�9��	�7�
�
��8�������	47	����89��7��
���
���������
N4���8
��4
��������	
��	6��	�����	
9��
	����9�

�

	��������
���4�
������������
�6
�
����	
�9���	6	����	��������
����P
�N���9�
���
���
9��	47	�������
��	��
���
��N	���6���
����
�
	�
���89��7��
�4���M	��
�	����4�
����9���	6	�	��D�Q>��R
�
6�	
�	���
������	�������:4����
N
����

�9����
8����	�4��8��89��7�STP�
6���U��>�3����
����
��4������
6�
��	������N���9�
��D��>�3�����
����P
�9��	�7��4�8
	��
	�	���
�����:4����N���9�
��D�K>���7�
M
	�
6������������
��	�������
6	�	�
�	����
����89��7���


	
�
����9����
8
D�
���C>�3���9��
��	�
���
��8
7�6��	89�
����9����89��7��
�4��������
6�
��M	��
�	��
�������	���	������N���9�
��>�<>���V
�	���	��
���5�	��8������
���
����89��7������6�����
����	������9��4��8
�����4�������
���6���	M���
���97��4�����
�
��8������5�	����67�9
�
��
9���>��>��W��	47	���
����89��7��
�	������=�
��8������5�	����67�9
�
��
9���>���
���

�
�����	�	����4��89��78����������������
���������89��7���NXYYU��>��6	���67��������8
��4�����
�
��8���D�
����>�W��	47������89��7���	��N�	�	����4��	
�����������M	��	���4���
�M	��
�	����4�
���	8	�
�������
�
�����������	���	������N���9�
�������
������
��4	M���
����
���
7
�
4����
�������M	��	��>�R>���W��	47	�������
����7�	��N�	�	����N	��	�������
����
���
7
�
4��������	M	������	���������9
�
��
9���>�>�4��8�
���89��7�����������N	
������	M	���
���
�����	����4�
�������M	��	���R89��7��
��4����M	������89��7��
�8�
��9��M	������	����	�����	���9�
	�	����	���������M��7���
����44	���������������
	��������N��
����
���
��	M	�7��������M	������89��7���N

�N���	��������

����������
��
����7��

���
	��
����
������
��9�	���4�����������	9���4�
�������	��
>�W��	���
�
���	�����������	����	4	�
�	�����86��?
H��4��
���
44��������
��>�
75



�

���������	
���
�����������
�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
�����

������
�	�������� ����� ����!	���
��	��
��!	��	��"���
����
���
#
�� �����	$	������	���������%
�
��
%��������!	�����
%�������
�#��&%��#���!���	
�
�����$	�����'�����
�	���
%%��%�	
���%��
������
��	���
�
	�
��
����
���&%��#�����%����
���	�����	������&	�
�	������
	
�����!	���������(�	��&����� ��������
)	�	�
�	�������� ��*�"��

�
&�����+���������(�	�	���
�����&%��#������%
��	�	%
���

�	
 
����	�#�	��
������
)�
��


	
�
����������
)	�	�
�	���%����
&�
%%��$��� ���
����%��%�
�
�)#�
������
���,�
����������
����
������
!��� ����&��������������
%%��%�	
���
����#+��-��.
�	���
������ 
	����  �����������	�������&
	��
	��
�����/ ����!���%�
���������������	&%��&���
�	���� �%
�
��
%�
�0�1��021��031��0�1��041��
���0�1��� ����� ��������55555555555555��#%���6
&��� �3���	 #	���7  	�	
������������������������������,	��
�������������������������������������������������������
���� �

76



�

���������	
���
�����������
�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
�����

�� !"#"�$!"%&� �'$ ("&'�)%**+"&'�#% ��%&! $�!,-�' $&!,-�)%$&,-�$&(��%%.� $!"/��$' ��0�&!,��1��������
	���������	2	�
���������3�
���2��	
�����������4������
���3��	�2����
�5���6��7�������
��
88��8�	
����2���
��
9��3����8
	�����4	���3��8
	���3:�������3��
�2��2����������
	���������
�:�8��
���2���	�2�����	������
���;8�	������	�2�������
���22	��������;8��:����2�
��
����:��
�<�;3����2�=�����

��
���22	��������;8��:����2�=�����

�����
���;8��:����2�
�<�;3����2�=�����

�	���������	���4	�������
4
��	����2�
�:������
�������
��������;
�	����2�
�:������
����
��������;
�	����2�
�:������
����
������������	���	�����2�
�:����8��
�	9��
����;�����
��������>���
	��������	��
�	��������4
���
;���;��������;��	2	�
�	����2�
�:������
�������
������
������
���������8��
�	9��
����;���6���6���?2�
�:�2���
���������
�������
��
88��8�	
����2���
��
9��3����8
	�����4	���3��8
	�����
�:�8��
���2���	�2�����	������
���;8�	������	�2�������
���22	��������;8��:����2�
�:�
����:��
�<�;3����2�=�����

��
��@22	��������;8��:����2�=�����

�����
���;8��:����2�
�<�;3����2�=�����

�	���������	���4	�����	
������
�������
������
������
���������8��
�	9��
����;��������������
	�����
�
�����;8�����
���
�3;	��A�
��
������;BCCC��D�	
���
�������;������8����C�33:	��EF�	��
�����
����4	���	�
�	�
�����	��
6��G6���1��������
	�����
�
�����H�	�����
�������
���
����2���	
�����	2	�
�	���3��	��������	������
4
�������;���
�2���
���
�3B
4
��
�
��
����	��
�I	�����	���
�3�����
��
��
�3B��
��
�
��������
��
���������
��
����
�
��
������8��
�	9��
����;���
J�
�����
��
���
�3����	8	���
�
�
�������	2:�
����	
���
��
�����	���:6��1�	
�����	2	�
�	���	
�
�;
���	
����8��
���
�	����2�2
����8���4�	������	
����4

�8�
����4������	
���
�

��	���4

�;
��������������	���6��A�3;	

	����2���	
�����	2	�
�	���	
�
�8����H�	
	���2�����������	���	������	
���
�

��	���	;8�
���3:�A���	����GK���1	����G���L6�A6�=���6����:�8��
���4���2
	�
����2	���������H�	��������	2	�
�	���
�
���3��
�3M�������
��	9	��8��
��:��2�������

���
��N�������
�������;������
��N��������2����
���
����2
	����6�� �A	��
�������������������������������������������������������������
���� �1:8����
;��
���1	�����2�������	O�����8��
���
�	9�� �
77



�

���������	
���
�����������
�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
�����

�� !"#"�$!�� �%$ &"'%��('#)"�!�(#�"'!� �*!��+,�
	��	���
���
�-.	��	�����	
�/���	0	�
������
��	���/��0�	����0�1�����
�����������
	�������2��
��
���
������00	���
��.�.-��
�����.3��,��
��0�	�
���2���	���-�
����
2��
�,�	�����
���
�����
�������
�
���
�4�	���
�,�	�����
����	��������	��	��������
��5��������0�	���5	���0����
�����.3������6����	����0���	
������
��7�/����
�����0���������2��
��
���
��	������3��0��.
�����0���	
������
�������3��
����
2	���
�,�
����	�����
��5	���-���.3��,����8���.3��,�����00	��������
������
�,�.�.-����0��	
��������	..��	
���0
.	�,���	
��������3
����������
�����
�	9
�	���5�	����.3��,
����	
�
-��������.3��,�
�,��0�����3
��	�
�	��	�
��������	����

�
�0	�
��	
�����������	�����
��	������0	�.�
��������0���
��
5
��7�:����00	���
���.3��,��
��
���
����
��0��������	3	����
�
�����	�����
��	�	�����
���3����
��	�	�
��0
2��
����
�,��	����0�.����
�,�2
����0��.������
����
�����3
��	�
����
�-�
����.���
7���� �;	��
������������������������������������������������������������������������������
���� �:,3���8
.��
���:	�����0�������	9�����3��
���
�	2���� �
78



�

���������	
���
�����������
�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
�����

�  �!"#$% �&�'()*+,-*�.,/(0��-1/23*4�5,6�!1471/0�,881/�,/�/181/9�� :��;<��=	����;���������	
���
�����������
���������:��;<��=	����;;�������>���
�	���
���?	���
�@������
A
�:��;<��=	����;;;��
�������@
���:��;<��=	����;B����
C	�	�
�	������
������
A
�:�=�AD��
�@��

	
�
����E���F���@��
A	�	�
�:�<������A��	�
�����������
A
�:�G�C�H��D
�:�������I�	���:�����	�
���
�JK�����
�@�B��
�	��
��>���
�	������	L	�	�
�:�=�
�����M�
�A�����

	
�
����
���F��=�J=��������
A
�:�B����
�
�>AD��@A����
���=�
	�	���:�N��
	���
���O�C
����L���DA����PNO�Q�>=��:�O��AD��@A����H�AD��

�	��������
A
�:�K������H�
�������������
A
�:�H�AA��	�@�K��L	���I�����R�
���>=��:�;��	
��
���F
�	L���A��	�
�������
A
�:�KF���>=��:�KA
���I�
	��

���A	�	
��
�	���>=��:�F
�	��
���
�AS�����
�G�C���� �
79



�

���������	
���
�����������
�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
�����

��  �!"#$% �$��&'(()�!*+),'-�.*'/0*'1(�2)(34567�89:59;<=�>;6?@A5�B6C� D(E(�F'*G+1,E�#H-�I(�J(KLM('(G�JL'(1,K-�I-�2)(3N,*O�N,H00�*'�I-�'(0(''HK�O'*1(EEP�Q�	���
�	��RS�T��U
�	��
���V
W���X
�����S�T��U
�	����Y�ZZ���	[��Y��[	���S�T��U
�	����\��UZ��]U����S�
��
����̂\S_�S�T��U
�	����Y��T�Y��[	��R̀�W���T���
���Q���Z
�	��
����U
���S�T��U
�	�����	�
��	
���	���S�T��U
�	���������a�\Z�Y��[	��
��b�
	�	������[	����S�T��U
�	����S�	�	
��Y�	��
��

�

U�����c����
�
�Y��[	���S�T��U
�	����d
�����d��
���
�	����������Y��[	��
���	
���
�����������S�T��U
�	����e���
�	��
��QZZ�����	�	�
��e���	
��

�
�Y������V
���
���̂eYV_��b
�����SUZ��[�U�������������̂Y����fb��U����fc��
�	��
�_�g�Y�	��
�SUZ��[�U�����̀�W���
�	��

�RY�T��Y�	��R�V	T��Y�	��
���h	���Y������ei�	[
����]����Z
�
�	���
80



�

���������	
���
�����������
�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
�����

��	��� ������!"�	#
����$�!���
�	���
���%�
	�	����&
������
��'
$
���#���()�����

	
�
����� �	��
��

�

)���
���	��� ������!"�	#
����$*� !+����(
�
�	����*%� &��,!�������	 ��+�� -�.� �
���� �	��
��/����#	�'	������(
�
�	������
�)�
�
����((�	�
�	����-�.� �
����0#��#	�'��&�
��)	1�����
�)���

	
�
�����&�
��)	1���2
.���3
�����/�4��)
�	����-�.���4���
�
��0���(
�	��
��%�
	�	���5&������	
�	���0((�����	�	�
�5 �	�����#���()����2
.�0((�����	�	�
��0���(
�	��
��%�
	�	����0-%5&�
��)	1���%�
	�	���0((�����	�	�
��/��	#	��
��%�
	�	�����������*/%�+��/��	#	��
��!)(��$)������
���&

��3
�
��)����� �((���	#�� ��#	��
���
	�����67��5����67����&�)(�����
	#���

�

)�����/��	#	��
��&
�����3
�
��)�����&
��������
��	�������4	�	���$�%�
�	����8

	�� �	��
��

�

)������	
�
����2�
��	���
81



�

���������	
���
�����������
�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
�����

�������

��� �
��	���� !"#��$����

���%��&	��
��'�(��
	�
��!"#��$����##�	�
�	���)
�
��"�����)


�*	�	���!&���
��'�(�+�����)
�
��"������+,-�,
.�-���	��������
������	�������/�"#��$"����%�	��
��

�

"���
�

82



Section-05 Compliance P-0500100 Effective Date: 00/00/2021 
Replaces TAWDB Center Certification Policy dated 08/13/2020 and EWDB One Stop Evaluation 
and Certification Policy dated 09/2019 
Delaney Rea, GCWDB Chair  

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY AND NONDISCRIMINATION: All providers must comply with WIOA’s Equal Opportunity and Nondiscrimination provisions 
which prohibit discrimination on the basis of race, color, religion, sex (including pregnancy, childbirth, and related medical conditions, transgender 
status, and gender identity), national origin (including limited English proficiency), age, disability, political affiliation or belief, or, for beneficiaries, 
applicants, and participants only, on the basis of citizenship status or participation in a WIOA Title-I financially assisted program or activity. 
Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities. 

Center Certification 

WIOA Sec. 121(g)(1) requires the State workforce development board (state board), in 
consultation with chief local elected officials (CLEOs) and Local Workforce Development Boards 
(LWDB), establish objective criteria and procedures for use by LWDBs in assessing and certifying 
comprehensive and affiliate one-stop centers for effectiveness, including customer satisfaction, 
physical and technology accessibility, and continuous improvement. 

In accordance with the Oklahoma Department of Workforce Development OWDI 01-2019 
entitled “Certification of comprehensive and affiliate Oklahoma Works (One-Stop) Centers, a 
proud partner of the American Job Center network, under the Workforce Innovation and 
Opportunity Act of 2014 (WIOA)”, the Green Country Workforce Development Board (GCWDB) 
will set criteria and procedures in Operations Memorandum OP-0500100 entitled Center 
Certification Criteria and Process outlining a high-quality one-stop-center system that is 
business driven, customer-centered, integrated, and tailored to meet the needs of our region.  

I. Types of Centers:

A. Comprehensive Center:  A comprehensive one-stop center is a physical location
where job seeker and employer customers can access the programs, services, and
activities of all required one-stop partners. A comprehensive one-stop center must have
at least one title I staff person physically present.

B. Affiliate Center:  An affiliated site, or affiliate one-stop center, is a site that
makes available to job seeker and employer customers one or more of the one-stop
partners’ programs, services, and activities with a physical presence of combined staff
more than 50 percent of the time the center is open. An affiliated site does not need to
provide access to all required one-stop partner programs.

C. Specialized Center: Any network of one-stop partners or specialized centers that
is connected to the comprehensive one-stop center and any appropriate affiliate one-

 stop centers, for example, by having processes in place to make referrals to these 
centers and the partner programs located in them. Wagner-Peyser Act employment 
services cannot stand alone in a specialized center. Unlike comprehensive and affiliate 
centers, specialized centers do not need to be certified. 

83



Section-05 Compliance P-0500100 Effective Date: 00/00/2021 
Replaces TAWDB Center Certification Policy dated 08/13/2020 and EWDB One Stop Evaluation 
and Certification Policy dated 09/2019 
Delaney Rea, GCWDB Chair  

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY AND NONDISCRIMINATION: All providers must comply with WIOA’s Equal Opportunity and Nondiscrimination provisions 
which prohibit discrimination on the basis of race, color, religion, sex (including pregnancy, childbirth, and related medical conditions, transgender 
status, and gender identity), national origin (including limited English proficiency), age, disability, political affiliation or belief, or, for beneficiaries, 
applicants, and participants only, on the basis of citizenship status or participation in a WIOA Title-I financially assisted program or activity. 
Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities. 

II. Designation:

A. Comprehensive:  The Green Country Workforce Development Board (GCWDB)
designates the Tulsa location as the area’s Comprehensive Center.

B. Affiliate:  The Sapulpa  and Muskogee American Job Centers are designated as
Affiliate Centers.

C. Specialized Centers:  To meet the needs of outlying areas, Specialized Centers
will be developed as opportunity and need arise.  Current locations include Tahlequah,
Okmulgee, Eufaula, Sallisaw, Stilwell, and Wagoner.

III. Certification Criteria:  GCWDB will utilize the standards for certification as outlined in
OOWD 01-2019.  Focus will center on:

• Effectiveness
• Physical Accessibility
• Programmatic Accessibility and Technology
• Continuous Improvement

IV. Center Evaluation and Certification Frequency:  The one stop center(s) located within
the GCWDB area will be evaluated for certification at a minimum of every two years.
Evaluations will be conducted on an established timeline and include at least one on-site
observation visit.  Self-assessments will be conducted by the GCWDB, One Stop Operator and
Service Provider annually utilizing the attached tools.

Updates to the local operations memorandum outlining criteria and processes will be updated 
every two years as part of the Local Plan update process. 

V. Equal Opportunity and Nondiscrimination Statement:  All recipients, and
subrecipients/subgrantees must comply with WIOA’s Equal Opportunity and Nondiscrimination
provisions which prohibit discrimination on the basis of race, color, religion, sex (including
pregnancy, childbirth, and related medical conditions, transgender status, and gender identity),
national origin (including limited English proficiency), age, disability, political affiliation or belief,
or, for beneficiaries, applicants, and participants only, on the basis of citizenship status or
participation in a WIOA Title-I financially assisted program or activity.

84



Section-05 Compliance P-0500100 Effective Date: 00/00/2021 
Replaces TAWDB Center Certification Policy dated 08/13/2020 and EWDB One Stop Evaluation 
and Certification Policy dated 09/2019 
Delaney Rea, GCWDB Chair  

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY AND NONDISCRIMINATION: All providers must comply with WIOA’s Equal Opportunity and Nondiscrimination provisions 
which prohibit discrimination on the basis of race, color, religion, sex (including pregnancy, childbirth, and related medical conditions, transgender 
status, and gender identity), national origin (including limited English proficiency), age, disability, political affiliation or belief, or, for beneficiaries, 
applicants, and participants only, on the basis of citizenship status or participation in a WIOA Title-I financially assisted program or activity. 
Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities. 

VI. Action:  The Executive Director is responsible for compliance of this policy. The
Executive Director is responsible for annual review and revisions if needed. Any exceptions to
this policy statement will require prior written approval from the Executive Director or chair of
the GCWDB.

This policy will be effective immediately upon approval of the GCWDB membership. 

______________________________________________________ 

Chair, Green Country Workforce Development Board / Date  

Attachments:  

A. Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors
B. Checklist for Compliance with Section 503 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, As Amended
C. OOWD Integrated Business Services
D. Physical Site Accessibility Checklist
E. OWDI #1-2019 Evaluation Summary for Oklahoma Works AJC Certification

85



Guide to  
Improving One-Stops 

through  
Benchmarked Critical 

Success Factors 

Prepared by 

900 Victors Way, Suite 350 
Ann Arbor, MI  48108 

(734) 769-2900 (voice)
(734) 769-2950 (fax)

lagood@skilledwork.org 

86



is guide was prepared by the Corporation for a Skilled Workforce as part 
of a project involving a consortium of intergovernmental organizations 

that included the National Governors Association Center for Best 
Practices, National Association of Counties, U.S. Conference of Mayors, 

and the National Association of State Workforce Agencies 

87



Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 1 

Table of Contents 
I. Introduction................................................................................................. 2

Background................................................................................................................................ 2 

Assumptions.............................................................................................................................. 3 

Resources ................................................................................................................................... 4 

Analysis Process........................................................................................................................ 4 

Using this Document................................................................................................................ 5 

II. What Does a “Good” One-Stop Look Like? ................................................. 6 

“Good” Must Be Locally Defined........................................................................................... 6 

A Good One-Stop Satisfies Employers .................................................................................. 6 

A Good One-Stop Manages Employer Services................................................................... 8 

A Good One-Stop Delivers Quality Services to Employers ............................................. 13 

A Good One-Stop Satisfies Job Seekers ............................................................................... 15 

A Good One-Stop Manages Job Seeker Services................................................................ 18 

A Good One-Stop Delivers Quality Services to Job Seekers ............................................ 21 

A Good One-Stop Designs and Manages the Center as a Business ................................ 22 

III. Critical Success Factors and Indicators (Summary) ............................... 32 

Critical Success Factors for Employers................................................................................ 32 

Critical Success Factors for Job Seekers............................................................................... 33 

Critical Success Factors in One-Stop Design and Management ...................................... 34 

IV. Policymakers’ Guide to Using Critical Success Factors ........................... 37 

Introduction............................................................................................................................. 37 

Critical Success Factors and Core Indicators ...................................................................... 39 

V.   Self-Assessment Tool .............................................................................. 66 

Critical Success Factors and Core Indicators of Success ................................................... 67 

VI. Application ............................................................................................... 98 

Implementation Options and Decision Points ................................................................... 98 

Lessons Learned from Others ............................................................................................... 99 

Appendix A:  One-Stop Quality Resources................................................... 102 

88



Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 2 

I. Introduction

 Background 
he purpose of this guide is to help state and local policy makers improve 
their One-Stop systems through the application of critical success factors.  

The critical success factors were initially identified as a result of a 
benchmarking study of 20 One-Stops around the country.  They have been 
updated as a result of more recent case studies and analyses of best practices.  
The guide includes a description of a “good” One-Stop, considerations for 
policy makers who want to implement the criteria, and a self-assessment tool 
for local One-Stop operators and partners. 

Defining One-Stop center success is a matter of customer and stakeholder 
perceptions and local control. Early attempts to develop One-Stop criteria 
were geared toward ensuring minimum consistency across multiple sites; 
e.g., sites must offer a standard customer orientation, utilize a certain set of
assessment tools, have specified resources in the resource room, and so forth.
The minimum criteria approach was an early phase of assessment aimed at
certifying whether a site met the definition of being a One-Stop center.

Influenced by private sector quality initiatives, several states and local 
workforce boards pushed to establish criteria that defined quality, not just 
compliance. Assessment of One-Stop success in leading edge workforce areas 
moved to an on-going dialogue between workforce investment board (WIB) 
and operator that addressed local priorities and context rather than 
uniformity, and promoted the principles of continuous improvement rather 
than meeting minimum standards as evidence of success.  Without exception, 
however, the criteria that defined success were developed by a consensus of 
stakeholders (often policy makers and providers) rather than derived from a 
research base.   

This guide is grounded in the Benchmarking One-Stop Centers: Understanding 
Keys to Success study, the first attempt to define success factors using a 
research base instead of consensus or case studies. This study drew 
considerable interest from all levels of the workforce development industry.1  
CSW led the study, in cooperation with Leaders in Excellence, on behalf of 
four workforce boards in Illinois with funding from the Illinois Department 
of Employment Security. 

While several types of benchmarking can be undertaken, benchmarking is not 
to be confused with “best practices.”  Best practice case studies are vertical 

1  The full study may be downloaded from the Corporation for a Skilled Workforce website at 
www.skilledwork.org 

T

89



Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 3 

research projects that examine in depth a practice or set of practices at a given 
locale. Benchmarking, on the other hand, looks at pre-identified factors across 
several sites. It is horizontal research that compares a wide variety of practices 
related to a single factor of success.   

The specific goals of the Benchmarking study were to: 

Identify and explore critical success factors of One-Stop centers;
Examine other service centers to understand how they serve customers
and manage operations;
Define appropriate expectations for the One-Stops in meeting critical
success factors;
Establish a benchmarking process that other boards and One-Stop
quality.

This guide builds on that last goal and refines the study’s list of critical success 
factors for One-Stop centers by integrating the factors with other One-Stop 
experiences. 

A similar effort was completed in June 2003 by the General Accounting Office 
(GAO).2  Although the GAO study approached the task as promising 
practices, it identified characteristics across One-Stops that neatly supported 
the Critical Success Factors identified in the Benchmarking report. 

Understanding of One-Stop center success continues to evolve as more 
information is gathered from experience with chartering processes, mystery 
shopping initiatives, balanced scorecard initiatives, and revised state and 
local definitions of success. These learnings have been incorporated into a 
new generation of critical success factors, as detailed in this report. 

 Assumptions 
Benchmarking One-Stop Centers is the foundation piece for defining
critical success factors.  The original success factors have been
amplified with criteria extracted from case studies and commonalities
among criteria developed at the state and local level through
stakeholder consensus.
The indicators for success are affected by the political, social, and
market factors of the area where the One-Stop is located.  While all
the critical success factors are essential, the indicators can be sorted
into those that are basic and those that are supplemental, or “good to
have.”  There are some indicators that are key to success regardless of

2 The GAO study “Workforce Investment Act: One-Stop Centers Implemented Strategies to Strengthen 
Services and Partnerships, but More Research and Information Sharing is Needed”, GAO 03-725, June 18, 
2003 may be found at  www.gao.gov.  

90



Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 4 

the environment (such as regular staff development), and others that 
are indicators only under certain conditions (e.g., offering services on a 
fee basis).   
Targeting is important. One-Stops can only be “all things to all
people” for a prescribed set of core services.  Segmenting markets and
identifying niches is standard private sector practice that One-Stops
should emulate.  Identifying and meeting the needs of key industry
clusters will help One-Stops become more relevant to communities
than broad, but shallow, service strategies.  Targets will differ from
one state and local area to the next, which only points to the
importance of local definitions of success.

 Resources 

The following resources were used to revise the critical success factors 
originally identified in the Benchmarking study:   

Social Policy Research Associates’ “Overview of State
Certification/Chartering Criteria for One-Stops,” (final matrices of
September 30, 1996 for twelve states and final narrative of January 30,
1997).
Certification or chartering criteria used by various states and local
workforce boards.
Two case studies done by Public Sector Labor Management
Committee, Feb. 2002.
Commission on Accreditation of Rehabilitation Facilities’
“Employment and Community Services Standards Manual;” July 2003-
June 2004.
John J. Heldrich Center for Workforce Development at Rutgers
University case studies.
NGA Center For Best Practices survey of state chartering criteria,
April, 2003.
General Accounting Office (GAO) report of June, 2003, “One-Stop
Centers Implemented Strategies to Strengthen Services and
Partnerships, but More Research and Information Sharing is Needed”

 Analysis Process 
The descriptions and criteria contained in the above documents were 
compared with the original critical success factors identified in the 
Benchmarking report to identify commonalities and gaps.  New factors and 
indicators were created or old indicators reworded as common themes were 

91



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 5 

identified from these sources.  The range of resources includes Baldrige and 
non-Baldrige-based formats; single level and multi-level certifications; state 
and local designs; and case study, consensus, and research-based analyses.     

 Using this Document 
This guidebook is divided into six chapters.  While all stakeholders can 
benefit from the full document, Chapter III is specifically targeted to 
policymakers and Chapter IV is a self-assessment tool targeted to One-Stop 
partners.  Appendix A identifies quality resources that are available to 
policymakers and partners in thinking about One-Stop center quality.  There 
is a separate document that provides a comparison between the Critical 
Success Factors and revised indicators with quality criteria identified by other 
national studies and national, state, and local certification systems that may 
be accessed at www.skilledwork.org.   

State and local workforce investment boards should use this document to frame 
local discussions of One-Stop quality.  The critical success factors outline the 
characteristics of One-Stops that are considered to be industry leaders.   
Policymakers and providers may benchmark their own behavior against the 
leaders’ characteristics and indicators using the self-assessment tool, and discuss 
how each factor applies within their own policy and labor market environment. 
Further, the critical success factors and indicators can be used to set 
improvement targets based on where the One-Stop is in its developmental 
process.  The end result should be customized criteria within a common vision 
of excellence. Application recommendations are in Chapter VI. 

Important Considerations 
The self-assessment tool is not meant to be used to rank, grade, or score One-
Stop centers.  It is a continuous improvement tool intended to assist local 
entities in their pursuit of quality.  

No connection has been made to outcomes.  Individual federal program 
measures of performance – often the only formal indicators available in many 
areas – apply to single funding streams which measure outcomes for the small 
percentage of total One-Stop users they enroll.  Some states include program 
specific measures from multiple programs in their evaluation of One-Stop 
success, yet those still don’t quantify the overall success of the joint venture. The 
most effective center-wide outcome measures should be locally defined, 
taking into account local economies, community priorities, unique partnerships, 
data sharing agreements, and baseline starting points.  In this guide, the critical 
success factor is that center-wide performance is measured.  It does not dictate 
what the center-wide measures are. Validation of the critical success factors and 
indicators against agreed-upon measures of success is an important step yet to 
be taken. 

92



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 6 

 

II. What Does a “Good” One-Stop Look Like?  

 “Good” Must Be Locally Defined 
he Workforce Investment Act outlines the basic principles for One-Stops, 
but a basic principle of the Act is state and local flexibility to define, 

within the parameters of the legislation, the right set of services, service 
design, and service standards that fit the local context.  Thus all of the Act’s 
descriptions either remain at the theoretical level or focus on the 
administrative details of how to confirm compliance with the law.  Since so 
much of an effective One-Stop is about finding the right blend of 
collaboration, given the local situation, it is impossible to define a model One-
Stop at a national level. 

However, we can look at some leaders in the workforce development 
industry to identify common characteristics or behaviors that cut across 
leading edge One-Stops and indicate greater potential for success. Identifying 
these characteristics will help states and local areas carry out their 
responsibilities for defining quality in a state or local context.  These 
characteristics and behaviors may be termed critical success factors. 

 A Good One-Stop Satisfies Employers 
A key element of a One-Stop must be a dedication to satisfying employers.  
While this may seem obvious, it is difficult to maintain a focus on the 
employer customer when   job seekers are walking into the center every day 
demanding attention.  Additionally, nearly all the partners in the One-Stop 
are measured by their federal funding sources on how well they serve job 
seekers, not employers.  It requires a concerted effort to dedicate time and 
resources to meeting employer needs, and to implementing state and/or local 
measurement systems to determine how well you are doing.   

Good One-Stops know how well they are satisfying employers as a joint 
venture.  They know, because they measure it across all programs in the 
center.  While federal and state requirements often force partners to collect 
data to see how a particular funding source satisfies employers, good One-
Stops are interested in how all partners collectively satisfy employers.  Is there 
any benefit gained from the One-Stop integration of programs and services, 
or does it look to the employer like business as usual with nothing but a 
change in brochures? 

T

93



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 7 

There are many ways to capture employer satisfaction at the center level.  Options 
we have seen successful One-Stops employ: 

 Provide all staff with a couple brief questions to ask an employer at the 
end of every phone interaction. 

 Survey employers in person; equip business services team 
representatives (or anyone who meets personally with employers) with a 
short survey that can be done verbally, with the opportunity to explore 
responses in greater depth. 

 Consolidate the employer satisfaction requirements of individual partner 
program measures into one satisfaction tool that is used by all programs. 

 Tag One-Stop awareness and satisfaction questions onto some other 
entity’s survey tool (like a chamber of commerce). 

Regardless of the method selected, a One-Stop will define the tools and the 
process, collect data to create a baseline against which improvements can be 
gauged, set improvement goals, and have a formal process for reviewing results and 
acting on the implications. 

To satisfy employers, the One-Stop has to actively listen to what employers 
need and want.  Good One-Stops plan on getting input from employers; it 
doesn’t happen by accident or only on an “as needed” basis. 

There are many ways a One-Stop can listen to employers. The best of the best use 
multiple methods. A One-Stop can: 

 Facilitate regularly scheduled focus groups, using questions designed to 
elicit input on service or delivery needs. Related methods may include 
industry summits or employer conferences. 

 Use another organization, such as an economic development group, to 
be the “ears” for the One-Stop, and collect regular, agreed upon input. 

 Implement a business calling program with a set “script” that might 
combine needs analysis, relationship building, and satisfaction elements 
in one personal contact. 

 Reach out to employers who do not currently use the One-Stop to find 
out what services or delivery mechanisms are lacking.  This might be 
done through presentations at Rotary, Chamber, Lyon’s Club, or other 
civic organizations. 

Regardless of the ways used, a good One-Stop knows in advance what kind of 
information it needs, identifies the avenues for getting the information, synthesizes 
and analyzes the input, and turns the analysis into specific action to add services or 
change delivery techniques. 

94



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 8 

Supplemental Considerations 
The above points describe a “good One-Stop.”  Supplemental considerations 
for exceptional One-Stops include:  

 Customer behavior (e.g., repeat usage) is tracked as an indicator of 
satisfaction. Usage doesn’t just mean tracking repeat job orders.  An 
employer who isn’t hiring has no need to place job orders.  “Usage” 
should be defined more broadly to include workshop attendance, 
requests for labor market information, use of an employer resource 
room, borrowing videos on issues like working with individuals with 
disabilities, or seeking assistance in assessing and training incumbent 
workers.  If an employer who is not hiring is not taking advantage of 
other services, it may be because there are no other services of value. 
The One-Stop should be seeking to develop those services that will 
attract consistent usage of the system. 

 Employer satisfaction is measured for both processes (services) and 
outcomes. Processes may include telephone wait time, the ease of 
placing internet job orders, length of time required to get referrals on a 
job order, and so forth.   

 Employer satisfaction data is disaggregated by size and/or industry 
type.  The excellent One-Stop wants to know whether it is satisfying large 
employers but not small ones; if it is satisfying manufacturing employers 
but not health care employers.  Being able to disaggregate satisfaction 
data assists the One-Stop in making targeted improvements rather than 
guessing at what factors are affecting satisfaction scores. 

 A Good One-Stop Manages Employer Services 

ood One-Stops don’t think of business services as a menu item.  They 
consider it to be a key function and they manage it to ensure success.   

The industry leaders work hard at managing the process so they can control 
delivery and satisfaction. 

Good One-Stops make employer services a clear priority in the One-Stop with 
dedicated staff time and resources supporting them.  Making employer or 
business services a priority implies defining what those services are.  Taking 
the occasional job order by phone on a catch-as-catch-can basis in between 
talking to job seekers doesn’t constitute dedicated staff time.  Even job fairs 
are often done more for the job seeker’s benefit than the employer’s benefit, 
and may not qualify as a true business service.  A good One-Stop doesn’t 
decide whether or not it has time to devote to business services.  It makes time 
and doesn’t sacrifice business services to other activities just because 
unemployment goes up or program funds are cut. 

G

95



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 9 

One-Stops demonstrate commitment to business services in multiple ways.  A One-
Stop can: 

 Identify staff who devote 100% of their working hours to business 
services.   This is the surest method to making such services a priority.  
With 100% commitment, there is no danger that the business services 
staff will get bogged down in working with job seekers and let their 
business service hours slide. 

 Broaden staff exposure to the business community and its needs by 
doubling the number of staff who provide business services, but 
dedicating only 50% of each person’s time. This has advantages for staff 
development and allows for “understudies” to be created who can step in 
when another team member is away or leaves employment.   

 Ensure advancement of business services by dedicating a pre-
determined amount of team member time – say 80% – to direct employer 
interaction and budgeting the remaining 20% of the time to development 
of new services, research, interaction with job seeker service teams to 
share knowledge, creating partnership with employer groups such as 
chamber and trade associations, and so forth.    

 Budget resource beyond staff time. Resources may be needed for cell 
phones, laptop computers, mileage, membership fees, and other costs 
associated with on-site employer interactions. A good business services 
team member should rarely be in the office except when he/she is 
researching LMI for an account, making appointments, developing new 
services, or otherwise enhancing their interactions with employers.  

 
One-Stops that manage employer services well do so in an integrated way.  
Employers served by these One-Stops perceive the system as having a single 
business services unit with which they can connect with a single phone call.  
In the Benchmarking study, all regions where employer services were 
considered successful operated with unified account representative systems. 
The account representatives may be organized in various ways, including 
mixes of geographic and industry specialists.  The site from which they 
operate appears irrelevant, typically because most employer contacts are 
made either at the firm’s offices or by telephone or electronic communication 
Account representatives are sometimes located centrally and other times at 
One-Stop centers.  One region chose to drive business services from the 
workforce board level. The staff were selected and hired by the board and 
report directly to the board.  One business strategist was assigned to each 
One-Stop in the region and worked full time out of that office.  A key staff 
person at the board level convened the strategists on a regular basis to convey 
board goals and priorities.  Since the region had multiple operators for its 
many One-Stops, driving employer services through the board staff achieves 
consistency that might not otherwise be possible, and minimizes competition 
among the sites for employer customers. 

96



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 10 

In another community, the board required a focus on employer services but gave 
no further direction to the competitively procured operator about how that was 
to be accomplished.  The operator used the opportunity to create its own 
business services division, with its own budget and dedicated staff.  Under 
strong leadership from a former private sector entrepreneur, the division 
coordinates traditional “no fee” services with “for fee” services that address 
employer needs not otherwise possible within the constraints of the system.  

In yet another region, several partners banded together to form a 
collaborative to manage One-Stop business services.  Staff from several 
partner agencies work in unison under a single team manager.   

Regardless of the management locus, business customer satisfaction with 
services appeared to be consistently stronger when a single, unified team 
worked cohesively to provide that service, rather than when several 
organizations provided their own services to employers in isolation.  Whether 
done by employees of a single service provider, such as the workforce board or a 
single agency, or done by an integrated team involving staff from several 
partners, the key business rule is that a single account representative is 
authorized to work with the employer on behalf of the entire One-Stop center or 
system.   

A One-Stop can: 

 Assign account representatives on the basis of geography.  In a multi-
county area, each account representative may be assigned one or more 
counties for which he/she is responsible.  An advantage to this approach is 
that the representative can develop relationships with stakeholders that 
impact all industries in the local jurisdiction, including elected officials and 
chambers that represent multiple sectors. 

 Assign account representatives on the basis of industry sectors.  One 
account representative may cover all biomed, health care, and 
environmental employers, regardless of location in the region. Another may 
focus on durable goods manufacturing and logistics. The advantage of this 
approach is that account representatives become more knowledgeable 
about specific industries and are better able to develop sector-based 
approaches to workforce development. 

 Assign staff from different partner agencies by sector. For example, a 
TANF partner may accept responsibility for working with the hospitality 
sector because more of their job seekers are placed in that industry than 
others. 

Assigning account representative by geography or sector does not give anyone 
ownership of that locale or industry.  All team members are still part of the same team, 
and they share information and support each other to the maximum extent possible.  

 

97



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 11 

Good One-Stops don’t try to be everything to everyone; there aren’t enough 
resources to go around.  They target their efforts to specific community goals.  
Relationships are developed with employers who are economy-critical, rather 
than just employers who are easiest to serve. Account representatives use 
community audit information and direction from the WIB to make their 
target selections. The staff research the trends in the target sectors so they can 
talk intelligently with employers about their needs.  They ask questions – and 
they listen.  Staff are able to identify themes in what they hear from 
employers in key industries and use that to make service decisions in the 
One-Stop. 

A One-Stop can: 
 Invest in memberships in trade associations and subscriptions to trade 

publications to keep business team members aware of current events 
and trends. 

 Develop a common tool for team members to use when they contact 
employers to solicit information that will give them key data about an 
industry in a format that allows information to be aggregated and 
analyzed. 

 Expect business team members to spend a required number of hours per 
year in developmental activities that will enhance their knowledge of an 
industry. This may even include job shadowing a number of occupations 
within an industry. 

 Annually re-evaluate their targeted sectors in partnership with the WIB.  
What economic events may have occurred that impact the business 
team’s focus and priorities? 

 
Relationship building is important to sales, as any private sector firm will tell 
you.  A One-Stop may not be selling services for a fee, but it is marketing 
itself in an environment that includes temporary agencies, headhunters, and 
private internet job boards.  It is because it does not have to sell to stay alive 
that the One-Stop can provide value to employers by playing a brokering 
role.  Quality One-Stops have a passion for meeting employer needs, 
including finding other private and public sector providers who can do what 
the One-Stop can’t.    
Job seekers come and go, but employers are potentially on-going customers 
for life.  By nurturing relationships, spending time with employers even 
when they aren’t hiring, and finding ways to meet employer needs that are 
outside the One-Stop’s realm of expertise, the business team ensures that the 
One-Stop becomes the employer’s first choice rather than last resort when there 
is a workforce need. 

 

98



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 12 

A One-Stop can: 
 Host after-hours receptions for employers at the One-Stop. 
 Require account representatives to call on key employers in person a 

requisite number of times per year. 
 Leave something of value to the employer with every contact – be it 

targeted labor market data, an interesting quote, a list of relevant websites, 
or a pen or mousepad emblazoned with the One-Stop brand name and 
phone number. 

 Create e-mail newsletters that are about issues of interest to employers, 
such as industry or economic trends, upcoming events like industry 
summits, initiatives in the community beyond the One-Stop, and so forth.  
Employers don’t want to read about job seeker successes, program 
performance standards, or be sold to in a newsletter.  A relationship is built 
by providing value to the employer. 

Supplemental Considerations 
The above points describe a “good One-Stop.”  Supplemental considerations 
for exceptional One-Stops include:  

 Niche markets served by One-Stop centers are 
identified/maintained. A One-Stop must carefully consider its unique 
environment.  In a large city with many competing providers, the One-
Stop niche may be working with employers and job seekers on the first 
rung of a career ladder.  This does not mean the One-Stop has no other 
role to play.  For example, in the health care industry, the One-Stop 
may find its niche in recruiting and training licensed practical nurses 
(LPNs) and helping them develop career advancement plans that will 
lead to becoming a registered nurse (RN).  A postsecondary institution 
with whom the One-Stop partners may occupy the niche of preparing 
RNs and working with hospitals to create human resource policies that 
foster pursuit of the RN license. 

 Data reflecting contacts, delivery of employer services, and outcomes 
is tracked, shared, and used to improve services and results. The 
simple notations permitted in some automated job matching systems 
are usually inadequate for the job. With quality databases, partners in 
an excellent One-Stop are enabled and encouraged to read or add to 
the data, with the expectation that shared information will improve 
customer service and reduce duplicated efforts. The tracking systems 
cover such items as company name, address, phone and fax numbers, 
contact person name and e-mail address, federal identification 
number, standard industrial code, contact history including contact 
type, subject, date, location, name of contactor, case notes, and 
projected date of next contact; WARN data including date of notice, 

99



Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 13 

number of affected workers, targeted lay-off date, Trade Adjustment 
Assistance/NAFTA eligibility, and willingness to participate in 
various school-to-work activities or work-based learning activities.  
One region that is heavily focused on fee-based services uses its 
database to track contracts for services, payments, and delivery of 
scheduled services. 

 A Good One-Stop Delivers Quality Services to Employers 

s stated before, quality is what the customer says it is.  A One-Stop that 
designs and delivers its business services to meet customer requirements 

is much more likely to be successful than one that creates a generic menu 
written in indelible ink, and then tells employers what they can get and how 
they can get it.   In a statewide survey of employers in one midwestern state, 
nearly half (48%) of employer respondents said they had never been asked for 
input about the types of services offered.  When asked what would be the one 
most important thing the One-Stop system could do for them, the answers 
included “Know what we are looking for by knowing our business,” “More 
communication with business,” “Proactive steps taken to identify needs,” 
”Provide a product that meets expectations and has value over other 
options,” “Provide prompt responses to our expressed needs,” and 
“Understand the needs of an industry on an individual basis.” 
Attitudes are critical.  Employers don’t want to hear excuses (e.g., “we can’t 
do that because we have no money; it is against our regulations; state policy 
won’t let us; we don’t have enough staff; what you want isn’t one of our 
current services and it would take us six months to go through the process of 
developing it”).  Good One-Stops never say “we can’t”; they say “we’ll find a 
way.”  That way may require brokering to other public intermediaries or 
finding another partner or provider who can address the needs. It may 
require using other intermediaries to fill an employer request immediately, 
while it pursues a slower process to develop a new capacity within the One-
Stop itself.  
A One-Stop in the Benchmarking study used private sector partners from the 
community to fill gaps for services for which it did not possess expertise.  It 
brokered services to others while maintaining its position as a focal point for 
developing responses to employer needs.  The staff hired for the business 
services unit came mostly from the private sector.  They discovered that 
existing system staff did not possess the kind of entrepreneurial mindset and 
attitudes needed to be successful in working with employers.  Attitude is as 
important, if not more important, than expertise. 

A

100



Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 14 

A One-Stop can: 
 Create a team to create new services or new ways of delivering 

services in response to business needs. 
 Develop partnerships with small business administration assistance 

centers, local colleges, private training providers and recruiters, 
temporary agencies, and others. The business team members should 
know everything these other intermediaries can do. They should have 
personal contacts they can call upon for quick response.   

 Utilize a needs analysis tool in personal interactions with employers, 
then assemble a team made up of people both in and outside the 
One-Stop to create a response to the analysis. 

 Practice responding to employer needs. Use the private sector 
members of the board to propose scenarios, and then assess how 
the business team members respond. 

 Select business team members based on demonstrated 
entrepreneurial attitude and creativity. Evaluate them based not only 
on what they deliver, but how well they broker and bring in other 
intermediaries. 

 Ensure employer satisfaction tools ask for ratings of satisfaction with 
response time and staff attitudes. 

The above description of a good One-Stop applies anywhere.  In many cases, 
it may be appropriate for a One-Stop to develop fee-based services.  A wide 
range of “no fee” services is possible in regions where allocations of federal 
program funds are sufficiently large to meet demand.  Boards and operator 
staff in these regions express a preference for delivering the maximum variety 
of services possible without charging fees, although they admit they may be 
driven to fees in the future if funding becomes an issue.  In the Benchmarking 
study, one workforce board felt there was enough to be done to improve the 
quality of existing services without expending time and energy on the 
development of “for fee” services.  Another area that already had quality 
services simply didn’t think there was any reason to pursue fee-based 
services, except as a last resort.   
One area that has aggressively pursued fee-based services has done so for 
several reasons.  First and foremost is meeting employer needs that were not 
being met in the community.  As such, the services enhance the range of 
options available to employers to increase their productivity.  It is an 
economic development strategy.  Secondly, the effort establishes credibility 
with the employers.  Since the operator can offer services for a fee and broker 
or subcontract for what they cannot deliver themselves, they never have to 

101



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 15 

say “no” or “we can’t do that” to an employer.  Further, employers tend to 
value more highly what they pay for.   

A market analysis is required before developing fee-based services.   Are 
there gaps in the kinds of services available to employers in the community?  
Do employers need those services badly enough that they are willing to pay 
to have their needs met?  Are they willing to pay enough to cover the cost of 
the activity?   Who else might be providing such services now?  Is there any 
added value the One-Stop could provide to the service that would make it 
competitive with existing providers?  Are the board and the cognizant state 
agencies comfortable with the One-Stop pursuing fee-based activities?  Does 
the One-Stop have a means to receive and account for fees paid by 
employers? How will revenues in excess of cost be used?  How will potential 
losses be covered? 

 A Good One-Stop Satisfies Job Seekers 

ndividual partner programs often measure satisfaction of their own 
participants.  It may be a requirement of their federal funding source to 

satisfy a performance measure.  It may be because a local fund manager 
wants to know how his/her program’s particular set of services satisfies 
clientele so that improvements can be made.  One-Stop staff may balk at 
inflicting yet another survey on customers, particularly when response rates 
can be low and the cost high. 

However, the “joint” part of the joint venture is mostly the up-front, core 
services; the services that are provided before a program enrollment decision 
is ever made.  The One-Stop can focus on quick, on-site feedback that 
addresses only the core services, and leave program-specific satisfaction to 
the individual programs. 

Satisfaction tools can serve two purposes.  The first, of course, is to determine 
satisfaction with what has already been delivered.  The second is to seek 
input from customers on what should be offered.   In a survey of job seekers in 
one state, 73% of the respondents said they expected help in assessing their 
skills and understanding what jobs they were qualified for.  Sixty percent 
thought someone should tell them what skills they need to improve in order 
to qualify for a better job, and 50% expected skills training.   It would be easy 
to simply dismiss such input due to lack of sufficient staff resources to assess 
three-quarters of the job seekers who come to the center, but there are other 
ways to learn from and work with this input.  A major problem in many 
centers is that customers have no idea what to expect. There is no service 
menu posted, and it is not clear what services can be accessed at what point.  
A private sector practice is that customers first get an explanation of what 
they are going to get; then those services are provided to them; then 

I

102



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 16 

satisfaction levels are assessed to see if they got what they were told they 
would get in a timely and satisfying way.  If customers see skills assessment 
in your brochures and then can’t find it when they get there, they are likely to 
be unhappy.  If they understand that skills assessment is available if they are 
unable to find work in a reasonable period of time or have certain barriers, 
and they request such assessment, and they know an appointment will be 
necessary, then their expectations can be adjusted. 

Good One-Stops use multiple means of measuring center-wide satisfaction and 
listening to the customer.    

 A One-Stop can measure satisfaction with core services, staff 
attitudes, and the facility with limited burden. Every staff person who 
works one-on-one with customers should have a succinct set of 
questions to pose to the job seeker at the end of their time together. 
This method ensures the highest rate of response. While a customer 
may not be totally honest in responding face-to-face, if this is just one 
of several ways satisfaction is measured, it still can add substantial 
information to the full picture. 

 Some One-Stops use an opinion meter. Standalone meters are 
positioned in one or more places in the facility. Job seekers 
voluntarily answer a small set of questions – perhaps 3 – and the 
meter tallies them.  One office reported minimal use of the meters. 
Usage may vary depending on location in the office and how and 
when customers are encouraged to use it. 

 Opinion cards can be provided all over the office with multiple drop-
off boxes. Staff can hand customers cards at the end of each 
personal interaction. One office reduces the burden on both 
customers and staff by doing this on a sample basis. The cards and 
boxes are used one week out of every month. During that week, there 
is a general “blitz” to get job seeker feedback. 

 Focus groups are a tremendous addition to the multiple methods of 
measuring satisfaction. The focus group session can combine use of 
a written survey (which can be longer than one used daily in the 
office) with a facilitator posing pre-developed questions designed to 
dig deeper into why participants may have responded the way they 
did. 

 Several states and One-Stops around the country are using mystery 
shoppers to look at the One-Stop through customers’ eyes. The U.S. 
Department of Labor recently funded a pilot that used mystery 
shoppers familiar with the One-Stop system and what it provides, as 
well as shoppers who were completely unaware of the system’s 
existence. A key learning that came out of the pilot is that it is 
important to identify and define beforehand what aspects of the 
service and facility you want shoppers to explore, and agree on how 
those service features will be rated. Board members’ family members 
could be inexpensive mystery shoppers, and provide interesting 
feedback to the entity responsible for overseeing One-Stop quality. 

103



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 17 

Regardless of the methods used, good One-Stops act on the input.  Too often, 
customer satisfaction results sit on a shelf.   

A good One-Stop has a process for regularly analyzing customer feedback 
and input from multiple sources on at least a quarterly basis, and creating 
recommendations and assignments to implement those recommendations.  If 
73% of the customers expect a skills assessment, a computerized, self-serve 
skill assessment should be made available and prominently advertised.  If 
customers expect or need someone to interpret the assessment for them, the 
assessment should end with an opportunity to make an appointment with a 
counselor.  If there are no counselors at the One-Stop, the customer should be 
able to print the assessment and be given a list of places in the community – 
both no-fee and those that charge a fee – where the assessment can be taken 
for consultation.  In other words, a good One-Stop finds ways to meet 
customers’ expectations. 

All good One-Stops measure customer satisfaction at the center level and 
design their services and delivery strategies in consultation with the job 
seekers.  Exceptional One-Stops may also: 

 Measure satisfaction for both processes (services) and outcomes.  
They want to know not only that they met a customer expectation 
effectively, but that they did it quickly and professionally.  When 
asked on a survey what was the factor most likely to make them 
unhappy with One-Stop services, only 15% of job seeker respondents 
said not getting a job referral, while 60% said rude or unhelpful staff.  
A state agency noted in looking across satisfaction results and 
comparing them to outcome results that a One-Stop that had one of the 
lowest placement rates in the state had one of the highest customer 
satisfaction rates.  Customers are pleased by good service and staff who 
ask for their input and listen even if they don’t find a job.  Process counts! 

 Exceptional One-Stops gather enough demographic data in their 
customer satisfaction tools to enable them to disaggregate findings by 
different customer groups.   Is the One-Stop satisfying the 
unemployed, but not the employed?  Is it satisfying high school 
dropouts, but not college graduates?  Are non-English speaking 
customers less likely to be satisfied than those who are fluent in 
English?  Disaggregating the data can allow the One-Stop to target 
changes in operations for specific demographic groups. 

 An exceptional One-Stop also compares its levels of satisfaction with 
that of other public and private providers. A survey or focus group 
question may be “have you ever used a temporary agency?  A private 
employment agency?  If so, how did their services compare to ours?”  
One state’s job seeker survey revealed that 55% of respondents had 

104



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 18 

used a temporary agency to find work, and 14% had used 
outplacement firms. 

 A Good One-Stop Manages Job Seeker Services 

t may be self-evident to say that job seeker services have to be managed, 
but One-Stops often manage program services rather than job seeker services.  

They may assume that all job seekers are Wagner-Peyser customers until 
otherwise proven eligible.  In a good One-Stop, partners work together to 
ensure customer flow is efficiently designed and organized.  They assume all 
job seekers are their potential customers until otherwise proven ineligible, so 
they have a vested interest in ensuring that all customers are served well. 
That’s a major philosophical and attitudinal difference.    

As described in the Benchmarking report, organizing the staff to manage job 
seeker services as a center rather than as individual programs can be done in 
different ways: 

 In the specialist approach, staff have unique service positions within 
the One-Stop. There may be staff who are fully dedicated to working 
the resource area, those who are consistently counselors or intake 
specialists, or those who specialize in a program such as WIA youth 
services. The specialist approach is the least integrated and least 
ideal, but it may be necessary when state policies inhibit multi-agency 
cost allocation. Sometimes, the One-Stop can only be as good as the 
state allows it to be. 

 When permissible, the generalist approach offers distinct advantages.  
The generalist follows a job seeker from resource room, to 
assessment, to enrollment in one or more programs, to follow-
through. The customer has a single contact and a one-on-one 
relationship is developed. Advantages include a more seamless 
delivery from the customer’s perspective, less staff burn-out, and 
reduced customer loss as they move from one referral point to 
another within the building. 

 A team approach can take the form of a functional team or case 
management team. A functional team is comprised of staff from 
multiple One-Stop partners who work on teams based on a specific 
services component. The most common is the business services 
team, but there are also resource room teams, job search teams, etc. 
The case management team approach is patterned after medical 
care, where a team of experts is assembled to meet the holistic 
needs of the patient.  Several staff of different agencies with different 
functions in the One-Stop may meet regularly to assess a customer’s 
case. Because the approach is fairly labor intensive, it works best in 
offices with smaller numbers of customers. 

 

I

105



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 19 

Part of managing job seeker services well is reducing bottlenecks and having 
contingency plans for periods of high traffic.  Good One-Stops don’t need a 
waiting area.  The facility design fosters movement and ease of self-access, 
and there is always something constructive that a job seeker can be doing. 
Reading brochures while in the waiting area does not constitute constructive 
activity.  Customers who have to do something bureaucratic, like filling out 
forms, should be directed to round work tables in the resource room, or to a 
classroom that is out of the general traffic flow, or sent to a kiosk or 
individual work station.  The objective is not to let other job seekers walk in 
and immediately be faced with a line-up of other job seekers in a barren 
space, either unoccupied or doing routine paperwork.  A facility that looks 
active is more likely to be active.  An open, attractive, and professional center 
starts satisfying customers the minute they walk in the door. 

A good One-Stop: 
 Looks inviting and organized because there are no lines and no waiting 

area. While playing a continuous loop orientation video in a reception 
area is better than nothing, better yet is to have a separate room 
designated as a “theater” where customers are sent for the express 
purpose of seeing the video. The video is not just an entertaining stop-
gap measure used to cover the fact that what people are really doing is 
waiting; it has a purpose in overall client service design. 

 Tracks patterns of customer usage and makes staffing decisions 
accordingly to reduce any waiting times. If most people show up on 
Monday morning, the center uses flex time to open earlier on Mondays 
and increases the number of staff who are present (perhaps by drawing 
in staff from lesser used satellite locations, ensuring partners use that 
time for itinerant presence, or reassigning staff within the center from 
counseling to working the resource room).    

 Tracks local economic events and plans accordingly. If a large lay-off 
took place on Friday, the One-Stop center gears up for Monday morning. 
If the event is known about beforehand, the One-Stop makes plans to go 
on-site to deliver orientations, provide Internet access to register for work 
on laptop computers, and answer questions about unemployment. If the 
work-site itself isn’t available, the One-Stop makes arrangements with a 
local organization to use their facility to expedite customer flow in order to 
keep crowds from forming lines in the One-Stop center. A key to effective 
customer flow that many One-Stops have discovered is moving 
Unemployment Insurance out of the building. As noted in the 
Benchmarking report, removing claims filing from the One-Stop is the 
biggest single lever of change in service focus and community image. UI 
drives a bureaucratic client flow, complete with ropes, lines, number 
systems, and waiting chairs. Contrary to frequently expressed fears, 
removing UI does not cause a drastic reduction in the number of 
customers. They still come in to register and look for work. Plus, a new 
clientele is attracted once the unemployment office stigma is dispelled. 

106



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 20 

 Conducts process mapping of its client flow. Process mapping outlines 
how customers move through the One-Stop services, where and how 
decisions are made, who makes them, and what the options are for the 
next step. Staff review the maps together to identify potential bottlenecks, 
service gaps, inefficient decision making points, duplication of effort, and 
steps that add no value to the customer. Common questions to be asked 
include: 
• Does the process promote errors or rework? 
• Are there unnecessary (non-value-added) steps? 
• Can activities be combined? 
• Should some processes be automated? 
• Can the number of decisions required be reduced without 

hurting the customer? 
• Could activities run parallel rather than in a series? 
• Is there a more effective means of transferring information or 

materials? 
• Are there places where roles and responsibilities are unclear? 

 Uses well-constructed web sites, virtual resource rooms, and telephone 
systems to increase services available from customers’ homes. This not 
only increases convenience for the job seeker, but reduces crowding and 
potential waiting at the center. 

You cannot effectively manage what you don’t measure.  Managing job 
seeker services requires data on customer interactions, delivery of services, 
and outcomes.    

There is more than one way to collect job seeker data.  How it is done is not as 
important as doing it. 

 Many One-Stops have invested in swipe card systems. Job seekers are 
registered in a tracking database using minimal identifying information. 
Each time they use a service, their card is swiped. Managers can identify 
how many people use the resource room, and which resource room 
materials they used, allowing the One-Stop to invest more heavily in 
resources that are most popular. The system is also handy for tracking 
referrals between partners. That information can be used to correct a 
perceived lack of referrals, or to highlight the need for a certain partner to 
spend more time on-site if referrals are heavy. 

 One-Stops that can’t afford swipe card systems have used paper 
systems. In one center, a resource room staffer carries a tally sheet 
around to note what resources customers are using and what kinds of 
questions they ask. 

 Some One-Stops use a sampling process where they may keep detailed 
paper records on service usage for one day a week, one week a quarter, 
or some other sampling basis.   

107



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 21 

 A Good One-Stop Delivers Quality Services to Job 
Seekers 

he resource room is the heart of the One-Stop.  The Benchmarking study 
found that good One-Stops have well-equipped resource rooms that use 

customer-oriented, dedicated staff on a full time basis. There should be no 
barriers to use of the resources.  This means: 

 The resource room is in front where customers come in, not off to the 
side, in the back, behind the receptionist desk, or up the stairs. It is 
large enough that it can accommodate a peak load of users and 
customers can move around it easily. 

 The resources are all in one place rather than spread throughout the 
building. Job seekers do not have to move from place to place to access 
everything and risk missing some resources all together.  

 Internal signage is professional and easy to understand. There is clear 
and prominent signage for the job board, career videos, periodicals, 
area maps, fax/phone/and copier area, computers that are set up for 
work registration and that link to multiple job websites, computers 
that are set up for self assessments or tutorials, resume guides, 
workshop sign-up, and so forth.   Customers may be greeted with a 
map that shows the physical layout of the various resources.  The map 
may even be color-coded to match colors in signage and wall coverings 
to help customer negotiate the room more easily.    

 Orientations are frequent, optional and encouraged, but no one is 
required to sit through one before being allowed to access the 
resources. 

 Accommodations for individuals with disabilities are present in the 
form of workstations that are wheelchair accessible, large screen 
monitors, voice-to-print software, and so forth. 

A One-Stop that has a large and well-stocked resource room will have little 
trouble with lines or wait times.  There is always something of value that a 
job seeker can be doing.    

Resource room staff must be well trained, knowledgeable about all the 
resources in the room, knowledgeable about all the programs and services in 
the center, and attuned to customer behaviors that may indicate a need for 
special attention or referral. As the heart of the One-Stop, this is the place 
where the highest caliber staff should be placed, not just convenient 
volunteers or program participants who staff it so the paid staff can do other 
work. 

T

108



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 22 

The One-Stop cannot be everything to everybody, so it needs lots of 
connections with other community services to ensure customers can access a 
comprehensive range of training and education services, and information 
about and referral to sources of related assistance. 

One-Stops can be very creative in how they address a customer’s holistic 
needs: 

 In one region, the One-Stop has a linkage with a local community 
clothes closet. The clothes closet provides attire suitable for 
interviewing to the One-Stop, which has a separate room for 
customers to “shop” and borrow what they need. This same center 
also obtains donations from local merchants to keep a cabinet of 
emergency supplies that includes baby formula and diapers, food, 
and personal hygiene items. 

 Many One-Stops have childcare areas where young children can be 
kept occupied while their parents use the facility’s services. Toys are 
often donated or picked up by staff at garage sales. The area is 
staffed and may include career information geared to young children. 

 Yet another region partnered with a transportation entity, which 
actually became a partner on-site. Job seekers could find work and 
find a way to get to the job without leaving the building. 

 Centers that are unable to provide extended hours have partnered 
with libraries or community colleges to offer basic resource room 
services in the evenings or on weekends.  

 A Good One-Stop Designs and Manages the Center as a 
Business 

Leadership 
s in any business venture, leadership and management matter.  Good 
One-Stops have a champion who cares about making the center work.  

Many times success has come from long-term relationships among the 
partners or with community leaders that allowed staff to focus on the 
customer instead of on protecting turf.  There really is no adequate substitute 
for leadership.  It cannot be legislated or created through policy.   Regions 
that are not getting the quality or speed of One-Stop development they want 
should look to the board, operator, and partners first to determine whether 
the vision and the will is there to support a high performance operation.  If 
leadership is not there, some changes may be in order. 

A

109



Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 23 

Local workforce boards play a crucial leadership role. They can promote 
high quality through: 

 Using a collaborative approach to creating a vision for the system to 
inspire and achieve buy-in. 

 Collecting and interpreting workforce intelligence data that provides 
strategic direction and focus for the partners. 

 Chartering sites using a quality-based framework such as Baldrige, 
and not allowing sites to operate or use the brand name if they 
cannot achieve quality operations. 

 Requiring One-Stops to develop business plans that steer partners 
toward thinking about their markets, operational requirements, and 
management issues for the center as a whole rather than just their 
individual agencies and programs. 

 Maintaining an on-going quality dialogue with the operator that keeps 
the board’s vision and expectations in the forefront. Good boards 
have a committee and/or staff liaison in regular contact with the 
operator. 

 Selecting an operator with leadership ability and entrepreneurial 
qualities.  If the current operator entity or consortium cannot provide 
the level of leadership required, the board will either define a new 
consortium or competitively procure the leadership it needs. 

 Creating a board/operator agreement that includes obligations on 
both sides and spells out the roles each needs the other to play. A 
board’s commitment to the operator may include: 
• Staff development
• Technical assistance
• Marketing of the brand name
• Creating connections in the employer community
• Centralized purchasing, if it is more efficient and cost-effective
• Paying for a neutral manager who has no program responsibilities

and can focus on the work of the center
• Building new partnerships and relationships in the community
• Grant writing to seek funds that expand One-Stop services and

sustain the center
• Working with state and federal agencies to remove barriers to

integration.
 Fostering a Memorandum of Understanding process that focuses on 

customers and their needs rather than on agencies and money. 

The leadership of the One-Stop operator and partners is also critical to 
success. While long-standing and deep relationships are helpful, strong 
friendships do not necessarily translate into strong leadership if all the 

110



Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 24 

partners are equally comfortable with the status quo. They must be equally 
interested in and committed to creating a high quality center. 

Good One-Stop operators and partners demonstrate leadership by: 

 Involving frontline staff in visioning and planning.   
 Keeping the vision alive. 
 Conducting regular team meetings for making strategic decisions. 
 Having a tolerance for risk. 
 Empowering staff to create and implement new ideas. 
 Looking for ways to make things work rather than excuses for why 

they can’t. 
 Modeling positive attitudes, collaboration, and customer focus for 

staff. 
 Learning from failure rather than laying blame. 
 Developing community relationships and using them to enhance One-

Stop services. 
 Working in a positive manner with employee unions. 
 Creating new partnerships to bring more resources to bear on 

customer services. 
 Promoting the good of the One-Stop and the customer over the good 

of the agency and the program. 

Good One-Stops enjoy strong board and operator leadership.  Exceptional 
One-Stops benefit from local elected official support as well.  Local elected 
officials can supply political clout to get things done, commit local tax dollars 
to sustaining the One-Stop, mediate turf issues, engage the One-Stop in 
economic development initiatives, link the center to community resources, 
and promote use of the system among constituents. 

Management 
Management of the One-Stop is closely related to leadership, although they 
are not the same thing.  There are great leaders who cannot manage, and 
great managers who cannot lead.  While the leader describes the destination 
and clears the path for getting there, good managers develop the map, find 
the best road, gauge the conditions, track progress, and keep looking for 
better paths. 

Managers at good One-Stops: 

 Invest in and use management tools such as swipe card systems, 
integrated databases, or paper reporting systems; make mid-course 
corrections based on analysis of the data available. 

111



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 25 

 Plan for and invest in staff development. Individual agencies usually 
provide some level of training for their staff, often focusing on developing 
knowledge or skills that are very specific to the task at hand or 
understanding of the rules of their funding source. In a good One-Stop, 
managers: 
• Assess staff skills and assign staff accordingly. They don’t assume 

that everyone has the right skills for the job. Business services 
team members need very different skills and aptitudes than case 
managers. Case managers need very different skills and aptitudes 
than trainers. Staff need to be assigned to functional teams and 
positions based on skills sets, not their content knowledge.  Many 
One-Stops are finding that they can’t reasonably use existing staff 
as business services team members because the right mind-set 
does not exist. They hire private sector people with pre-existing 
connections, experience, and aptitudes.  

• Place high caliber staff in business-critical functions. Many One-
Stops are finding that the greeter and resource room staffing 
functions are business-critical. The success of the venture depends 
on how well they assist and move customers. Short-changing these 
functions does not make good business sense. 

• Invest in staff development across all programs. A functional team 
comprised of staff from a variety of agencies cannot have some 
trained and others not due to individual partner policies and budgets. 
Thinking creatively, some hire a trainer using funds from one program 
(a fixed cost regardless of the number of trainees) and then allow staff 
from other programs to participate. In a One-Stop that needed 
Microsoft Office training for all staff, the local community college 
agreed to provide the training with their instructors as part of their fair 
share of center costs. Good One-Stops have individual staff 
development plans and ensure the plans are carried out. 

• Provide meaningful cross-training. In too many centers, cross-training 
consists of a one-time event where staff of each agency take turns 
talking about their rules, policies, eligibility requirements, and service 
menus. In the best One-Stops, cross-training is on-going. Methods of 
accomplishing cross-training include job shadowing, pretending to be 
an applicant and being guided through the process, and internships 
where a staff person might actually work in another program area for 
several days. 

• Promote continuous improvement. Good centers perform annual 
self-assessments, seek third party evaluations, challenge staff to 
find better ways of doing things, and use data to determine whether 
changes have made an impact. 

• Seek new partners that can expand delivery capacity. They may 
find they need a partnership with the literacy council, food pantry, 
Small Business Administration, library, transportation authority, 
temporary agencies, rehabilitation facilities, mental health clinics, 
Hispanic league, or other organizations that can address the One-
Stop’s unique customer base. 

112



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 26 

While the above describes a good One-Stop, exceptional One-Stops: 

 Have a neutral center manager that works for the One-Stop, rather 
than a single program.  Managing a program detracts from focusing 
on the needs of the One-Stop, can lead to conflict of interest, and can 
cost the manager credibility with partner staff. In some cases, the 
board may provide the funds for a neutral manager.  In other 
situations, the partners all contribute resources toward hiring a neutral 
person.  The partners determine the job description, interview 
prospects, and make the hiring decision.  In one model, the neutral 
manager works for the One-Stop’s management team and carries out 
duties at their direction.  In another model, the hired manager is 
expected to establish the direction and provide the leadership needed 
to advance the One-Stop. 

 Recruit partners based on the value they add, rather than because 
they are mandated.  Not every partner belongs in the One-Stop.  It 
may actually be preferable to have a partner accessible only through 
technology – if its physical presence would affect the image of the 
center, reintroduce lines or waiting chairs, or negatively impact 
existing partnerships among staff.  If a partner is not willing to share in 
the vision and is not committed to the success of the One-Stop, it has 
no business being there until further development takes place to align 
its goals with the center’s. 

 Utilize technology to maximize effective service delivery.  In one 
region, the TANF provider was a desirable partner, but unable to 
physically collocate in the center.  Webcams have been planned at both 
the One-Stop and the TANF site.  Customers will be able to meet with 
TANF workers in real time without having to travel to another site. 

Business Planning 
The best One-Stops manage using a business plan to define what work needs 
to be accomplished, how it should be done, and who is responsible.  The 
business plan is a comprehensive tool that can be used to push thinking about 
One-Stops as joint ventures and not merely agency collocations into common 
facilities.  The business plan reinforces the role of the One-Stop within an 
overall regional workforce development plan.  Good One-Stops review and 
update their business plan on a regular basis.   Common elements of a 
business plan include: 

 Defining the Business 
 Products and Services 
 Marketing Plan 
 Management and Organizational Structure 

113



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 27 

 Operational Plan 
 Measuring Success 
 Financial Plan 
 Continuous Improvement Plan 

A survey of One-Stop operators around the country who have been required 
to develop business plans found that most discovered it to be a useful tool for 
everyday management.  Their comments included: 

  “The business plan should be your operational guide to management 
structure, service flow, and measured outcomes. The plan should 
resolve any disputes over agency responsibilities and service 
structure.” 

 “The plan is the reference book for doing business throughout the 
year.  The plan is looked at monthly by the One-Stop operator 
consortium to see if the goals established are being met.  Also, to see if 
the partners are following through on their individual commitments 
for system support.” 

 “It is a good reference point to measure where we have come from and 
a guide of where we plan to head.  The mission and vision process add 
value to our operation and bring together a focus.” 

 “We refer to it on a regular basis to keep our direction.  We share it 
with staff and new partners.” 

Exceptional One-Stops include financial strategies in their business plan that 
go beyond cost sharing among the partners to pay for existing costs. The 
financial plan outlines how the center will secure funds to sustain and grow 
services to meet community needs.  Revenue generation approaches may 
include securing new partners, developing proposals to obtain grants, and 
fee-for-service strategies. 

Measurement 
Measurement is key to good management.  However, the Benchmarking 
study found that none of the One-Stops examined had yet implemented 
center-wide or system measures that were meaningful beyond some basic 
customer satisfaction measures.   The reason was not for lack of will, but for 
lack of data tools and agreement as to what constitutes meaningful measures 
on a center-wide level. 
There is widespread interest in center-wide performance measures, 
particularly among private sector board members, but such measures have 
been difficult to produce.  A General Accounting Office (GAO) report dated 
February, 2002 entitled “Improvements Needed in Performance Measures to 
Provide a More Accurate Picture of WIA’s Effectiveness” noted that “no 

114



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 28 

measures exist to assess how well the overall One-Stop systems are working.”  
The GAO observed that performance measures for different programs cannot 
be combined to obtain an overall view due to differences in definitions, and 
that it is difficult to even get an unduplicated count of job seekers using the 
One-Stops.  GAO reiterated this finding in their June, 2003 report, “One-Stop 
Centers Implemented Strategies to Strengthen Services and Partnerships, but 
More Research and Information Sharing is Needed,” when they commented 
“… no system-wide data exists by which to judge the success of various One-
Stop approaches…  There are no overall One-Stop performance measures.” 

Several states have struggled with One-Stop measurement, but very few have 
made any substantial progress.  Even those that have implemented center-
wide measures do not include every one of the mandated partner programs 
in the database.    

Many progressive boards have moved to a balanced scorecard approach that 
includes “soft” indicators of success in addition to number counts and client 
outcomes.  The scorecard indicators are linked to the board’s strategic 
objectives for the region and its system.  An example of a balanced scorecard 
from Lake County, Illinois follows: 

 

Indicators that the One-Stop is Meeting 
the Economic needs of the COMMUNITY: 

Indicators that the One-Stop is satisfying 
CUSTOMERS: 

♦ Fill rate of non-managerial job openings 
for new employer customers in three key 
industry sectors: health, manufacturing, 
technology.   

♦ Percent of target youth who have career 
plans for jobs in the three target 
industries. 

♦ Number and percent of job seekers 
enrolled in training through any partner 
resource that prepares them for 
occupations in the target industries. 

♦ Satisfaction of employers contacted by 
business teams in the three key sectors: 
• Satisfaction with single point of contact 
• Satisfaction with ease and simplicity of 

access 
• Satisfaction with ability to meet identified 

needs 
• Satisfaction with staff understanding of 

business needs  
• Satisfaction with referrals to other 

sources 
• Would they use the Job Center again 
• Were they made aware of Job Center 

services at time of initial contact 
♦ Satisfaction of the emerging workforce for 

youth in the target group: 
• Satisfaction with career planning 

assistance 
• Satisfaction with their case manager 

relationship 

115



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 29 

Indicators that the One-Stop is Meeting 
the Economic needs of the COMMUNITY: 

Indicators that the One-Stop is satisfying 
CUSTOMERS: 

• Satisfaction with networking 
opportunities 

• Satisfaction with the training they 
receive beyond a high school diploma or 
GED. 

♦ Satisfaction of job seekers who are enrolled 
in training for occupations in the key sectors 

♦ Annual job seeker focus group at each One-
Stop 

Indicators that the One-Stop is 
LEARNING AND GROWING: 

Indicators that the One-Stop is improving 
its internal BUSINESS PROCESSES and 
becoming more EFFICIENT: 

♦ Staff satisfaction 
♦ Annual center-wide meeting 
♦ Non-duplicated count of staff who 

participated in training of any kind and 
the number of staff certifications awarded 

♦ Design and implementation of a center-
specific certified One-Stop worker 
designation. 

 

♦ Development of key service offerings 
through a joint business plan among the 
partners that identifies how, when, and what 
services will be developed to satisfy the 
needs of the target employers.  The plan will 
result in: 
• 72 initial employer presentations. 
• Of the 72, twenty-four employers will 

receive follow-up. 
 
• Of those 24, twelve employers that had 

not used the One-Stop before will utilize 
a Job Center service. 

♦ Bring in at least one new non-mandatory 
partner that fits a perceived gap in services. 

The workforce board for Michigan Works! Centers in Jackson, Lenawee, and 
Hillsdale Counties identified measures for employer services, job seeker 
services, and community awareness: 

 Employer Services 
♦ Employer satisfaction 
♦ Employer usage 
♦ Repeat Employer usage 

 Job Seeker Services 
♦ Customer Satisfaction 1 (collected at the time services are rendered) 
♦ Customer Satisfaction 2 (conducted three months following receipt 

of services) 

116



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 30 

♦ Average wage and benefits at placement (disaggregated by 
program and degree) 

♦ Job Seeker Usage 1 (number of first-time job seekers using the One-
Stop compared to previous year) 

♦ Job Seeker Usage 2 (number of first-time job seekers categorized by 
program) 

 Community Awareness 
♦ Community awareness of One-Stop services (random sample 

survey) 

Philadelphia’s One-Stop measures include: 

Outcomes for Employer  Customers 

♦ Employer satisfaction 
♦ Repeat usage rate 
♦ Market share 

Outcomes for Individual Customers 

♦ Entered employer rate 
♦ Individual customer satisfaction 
♦ Increased earnings 
♦ Training-related placements 
♦ Market share 

Financial Viability 

♦ Diverse core funding 
♦ External fundraising 
♦ Fee-for-service activities 
♦ Cost per customer 

Internal Controls 

♦ Material audit findings 
♦ Spending variation 
♦ Customer/staff ratio 
♦ Staff training/development 

Marketing 
ood One-Stops have a clear brand identity that the public knows and 
associates with quality.  The brand name is particularly important when it 

can only be used by One-Stops that the board determines have met defined 
standards of excellence.  When the name becomes meaningful, it also becomes 
desirable, and there is more motivation for partners to want to be part of the 
venture.  Useful brand names are non-bureaucratic, short and convey what the 
center does.  Examples are Career Link, Job Link, Work Source, WorkOne, and 
Michigan Works!  Changing names when a One-Stop becomes a high 
performance, comprehensive center conveys to the public that this is no longer the 
unemployment office.  To be of value, the brand name needs to be protected by a 
style guide in terms of color, font, usage, placement, and so forth in addition to 
being protected by its association with a quality operation.  Investments have to be 
made in marketing the brand identity so the public becomes familiar with it.  
Memoranda of Understanding with partners should spell out how and when 
partners are expected to operate under the center brand, rather than their own. 

G

117



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 31 

In one region, the operator offers “logo wear” clothing to staff. The logo wear not only 
markets the name, but allows customers to distinguish the staff from other customers 
and ensures a professional appearance. 

One state forbids the use of any name other than the One-Stop brand name on the 
building. In another, the partner agency names are permitted along with the brand, 
but they have to be smaller than the One-Stop name. 

Some areas use marketing give-aways such as pens, mousepads, or coasters. 

Protocols are needed for how staff answer phones in the One-Stop so that the brand 
name is always first. 

One-Stop staff might have two business cards:  one with the center’s brand name for 
working with employers or “universal” job seekers, and another with their own agency 
name when working with enrolled participants or when working out of another office. 

 

An exceptional One-Stop will not only develop, protect, and market a brand 
name for generic marketing to the general public, but will also develop 
marketing materials that are geared toward specific service targets.   There 
may be marketing strategies developed specific to employers in the health 
care industry; there may be strategies that target employers who are 
downsizing.   Marketing to job seekers will be different depending on 
whether the One-Stop is trying to attract people who are working, but at low 
wages, or trying to attract a particular ethnic group. 

118



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 32 

III. Critical Success Factors and Indicators 
(Summary)   

ll eleven of the critical success factors are central to success, regardless of 
state or local policy context.  The specific indicators, however, may vary 

among environments.    Indicators shown in italics are those that are basic 
and essential, and applicable to most or all One-Stops.  Other indicators are 
“supplemental;” they are good to have, but not necessarily central to success. 

Critical Success Factors for Employers 

Critical Success Factor 1: Satisfy Employerss 

Core Indicators 

 Employer satisfaction is measured at the center level, not the program 
level. 

 Service design and delivery strategies are developed in conjunction 
with employers.  

Supplemental Indicators 

 Customer behavior (e.g., repeat usage) is tracked as an indicator of 
satisfaction.   

 Employer satisfaction is measured for both processes (services) and 
outcomes. 

 Employer satisfaction data is disaggregated by size and/or industry 
type. 

Critical Success Factor 2: Manage Employer Servicesi 

Core Indicators 

 Employer services are a clear priority in a One-Stop, with dedicated 
staff time and resources supporting them.    

 Employer services are managed as a single function using account 
representatives or similar approach.  

 Employer services staff are focused on and knowledgeable about 
industries and employers important to the local economy. 

 One-on-one relationships with employers are developed and nurtured.  

A

119



Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 33 

Supplemental Indicators 

Niche market(s) served by One-Stop centers are
identified/maintained.
Data reflecting contacts, delivery of employer services, and outcomes
is tracked, shared, and used to improve services and results.

Critical Success Factor 3: Deliver Quality Services to Employerss 

Core Indicators 

Services are designed around customers’ requirements, rather than
generic in nature.
A “never say no” attitude is prevalent among employer services staff
(i.e., the staff find ways to address an employer’s needs either by
developing new services or finding another partner or provider in the
community who can address the needs).
Other public intermediaries are perceived by the One-Stop as partners,
not competitors.
A sense of urgency and commitment to work in “real-time” is evident.

Supplemental Indicators 

Fee-for-service activities that meet specific employer needs are offered
when appropriate for the local market and environment within which
the One-Stop operates.

Critical Success Factors for Job Seekers 

Critical Success Factor 4: Satisfy Job Seekerss 

Core Indicators 

Customer satisfaction is measured at the center level, not the program
level.
Service design and delivery strategies are developed in consultation
with job seekers.

Supplemental Indicators 

Customer satisfaction is measured for both processes (services) and
outcomes.
Variations in levels of satisfaction among different customer groups
are tracked, examined, and acted upon.

120



Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 34 

The center’s customer satisfaction level is compared with that of other
public and private providers.

Critical Success Factor 5: Manage Job Seeker Servicess 

Core Indicators 

The center manages job seeker services as an integrated function or
functions.
The One-Stop center appears inviting, organized, and professional.
Customer flow is efficient, enabling customers to get their needs met
quickly.
Peak loads are well-managed (strategies are in place).
There are few physical barriers.
Data reflecting customer interactions, delivery of services, and
outcomes is tracked, shared, and used to improve services and results.

Critical Success Factor 6: Deliver Quality Services to Job Seekerss 

Core Indicators 

The resource room is the focal point for services and activity.
Customers can access a comprehensive menu of training and
education services and information about, and referral to, sources of
related assistance (e.g., housing, transportation).

Critical Success Factors in One-Stop Design and 
Management 

Critical Success Factor 7:  Provide Leadershipi 

Core Indicators 

The workforce investment board exhibits strong leadership.
The One-Stop operator exhibits strong leadership.

Supplemental Indicators 

Local elected officials demonstrate support of the One-Stop system.

121



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 35 

Critical Success Factor 8: Manage the Center and Staffi 

Core Indicators 

 Front line staff and partners are involved in visioning and planning 
with the One-Stop manager. 

 Regular staff development occurs.   
 Investments are made in management tools. 
 Continuous quality improvement processes are in place. 
 Partnerships enhance services and delivery capacity, enabling the One-

Stop to better meet customer needs. 

Supplemental Indicators 

 The center manager is neutral; i.e., he/she works for the One-Stop, 
rather than for a single program. 

 Partners are recruited based on the value they add, or developed to 
maximize their effectiveness. 

 Technology is used effectively to deliver and manage services.   

Critical Success Factor 9:  Develop a Business Plani 
Core Indicators 

 A center-wide business plan guides day-to-day operations and 
decision-making. 

 The business plan is reviewed and updated regularly. 

Supplemental Indicators 

 Financial strategies are developed for sustaining and growing services 
to meet community needs. 

Critical Success Factor 10:  Measure Progress and Outcomesi 
Core Indicators 

 Center-wide measures are used in center and program management, 
supported by integrated information systems to which multiple 
program partners have access. 

Supplemental Indicators 

 The center benchmarks its performance against that of other One-Stops 
and providers. 

122



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 36 

Critical Success Factor 11: Market the One-Stopi  
Core Indicators 

 Clear brand identity exists or is under development. 

Supplemental Indicators 

 The One-Stop identifies and strategically pursues service niches.

123



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 37 

IV. Policymakers’ Guide to Using Critical Success 
Factors in Improving One-Stops 

Introduction 
onsiderable materials have been produced over the years that address 
One-Stop quality.  There have been guidebooks, self-assessments, case 

studies, survey results, and, of course, the Benchmarking report.  This 
guidebook differs from the others in that: 

 It is based on the Critical Success Factors identified in the 
Benchmarking study, and revised through analysis of other state and 
local quality criteria. 

 It presents options and considerations for policymakers as they 
develop their own criteria, rather than assuming that one size fits all. 

While the primary purpose of the guide is to assist state and local boards in 
the improvement of One-Stop centers and systems, a secondary purpose is to 
provide guidance for developing criteria that can be used in certification or 
chartering of centers.  As used in the workforce development industry, a 
charter is an agreement between the WIB and One-Stop operator and 
affiliated sites that: 

 Outlines roles and responsibilities of each party. 
 Transfers certain privileges or authorities to the operator or affiliate as 

a result of meeting quality criteria outlined by the board. 
The charter agreement is similar to the board/operator agreement, except 
that it goes a step further and requires that specified criteria for excellence be 
met.  Additionally, the process of chartering is just as important in quality 
management as the charter itself.  The process: 

 Involves the WIB, the partners, and the community in establishing 
expectations of quality and clearly defines those expectations in the 
form of criteria. 

 Frames a quality dialogue between the WIB and partner/affiliate that 
goes beyond a simple reporting of numbers and standards.  

 Opens the door for new providers and partnerships to enter the 
delivery system since the focus is on meeting criteria rather than on 
who the providers are. 

 Requires applicants to develop business plans that outline their 
business objectives, business practices, and operational plans. 

Chartering has been used in the One-Stop career center environment for 
many years, although states and boards that use it are still in the minority.   A 

C

124



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 38 

few states have mandated that workforce investment boards charter the One-
Stops in their respective areas, notably North Carolina, Pennsylvania, and 
Indiana. Other boards have independently taken it upon themselves to 
charter One-Stops in order to improve the quality of operations and clearly 
communicate their expectations.   

How This Guide is Organized 
he guide provides policy considerations for core indicators; i.e., those 
indicators of success that are important in any context.  The supplemental 

indicators identified in the previous section are those indicators that are of a 
higher level, and which may be contextual depending on local conditions.  
Ordinarily, you would not expect any supplemental indicators in a One-Stop 
that had not yet demonstrated core indicators. 

The guide sets forth: 

 The 11 critical success factors for One-Stops; e.g., satisfy employers. 
 For each of the 11 success factors, the core indicators of that factor; e.g., 

employer satisfaction is measured at the center level, not the program 
level. 

 For each core indicator, the kinds of questions policymakers need to 
consider when establishing their specific quality criteria; e.g., what is 
meant by center-level?     

 A suggestion of what an excellent center may look like; e.g., employer 
satisfaction is assessed in multiple ways, which may include surveys, 
focus groups, and one-on-one interviews.    

If a state or local board has already established quality criteria, it may find 
that existing criteria fit very well within these success factors and no 
additional action is needed.  Or, the board may choose to expand or 
supplement existing criteria using the recommendations here.  The matrix 
included on the www.skilledwork.org website of national organization, state, 
and locally developed criteria compared to the critical success factors clearly 
shows the alignment of the various definitions of success around the country, 
and how other boards have built detail around universal indicators. 

If a state or local board has not yet defined quality criteria, this tool will help 
guide you through the process.   Ideally, state and local boards should 
consider these issues together, with the state providing overall vision and 
direction and removal of state legislative and policy barriers, and the local 
boards designing specific, locally-relevant criteria within the broad policy 
direction provided by the state. 

T

125



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 39 

Critical Success Factors and Core Indicators 

Critical Success Factor 1: Satisfy Employersn 

CORE INDICATOR 1.  EMPLOYER SATISFACTION IS MEASURED AT THE CENTER 
LEVEL, NOT THE PROGRAM LEVEL. 

Considerations for policymakers: 

1. What is meant by center-level?  Does it include any activity by any 
partners who participate at any time in the One-Stop, or only the 
activity of the programs that are on-site full time?  (For example, if Job 
Corps comes once a month to recruit youth, are the employers with 
whom they work outside of the One-Stop environment included in 
satisfaction measures?) 

2. Will satisfaction only address activity that happens in personal 
interactions, or does it include services like web-based interactions?  If 
web-based, are those services within the control of the One-Stop (e.g., 
many employers will only access the system through the internet to 
place a job order, but the job order system is designed and managed by 
the state, not the One-Stop). 

3. Will you include soft measures such as focus group results, or only 
hard measures, such as surveys?   What will those soft measures look 
like?   

4. What are the components of satisfaction that will be measured (e.g., 
response time, staff attitudes, staff knowledge, quality of referrals, 
speed of referrals, follow-up to referrals, quality of customized 
training, etc.).   How do those components relate to what employers 
have described as the satisfaction elements that are most important to 
them? 

5. How will you accommodate a variety of options for managing 
employer services?  For example, if employer services in a local area 
are contracted to an entity outside the One-Stop or centrally managed 
by the WIB, how does that impact quality assessment considerations 
for the One-Stop as it relates to satisfying employers? 

6. What are the points at which satisfaction will be measured?  Annually 
or more frequently?  At time of contact, within a certain number of 
days of service delivery, or at completion of services?  What constitutes 
completion of services?   

7. Will all employers’ satisfaction be measured?  A random sample?  
Only for employers in targeted industries? Only for employers who 
received specific services? 

126



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 40 

8. Who will conduct measurements of satisfaction?  How will they be 
financed?  Is the proposed measurement feasible and affordable, or do 
other methods need to be found? 

In an excellent center:  

 All mandatory partners use the same employer satisfaction tools, so 
results reflect the collective performance of the One-Stop rather than 
any individual program 

 Employer satisfaction is assessed in multiple ways, which may include 
surveys, focus groups, and one-on-one interviews. 

 A process is in place for regularly analyzing the results and acting on 
the analysis.  Partners are involved in the analysis and action 
decisions. 

CORE INDICATOR 2.  SERVICE DESIGN AND DELIVERY STRATEGIES ARE DEVELOPED IN 
CONSULTATION WITH EMPLOYERS. 

Considerations for policymakers: 

1. What is the expectation for consulting with employers?   Is contact 
with employers on the WIB enough, or does the One-Stop need more? 

2. Are multiple methods of consulting with employers expected?  For 
example, focus groups, one-on-one interviews, surveys, etc.  If so, how 
many employers and how often? 

3. Is there an expectation that consultation with employers includes those 
who do not currently use the One-Stop?   Does it include all 
employers, or just those most likely to use One-Stop services? 

4. How will you determine whether there is a link between what 
employers say they need and what the One-Stop offers?  What 
evidence are you looking for? 

5. If the WIB is the source of consultation with employers based on local 
decisions regarding management of employer services, how does that 
impact the certification criteria for One-Stops? 

In an excellent center:  

 The center’s menu of employer services is based on what employers 
say they need. 

 Services are delivered in ways that employers say works best for them. 
 The One-Stop actively seeks out employer input into design and 

delivery through multiple means, which may include focus groups, 
one-on-one interviewing, and surveys. 

127



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 41 

 Information gathered to measure employer satisfaction is used in 
design and delivery strategies. 

 Input is sought from employers in a variety of industries, from 
employers of a variety of sizes, and with a variety of types and levels 
of occupations. 

 Input is sought from employers who do not currently use the One-
Stop. 

Critical Success Factor 2: Manage Employer Servicess     

Core Indicator 1. Employer services are a clear priority in the center with 
dedicated staff time and resources supporting them.    

Considerations for policymakers: 

1. What exactly is an “employer service” so that dedicated staff know 
what falls within the umbrella of their dedicated time? 

2. What is dedicated staff time?  Does it have to be full time dedication, 
or can there be a larger number of people, each with a certain amount 
of dedicated hours? 

3. How much dedicated time and resources is enough?  Will it be 
determined based on a proportion of all center staff, or percentage of 
all number of hours worked by any partner in the center, or percentage 
of funds allocated to any partner who spends any time in the center?  

4. Do the dedicated staff have to be located in the One-Stop?  Do they 
have to be specific to the One-Stop, or can they work for multiple 
centers or operators (and thus not be full time for any one center)? 

In an excellent center: 

 There are business services staff whose primary responsibility is 
meeting the needs of business. 

 Funds are identified in the One-Stop budget to support business 
services, not only in terms of staff time, but also in postage, travel, 
database support, etc.  There is a rationale for the amount of time or 
staff that is dedicated to business services compared to job seeker 
services. 

 When resources are reduced, business services is not considered an 
expendable luxury.  If at all, business services’ budget is reduced only 
in proportion to reductions in job seeker services. 

128



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 42 

Core Indicator 2.  Employer services are managed as a single function using 
account representatives or a similar approach. 

Considerations for policymakers: 

1. What does it mean to be “managed as a single function?”  Is there one 
person designated as manager or team leader for the team?  What level 
of management authority does that person need to have to say it is 
managed as a single function? 

2. If one partner volunteers to provide all the employer services staff, the 
service will be managed as a single function, but only include staff 
from one partner.  Is that acceptable, as long as it is a single function? 

3. If other partners are required to participate on the team for it to be 
considered a quality team, what level of participation is expected?  
From how many partners?  What if they don’t have the resources to 
participate? 

4. If partners participate on a business services team while they are in the 
One-Stop, but also maintain employer service functions apart from the 
team back in their home office, is that acceptable?  If the operator 
cannot control what partners do back at their home offices, resulting in 
management as a ‘multi-function,’ will that have any impact on 
whether the One-Stop can get certified? 

5. For the approach to be considered a single function, do the team 
members have to use identical business cards and stationary? 

In an excellent center: 

 A business services team exists that is made up of dedicated staff from 
any partner that works with employers. 

 There is one manager or team leader who oversees the business 
services function, regardless of how many partner agencies participate 
on the team or in the One-Stop.  The manager can make assignments 
and deploy staff as needed to meet employers’ needs. The manager can 
expect staff to develop certain skills and can remove staff who do not 
have those skills from the team. 

 The functional team is organized using an account representative 
approach.  The team members have geographic and/or industry 
specialties, and they are the primary contact point for employers in 
that industry or geography. 

 

129



Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 43 

Core Indicator 3.  Employer services staff are focused on and knowledgeable 
about industries and employers important to the local economy. 

Considerations for policymakers: 

1. Whose responsibility is it to identify economy-critical industries and
employers?  If it is the WIB’s responsibility, how will that impact the
certification decision for the One-Stop if the WIB has not done its job?

2. What evidence will you look for that demonstrates that an analysis
substantiates the industries and employers selected for focus?

3. What do you expect staff to know and understand about specific
industries or specific employers?  How do you anticipate they will
collect data to add to that knowledge?

In an excellent center: 

Business services staff keep up-to-date on the economic trends that
affect their region and industries, including the broad picture, not just
their geographic or industry specialties.
Staff don’t scatter their efforts.  They pay the most attention to
employers in the industries that are most critical to maintaining and
growing the local economy.  This decision is based on labor market
data.
Staff work with economic developers to share information and
insights, and align industry targets.
Business services staff add to the One-Stop center’s general wealth of
knowledge by summarizing and sharing key issues they learn about
from data, reading, and personal contacts.

Core Indicator 4.  One-on-one relationships with employers are developed 
and nurtured. 

Considerations for policymakers: 

1. Does one-on-one imply one person assigned to one employer, or can
there be a team of two or more assigned to an employer that
collectively develop a relationship?

2. How should relationships be nurtured?  Is there an expectation for a
certain number of contacts with an employer in a given time period?
Can the contacts be by phone or e-mail?  How many, if any, have to be
in-person?

3. Is there a back-up plan for when the person who has built the
relationship with the employer is not available?

130



Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 44 

In an excellent center: 

Business services staff spend more time at employers’ places of work
than they do at the One-Stop.
Visits and relationships are maintained even when an employer has no
job openings.  There are other services the One-Stop can provide.
Employers know their account representative by name, and business
team members know their accounts by name.

Critical Success Factor 3: Deliver Quality Services to Employerss 

Core Indicator 1.  Services are designed around customers’ requirements, 
rather than generic in nature. 

Considerations for policymakers: 

1. What is the difference between a generic and a customized service?
2. How far can the One-Stop go in developing customized services before

it becomes cost prohibitive?
3. How are customer requirements defined?  Is there a format or

protocol?
See:  “Service design and delivery strategies are developed in consultation with employers.” 

In an excellent One-Stop: 

Core employer services are a starting point, not the end point, of
service design.
Staff use a prescribed format and protocol for eliciting information
from employers about their design requirements.
Staff have a process for turning design requirements into service
delivery mechanisms.

See: “Service design and delivery strategies are developed in consultation with employers.” 

Core Indicator 2.   A “never say no” attitude is prevalent among employer 
services staff (i.e., the staff find ways to address an employer’s needs either by 
developing new services or finding another partner or provider in the community 
who can address the needs). 

Considerations for policymakers: 

1. What would a “never say no” attitude look like in reality?  What
behavior would lead an employer to agree that the staff express this
attitude?

2. Are there any state or local policies among any of the partners that
could potentially impact this attitude being evident (e.g., prohibitions

131



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 45 

against staff bringing in a for-profit private sector partner from the 
community)?  Is it really a policy issue, or is it a staff interpretation 
issue?  If it is a real issue, how can the policy be changed? 

In an excellent One-Stop: 

 Staff see themselves in a broker role.  The idea is to meet employers’ 
needs, not to be the sole source of services. 

 Staff approach an employer believing they are there to meet the 
employer’s needs, not to “sell” their own services. 

 Even if a One-Stop provides a certain service – like job matching – staff 
will encourage an employer to use other, non-One-Stop services if 
another entity can meet the employer’s needs better than the One-Stop 
can.  For example, if staff know that their database of job seekers is 
unlikely to generate sufficient matches for an employer seeking a 
highly specialized set of skills, they may refer the employer to 
specialty job boards on the internet. 

Core Indicator 3.  Other public intermediaries are perceived by the One-Stop 
as partners, not competitors. 

Considerations for policymakers: 

1. Who are the other public intermediaries?   Which ones are appropriate 
for the One-Stop to partner with, considering the local priorities and 
customer base? (Other public intermediaries may include schools, 
public assistance offices, economic development entities, etc.). 

2. What level of partnership is possible?  How do other intermediaries 
perceive the One-Stop?  As a partner or a competitor?  If the One-Stop 
is perceived as a competitor, why is that so? 

3. Who should take responsibility for developing new partnerships in the 
community?  What are the roles of the board versus the One-Stop? 

In an excellent One-Stop: 

 The roles of the board and the One-Stop are clearly spelled out in a 
board/operator agreement. 

 Staff take time to identify, learn about, and develop personal 
relationships with other public intermediaries. 

 Staff not only develop partnerships between the One-Stop and other 
intermediaries, but also foster partnerships among the intermediaries 
themselves. 

132



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 46 

Core Indicator 4.  A sense of urgency and commitment to work in “real time” 
is evident. 

Considerations for policymakers: 

1. What would a sense of urgency and commitment look like in reality?  
What behavior would lead an employer to agree that the staff express 
this commitment? 

2. Are there any state or local policies among any of the partners that 
could potentially impact fast service (e.g., a requirement that un-
empowered staff run everything that is not generic through a 
hierarchy of decision making)?   Is it really a policy issue, or is it a staff 
interpretation issue?  If it is a real issue, how can the policy be 
changed? 

In an excellent One-Stop: 

 Staff are empowered to make decisions on the spot (within broad 
parameters) in order to meet a customer’s needs. 

 Staff don’t tell an employer in a hurry that his/her job order has to be 
held for 48 hours before it gets openly posted. 

 Staff will “go the extra mile” to satisfy their customers.  This may 
include working on a weekend or in the evening to get the job done. 

 Staff have the tools they need while in an employer’s place of business 
to fulfill the sense of urgency (e.g., cell phones, laptops loaded with 
appropriate tools, information at their fingertips). 

Critical Success Factor 4: Satisfy Job Seekerss 

Core Indicator 1.  Customer satisfaction is measured at the One-Stop level, 
not the program level. 

Considerations for policymakers: 

1. What is meant by “center-level?”  Does it include any activity by any 
partners who participate at any time in the One-Stop, or only the 
activity of the programs that are on-site full time?  (For example, if 
vocational rehabilitation comes once a week to serve individuals with 
disabilities, are the participants with whom they work outside of the 
One-Stop environment included in satisfaction measures?) 

2. Will satisfaction only address activity that happens in personal 
interactions, or does it include services like web-based interactions?  If 
web-based, are those services within the control of the One-Stop (e.g., 
many job seekers will only access the system through the internet, but 

133



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 47 

the job matching system is designed and managed by the state, not the 
One-Stop). 

3. Will you include soft measures such as focus group results, or only 
hard measures, such as surveys?   What will those soft measures look 
like?   

4. What are the components of satisfaction that will be measured (e.g., 
staff attitudes, staff knowledge, accuracy of information provided 
about the job, speed of service in the One-Stop, quality of resource 
room materials, etc)?   How do those components relate to what job 
seekers have described as the satisfaction elements that are most 
important to them? 

5. How will you accommodate a variety of options for managing job 
seeker services?  For example, if intensive services in a local area are 
contracted to an entity outside the One-Stop, how does that impact 
quality assessment considerations for the One-Stop as it relates to 
satisfying job seekers? 

6. What are the points at which satisfaction will be measured?  Annually 
or more frequently?  At time of contact, within a certain number of 
days of service delivery, or at completion of services?  What constitutes 
completion of services?   

7. Will all job seekers’ satisfaction be measured?  A random sample?  
Only for job seekers s in targeted demographic groups? Only for job 
seekers who received specific services, such as a resume workshop? 

8. Who will conduct measurements of satisfaction?  How will it be 
financed?  Is the proposed measurement feasible and affordable, or do 
other methods need to be found? 

In an excellent One-Stop:  

 All mandatory partners use the same job seeker satisfaction tools, so 
results reflect the collective performance of the One-Stop, rather than 
any individual program.  The common process may only be for a 
certain set of services, such as core services, while partners continue to 
use their own tools for individuals who enroll in their programs for 
more intensive services. 

 Job seeker satisfaction is assessed in multiple ways, which may include 
surveys, focus groups, and one-on-one interviews. 

 A process is in place for regularly analyzing the results and acting on 
the analysis.  Partners are involved in the analysis and action 
decisions. 

134



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 48 

Core Indicator 2. Service design and delivery strategies are developed in 
consultation with job seekers.  

Considerations for policymakers: 

1. What is the expectation for consulting with job seekers?    
2. Are multiple methods of consulting with job seekers expected?  For 

example, focus groups, one-on-one interviews, surveys, etc.?  If so, 
how many job seekers and how often? 

3. Is there an expectation that consultation with job seekers includes 
those who do not currently use the One-Stop?   Does it include all job 
seekers, or just those most likely to use One-Stop services? 

4. How will you determine whether there is a link between what job 
seekers say they need and what the One-Stop offers?  What evidence 
are you looking for? 

In an excellent One-Stop:  

 The One-Stop’s menu of job seeker services is based on what job 
seekers say they need. 

 Services are delivered in ways that job seekers say works best for them, 
and there may be a variety of delivery methods to satisfy different 
delivery preferences. 

 The One-Stop actively seeks out job seeker input into design and 
delivery through multiple means, which may include focus groups, 
one-on-one interviewing, and surveys. 

 Information gathered to measure job seeker satisfaction is used in 
design and delivery strategies. 

 Input is sought from job seekers in a variety of ethnic groups, 
employment status, educational backgrounds, age levels, and 
occupational backgrounds. 

 Input is sought from job seekers who do not currently use the One-
Stop. 

Critical Success Factor 5: Manage Job Seeker Servicess 

Core Indicator 1.  The One-Stop manages job seeker services as an 
integrated function or functions. 

Considerations for policymakers: 

1. What are the identifiable functions in serving job seekers that must be 
managed (e.g., self-service, intake, assessment, case management, 

135



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 49 

training, follow-up)?   Should each function be managed 
independently, or managed collectively as “job seeker services?” 

2. Who actually manages the function?  Can the function manager 
manage across multiple program staff?  If not, why not?  Are there 
state or local policies that prohibit functional management, or is it a 
matter of staff perception?  If the issue is real, what can be done to 
change the policy? 

3. How should the functional manager be accountable for performance?  
How do you determine whether an individual function is managed 
well? 

In an excellent One-Stop:  

 Key functions have been identified and there are “process champions” 
or managers for business critical functions. 

 Each function is managed as a whole for the One-Stop.  While a 
manager may have to manage across the rules of various programs, 
the overall function is still considered a single process. 

 The role of the functional manager has been defined.  The functional 
manager provides day-to-day supervision of all staff who perform the 
function, even though formal supervision (hiring, firing, appraisal) 
may be done by an agency supervisor of record.  The formal 
supervisor confers with the functional manager in writing 
performance appraisals. 

Core Indicator 2. The One-Stop appears inviting, organized, and professional. 

Considerations for policymakers:  

1. What should be the standards for an inviting and professional 
appearance?  What are the implications for internal signage, furniture, 
flooring, wall coverings, wall hangings, lighting, layout, visibility of 
staff personal items, and staff dress code?  How will you define these 
standards in a way that staff can translate into action? 

2. Are there individual partner agency policies that may conflict with 
raising One-Stop standards?  If so, how can those policies be changed? 

3. Is there an expectation for a facility manager or facility committee?  
Who is accountable for problems with the appearance of the One-Stop? 

4. If funding is required to upgrade the One-Stop to meet professional 
standards, where will the funding come from?  What should be the 
responsibility of each partner in enhancing the appearance of the One-
Stop? 

136



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 50 

5. Is the building itself an issue?  Is the site not amenable to upgrading?  
If so, what will be required to identify a better facility and gain support 
and funding for the move?  What are the “specs” needed for the new 
facility?  How will the location for the new facility be determined in a 
customer-focused way? 

In an excellent One-Stop: 

 The appearance compares favorably with other public venues, such as 
libraries and with private sector sites.   Customers cannot come in and 
immediately identify the center as a “government unemployment 
office.”   The appearance of the One-Stop is such that any staff or board 
member would be happy to refer one of his or her family members. 

 The space appears clean and open as customers gaze across it. 
 A facility team comprised of staff from all partners sets agreed upon 

standards that everyone buys into.  The team develops its own internal 
policing so that managers don’t have to.  

 Staff are distinguishable from the customers by name tags.  The facility 
team may also set standards for staff attire and rules of behavior, 
which may include: no cell phones while in the building; no eating in 
public view; no chewing gum while talking to customers; all customers 
greeted by name, if known. 

Core Indicator 3.  Customer flow is efficient, enabling customers to get their 
needs met quickly:  peak loads are well managed and there are few physical 
barriers. 

Considerations for policymakers: 

1. How accessible is the facility?  Is the One-Stop not just ADA 
compliant, but also ADA friendly?  What standards should be set 
beyond the minimum required for accessibility and user-friendliness 
for all customers? 

2. What should be the expectations for “wait times?”  How might 
customers be occupied through a variety of options to minimize or 
eliminate wait times? 

3. Are contingency plans in place for when customer numbers peak?  
What should be the trigger points for setting a contingency plan in 
place?   

4. Where are the potential bottlenecks? (e.g., only one person has the 
authority to approve training plans and a large local lay-off will cause 
many people to be seeking training in a short time period).   How can 

137



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 51 

bottlenecks be eliminated?  What expectations might be described for 
eliminating bottlenecks?   

5. How can expectations be set for enabling customers to get their needs 
met quickly without making a perverse incentive to get customers out 
the door before all their needs have been addressed?  Are there state or 
local policies or measurements that motivate staff to short-change 
customers (e.g., counseling sessions can’t last longer than 10 minutes, 
or customers may use the computer for only 20 minutes, etc.).   If such 
policies exist and they conflict with good customer service, how can 
those policies be changed? 

In an excellent One-Stop: 

 Customers can flow freely through public areas without having to get 
permission from staff people to utilize various self-service options. 

 Contingency plans are in place, not only for when customer loads 
peak, but also for when various staff are sick or on vacation. 

 There is no staff person who is the single repository of knowledge for a 
given program or service; everyone has a “back up.” 

 Process mapping has been used to identify potential bottlenecks, and 
decision-making processes are changed to reduce the problem. 

 Customers do not have any down time.  If they have to wait for an 
appointment or for a workshop to start, there is always something for 
them to do and someone to guide them in doing it.  Any necessary 
wait times are tracked for frequency and length; staff try options to 
reduce wait times and measure again to see if their strategies have 
been effective. 

 Efficiency is not equated with hurrying customers. 

Core Indicator 4.  Data reflecting customer interactions, delivery of services, 
and outcomes is tracked, shared, and used to improve services and results. 

Considerations for policymakers: 

1. What kind of data systems are in place that can track customers across 
all programs? Can center-wide data be generated so that it can be 
managed? 

2. What is the minimal data that should be tracked to enable the One-
Stop to manage against objectives? If there is no unified tracking 
system, are there state or local policies among the partners that would 
prohibit implementing such a system?  How can those policies be 
changed? 

138



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 52 

3. What should be the expectation for review and action on the data?  
What continuous improvement strategies and plans should be 
evident? 

In an excellent One-Stop: 

 Unduplicated counts of total center customers are possible, as well as 
unduplicated counts of which services customers use and how often 
they use them. 

 Outcomes are compared to service strategies.  For example, are people 
who receive orientations more likely to return?  Are people who 
participate in interviewing workshops more likely to get a job than 
those who don’t? 

 A management team convenes at regular intervals to review the data 
and discuss the implications for service delivery.   Changes in the 
service mix or service sequence are made and results are measured 
again.    

 Meeting performance standards is never good enough.  Staff 
continually use data to improve over prior performance 

Critical Success Factor 6: Deliver Quality Services to Job Seekerss 

Core Indicator 1. The resource room is the focal point for services and 
activity. 

Considerations for policymakers: 

1. Are there state minimums for resource room content, staffing, and 
activity?  To what degree can a local WIB “raise the bar” by adding to 
the state minimums?   

2. Does the facility lend itself to a prominent, up-front, easy-to-access 
resource room where all self-serve resources are gathered so that 
customers can readily find and access all services?  If not, are there 
barriers to changing the facility?  If so, what steps need to be taken to 
find a new facility?  What “specs” should there be for the resource 
room in the ideal facility? 

3. What should be the expectations for obtaining customer input on 
resource room content, services, and layout? 

4. Is there value to using a mystery shopper to explore the resource room 
(and the rest of the One-Stop!) to provide feedback on its utility and 
accessibility? 

139



Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 53 

In an excellent One-Stop:  

The resource room is the heart of the One-Stop.  It is the first thing the
customer sees when he/she walks in the door, and the customer is
repeatedly reintroduced to it during his/her service period.
The customer can access all “self serve” resources in a single area,
without having to roam through the center.
All services and materials of the resource room are clearly marked and
easy to use.  Resources are available in multiple media, in more than
one language, and in ways accessible to individuals with disabilities.
Arrangements are made with local schools to take students on field
trips to the resource room so they learn to view the One-Stop as a
resource for their career planning.
The resource room is staffed at all times with sufficient personnel to
provide attention as needed to customers.  Contingency plans are in
place to shift staff to the resource room when usage is heavy.
Resource room staff are highly knowledgeable of all the materials in
the room.

Core Indicator 2. Customers can access a comprehensive menu of training 
and education services and information about, and referral to, sources of 
related assistance (e.g., housing, transportation). 

Considerations for policymakers: 

1. What are the minimums for a “comprehensive menu?”  What public
and private training and education services should be included that
are not part of the One-Stop system?

2. How should customers be able to view or access the menu?  Should it
exist in multiple formats?  What format or formats should be used?

3. Should there be minimum expectations for a referral mechanism to
sources of assistance both in and out of the One-Stop?  What are the
minimums?

4. Should there be minimum expectations for resource mapping to
identify community resources?

5. What level of knowledge should staff have about the comprehensive
menu?  Which staff need that knowledge, and how can it be attained?

In an excellent One-Stop: 

Resource mapping has been done to identify education, training, and
supportive service resources in the region, and surrounding regions, in

140



Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 54 

recognition of the fact that people live and work without regard to 
artificial workforce area boundaries. 
The resource inventory is organized at a minimum by county, but
wherever possible by city or town.
Geographic mapping has been done so both customers and staff can
visualize at a glance where certain resources are physically located in
relationship to the One-Stop, or in relationship to where they live.
Staff compare the physical location of resources to the density of where
customers live, work, or conduct business to determine if there are
gaps or barriers in accessibility.   Physical locations are also plotted
along public transportation routes.
Resource inventories are available on an interactive website that allows
customers and staff to search for a resource by type and location.
Resource inventories include access information; i.e., the process and
requirements for eligibility
Resources available within the One-Stop itself are prominently posted
as a menu, perhaps as a menu board.  The resources are not identified
by funding stream or agency name, but by what the service actually is
in a way that customers would recognize and find meaningful.
Formal referral mechanisms are in place both internally and externally
to ensure customers do not “fall through the cracks” in moving from
one resource to another.

Critical Success Factor 7: Provide Leadershipp 

Core Indicator 1.  The workforce investment board exhibits strong 
leadership. 

Considerations for policymakers: 

1. What should be the expectations for the WIB to demonstrate
leadership with regards to the One-Stop?  What would be evidence of
that leadership?

2. What should be the expectations for the WIB to demonstrate
leadership in working with local elected officials, particularly with
regards to establishing criteria and certifying One-Stop centers?

3. How should the board model “high quality” itself?  What are the
characteristics of a high quality board?

4. How does the board evidence leadership without crossing over into
operations?

141



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 55 

5. How do you clearly separate the roles of the WIB and the One-Stop 
operator and partners?  What should be the minimum content of a 
board/operator agreement? 

6. Will the board certify or charter One-Stops for excellence?  If so, how 
will the criteria be established?  What are the expectations for 
including the partners in setting the criteria?  How will the actual 
application and review processes be handled?  Will satellite or branch 
offices also be certified or chartered?  How will their service 
minimums differ from that of the comprehensive One-Stop? 

7. What is the board’s authority for corrective action – up to and 
including closure – for One-Stops that do not meet or maintain quality 
expectations?  Is there a date by which all centers must be certified or 
chartered? 

8. How will high quality One-Stops be designated as such to the public?  
Through a brand name?  Through a “star” system?  A certificate on 
the wall?  How will it be marketed? 

9. What are the state and local board roles for overseeing the quality of 
the One-Stop?  How are those roles defined? 

10. What center-wide and/or system-wide performance measures will be 
established?  How will those measures be linked to the board’s 
strategic goals for the region?  What will be the incentives for 
exceeding expected performance?  Will there be any sanctions for 
poor performance?  How will incentives and sanctions apply across 
the center and all partners? 

11. Are there any state policies that limit the authority or oversight ability 
of the WIB to promote high quality?  If so, how can those barriers be 
removed, or perceived barriers overcome? 

12. How should the state address the issue of boards that fail to attain 
high quality themselves?  How can the state and local boards work 
collaboratively to define high quality boards and outline the 
applicable incentives and sanctions? 

In an excellent One-Stop, the workforce investment board:  

 Uses a collaborative approach to creating a vision for the system to 
inspire and to achieve buy-in. 

 Collects and interprets workforce intelligence data that provides 
strategic direction and focus for the partners. 

 Charters or certifies sites using a quality-based framework such as 
Baldrige, and doesn’t allow sites to operate or use the “brand name” if 
they cannot achieve quality operations. 

142



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 56 

 Requires One-Stop centers to develop business plans that steer 
partners toward thinking about their markets, operational 
requirements, and management issues for the center as a whole rather 
than just their individual agencies and programs. 

 Creates a balanced dashboard of center-wide performance measures 
that are linked to the board’s strategic direction. 

 Maintains an on-going quality dialogue with the operator that keeps 
the board’s vision and expectations in the forefront.  Good boards have 
a committee and/or staff liaison in regular contact with the operator. 

 Selects an operator with leadership ability and entrepreneurial 
qualities.  If the current operator entity or consortium cannot provide 
the level of leadership required, the board will either define a new 
consortium or competitively procure the leadership it needs. 

 Creates a board/operator agreement that includes obligations on both 
sides and spells out the roles each needs the other to play 

 Fosters a Memorandum of Understanding process that focuses on 
customers and their needs, rather than on agencies and money. 

Core Indicator 2. The One-Stop operator exhibits strong leadership. 

Considerations for policymakers: 

1. What are the characteristics of strong operator leadership?  What 
would be evidence of that leadership?  

2. How should the operator be expected to model leadership for the other 
partners? 

3. How do you clearly define the role of the operator, separate from that 
of the partners?  How do you define accountability of the operator and 
that of the individual partners? 

4. What does “staff empowerment” look like in reality?  Are there any 
state or local policies that negatively impact staff empowerment?  If so, 
how can those barriers be removed? 

In an excellent One-Stop, the operator: 

 Involves frontline staff in visioning and planning.   
 Keeps the vision alive. 
 Conducts regular team meetings for making strategic decisions. 
 Has a tolerance for risk. 
 Empowers staff to create and implement new ideas. 

143



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 57 

 Looks for ways to make things work, rather than excuses for why they 
can’t. 

 Models positive attitudes, collaboration, and customer focus for staff. 
 Learns from failure rather than laying blame. 
 Develops community relationships and uses them to enhance One-

Stop services. 
 Works in a positive manner with employee unions. 
 Creates new partnerships to bring more resources to bear on customer 

services. 
 Promotes the good of the One-Stop and the customer over the good of 

the agency and the program. 

Critical Success Factor 8: Manage the One-Stopp 

Core Indicator 1. Front line staff and partners are involved in visioning and 
planning. 

Considerations for policymakers: 

1. What are the minimum expectations for frontline staff and partner 
involvement?  Who are the frontline staff?  Are they only staff at a 
certain level and above?  Does it include clerical workers?  Does it 
include only staff who work full time in the One-Stop, or also those 
who are itinerant?   Who are the partners?  Does that mean only the 
managers of partner resources, or also their staff?  Does it mean only 
those partners who are on site full time, or all partners who sign an 
MOU, regardless of time on-site? 

2. Are there barriers to frontline staff participation (e.g., prohibitions 
against certain agency staff participating on committees or spending a 
certain number of hours away from their desks during the week?  If so, 
how can those barriers be overcome? 

3. What are the expectations for employee union involvement in 
visioning and planning?  Does involvement of frontline staff address 
that issue, or is more formal representation required? 

In an excellent One-Stop:  

 All frontline staff at all levels are involved in some capacity.  They 
serve on work committees, participate in visioning exercises, are 
invited to review and comment on drafts, and are challenged to 
identify gaps and propose ways to fill the gaps.   

 Time is made during the work week for any staff person who wants to 
participate to serve on a planning committee. 

144



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 58 

 Partners are asked to participate, including their frontline staff, 
regardless of whether those staff are on-site at the One-Stop or not, to 
promote ownership of the One-Stop. 

Core Indicator 2. Regular staff development occurs. 

Considerations for policymakers: 

1. Are there any state or local policy barriers that limit staff development 
(e.g., prohibitions against cross training, limits on how many hours a 
year any staff person can participate in training, limits on the kind of 
training that can be offered to certain levels of staff, etc.)?  If so, how 
can those barriers be minimized? 

2. Are there any financial limitations placed on staff development?  For 
example, one or more partners have no budget for training?  How can 
that be addressed?  How will a staff development budget be created? 

3. How will staff development needs be identified?  Individually, or only 
as a center-wide aggregate? 

4. Will there be individual staff training plans related to individual staff 
skill assessments, or only collective training to meet center-wide 
developmental needs? 

5. What staff will be included in what kinds of training?  Do the training 
needs of full-time staff differ from that of itinerant staff?  What about 
partner staff who work with, but not at, the One-Stop? 

6. What should be the expectations for regular staff development?  How 
regular? Will staff have an expectation for an annual number of hours 
spent in some developmental activity? 

7. What kinds of activities are considered to be staff development?  Only 
formal training?  Conference attendance?  Job shadowing?  Attending 
community events such as Chamber breakfasts?  How can the 
information individual staff pick up at conferences and other events 
attended by a small number of people be communicated with all staff? 

8. What are the skills that every staff person needs?  What are the skills 
that are needed only by staff in certain functions (e.g., counseling)?   
Will there be some recognition for staff who attain certain skills or 
reach mastery level? 

9. How can staff development be used to create career ladders within the 
One-Stop system? 

145



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 59 

In an excellent One-Stop: 

 Skills required for working in the One-Stop are identified for the center 
as a whole and by function, in collaboration with staff and partners. 

 Skill assessments are done for individual staff and for the center as a 
whole against the identified desired skills. 

 Individual staff development plans are devised.  Staff are expected to 
engage in developmental activities a certain number of hours per year. 

 A center-wide staff development plan is created. 
 A center-wide staff development budget is created.  All partners 

contribute to the budget.  Contributions may be in-kind, such as 
offering to provide training to other staff. 

 The staff development plan is reviewed regularly to ensure it is being 
carried out and determine if updates are needed. 

 Staff do not have to limit themselves only to developmental activities 
relevant to their current jobs.  They may attend training to prepare 
themselves for other jobs in the One-Stop consistent with their career 
goals (e.g., a frontline staff person who wants to become a manager 
would be permitted to attend management training). 

 Staff who attain mastery level of certain skills are recognized, 
financially if possible. 

Core Indicator 3. Investments are made in management tools. 

Considerations for policymakers: 

1. What data needs to be collected and managed consistent with the 
goals, objectives, and performance measures of the One-Stop?  What 
kind of reports need to be generated? 

2. What are the options for data collection and management?   What tools 
are available?  What are the pros and cons of each option?  Who else is 
using the various options who can provide input on pros and cons? 

3. How do the various options connect with existing program-specific 
management tools? 

4. What will be the budget for management tools?  How will partners 
contribute to the investments in management tools?  What benefit will 
partners derive from the management information? 

In an excellent One-Stop: 

 Investments are made in management tools that can provide the kind 
of data and reports needed to manage the One-Stop effectively against 
its goals, objectives, and performance measures.   

146



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 60 

 There is a process in place to review and act upon management 
information. 

 Management tools are sufficiently flexible that they can be easily 
changed when performance measures or goals change. 

 Not all management tools have to be high-tech.  The One-Stop also 
pursues low-tech options as long as they meet the data management 
needs. 

 The One-Stop consults with other leading One-Stops around the 
country to learn about tools used elsewhere. 

Core Indicator 4.  Continuous quality improvement processes are in place. 

Considerations for policymakers: 

1. What is meant by “continuous quality improvement?”  How will the 
state and local boards communicate continuous improvement concepts 
and expectations to operators and partners?  

2. How will the state and local boards model continuous quality 
improvement in their own operations? 

3. What is the content of a continuous quality improvement plan?  How 
does it fit into an overall business plan?  

4. How can the continuous improvement plan be implemented?  How 
can it be determined that the continuous quality improvement 
processes are in place?  

5. How can the impact of continuous improvement processes be 
evaluated to determine the degree of improvements? 

In an excellent One-Stop: 

 Staff understand the concept of continuous improvement and view it 
as a way of doing business, not as an “add on.” 

 There is a role for all staff in continuous quality improvement.  
Performance appraisals take continuous improvement demonstrations 
into consideration. 

 There is a defined plan in place for analyzing key processes on a 
regular basis.  “Regular” is defined.  Who is expected to review which 
processes is defined.   

 Implementation plans are developed to operationalize improvement 
strategies.  Data is collected to determine whether a strategy actually 
resulted in improvement. 

147



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 61 

Core Indicator 5. Partnerships enhance services and delivery capacity, 
enabling the One-Stop to better meet customer needs. 

Considerations for policymakers: 

1. Which partnerships should be cultivated that go beyond the 
mandatory One-Stop partners?   

2. What should be the roles of the state, the local board, and the One-Stop 
operator in cultivating these new relationships? 

3. Are there any state or local policies that may limit partnership (e.g., 
partnerships with private for-profit organizations)?  If so, how can 
these barriers be minimized? 

4. What is the evidence that a partnership exists?  Is a referral 
relationship enough, or do you expect something more? 

In an excellent One-Stop: 

 State-level MOUs set the stage for local level partnerships. 
 The One-Stop identifies business and job seeker service gaps that could 

be filled through partnerships. 
 Partners are identified and pursued based on their ability to help meet 

the needs of the One-Stop’s employer and job seeker customers, and 
the strategic goals of the community. 

 Formal partnership agreements are developed between partners that 
address the mechanisms for referrals, data sharing, and cost sharing to 
meet customer needs.   Partnership agreements are regularly reviewed 
to determine if they need to be updated or renewed, particularly if 
there have been any changes in key people who were party to old 
agreements. 

Critical Success Factor 9: Develop a Business Plann 

Core Indicator 1.  A center-wide business plan guides day-to-day operations 
and decision-making. 

Considerations for policymakers: 

1. Will a business plan be required only of comprehensive One-Stops, or 
also of satellite sites?   Will satellites submit their plans independently, 
or are they part of a comprehensive One-Stop’s overall plan? 

2. What will be the minimum content requirements of the business plan?  
How will the state and/or local board communicate plan expectations 
to potential applicants? 

148



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 62 

3. Who will the plan be submitted to?   How will the plan be reviewed 
and who will be involved?   

4. How will a determination be made as to whether a business plan is 
approved or not?  Who makes that decision and how is it 
communicated?  What are the state and local board roles in the review 
and approval process? 

5. Will a feedback report be returned to the applicant?   Who will be 
responsible for development of the feedback report?    

6. What kind of assistance will be available to One-Stops prior to 
business plan submittal?  What kind of assistance will be available to 
One-Stops whose plan was not approved? 

7. What are the expectations for on-going use of the business plan at the 
One-Stop level?  How does the plan figure into the local board’s 
oversight of the One-Stop? 

8. Will the business planning process be used to expand the field of 
potential players in the system?  That is, can an entity that is not 
currently an operator submit a plan and be awarded One-Stop 
operator status? 

In an excellent One-Stop:  

 A business plan is developed regardless of whether a state or local 
board requires it. 

 Frontline staff and all partners are involved in business plan 
development. 

 Progress on implementation of the business plan is the basis for 
regular dialogue with the local board regarding One-Stop quality. 

Core Indicator 2. The business plan is reviewed and updated regularly. 

Considerations for policymakers: 

1. How often should the plan be updated? 
2. Are there trigger points that flag the need to update the plan?  For 

example, a major new funding source is identified, the economy 
changes dramatically, or a new partner enters the One-Stop. 

3. Should there be a point at which an update is not enough; i.e., 
operators should be expected to submit an entirely new plan? 

In an excellent One-Stop: 

 The business plan is a flexible, living document that guides day-to-day 
operations and is regularly reviewed for continued relevance. 

149



Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 63 

Staff don’t wait for a state or local board to demand a business plan
update.  They update the plan when they identify it needs to be done.
At a minimum, the plan is reviewed and updated annually.   The plan
is completely re-done if a new partner comes into the One-Stop.  This
is partly because the business now looks different, but also partly
because the new partner may need to be involved in creating the plan
to know and accept where they fit into it.
All frontline staff have a copy of the business plan.  Management
regularly updates the staff on the progress of implementation of the
business plan.

Critical Success Factor 10: Measure Progress and Outcomess 

Core Indicator 1. Center-wide measures are used in One-Stop and program 
management, supported by integrated information systems to which multiple 
program partners have access. 

Considerations for policymakers: 

1. How will center-wide measures be used to support the vision and
mission?

2. Who will be involved in development of the measures?  How will
buy-in be achieved?

3. Will a balanced dashboard approach be used?  If so, what will be the
dashboard design?   What are the categories around which measures
will be organized?  How will you balance considerations of customer
focus, efficiency, operations, and outcomes?

4. How will the measures be used to encourage continuous
improvement, rather than just meeting a specified level of
performance?  How will they promote a quality-based dialogue
between the board and operator?

5. Will performance affect resource allocation?
6. How will the priorities implied by the measures be communicated to

all staff?
7. How regularly will the measures be reviewed and updated to ensure

continued relevance, and reflect any change in priorities?
8. Is it financially feasible and cost effective to collect the data needed for

the measures?  If not feasible, are there proxy measures that could be
used to stand in?

150



Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 64 

9. Are there any state or local policies that may interfere with data
collection for certain measures?  If so, how can those policies be
changed?

10. Are the selected measures easily understandable to the partners and
the general public?

11. Do the selected measures include both leading and lagging indicators?
12. Are the measures sufficiently informative that the operator can

actually use the information to manage the One-Stop better?

In an excellent One-Stop:  

Center-wide measures are developed regardless of whether the state or
local board requires them.
Measures are collaboratively developed in a partnership of the state
and local board and the One-Stop partners. The partners should see
the indicators as a valuable tool to help them manage continuous
improvement, rather than as an unfunded mandate that carries the
threat of sanctions for perceived failure.
Center measures are few in number.  Any staff person can tell you
what they are.
Measures provide trend information that allows a One-Stop to gauge
its progress over time.
The measures are used by management not only to observe whether
the system is on course, but also as a means of communication.  The
indicators clarify policy direction and priorities, and allow employees
to direct their energy toward desired results
Performance indicators help management make tactical choices that
keeps the center on course to achieving the vision.
All partner and frontline staff know what the current status is on
attainment of the measures.
The measures help formulate thinking about evaluation beyond silo
federal performance standards.
The measures allow One-Stops to benchmark themselves against other
areas by sharing measurement tools and approaches.

151



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 65 

Critical Success Factor 11: Market the One-Stopp 

Core Indicator 1. Clear brand identity exists or is under development. 

Considerations for policymakers: 

1. How will a brand identity be established?   Who should be involved 
in selecting the identity?  What should be the roles of state and local 
boards? 

2. How will it be determined who will get to use the brand name, and 
how will it be used? 

3. Will there be a style guide that outlines the parameters for how the 
identity is used? 

4. Should there be mandates on how the name is used at the local level?  
How are partner identities considered? 

5. How will the identity be marketed?  Who will do the marketing?  Will 
there be policy parameters on marketing?   

6. Are there any state or local policies that would impact how a brand 
name is developed and used?  If so, how can those policies be 
changed? 

In an excellent One-Stop:  

 The center must be certified or chartered for excellence before being 
allowed to use the brand name to protect how the public associates the 
name with quality. 

 A style guide exists for use of the brand name and/or logo.  
 The brand name is the most prominent name on the facility.   If any 

partner names are used at all, they are much smaller. 
 Partner agreements spell out how the brand name will and won’t be 

used, and when by partners. 
 The brand name carries through to internal signage, business cards, 

stationary, and staff name tags. 
 There is a marketing budget to market the brand name.  All partners 

contribute to the marketing budget.  Their contributions may be in 
kind; e.g., “piggy back marketing” where partners market the One-
Stop at the same time they are marketing their own programs. 

 There is a marketing team responsible for providing development and 
oversight of marketing strategies.  The team includes members from 
multiple partners.   

 The roles of the board and the One-Stop in marketing the brand name 
are clearly defined. 

152



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 66 

V.   Self-Assessment Tool   
he self-assessment tool that follows is based on the critical success factors 
and core indicators described in preceding sections.   Partners are asked 

to rate themselves as poor, fair, good, or excellent, and provide a rationale for 
their assessment.  They are also asked to identify one thing they could do that 
would move them towards the picture of an excellent One-Stop that is 
described for each core indicator.  The description of excellence is repeated 
from the policymakers’ guide so that the self-assessment piece can stand 
alone. 

The primary reason for One-Stops to assess themselves against the core 
indicators of critical success factors is to make improvements to their centers.  
A secondary consideration is to prepare One-Stops for future certification or 
chartering processes that may be implemented by their respective state or 
local boards.   When a One-Stop has achieved what the partners consider to 
be good or better rating on the core indicators, they may want to go back to 
the supplemental indicators to determine if they can assess themselves one 
step further along the continuum of excellence. 

Many states and local boards already have certification or chartering 
processes.  In those situations, One-Stops may use this self-assessment as a 
supplement to see how they fair against the industry leaders, and to spark 
new discussions about quality in the One-Stop. 

In conducting the self-assessment, partners should: 

 Ensure all partners are included in the discussion and assessment. 
 Ensure frontline staff participate in the assessment.  This should not be 

dictated by management. 
 Include one or more board members and a job seeker and employer 

customer or two who can give you honest feedback about whether you 
have met the criteria. 

 Talk about your own definitions of quality.  What does a high 
performance One-Stop look like to you? 

 Of all the core indicators where you rate yourselves as anything less 
than good, prioritize which ones you will work on first.  Don’t 
prioritize them by how easy they are to do; prioritize them by how 
important they are to your overall success. 

 Don’t look for excuses about why you can’t rate your One-Stop as 
excellent.  Look for strategies about how you can get there. 

 

T

153



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 67 

Critical Success Factors and Core Indicators of Success 

Employer Services 

We rate ourselves as: Critical Success Factor 1: Satisfy Employers 
Poor Fair Good Excellent 

Core Indicator 1. Employer satisfaction is measured at the center level, not 
the program level. 
In an excellent One-Stop:  

 All mandatory partners use the same employer satisfaction tools, so results 
reflect the collective performance of the One-Stop rather than any individual 
program 

 Employer satisfaction is assessed in multiple ways, which may include 
surveys, focus groups, and one-on-one interviews. 

 A process is in place for regularly analyzing the results and acting on the 
analysis.  Partners are involved in the analysis and action decisions. 

Rationale – why did you rate yourselves as you did? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Continuous improvement – what is one thing you can do to move towards 
excellence? 
 
 
 
 

    

154



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 68 

We rate ourselves as: Critical Success Factor 1: Satisfy Employers 
Poor Fair Good Excellent 

Core Indicator 2. Service design and delivery strategies are developed in 
consultation with employers.  
In an excellent One-Stop:  

 The center’s menu of employer services is based on what employers say 
they need. 

 Services are delivered in ways that employers say works best for them. 
 The One-Stop actively seeks out employer input into service design and 

delivery through multiple means, which may include focus groups, one-on-
one interviewing, and surveys. 

 Information gathered to measure employer satisfaction is used in design and 
delivery strategies. 

 Input is sought from employers in a variety of industries, a variety of sizes, 
and with a variety of types and levels of occupations. 

 Input is sought from employers who do not currently use the One-Stop. 
Rationale – why did you rate yourselves as you did? 
 
 
 
 
 
Continuous improvement – what is one thing you can do to move towards 
excellence? 
 
 
 
 
 
 

    

155



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 69 

 
We rate ourselves as: Critical Success Factor 2: Manage Employer Services 

Poor Fair Good Excellent 
Core Indicator 1. Employer services are a clear priority in the One-Stop, 
with dedicated staff time and resources supporting them.    
In an excellent One-Stop: 

 There are business services staff whose primary responsibility is meeting 
the needs of business. 

 Funds are identified in the One-Stop budget to support business services, 
not only in terms of staff time, but also in postage, travel, database support, 
etc.  There is a rationale for the amount of time or staff that is dedicated to 
business services compared to job seeker services. 

 When resources are reduced, business services are not considered an 
expendable luxury.   If at all, the business services budget is reduced only in 
proportion to reductions in job seeker services. 

Rationale – why did you rate yourselves as you did? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Continuous improvement – what is one thing you can do to move towards 
excellence? 
 
 
 
 

    

156



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 70 

We rate ourselves as: Critical Success Factor 2: Manage Employer Services 
Poor Fair Good Excellent 

Core Indicator 2. Employer services are managed as a single function 
using account representatives or similar approach. 
 
In an excellent One-Stop: 

 A business services team exists that is made up of dedicated staff from any 
partner that works with employers. 

 There is one manager or team leader who oversees the business services 
function, regardless of how many partner agencies participate on the team 
or in the One-Stop. The manager can make assignments and deploy staff 
as needed to meet employers’ needs. The manager can expect staff to 
develop certain skills, and can remove staff from the team who do not have 
those skills. 

 The functional team is organized using an account representative approach.  
The team members have geographic and/or industry specialties, and they 
are the primary contact point for employers in that industry or geography. 

 

Rationale – why did you rate yourselves as you did? 
 
 
 
 
Continuous improvement – what is one thing you can do to move towards 
excellence? 
 
 
 
 
 

    

157



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 71 

We rate ourselves as: Critical Success Factor 2: Manage Employer Services 
Poor Fair Good Excellent 

Core Indicator 3.  Employer services staff are focused on and 
knowledgeable about industries and employers important to the local 
economy. 
 
In an excellent One-Stop: 

 Business services staff keep up-to-date on the economic trends that affect 
their region and industries, including the broad picture, not just their 
geographic or industry specialties. 

 Staff don’t scatter their efforts.  They pay the most attention to employers in 
the industries that are most critical to maintaining and growing the local 
economy.  This decision is based on labor market data. 

 Staff work with economic developers to share information and insights, and 
align industry targets. 

 Business services staff add to the One-Stop’s general wealth of knowledge 
by summarizing and sharing key issues they learn about from data, 
research, and personal contacts. 

Rationale – why did you rate yourselves as you did? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Continuous improvement – what is one thing you can do to move towards 
excellence? 
 
 
 

    

158



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 72 

We rate ourselves as: Critical Success Factor 2: Manage Employer Services 
Poor Fair Good Excellent 

Core Indicator 4. One-on-one relationships with employers are developed 
and nurtured. 
In an excellent One-Stop: 

 Business services staff spend more time at employers’ places of work than 
they do at the One-Stop. 

 Visits and relationships are maintained even when an employer has no job 
openings.  There are other services the One-Stop can provide. 

 Employers know their account representative by name, and business team 
members know their accounts by name. 

Rationale – why did you rate yourselves as you did? 
 
 
 
 
 
Continuous improvement – what is one thing you can do to move towards 
excellence? 
 
 
 
 
 
 

    

 

159



Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 73 

We rate ourselves as: Critical Success Factor 3: Deliver Quality Services to Employers 
Poor Fair Good Excellent 

Core Indicator 1. Services are designed around customers’ requirements, 
rather than generic in nature. 
In an excellent One-Stop:  

Core employer services are a starting point, not the end point, of service
design.
Staff use a prescribed format and protocol for eliciting information from
employers about their service design requirements.
Staff have a process for turning service design requirements into service
delivery mechanisms.

Rationale – why did you rate yourselves as you did? 

Continuous improvement – what is one thing you can do to move towards 
excellence? 

160



Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 74 

We rate ourselves as: Critical Success Factor 3: Deliver Quality Services to Employers 
Poor Fair Good Excellent 

Core Indicator 2. A “never say no” attitude is prevalent among employer 
services staff (i.e., the staff find ways to address an employer’s needs 
either by developing new services or finding another partner or provider in 
the community who can address the needs). 

In an excellent One-Stop:  

Staff see themselves in a broker role.  The idea is to meet employers’ needs,
not to be the sole source of services.
Staff approach an employer believing they are there to meet the employer’s
needs, not to sell One-Stop services.
Even if a One-Stop provides a certain service – like job matching – staff will
encourage an employer to use other, non-One-Stop services if another entity
can meet the employer’s needs better than the One-Stop.  For example, if
staff know that their database of job seekers is unlikely to generate sufficient
matches for an employer seeking a highly specialized set of skills, they may
refer the employer to specialty job boards on the internet

Rationale – why did you rate yourselves as you did? 

Continuous improvement – what is one thing you can do to move towards 
excellence? 

161



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 75 

We rate ourselves as: Critical Success Factor 3: Deliver Quality Services to Employers 
Poor Fair Good Excellent 

Core Indicator 3. Other public intermediaries are perceived by the One-
Stop as partners, not competitors. 
In an excellent One-Stop: 

 The roles of the board and the One-Stop are clearly spelled out in a 
board/operator agreement.  

 Staff take time to identify, learn about, and develop personal relationships 
with other public intermediaries.  

 Staff not only develop partnerships between the One-Stop and other 
intermediaries, but also foster partnerships among the intermediaries 
themselves. 

Rationale – why did you rate yourselves as you did? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Continuous improvement – what is one thing you can do to move towards 
excellence? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

    

162



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 76 

We rate ourselves as: Critical Success Factor 3: Deliver Quality Services to Employers 
Poor Fair Good Excellent 

Core Indicator 4. A sense of urgency and commitment to work in real time 
is evident. 
In an excellent One-Stop: 

 Staff are empowered to make decisions on the spot (within broad 
parameters) in order to meet a customer’s needs. 

 Staff don’t tell an employer in a hurry that his/her job order has to be held for 
48 hours before it gets openly posted. 

 Staff will “go the extra mile” to satisfy their customers.  This may include 
working on a weekend or in the evening to get the job done. 

 Staff have the tools they need while in an employer’s place of business to 
fulfill the sense of urgency (e.g., cell phones, laptops loaded with appropriate 
tools, information at their fingertips). 

Rationale – why did you rate yourselves as you did? 
 
 
 
Continuous improvement – what is one thing you can do to move towards 
excellence? 
 
 
 
 

    

 

We rate ourselves as: 
OVERALL RATING ON EMPLOYER SERVICES: 

Poor Fair Good Excellent 

     

 

163



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 77 

Job Seeker Services 
We rate ourselves as: Critical Success Factor 4: Satisfy Job Seekers 

Poor Fair Good Excellent 
Core Indicator 1. Customer satisfaction is measured at the One-Stop level, 
not the program level. 
In an excellent One-Stop:  

 All mandatory partners use the same job seeker satisfaction tools, so results 
reflect the collective performance of the One-Stop, rather than any individual 
program.  The common process may only be for a certain set of services, 
such as core services, while partners continue to use their own tools for 
individuals who enroll in their programs. 

 Job seeker satisfaction is assessed in multiple ways, which may include 
surveys, focus groups, and one-on-one interviews. 

 A process is in place for regularly analyzing the results and acting on the 
analysis.  Partners are involved in the analysis and action decisions. 

Rationale – why did you rate yourselves as you did? 
 
 
 
 
 
Continuous improvement – what is one thing you can do to move towards 
excellence? 
 
 
 
 
 
 

    

164



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 78 

We rate ourselves as: Critical Success Factor 4: Satisfy Job Seekers 
Poor Fair Good Excellent 

Core Indicator 2. Service design and delivery strategies are developed in 
consultation with job seekers.  

 The One-Stop’s menu of job seeker services is based on what job seekers 
say they need. 

 Services are delivered in ways that job seekers say works best for them, and 
there may be a variety of delivery methods to satisfy different delivery 
preferences. 

 The One-Stop actively seeks out job seeker input into design and delivery 
through multiple means, which may include focus groups, one-on-one 
interviewing, and surveys. 

 Information gathered to measure job seeker satisfaction is used in service 
design and delivery strategies. 

 Input is sought from job seekers in a variety of ethnic groups. 
 Input is sought from job seekers who do not currently use the One-Stop. 

Rationale – why did you rate yourselves as you did? 
 
 
 
Continuous improvement – what is one thing you can do to move towards 
excellence? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

    

 

165



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 79 

We rate ourselves as: Critical Success Factor 5: Manage Job Seeker Services 
Poor Fair Good Excellent 

Core Indicator 1. The One-Stop manages job seeker services as an 
integrated function or functions. 
In an excellent One-Stop:  

 Key functions have been identified and there are “process champions” or 
managers for business critical functions. 

 Each function is managed as a whole for the One-Stop.  While a manager 
may have to manage across the rules of different programs, the overall 
function is still considered a single process. 

 The role of the functional manager has been defined.  The functional 
manager provides day-to-day supervision of all staff who perform the 
function, even though formal supervision (hiring, firing, appraisal) continues 
to be done by an agency supervisor of record.  The formal supervisor confers 
with the functional manager in writing performance appraisals. 

Rationale – why did you rate yourselves as you did? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Continuous improvement – what is one thing you can do to move towards 
excellence? 
 
 
 
 
 

    

166



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 80 

We rate ourselves as: Critical Success Factor 5: Manage Job Seeker Services 
Poor Fair Good Excellent 

Core Indicator 2. The One-Stop appears inviting, organized, and 
professional. 

In an excellent One-Stop: 

 The appearance compares favorably with other public venues, such as 
libraries, and with private sector sites.   Customers cannot come in and 
immediately identify the One-Stop as a government unemployment office.   
The center appearance is such that any staff or board member would be 
happy to refer one of his or her family members to the One-Stop. 

 Personal items cannot be viewed over the tops of cubicles.  The space 
appears clean and open as customers gaze across it. 

 A facility team comprised of staff from all partners sets agreed upon 
standards that everyone buys into.  The team develops its own internal 
policing so that managers don’t have to.  

 Staff are distinguishable from the customers by wearing name tags.  The 
facility team may also set standards for staff attire and rules of behavior.  
Rules of behavior may include:  no cell phones while in the building; no 
eating in public view; no chewing gum while talking to customers; all 
customers greeted by name, if known;  

Rationale – why did you rate yourselves as you did? 
 
 
 
Continuous improvement – what is one thing you can do to move towards 
excellence? 
 
 
 
 
 

    

167



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 81 

We rate ourselves as: Critical Success Factor 5: Manage Job Seeker Services 
Poor Fair Good Excellent 

Core Indicator 3. Customer flow is efficient, enabling customers to get their 
needs met quickly:  peak loads are well managed and there are few 
physical barriers. 

In an excellent One-Stop: 

 Customers can flow freely through public areas without having to get 
permission from staff people to utilize various self-service options. 

 Contingency plans are in place, not only for when customer loads peak, but 
also for when various staff are sick or on vacation. 

 There is no staff person who is the single repository of knowledge for a given 
program or service.  Everyone has a back up. 

 Process mapping has been used to identify potential bottlenecks, and 
decision-making processes are changed to reduce the problem. 

 Customers do not have any down time.  If they have to wait for an 
appointment or for a workshop to start, there is always something for them to 
do and someone to guide them in doing it.  Any necessary wait times are 
tracked for frequency and length; staff develop options to reduce wait times, 
and measure again to see if their strategies have been effective. 

 Efficiency is not equated with hurrying customers. 
Rationale – why did you rate yourselves as you did? 
 
 
Continuous improvement – what is one thing you can do to move towards 
excellence? 
 

 

 

 

    

168



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 82 

We rate ourselves as: Critical Success Factor 5: Manage Job Seeker Services 
Poor Fair Good Excellent 

Core Indicator 4. Data reflecting customer interactions, delivery of 
services, and outcomes is tracked, shared, and used to improve services 
and results. 

In an excellent One-Stop: 

 Unduplicated counts of total One-Stop customers are possible, as well as 
unduplicated counts of which services customers use and how often they 
use them. 

 Outcomes are compared to service strategies.  For example, are people who 
receive orientations more likely to return?  Are people who participate in 
interviewing workshops more likely to get a job than those who don’t? 

 A management team convenes at regular intervals to review the data and 
discuss the implications for service delivery.  Changes in the service mix or 
service sequence are made and results are measured again. 

 Meeting performance standards is never good enough. Staff continually use 
data to try and improve over prior performance. 

Rationale – why did you rate yourselves as you did? 
 
 
 
Continuous improvement – what is one thing you can do to move towards 
excellence? 
 

 

 

 

 
 

    

 

169



Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 83 

We rate ourselves as: Critical Success Factor 6: Deliver Quality Services to Job Seekers 
Poor Fair Good Excellent 

Core Indicator 1. Customers can access a comprehensive menu of training 
and education services and information about, and referral to, sources of 
related assistance (e.g., housing, transportation). 

In an excellent center: 

Resource mapping has been done to identify education, training, and
supportive service resources in the region and surrounding regions in
recognition of the fact that people live and work without regard to artificial
workforce area boundaries.
Geographic mapping has been done so both customers and staff can
visualize at a glance where certain resources are physically located in
relationship to the One-Stop or in relationship to where they live.
Staff compare the physical location of resources to the density of where
customers live, work, or conduct business to determine if there are gaps or
barriers in accessibility. Physical locations are also plotted along public
transportation routes.
Resource inventories are available on an interactive website that allows
customers and staff to search for a resource by type and location.
Resource inventories include access information; i.e., the process and
requirements for eligibility.
Resources available within the One-Stop itself are prominently posted as a
menu, perhaps as a menu board.  The resources are not identified by
funding stream or agency name, but by what the service actually is in a way
that customers can recognize and find meaningful.
Formal referral mechanisms are in place both internally and externally to
ensure customers do not “fall through the cracks” in moving from one
resource to another.

170



Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 84 

We rate ourselves as: Critical Success Factor 6: Deliver Quality Services to Job Seekers 
Poor Fair Good Excellent 

Rationale – why did you rate yourselves as you did? 

Continuous improvement – what is one thing you can do to move towards 
excellence? 

We rate ourselves as: OVERALL RATING ON JOB SEEKER SERVICES: 
Poor Fair Good Excellent 

171



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 85 

One-Stop Design and Management 
We rate ourselves as: Critical Success Factor 7: Provide Leadership 

Poor Fair Good Excellent 
Core Indicator 1. The workforce investment board exhibits strong 
leadership. 

In an excellent One-Stop, the workforce investment board:  

 Uses a collaborative approach to creating a vision for the system to inspire 
and to achieve buy-in. 

 Collects and interprets workforce intelligence data that provides strategic 
direction and focus for the partners. 

 Charters or certifies sites using a quality-based framework such as Baldrige, 
and doesn’t allow sites to operate or use the brand name if they cannot 
achieve quality operations. 

 Requires One-Stops to develop business plans that steer partners toward 
thinking about their markets, operational requirements, and management 
issues for the center as a whole rather than just their individual agencies and 
programs. 

 Creates a balanced dashboard of center-wide performance measures that 
are linked to the board’s strategic direction. 

 Maintains an on-going quality dialogue with the operator that keeps the board’s 
vision and expectations in the forefront.  Good boards have a committee and/or 
staff liaison in regular contact with the operator. 

 Selects an operator with leadership ability and entrepreneurial qualities.  If 
the current operator entity or consortium cannot provide the level of 
leadership required, the board will either define a new consortium or 
competitively procure the leadership it needs. 

 Creates a board/operator agreement that includes obligations on both sides 
and spells out the roles each needs the other to play.  

 Fosters a Memorandum of Understanding process that focuses on 
customers and their needs rather than on agencies and money. 

    

172



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 86 

We rate ourselves as: Critical Success Factor 7: Provide Leadership 
Poor Fair Good Excellent 

Rationale – why did you rate yourselves as you did? 
 
 
 
Continuous improvement – what is one thing you can do to move towards 
excellence? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Core Indicator 2. The One-Stop operator exhibits strong leadership. 

In an excellent One-Stop, the operator: 

 Involves frontline staff in visioning and planning.   
 Keeps the vision alive. 
 Conducts regular team meetings for making strategic decisions. 
 Has a tolerance for risk. 
 Empowers staff to create and implement new ideas. 
 Looks for ways to make things work, rather than excuses for why they can’t. 
 Models positive attitudes, collaboration, and customer focus for staff. 

    

173



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 87 

We rate ourselves as: Critical Success Factor 7: Provide Leadership 
Poor Fair Good Excellent 

 Learns from failure rather than laying blame. 
 Develops community relationships and uses them to enhance One-Stop 

services. 
 Works in a positive manner with employee unions. 
 Creates new partnerships to bring more resources to bear on customer 

services. 
 Promotes the good of the One-Stop and the customer over the good of the 

agency and the program.  
 
Rationale – why did you rate yourselves as you did? 
 
 
Continuous improvement – what is one thing you can do to move towards 
excellence? 
 
 
 
 

 
We rate ourselves as: Critical Success Factor 8: Manage the Center 

Poor Fair Good Excellent 
Core Indicator 1. Frontline staff and partners are involved in visioning and 
planning. 
In an excellent One-Stop:  

 All frontline staff at all levels are involved in some capacity.  They serve on 
work committees, participate in visioning exercises, are invited to review and 
comment on drafts, and are challenged to identify gaps and propose ways to 
fill those gaps.   

    

174



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 88 

We rate ourselves as: Critical Success Factor 8: Manage the Center 
Poor Fair Good Excellent 

 Time is made during the work week for any staff person who wants to 
participate to serve on a planning committee.  

 Partners are asked to participate, including their frontline staff, regardless of 
whether those staff are on-site at the One-Stop or not, to promote ownership 
of the One-Stop. 

Rationale – why did you rate yourselves as you did? 
 
 
Continuous improvement – what is one thing you can do to move towards 
excellence? 
 
 
 

Core Indicator 2. Regular staff development occurs. 

In an excellent One-Stop: 

 Skills required for working in the One-Stop are identified for the center as a 
whole and by function, in collaboration with staff and partners. 

 Skill assessments are done for individual staff and for the One-Stop as a 
whole against the identified desired skills. 

 Individual staff development plans are developed.  Staff are expected to 
engage in developmental activities a certain number of hours per year. 

 A center-wide staff development plan is created, including a budget. All 
partners contribute to the budget.  Contributions may be in-kind, such as 
offering to provide training to other staff. 

 The staff development plan is reviewed regularly to ensure it is being carried 
out and determine if updates are needed. 

 Staff do not have to limit themselves only to developmental activities relevant 
to their current jobs.  They may to go to training to prepare themselves for 

    

175



Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 89 

We rate ourselves as: Critical Success Factor 8: Manage the Center 
Poor Fair Good Excellent 

other jobs in the One-Stop consistent with their career goals  (e.g., a frontline 
staff person who wants to become a manager would be permitted to attend 
management training).  
Staff who attain mastery level of certain skills are recognized, financially if
possible.

Rationale – why did you rate yourselves as you did? 

Continuous improvement – what is one thing you can do to move towards 
excellence? 

Core Indicator 3. Investments are made in management tools. 

In an excellent One-Stop: 

Investments are made in management tools that can provide the kind of data
and reports needed to manage the One-Stop effectively against its goals,
objectives, and performance measures.
There is a process in place to review and act upon management information.
Management tools are sufficiently flexible that they can be easily changed
when performance measures or goals change.
Not all management tools have to be high-tech.  The One-Stop also pursues
low-tech options as long as they meet the data management needs.
The One-Stop consults with other leading One-Stops around the country to
learn about tools used elsewhere.

176



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 90 

We rate ourselves as: Critical Success Factor 8: Manage the Center 
Poor Fair Good Excellent 

Rationale – why did you rate yourselves as you did? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Continuous improvement – what is one thing you can do to move towards 
excellence? 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Core Indicator 4. Continuous quality improvement processes are in place. 

In an excellent One-Stop: 

 Staff understand the concept of continuous improvement and view it as a 
way of doing business, not as an add on. 

 There is a role for all staff in continuous quality improvement.  Performance 
appraisals take continuous improvement demonstrations into consideration. 

    

177



Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 91 

We rate ourselves as: Critical Success Factor 8: Manage the Center 
Poor Fair Good Excellent 

There is a defined process in place for analyzing key processes on a regular
basis.  “Regular” is defined.  Who is expected to review which processes is
defined.
Implementation plans are developed to operationalize improvement
strategies.  Data is collected to determine whether a strategy actually
resulted in improvement.

Rationale – why did you rate yourselves as you did? 

Continuous improvement – what is one thing you can do to move towards 
excellence? 

178



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 92 

We rate ourselves as: Critical Success Factor 8: Manage the Center 
Poor Fair Good Excellent 

Core Indicator 5. Partnerships enhance services and delivery capacity, 
enabling the One-Stop to better meet customer needs. 
In an excellent One-Stop: 

 State-level MOUs set the stage for local level partnerships. 
 The One-Stop identifies business and job seeker service gaps that could be 

filled through partnerships. 
 Partners are identified and pursued based on their ability to help meet the 

needs of the One-Stop’s employer and job seeker customers, and the 
strategic goals of the community. 

 Formal partnership agreements are developed between partners that 
address the mechanisms for referrals, data sharing, and cost sharing to meet 
customer needs.   Partnership agreements are regularly reviewed to 
determine if they need to be updated or renewed, particularly if there have 
been any changes in key people. 

Rationale – why did you rat yourselves as you did? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Continuous improvement – what is one thing you can do to move towards 
excellence? 
 

 

 

 

    

179



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 93 

 
 

We rate ourselves as: Critical Success Factor 9: Develop a Business Plan 
Poor Fair Good Excellent 

Core Indicator 1. A center-wide business plan guides day-to-day 
operations and decision-making. 
In an excellent One-Stop:  

 All frontline staff at all levels are involved in some capacity.  
 A business plan is developed regardless of whether a state or local board 

requires it. 
 Frontline staff and all partners are involved in business plan development. 
 Progress on implementation of the business plan is the basis for regular 

dialogue with the local board regarding One-Stop quality. 
Rationale – why did you rate yourselves as you did? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Continuous improvement – what is one thing you can do to move towards 
excellence? 
 
 
 
 

    

180



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 94 

We rate ourselves as: Critical Success Factor 9: Develop a Business Plan 
Poor Fair Good Excellent 

Core Indicator 2. The business plan is reviewed and updated regularly.  

In an excellent One-Stop:  

 The business plan is a flexible, living document that guides day-to-day 
operations and is regularly reviewed for continued relevance. 

 Staff don’t wait for a state or local board to demand a business plan update.  
They update the plan when they identify it needs to be done.  At a minimum, 
the plan is reviewed and updated annually.   The plan is completely re-done 
if a new partner comes into the One-Stop.  This is partly because the 
business now looks different, but also partly because the new partner may 
need to be involved in creating the plan to know and accept where they fit 
into it 

 All frontline staff have a copy of the business plan.  Management regularly 
updates the staff on the progress of implementation of the business plan. 

Rationale – why did you rate yourselves as you did? 
 
 
 
 
 
Continuous improvement – what is one thing you can do to move towards 
excellence? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

    

181



Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 95 

We rate ourselves as: Critical Success Factor 10: Measure Progress and Outcomes 
Poor Fair Good Excellent 

Core Indicator 1. Center-wide measures are used in One-Stop and program 
management, supported by integrated information systems to which 
multiple program partners have access. 
In an excellent One-Stop:  

Center-wide measures are developed regardless of whether the state or
local board requires them.

Measures are collaboratively developed in a partnership of the state and
local board and the One-Stop partners. The partners should see the
indicators as a valuable tool to help them manage continuous improvement,
rather than as an unfunded mandate that carries the threat of sanctions for
perceived failure.

Center measures are few in number, easily identified by staff.

Measures provide trend information that allows a One-Stop to gauge its
progress over time.

The measures are used by management not only to observe whether the
system is on course, but also as a means of communication.  The indicators
clarify policy direction and priorities, and allow employees to direct their
energy toward desired results

Performance indicators help management make tactical choices that keeps
the One-Stop on course to achieving the vision.

All partner and frontline staff know what the current status is on attainment of
the measures.

The measures help formulate thinking about evaluation beyond silo federal
performance standards.

The measures allow One-Stops to benchmark themselves against other
areas by sharing measurement tools and approaches.

182



Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 96 

We rate ourselves as: Critical Success Factor 10: Measure Progress and Outcomes 
Poor Fair Good Excellent 

Rationale – why did you rate yourselves as you did? 

Continuous improvement – what is one thing you can do to move towards 
excellence? 

We rate ourselves as: Critical Success Factor 11: Market the One-Stop 
Poor Fair Good Excellent 

Core Indicator 1. Clear brand identity exists or is under development.  
In an excellent One-Stop:  

The One-Stop must be certified or chartered for excellence before being
allowed to use the brand name to protect how the public associates the
name with quality.
A style guide exists for use of the brand name and/or logo.
The brand name is the most prominent name on the facility.   If any partner
names are used, they are much smaller.
Partner agreements spell out how the brand name will be used.
The brand name carries through to internal signage, business cards,
stationary, and staff name tags.
There is a marketing budget to market the brand name.  All partners
contribute to the marketing budget.  Their contributions may be “in kind;” for
example, “piggy-back marketing where partners market the One-Stop at the
same time they are marketing their own programs.

183



 

Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 97 

We rate ourselves as: Critical Success Factor 11: Market the One-Stop 
Poor Fair Good Excellent 

 There is a marketing team responsible for providing development and 
oversight of marketing strategies.  The team includes members from multiple 
partners.   

 The roles of the board and the One-Stop in marketing the brand name are 
clearly defined. 

Rationale – why did you rate yourselves as you did? 
 
 
 
 
Continuous improvement – what is one thing you can do to move towards 
excellence? 
 
 
 
 

 

We rate ourselves as: OVERALL RATING ON ONE-STOP DESIGN AND 
MANAGEMENT: Poor Fair Good Excellent 
     

184



Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 98 

VI. Application

Implementation Options and Decision Points 
here are numerous decisions that must be made within a field of 
implementation options.  Before designing criteria and creating policy, 

state and local boards have many decisions to make.  Answering these 
questions up-front sets the stage.  It may be easier for people to concentrate 
on developing criteria if they first agree on the “rules of the game” in which 
the criteria will be applied. 

1. Who will be the driver of the process?  Who owns the franchise?
Options include:
• The state
• The local boards
• Local governments
• A collaboration between the above

2. What should be the state’s level of involvement?  Options include:
• State expects credentialing; vision and criteria are up to locals.
• State sets vision – locals interpret and develop criteria.
• State sets minimum criteria; local boards make additions.

3. What framing will be used for the quality criteria?  Options include:
• Baldrige (Malcolm Baldrige National Quality Award. See

www.quality.nist.gov)
• Mixture of Baldrige and other frames.
• Adoption of other existing frameworks such as CARF (Commission

on Accreditation of Rehabilitation Facilities.  See www.carf.org)
• Unique state or locally developed frameworks.

4. How many levels of quality are possible?  Options include:
• Just one; a One-Stop either meets the criteria or it doesn’t.
• Multiple levels are available to which a One-Stop may strive.

5. How will satellite sites be handled?  Options include:
• Satellite sites apply individually for certification or quality

recognition.
• Satellites must be linked to comprehensive sites; comprehensive

One-Stops are evaluated in part by how they establish and ensure
quality in their branch locations.

T

185



Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 99 

6. Who is eligible to apply for high quality status?
• The process is non-competitive and limited to current players.
• The process is non-competitive and open to any entity or

consortium of entities that feels it can meet the criteria.
• The process is competitive; only a set number of sites can be

awarded high quality status.
• A mixture of the above; some sites may be evaluated on a non-

competitive basis and others on a competitive basis, even within
the same workforce area.

7. What are the consequences for not meeting criteria?
• Mandatory technical assistance.
• Loss of use of the brand name.
• Loss of use of certain resources.
• Closure of the site.

8. What is the process by which an entity or consortium of entities
applies for high quality status?
• A business plan where there is both desktop review of the plan

plus on-site observation.
• A simple application where the evaluation itself is done completely

through on-site observation and review of existing administrative
records.

• A response to an RFP in a competitive situation.

Lessons Learned from Others    
f you are just now embarking on defining criteria for One-Stop quality, 
lessons learned from others who have engaged in this process may prove 

valuable.   If you have already engaged in the process of establishing and 
implementing criteria, the lessons learned may be used for reflection to 
determine whether the process needs to be revisited and revamped. 

Corporation for a Skilled Workforce (CSW) surveyed local boards and One-
Stop operators around the country on behalf of the Chicago Workforce Board 
to learn how they perceived the process of developing and using quality 
criteria (specifically in the context of certification or chartering), and what 
they would recommend to others.  Additionally, CSW interviewed private 
sector franchisors and franchisees who live in a world where well-defined 
criteria are key to staying in business.  There are striking similarities between 
the One-Stop certification/chartering process and private sector franchising.  
The findings included: 

I

186



Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 100 

The involvement of top leadership is important. The process cannot
be assigned to just staff.   Private sector businesses indicated that top
leadership involvement from the corporate level is critical, and that
during site visits and training sessions, the president and key
executives are visible and vocal.   WIB respondents to the survey
emphasized the importance of board member participation.
The board, board staff, and partners must work together to develop
the criteria. This requires time, energy, and consensus building.
Additionally, input should be sought from employer and job seeker
customers. This is no different than what private sector firms do when
developing quality standards.  The widely used International
Organization for Standardization (ISO) standards are developed on the
consensus principle.  The views of all interests are taken into account:
manufacturers, vendors and users, consumer groups, testing
laboratories, governments, engineers, and research organizations.
Government is not the only sector that must acknowledge a wide array
of stakeholders!
Criteria should be revisited and revised on a regular basis.
Establishing criteria is not a one-time event.   Sixty-seven percent (67%)
of WIB respondents to the survey indicated that they “raised the bar”
for One-Stops to retain a charter. Again, this is parallel to private sector
experience.  ISO standards require periodic revision.  Factors that can
render a standard out of date include technological evolution, new
methods and materials, and new quality requirements.
Support must be provided to the field (new owners/new operators).
The private sector reports that supporting new franchisees is essential,
and various positions have been created to lend the support and
oversight needed to make the franchisee successful.  Some of the WIBs
who created strong chartering processes have assigned staff to exactly
the same charge.
Intermittent quality assessments must be done during the charter or
certification period. One corporation established a compliance officer
position to make sure quality standards are adhered to.  One WIB
indicated that they contract with an independent CPA to monitor for
quality improvement and adherence to the criteria.
Consequences must be enforced if criteria are not met. Franchising is
a collaborative model where both parties have a vested interest in
success.   To protect the brand name, however, the franchise rights
may be taken away if quality standards are not maintained.   Similarly,
boards must be in a position to act if a One-Stop fails to meet quality
criteria.  Due to the nature of One-Stops and the political environment,
however, boards are rarely in a position to close an office.  The

187



Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 101 

consequences they impose for failure to meet or maintain criteria range 
from mandated technical assistance, to loss of the brand name, to 
competitive procurement of a new operator. 
The process should include preparing a feedback report to the One-
Stop operator.   Operators almost unanimously found the feedback
report useful in helping them target where to invest the most energy in
making improvements.

None of these steps may be taken lightly.  There is a significant investment of 
time and resources needed to: 

Facilitate local consensus building around defining criteria.
Conduct training for local partners on the final criteria to ensure
understanding.
Develop a process by which operators (existing or aspiring) can apply
for certification status.  The process should take the form of a business
plan framework to which the applicant responds.  The process must
include dates, eligibility status to apply, a description of the review
procedures, consequences for failure to attain and maintain
certification status, and the duration of the certification/chartering
period.
Develop a process for reviewing applications and conducting on-site
reviews.
Develop a self-assessment tool that is customized to the state or local
area’s unique criteria.
Develop a scoring tool for making certification decisions.
Identify and train a review team.
Conduct reviews.
Develop feedback reports to the applicants.
Plan for on-going, regularly scheduled quality dialogues between the
board and operator(s) to review the status of the business plan and
continuous improvement practices.
Develop a long-term schedule for revisiting and revising the criteria
and conducting re-certification processes.

There is no magic bullet or precise formula for creating a good One-Stop.  
One-Stops are “good” within their local context, and only if their customers 
and stakeholders say they are.   Creating quality systems requires a 
tremendous investment of time and energy, and is a never-ending process.   
The results, however, are well worth the effort.

188



Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 102 

Appendix A:  One-Stop Quality Resources 
he following are resources that may be of benefit to state and local boards 
and One-Stop partners: 

1. “Benchmarking One-Stop Centers:  Understanding Keys to Success;”
April 2002.  Prepared by the Corporation for a Skilled Workforce in
partnership with Leaders in Excellence for four Illinois workforce
boards.  Describes the original critical success factors identified in a
study of 20 One-Stops around the country.  Available at
www.skilledwork.org.

2. The Workforce Excellence Network website at www.workforce-
network.net .  The site includes a “Promising Practices Portal,” a
technical assistance provider resource bank, a list of performance
excellence resources, a description of National Workforce
Development Customer Service Awards, a state quality award map,
and “leadership links.”

3. The Simply Better! line of books published by the Workforce Excellence
Network that included a guidebook for conducting self-assessments
and workbooks for each of the seven Baldrige categories of
organizational behavior. The books are not available electronically at
this time.  They were widely distributed through the workforce
system, however, and hard copies are likely to be found with a little
exploring.

4. “Strengths and Challenges of the Chartering Concept;” an analysis
prepared for the Chicago Workforce Board by the Corporation for a
Skilled Workforce, October 18, 2002.  Includes the results of a survey
of WIBs and One-Stop operators regarding their quality chartering
experiences.  Available through the CSW website at
www.skilledwork.org

5. “Overview of State Certification/Chartering Criteria for One-Stop
Career Centers;” January 30, 1997; an old but still interesting survey of
state practices by Social Policy Research Associates, 200 Middlefield
Road, Suite 100, Menlo Park, CA.

6. “Workforce Investment Act: One-Stop Centers Implemented
Strategies to Strengthen Services and Partnerships, but More Research
and Information Sharing is Needed;” GAO-03-725, June 18, 2003.
GAO’s study of promising practices at 14 sites around the country.
Available at www.gao.gov.

7. Chartering criteria for the North Carolina JobLink Career Center
system; available at www.ncjoblink.com

T

189



Guide to Improving One-Stops through Benchmarked Critical Success Factors / Page 103 

8. “One-Stop Innovations: Leading Change Under the WIA One-Stop
System;” promising One-Stop practices described for 13 sites by
location.  Available from the John J. Heldrich Center for Workforce
Development at Rutgers University, www.heldrich.rutgers.edu

9. “Employment and Community Services Standards Manual” July 2003-
June 2004.  Outlines criteria needed for One-Stop Career Center
certification by CARF.  Available from the Commission on
Accreditation of Rehabilitation Facilities, Inc., www.carf.org

10. “Best Practices in One-Stop Career Centers;” two case studies done by
the Public Sector Labor Management Committee; available at
http://www.workingforamerica.org/documents/bestpracticesonesto
p.htm

190



 Attachment B 

1 

Checklist for Compliance with Section 503 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 
As Amended  

INTRODUCTION 

Note: this checklist should not be used as a substitute for contractors reviewing their regulatory 
requirements and other guidance provided by the Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs 
(OFCCP), which enforces Section 503.  Further, using this checklist does not guarantee or equate to 
compliance with the regulations. 

Purpose of Section 503: 

The Section 503 regulations set forth the standards for compliance with section 503 of the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. 793), which prohibits discrimination against 
individuals with disabilities and requires Government contractors and subcontractors to take 
affirmative action to employ and advance in employment qualified individuals with disabilities. 
[60.741.1] 

Definition of Disability from Section 503: 

The term disability means, with respect to an individual: 

(i) A physical or mental impairment that substantially limits one or more major life
activities of such individual;

(ii) A record of such an impairment; or
(iii) Being regarded as having such an impairment.

General purpose of Section 503’s Subpart C, Affirmative Action Program: 

An affirmative action program is a management tool designed to ensure equal employment 
opportunity and foster employment opportunities for individuals with disabilities. An affirmative 
action program institutionalizes the contractor's commitment to equality in every aspect of 
employment and is more than a paperwork exercise. An affirmative action program is dynamic 
in nature and includes measurable objectives, quantitative analyses, and internal auditing and 
reporting systems that measure the contractor's progress toward achieving equal employment 
opportunity for individuals with disabilities. 

Applicability of Section 503 Regulation in General and Subpart C, Affirmative Action Program 
Requirements in Particular:   

The Section 503 regulations apply to all government contracts and subcontracts in excess of 
$15,000 for the purchase, sale or use of personal property or nonpersonal services (including 
construction, but not federally assisted construction). [60-741.1(b)] 

191



 Attachment B 

2 

The requirements of Subpart C of the Section 503 rule pertaining to written affirmative action 
program requirements apply to every government contractor that has 50 or more employees 
and a federal contract of $50,000 or more.  [60-741.40(b)] 

192



 Attachment B 

3 

Checklist for Compliance with Section 503 Subpart C, Affirmative Action Program: 

The following Section 503 Subpart C, Affirmative Action Program Checklist is organized to assist 
federal contractors with 50 or more employees and a contract of $50,000 or more to benchmark 
their current activities against Section 503, Subpart C Affirmative Action Program requirements.  
By comparing their current activities against the regulatory requirements, federal contractors 
can develop an Affirmative Action Program that ensures equal employment opportunity and 
fosters employment opportunities for individuals with disabilities. 

The checklist is organized by the Subpart C, Affirmative Action Program section numbers. The 
questions are derived from the associated regulatory language.  Please note, this checklist 
should not be used as a substitute for contractors reviewing their regulatory requirements and 
other guidance provided by the Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs (OFCCP), which 
enforces Section 503.  Further, using this checklist does not guarantee or equate to compliance 
with the regulations. 

193



 Attachment B 

4 

Checklist for Compliance with Section 503 of the Rehabilitation Act of 
1973, As Amended 

Subpart C, Affirmative Action Program 

Regulation 
Section 

Regulation 
Title 

Compliance Questions Compliance 
Responses 

§ 60-
741.40(b)

Applicability of 
the affirmative 
action program. 

A. Is your organization developing and maintaining an affirmative
action program at each establishment within 120 days of the
commencement of a federal contract?

B. Does your affirmative action program set forth your policies and
procedures in accordance with Section 503, Subpart C?

C. Is your affirmative action program for Section 503, integrated into
(not required) other affirmative action programs?

A. ___YES ___NO

B. ___YES ___NO

C. ___YES ___NO

§ 60-
741.40(b)

Applicability of 
the affirmative 
action program. 

A. Does your organization's designated official review and update the
affirmative action program on an annual basis?

A. ___YES ,
date of next
review____
B. ___NO

§ 60-741.41
Availability of 
affirmative 
action program. 

A. Does your organization make your affirmative action program
(absent data metrics) available to employees or applicants for
inspection upon request?

B. Does your organization post at each establishment the location and
hours during which the program may be obtained?

A. ___YES ___NO

B. ___YES ___NO

§ 60-
741.42(a)

Invitation to 
Self-Identify: 
Pre-Offer. 

A. Does your organization invite each applicant at the pre-offer stage
(i.e., when the applicant applies or is considered for employment) to
voluntarily self-identify as an individual with a disability?

B. If the invitation to self-identify is included with the application
materials, is it separate from the application?

A. ___YES ___NO

B. ___YES ___NO

§ 60-
741.42(a)

Invitation to 
Self-Identify: 
Pre-Offer. 

A. Does your organization invite each applicant at the pre-offer stage
to voluntarily self-identify as an individual with a disability using the
OMB-approved form posted on the OFCCP website?
http://www.dol.gov/ofccp/regs/compliance/sec503/Voluntary_Self-
Identification_of_Disability_CC-305_SD_Edit1.24.14.pdf 

A. ___YES ___NO

§ 60-
741.42(b)

Invitation to 
Self-Identify 
Post-Offer. 

A. Does your organization invite each applicant at the post-offer stage
(i.e., after an offer has been made but before the applicant begins his
or her duties) to voluntarily self-identify as an individual with a
disability?

A. ___YES ___NO

§ 60-
741.42(b)

Invitation to 
Self-Identify 
Post-Offer 

A. Does your organization invite each applicant at the post-offer stage
to voluntarily self-identify as an individual with a disability using the
OMB-approved form posted on the OFCCP website?
http://www.dol.gov/ofccp/regs/compliance/sec503/Voluntary_Self-
Identification_of_Disability_CC-305_SD_Edit1.24.14.pdf 

A. ___YES ___NO

§ 60- Invitation to A. Does your organization invite each of your employees to voluntarily A. ___YES ___NO

194

http://www.dol.gov/ofccp/regs/compliance/sec503/Voluntary_Self-Identification_of_Disability_CC-305_SD_Edit1.24.14.pdf
http://www.dol.gov/ofccp/regs/compliance/sec503/Voluntary_Self-Identification_of_Disability_CC-305_SD_Edit1.24.14.pdf
http://www.dol.gov/ofccp/regs/compliance/sec503/Voluntary_Self-Identification_of_Disability_CC-305_SD_Edit1.24.14.pdf
http://www.dol.gov/ofccp/regs/compliance/sec503/Voluntary_Self-Identification_of_Disability_CC-305_SD_Edit1.24.14.pdf
http://www.dol.gov/ofccp/regs/compliance/sec503/Voluntary_Self-Identification_of_Disability_CC-305_SD_Edit1.24.14.pdf


 Attachment B 

5 

Regulation 
Section 

Regulation 
Title 

Compliance Questions Compliance 
Responses 

741.42(c) 

§ 60-
741.42(c)

Self-Identify: 
Employees. 

Invitation to 
Self-Identify: 
Employees. 

inform you that he or she is an individual with a disability as defined in 
§ 60-741.2(g)(1)(i) or (ii)?

B. Did your organization invite each of your employees to inform you
that he or she is an individual with a disability in the first year your
organization became subject to the 503 regulations and at five year
intervals, thereafter, using the language and manner prescribed by the
OFCCP Director and published on the OFCCP Web site?
http://www.dol.gov/ofccp/regs/compliance/sec503/Voluntary_Self-
Identification_of_Disability_CC-305_SD_Edit1.24.14.pdf 

C. Does your organization at least once during the intervening years
between these invitations, remind your employees that they may
voluntarily update their disability status?

B. ___YES ___NO

C. ___YES ___NO

§ 60-
741.42(e)

Invitation to 
Self-Identify: 
Confidentiality 

A. Does your organization keep all of the information on self-
identification confidential and ensure that it is not provided to hiring
officials?

B. Does your organization maintain self-identification records in a
separate data analysis file rather than in the personnel or medical files
of individual employees?

C. Does your organization recognize that it must provide self-
identification information to OFCCP upon request?

D. Does your organization recognize that it may only use the self-
identification information in accordance with the section 503 rule?

A. ___YES ___NO

B. ___YES ___NO

C. ___YES ___NO

D. ___YES ___NO

§ 60-
741.42(g)

Invitation to 
Self-Identify: 
Liability for 
Discrimination 

A. Does your organization understand that nothing in this section shall
relieve your organization from liability for discrimination in violation of
section 503?

A. ___YES ___NO

§ 60-741.43 Affirmative 
action policy. 

A. Does your organization's affirmative action policy include
prohibitions against discrimination because of physical or mental
disability?

B. Does your organization's affirmative action policy include taking
affirmative action to employ and advance in employment qualified
individuals with disabilities at all levels, including the executive level?

A. ___YES ___NO

B. ___YES ___NO

§ 60-
741.44(a)

Required 
contents of 
affirmative 
action programs 
– Policy
Statement

A. Does your organization have a disability-related equal opportunity
(EO) policy statement included in your affirmative action program?

B. Does your disability-related EO policy statement include language
indicating that your organization will recruit, hire, train, and promote
persons in all job titles and ensure that all other personnel actions are
administered without regard to disability and ensure that all
employment decisions are based only on valid job requirements?

A. ___YES ___NO

B. ___YES ___NO

195

http://www.dol.gov/ofccp/regs/compliance/sec503/Voluntary_Self-Identification_of_Disability_CC-305_SD_Edit1.24.14.pdf
http://www.dol.gov/ofccp/regs/compliance/sec503/Voluntary_Self-Identification_of_Disability_CC-305_SD_Edit1.24.14.pdf


 Attachment B 

6 

Regulation 
Section 

Regulation 
Title 

Compliance Questions Compliance 
Responses 

§ 60-
741.44(a)

Required 
contents of 
affirmative 
action programs 
– Policy
Statement

C. Does your disability-related EO policy statement indicate the
support of your organization's top U.S. Executive (e.g., the Chief
Executive Officer or the President of the U.S. Division of a foreign
company) for your affirmative action program?

D. Does your disability related EO policy statement provide for an
audit and reporting system?

E. Does your disability related EO policy statement assign overall
responsibility to one of your organization’s officials for the
implementation of affirmative action activities and does this official’s
identity appear on all internal and external communications regarding
the company’s affirmative action program?

F. Is the disability related EO policy statement posted on company
bulletin boards?

G. As needed, are applicants and employees with disabilities provided
the notice in a form that is accessible and understandable to the
individual with a disability, e.g., Braille, large print, or posting the
notice at a lower height for a person using a wheelchair?

C. ___YES ___NO

D. ___YES ___NO

E. ___YES ___NO

F. ___YES ___NO

G. ___YES ___NO

§ 60-
741.44(a)

Policy 
Statement 

A. Does your disability-related EO policy statement state that
employees and applicants shall not be subjected to harassment,
intimidation, threats, coercion, or discrimination because they
engaged in filing a complaint?

A. ___YES ___NO

§ 60-
741.44(a)

Policy 
Statement 

A. Does your disability-related EO policy statement state that
employees and applicants shall not be subjected to harassment,
intimidation, threats, coercion, or discrimination because they
engaged in assisting or participating in an investigation, compliance
evaluation or other activity related to the administration of section
503 or any other Federal, State, or local law requiring equal
opportunity for individual with disabilities?

A. ___YES ___NO

§ 60-
741.44(a)

Policy 
Statement 

A. Does your disability-related EO policy statement state that
employees and applicants shall not be subjected to harassment,
intimidation, threats, coercion, or discrimination because they
engaged in opposing any act or practice made unlawful by section 503
or its implementing regulations in this part, or any other Federal, State
or local law requiring equal opportunity for individuals with disabilities

A. ___YES ___NO

§ 60-
741.44(a)

Policy 
Statement 

A. Does your disability-related EO policy statement state that
employees and applicants shall not be subjected to harassment,
intimidation, threats, coercion, or discrimination because they
engaged in exercising any other right protected by section 503 or its
implementing regulations?

A. ___YES ___NO

§ 60-741.44
(b)

Review of 
personnel 

A. Does your organization ensure that its personnel processes provide
for careful, thorough, and systematic consideration of the job

A. ___YES ___NO

196



                                         Attachment B 

 

 

7 

Regulation 
Section 

Regulation 
Title 

Compliance Questions Compliance 
Responses 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
§ 60-741.44 
(b) 
 

processes. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Review of 
personnel 
processes. 

qualifications of applicants and employees with known disabilities for 
job vacancies filled either by hiring or promotion, and for all training 
opportunities offered or available? 
B. Does your organization ensure that its personnel processes do not 
stereotype individuals with disabilities in a manner which limits their 
access to all jobs for which they are qualified? 
 
 
 
C.  Does your organization ensure that applicants and employees with 
disabilities have equal access to your personnel processes, including 
those implemented through information and communication 
technologies? 
 
D. Does your organization provide reasonable accommodation to 
ensure applicants and employees with disabilities receive equal 
opportunity in the operation of personnel processes? 
 
E. Does your organization make your information and communication 
technologies generally accessible, even absent a specific request for 
reasonable accommodation? [Encouraged but not required by the 
section 503 rule] 
 
F. Does your organization recognize that it may still have to provide a 
reasonable accommodation to an applicant or employee even if your 
information and communications technologies meet general 
accessibility standards? 
 
G. Does your organization periodically review such processes and 
make any necessary modifications to ensure that these obligations are 
carried out? 
 
H. Does your organization include in in its affirmative action program a 
description of its review and any necessary modifications to personnel 
processes or development of new processes required under the 
regulations?   
 
I. Does your organization have procedures that facilitate a review of 
the implementation of this requirement by your organization? 

 
 
 
B. ___YES ___NO 
 
 
 
 
 
C. ___YES ___NO 
 
 
 
 
D. ___YES ___NO 
 
 
 
E. ___YES ___NO 
 
 
 
 
F.  ___YES ___NO 
 
 
 
 
G. ___YES ___NO 
 
 
 
H. ___YES ___NO 
 
 
 
 
I.   ___YES __NO 
 

§ 60-
741.44(c) 

Physical and 
mental 
qualifications. 

A. Does your organization have in its affirmative action program, and 
do you adhere to, a schedule for the review of all physical and mental 
job qualification standards to ensure that, to the extent qualification 
standards tend to screen out qualified individuals with disabilities, 
they are job-related for the position in question and are consistent 
with business necessity?  

 

A. ___YES ___NO 
 

§ 60-
741.44(c) 
 

Physical and 
mental 
qualifications. 
 

A. Does your organization ensure that the physical or mental 
qualification standards it uses (whether for hiring, promotion, training, 
or other change in employment status), to the extent they tend to 
screen out qualified individuals with disabilities, are consistent with 

A. ___YES ___NO 
 
 
 

197



 Attachment B 

8 

Regulation 
Section 

Regulation 
Title 

Compliance Questions Compliance 
Responses 

business necessity and related to the specific job or jobs?  

B. Does your organization understand that if a qualification standard
screens out, or tends to screen out, qualified individuals with
disabilities it has the burden to demonstrate that the standard is job –
related and consistent with business necessity?

B. ___YES ___NO

§ 60-
741.44(d)

§ 60-
741.44(d)

Reasonable 
accommodation 
to physical and 
mental 
limitations. 
Reasonable 
accommodation 
to physical and 
mental 
limitations. 

A. As a matter of nondiscrimination, does your organization make
reasonable accommodation to the known physical or mental
limitations of an otherwise qualified individual with a disability unless
you can demonstrate that the accommodation would impose an
undue hardship on the operation of your business?
B. As a matter of affirmative action, if an employee with a known
disability is having significant difficulty performing his or her job and it
is reasonable to conclude that the performance problem may be
related to the known disability, does your organization confidentially
notify the employee of the performance problem and inquire whether
the problem is related to the employee's disability?

C. If the employee responds affirmatively, does your organization
confidentially inquire whether the employee is in need of a reasonable
accommodation?

A. ___YES ___NO

B. ___YES ___NO

C. ___YES ___NO

§ 60-
741.44(d)

Reasonable 
accommodation 
to physical and 
mental 
limitations. 

A. Does your organization have written reasonable accommodation
procedures?  (**These are not required but are considered a best
practice.)

A. ___YES ___NO

§ 60-
741.44(e)

Harassment. A. Has your organization developed procedures to ensure that its
employees are not harassed on the basis of disability?

B. Has your organization implemented procedures to ensure that its
employees are not harassed on the basis of disability?

A. ___YES ___NO

B. ___YES ___NO

§ 60-
741.44(f)

External 
dissemination of 
policy, outreach 
and positive 
recruitment. 

A. Does your organization undertake appropriate outreach and
recruitment activities such as those listed below that are reasonably
designed to effectively recruit qualified individuals with disabilities?

B. Does your organization send written notification of company policy
related to its affirmative action efforts to all subcontractors, including
subcontracting vendors and suppliers, requesting appropriate action
on their part?

Examples of Outreach and Recruitment Activities: 

A. ___YES ___NO

B. ___YES ___NO

A. ___YES ___NO

198



 Attachment B 

9 

Regulation 
Section 

Regulation 
Title 

Compliance Questions Compliance 
Responses 

A. Has your organization enlisted the assistance and support of local,
state and national organizations in recruiting and developing on the
job training opportunities for individuals with disabilities to fulfill your
commitment to provide equal employment opportunity for individuals
with disabilities?

§ 60-
741.44(f)

§ 60-
741.44(f)

External 
dissemination of 
policy, outreach 
and positive 
recruitment. 

External 
dissemination of 
policy, outreach 
and positive 
recruitment. 

Examples of Activities (continued) 

Has your organization enlisted the assistance and support in your area 
of:  
A. State vocational rehabilitation agency?

B. State mental health agency?

C. State developmental disability agency?

A. ___YES ___NO

B. ___YES ___NO

C. ___YES ___NO

§ 60-
741.44(f)

External 
dissemination of 
policy, outreach 
and positive 
recruitment. 

Examples of Practices (continued) 

Has your organization enlisted the assistance and support in your area 
of:  
A. Employment One-Stop Career Center (One-Stop) or American Job
Center?

A. ___YES ___NO

§ 60-
741.44(f)

External 
dissemination of 
policy, outreach 
and positive 
recruitment. 

Examples of Practices (continued) 

Has your organization enlisted the assistance and support in your area 
of:  

A. The Department of Veterans Affairs Regional Office?
A. ___YES ___NO

§ 60-
741.44(f)

External 
dissemination of 
policy, outreach 
and positive 
recruitment. 

Examples of Practices (continued) 

Has your organization enlisted the assistance and support in your area: 
A. Employer Assistance and Resource Network (EARN)? A. ___YES ___NO

§ 60-
741.44(f)

External 
dissemination of 
policy, outreach 
and positive 
recruitment. 

Examples of Practices (continued) 

Has your organization enlisted the assistance and support in your area 
of:  
A. Local Employment Network Organizations? A. ___YES ___NO

§ 60-
741.44(f)

External 
dissemination of 
policy, outreach 
and positive 
recruitment. 

Examples of Practices (continued) 
Has your organization enlisted the assistance and support in your area 
of:  
A. Local disability groups or organizations?

B. Centers for Independent Living (CIL)?

A. ___YES ___NO

B. ___YES ___NO

199



                                         Attachment B 

 

 

10 

Regulation 
Section 

Regulation 
Title 

Compliance Questions Compliance 
Responses 

§ 60-
741.44(f) 

External 
dissemination of 
policy, outreach 
and positive 
recruitment. 

Examples of Practices (continued) 
 
Has your organization enlisted the assistance and support in your area 
of:  
A. Placement or career offices of educational institutions that 
specialize in the placement of individuals with disabilities? 

 
 
 
 
A. ___YES ___NO 
 

§ 60-
741.44(f) 
 

External 
dissemination of 
policy, outreach 
and positive 
recruitment. 
 

Examples of Practices (continued) 
Has your organization enlisted the assistance and support in your area 
of:  
A. Private recruitment sources, such as professional organizations or 
employment placement services that specialize in the placement of 
individuals with disabilities? 

 
 
 
A. ___YES ___NO 
 

§ 60-
741.44(f) 
 
 
 
 
§ 60-
741.44(f) 
 

External 
dissemination of 
policy, outreach 
and positive 
recruitment. 
 
External 
dissemination of 
policy, outreach 
and positive 
recruitment. 
 
 

Examples of Practices (continued) 
 
A. Has your organization held (or planning to hold) formal briefing 
sessions, preferably on company premises, with representatives from 
recruiting sources? 
 
B. Do the formal briefing sessions your organization has organized (or 
is planning to organize) for representatives from recruiting sources 
include:  
• B1 Facility tours,  
• B2 Clear and concise explanations of current and future job 
openings, position descriptions, and worker specifications,  
• B3 Explanations of the company's selection process, and  
• B4 Recruiting literature?   
 
C. Is your organization’s official in charge of your affirmative action 
program in attendance (or planning to be in attendance) at briefing 
sessions for recruiting sources?  
 
D. Is your organization developing (or planning to develop) formal 
arrangements with recruiting sources for: 
• D1 referral of applicants,  
• D2 follow up with sources, and  
• D3 feedback on disposition of applicants? 

 
 
A. ___YES ___NO 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B1. __YES ___NO 
B2. __YES ___NO 
 
B3. __YES ___NO 
B4. __YES ___NO 
 
C.   __YES ___NO 
 
 
 
 
 
D1. __YES ___NO 
D2.  __YES ___NO 
D3.  __YES ___NO 
 

§ 60-
741.44(f) 

External 
dissemination of 
policy, outreach 
and positive 
recruitment. 

Examples of Practices (continued) 
 
A. Do your organization’s recruitment efforts at all educational 
institutions incorporate specific efforts to reach students who are 
individuals with disabilities? 

 
 
A.  __YES ___NO 
 

§ 60-
741.44(f) 

External 
dissemination of 
policy, outreach 
and positive 
recruitment. 

Examples of Practices (continued) 
 
A. Is your organization making an effort to participate in work-study 
programs for students, trainees, or interns with disabilities?  

 
 
A. ___YES ___NO 
 

§ 60-
741.44(f) 

External 
dissemination of 
policy, outreach 

Examples of Practices (continued) 
 
A. Are individuals with disabilities made available for participation in 

 
 
A. ___YES ___NO 

200



                                         Attachment B 

 

 

11 

Regulation 
Section 

Regulation 
Title 

Compliance Questions Compliance 
Responses 

and positive 
recruitment. 

career days, youth motivation programs, and related activities in their 
communities? 

 

 

§ 60-
741.44(f) 

External 
dissemination of 
policy, outreach 
and positive 
recruitment. 

Examples of Practices (continued) 
 
A. Does your organization take any other positive steps it deems 
necessary to attract individuals with disabilities not currently in the 
work force who have requisite skills and can be recruited through 
affirmative action measures? 

 

 
 
A. ___YES ___NO 
 

§ 60-
741.44(f) 

External 
dissemination of 
policy, outreach 
and positive 
recruitment. 

Examples of Practices (continued) 
 
A. When making hiring decisions, does your organization consider 
applicants who are known to have disabilities for all available positions 
for which they may be qualified when the position(s) applied for is 
unavailable? 

 
 
A. ___YES ___NO 
 

§ 60-
741.44(f) 
 
 
 
§ 60-
741.44(f) 

External 
dissemination of 
policy, outreach 
and positive 
recruitment. 
External 
dissemination of 
policy, outreach 
and positive 
recruitment. 

A. Does your organization on an annual basis review the outreach and 
recruitment efforts it has taken over the previous 12 months to 
evaluate their effectiveness in identifying and recruiting qualified 
individuals with disabilities? 
 
B. Does your organization document each evaluation, including at a 
minimum, the criteria it used to evaluate the effectiveness of each 
effort and the contractor's conclusion as to whether each effort was 
effective? 
 
C. Does your organization maintain the two previous questions’ data 
on the effectiveness of each of its outreach and recruitment efforts for 
the current year and the two most recent previous years?  
 
D. In light of these regulations, does your organization reasonably 
conclude that the totality of its outreach efforts are effective? 
 
E. If your organization concludes that the totality of its efforts were 
not effective in identifying and recruiting qualified individuals with 
disabilities, does it identify and implement alternative efforts as listed 
in 60-741.44 (f)(1) or (f)(2) of the regulation in order to fulfill its 
obligations? 

A. ___YES ___NO 
 
 
 
 
B. ___YES ___NO 
 
 
 
 
C. ___YES ___NO 
 
 
 
D. ___YES ___NO 
 
 
E. ___YES ___NO 
 

§ 60-
741.44(f) 

External 
dissemination of 
policy, outreach 
and positive 
recruitment. 

A. Does your organization adhere to the recordkeeping obligation of 
the affirmative action program by documenting all activities it 
undertakes to comply with the obligations of this section? 
 
B. Does your organization retain these documents for a period of three 
(3) years? 

A. ___YES ___NO 
 
 
 
B. ___YES ___NO 
 

§ 60-
741.44(g) 

Internal 
dissemination of 
policy. 

A. Does your organization internally communicate its affirmative 
action obligation to create a strong outreach program to employ and 
advance in employment individuals with disabilities? 
 
B. Are activities to create a strong outreach program to employ and 
advance in employment individuals with disabilities supported by 

A. ___YES ___NO 
 
 
 
B. ___YES ___NO 
 

201



 Attachment B 

12 

Regulation 
Section 

Regulation 
Title 

Compliance Questions Compliance 
Responses 

executive, management, supervisory and other employees? 
§ 60-
741.44(g)

Internal 
dissemination of 
policy. 

A. Is the obligation to create a strong outreach program to employ and
advance in employment individuals with disabilities included in your
policy manual?

B. If no, have you made the policy available to your employees by
other means?

A. ___YES ___NO

B. ___YES ___NO

§ 60-
741.44(g)

Internal 
dissemination of 
policy. 

A. If your company is party to a collective bargaining agreement, have
you notified union officials and/or employee representatives of your
obligation to engage in affirmative action efforts to employ and
advance in employment qualified individuals with disabilities and
requested their cooperation?

A. ___YES ___NO

§ 60-
741.44(g)

§ 60-
741.44(g)

Internal 
dissemination of 
policy. 

Internal 
dissemination of 
policy. 

A. Have you informed all employees and prospective employees of
your commitment to engage in affirmative action efforts to employ
and advance in employment qualified individuals with disabilities?
(This practice and the remainder of the practices described below
under internal dissemination of policy are encouraged but not
required.)

B. Are you periodically scheduling meetings with all employees to
inform them of your commitment to engage in affirmative action
efforts to employ and advance in employment qualified individuals
with disabilities?

C. Have you explained individual employees’ responsibilities to engage
in affirmative action efforts to employ and advance in employment
qualified individuals with disabilities?

A. ___YES ___NO

B. ___YES ___NO

C. ___YES ___NO

§ 60-
741.44(g)

Internal 
dissemination of 
policy. 

A. Have you publicized your commitment to engage in affirmative
action efforts to employ and advance in employment qualified
individuals with disabilities in your company newspaper, magazine,
annual report and other media?

A. ___YES ___NO

§ 60-
741.44(g)

Internal 
dissemination of 
policy. 

A. Have you conducted specific meetings with executive,
management, and supervisory personnel to explain the intent of your
commitment to engage in affirmative action efforts to employ and
advance in employment qualified individuals with disabilities and
individuals’ responsibility for effective implementation making clear
the chief executive officer's support for the affirmative action policy?

A. ___YES ___NO

§ 60-
741.44(g)

Internal 
dissemination of 
policy. 

A. Have you discussed your commitment to engage in affirmative
action efforts to employ and advance in employment qualified
individuals with disabilities in both employee orientation and
management training programs?

A. ___YES ___NO

§ 60-
741.44(g)

Internal 
dissemination of 
policy. 

A. Are you including articles on accomplishments of individuals with
disabilities in company publications?

A. ___YES ___NO

§ 60-
741.44(g)

Internal 
dissemination of 
policy. 

A. When employees are featured in employee handbooks or similar
publications for employees, is your organization including individuals
with disabilities?

B. Are all of these procedures and activities to engage in affirmative
action efforts to employ and advance in employment qualified

A. ___YES ___NO

B. ___YES ___NO

202



 Attachment B 

13 

Regulation 
Section 

Regulation 
Title 

Compliance Questions Compliance 
Responses 

individuals with disabilities designed to foster understanding, 
acceptance and support among your organization’s executive, 
management, supervisory, and other employees and to encourage 
such persons to take the necessary actions to aid your organization in 
meeting this obligation? 

§ 60-
741.44(h)

Audit and 
Reporting 
System. 

A. Has your organization designed and implemented an audit and
reporting system to measure the effectiveness of your affirmative
action program to employ and advance in employment qualified
individuals with disabilities?

A. ___YES ___NO

§ 60-
741.44(h)

Audit and 
Reporting 
System. 

A. Does your audit and reporting system measure the effectiveness of
your affirmative action program?

A. ___YES ___NO

§ 60-
741.44(h)

Audit and 
Reporting 
System. 

A. Does your organization’s audit and reporting system indicate any
need for remedial action?

A. ___YES ___NO

§ 60-
741.44(h)

Audit and 
Reporting 
System. 

A. Does your organization’s audit and reporting system determine the
degree to which your affirmative action objectives have been
attained?

A. ___YES ___NO

§ 60-
741.44(h)

Audit and 
Reporting 
System. 

A. Does your organization’s audit and reporting system determine
whether known individuals with disabilities have had the opportunity
to participate in all company sponsored educational, training,
recreational, and social activities?

A. ___YES ___NO

§ 60-
741.44(h)

Audit and 
Reporting 
System. 

A. Does your organization’s audit and reporting system measure your
compliance with the affirmative action program's specific obligations?

A. ___YES ___NO

§ 60-
741.44(h)

Audit and 
Reporting 
System. 

Does your organization document the actions taken to comply with 
these audit and reporting obligations? And does your organization 
retain these documents as employment records subject to the 
recordkeeping requirements of § 60-741.80? 

A. ___YES ___NO

§ 60-
741.44(h)

Audit and 
Reporting 
System. 

A. Did your organization undertake necessary action to bring the
affirmative action program into compliance if it was found to be
deficient as a result of the self-audit?

A. ___YES ___NO

§ 60-741.44(i) Responsibility 
for 
implementation. 

A. Has your organization assigned an official of your organization to be
responsible for implementation of your affirmative action activities to
employ and advance in employment qualified individuals with
disabilities?

B. Does the assigned official’s identity appear on all internal and
external communications regarding the company's affirmative action
program?

C. Has this official been given necessary senior management support
and staff to manage the implementation of the affirmative action
program?

A. ___YES ___NO

B. ___YES ___NO

C. ___YES ___NO

§ 60-741.44(j) Training. A. Has your organization trained all personnel involved in the A. ___YES ___NO

203



                                         Attachment B 

 

 

14 

Regulation 
Section 

Regulation 
Title 

Compliance Questions Compliance 
Responses 

recruitment, screening, selection, promotion, disciplinary, and related 
processes to ensure implementation of the commitments in the 
contractor's affirmative action program? 
 

 

§ 60-
741.44(k) 

Data Collection 
Analysis. 

Does your organizations document the following computations and 
comparisons on an annual basis and maintained these data for a 
period of 3 years? 
 

A. The number of applicants who self-identified as individuals 
with disabilities pursuant to § 60-741.42(a), or who are 
otherwise known to be individuals with disabilities 
 

B. The total number of job openings and total number of jobs 
filled 
 

C. The total number of applicants for all jobs 
 

D. The number of applicants with disabilities hired for all jobs 
 

E. The total number of applicants hired for all jobs 

 
 
 
 
A. ___YES ___NO 
 
 
 
B. ___YES ___NO 
 
 
C. ___YES ___NO 
 
D. ___YES ___NO 
 
E. ___YES ___NO 
 

§ 60-
741.45(a) 

Goal. If organization has 100 or fewer employees: 
A. Does your organization either apply a 7% utilization goal across the 
entire workforce OR for each job group (or trade group) in the 
organization’s workforce?   
 
If organization has more than 100 employees:   

A. Does your organization apply a 7% utilization goal for each 
job group (or trade group) in the organization’s workforce? 
 

 
A. ___YES ___NO 
 
 
 
 
A. ___YES ___NO 
 

§ 60-
741.45(d) 

Utilization 
analysis. 

 If organization is applying utilization goals for each job group (see 
above). 
 
A. Is your organization applying the same job groups established for 
utilization analysis under Executive Order 11246, either in accordance 
with the supply and service contractor requirements at 41 CFR 60-
2.12, or in accordance with the construction contractor requirements 
at 41 CFR part 60-4, as appropriate?   
 

 
 
 
A. ___YES ___NO 
 
  ___N/A 

§ 60-
741.45(d) 

Utilization 
analysis. 

A. Is your organization annually evaluating its utilization of individuals 
with disabilities in each job group? 
 
A. For those contractors with 100 or fewer employees, is your 
organization annually evaluating its utilization of individuals with 
disabilities in your entire workforce (permitted instead of using job 
categories)? 
 

A. ___YES ___NO 
 

§ 60-
741.45(e) 

Identification of 
problem areas. 

A. When the percentage of individuals with disabilities in one or more 
job groups, or in your organization's entire workforce, is less than the 
utilization goal, does your organization take steps to determine 

A. ___YES ___NO 
 
 

204



 Attachment B 

15 

Regulation 
Section 

Regulation 
Title 

Compliance Questions Compliance 
Responses 

whether and where impediments to equal employment opportunity 
exist? 
B. When making this determination, does your organization assess its:

B1. Personnel processes?       

B2. The effectiveness of its outreach and recruitment efforts?  

B3. The results of its affirmative action program audit?    

B4. Any other areas that might affect the success of the affirmative 
action program? 

B1. __YES ___NO 

B2. __YES ___NO 

B3. __YES ___NO 

B4. __YES ___NO 

§ 60-
741.45(f)

Action-oriented 
programs. 

A. When the organization identifies problem areas, does it develop
and execute action-oriented programs designed to correct any
identified problem areas?

A. ___YES ___NO

§ 60-
741.46(a)

Voluntary 
affirmative 
action programs 
for employees 
with disabilities. 

A. Does your organization recognize that it is permissible to develop
and implement voluntary training and employment programs for
people with disabilities?

A. ___YES ___NO

§ 60-
741.46(a)

Voluntary 
affirmative 
action programs 
for employees 
with disabilities. 

A. Does your organization have a voluntary affirmative action program
for employees with disabilities?

B. If so, does your organization include an annual report describing
your voluntary affirmative action program and the outcomes achieved
in your affirmative action program?

A. ___YES ___NO

B. ___YES ___NO
___N/A

§ 60-741.47 Sheltered 
workshops. 

A. If your organization has contracts with sheltered workshops, does it
understand that

• Contracts with sheltered workshops do not constitute
affirmative action in lieu of employment and advancement of
qualified individuals with disabilities in the contractor’s own
workforce?

• If a sheltered workshop is training people to be employees of
your organization, such trainees are not to be included in
your organization’s utilization analysis or counted toward the
7%   goal because they are not part of your organization’s s
workforce

• Only after the trainees become employees of your
organization, and are receiving the same compensation as
other employees, may you count these employees toward
your utilization goal.

B. If your organization pays some of its own employees under a FLSA
14(c) certificate, does it understand that

• If the organization has over 100 employees, it can only count

A. ___YES ___NO
___N/A

B. ___YES ___NO
___N/A

205



 Attachment B 

16 

Regulation 
Section 

Regulation 
Title 

Compliance Questions Compliance 
Responses 

these employees toward the goal for the job group in which 
they are employed. 

206



Introduction 
Most communities understand the importance of providing a more coordinated set of talent development solutions for their business. Yet so 
many still struggle with effectively integrating business services across workforce, education, and economic development. As a result, we’re 
still approaching businesses and their talent needs in silos and only reaching a small share of them. This tool challenges states and local areas 
to ask themselves: Can we be more responsive to businesses as a collective unit and how can we change what we do to make it happen?  

The self-assessment is made up of a number of indicators that, together, begin to demonstrate what a “high-performing” integrated business 
services system may look like. Most importantly, this tool is designed as a framework to focus the conversation that states and local areas 
should be having as they address this challenge.  

1. Work as a team to complete the self-assessment. For each of the factors in the sections that follow, select a rating from 1-5 that
reflects your/your team’s perspective on where your region stands. Each team member may choose to complete the assessment
individually and then convene to compare answers. Or, you may decide to complete it as a team together.

2. Leave plenty of time to engage in an honest discussion about each indicator (bulleted statements on the left), and to provide
thoughtful strategies for addressing challenges (the box on the right to write your notes).

NOTE: if you are representing a state you might decide to take this assessment from the perspective of: are you providing the 
support/guidance needed for your local and regional areas to succeed in the following indicators. 

Self-Assessment 

 a self-assessment to help states and regions drill 
down deep into how integrated and effective their business services 
are currently, and where enhancements can be made. 

Team Name: 

207





2 

Overall Ratings:  Fill in the bubbles that best describe your level of partnership, 1 – 5. ❶ = “Not at all”      ❺ = “We’re high-flying”

Notes & Overall Rating 

1. A state/regional vision exists for coordinated and
aligned business engagement/services

2. The vision is inclusive of all partners that play a role in
the regional talent pipeline from economic
development, education, and workforce development.
This includes core and key system partners from
vocational rehabilitation and adult education to
veteran’s services and TANF.

3. The notion of shared business client ownership and
accountability is institutionalized across
agencies/programs. Key to this: partners buy into the
notion that working collectively expands the breadth of
services offered to business which is a positive for all

① ②  ③  ④  ⑤   Where/How could this be strengthened? 
 RATE:  EXPLAIN  HERE:

 

208





3 

Overall Ratings:  Fill in the bubbles that best describe your level of partnership, 1 – 5. ❶ = “Not at all”      ❺ = “We’re high-flying”

Notes & Overall Rating 

1. We have access to quality regionalized labor market
information (LMI)

2. All of our key business reps have a clear understanding
of the region’s overall business and economic climate,
including key industries, business lifecycles, workforce
trends and needs

3. Partners use shared LMI data as they approach and
work with business—there is consensus among
partners on key target industries, critical occupations,
etc.

4. Business intelligence—or tracking business
engagement activity—is managed across key partners
through a Customer Relationship Management (or
related) system. Partners have access to this
information and know how to use it (including
understanding confidentiality responsibilities)

5. Business outreach representatives (across partners)
share intelligence and coordinate and strategize follow-
up. May include an organized business services team
comprised of knowledgeable partners with ability to
connect businesses to a full range of partner services

① ②  ③  ④  ⑤   Where/How could this be strengthened? 
 RATE:  EXPLAIN  HERE:

 

209





4 

Overall Ratings:  Fill in the bubbles that best describe your level of partnership, 1 – 5. ❶ = “Not at all”      ❺ = “We’re high-flying”

Notes & Overall Rating 

1. Roles and responsibilities, as it relates to business
engagement and follow up, are understood and embraced
by all partners. Coordination planning across partners
occurs regularly.

2. Our business outreach reps have the skills in building
meaningful partnerships with businesses, both individually
and in the context of multi-business industry partnerships.
Includes ability to work with businesses to effectively
validate and dig deep on talent needs

3. Outreach representatives are adept at collecting key
business needs/information when meeting with business,
maximizing their contact and providing partners with
referrals for the sake of all-encompassing solutions.
Because we do this, it minimizes touchpoints with business
limiting their “visit fatigue”

4. We have an understanding, from working with key
businesses, the natural progression/mobility of workers in all
targeted industries/occupations (i.e. career ladders/lattices)

5. We have trust with businesses and key target industries—
and an understanding of how to leverage resources—to
build innovative business-focused programs/services
including: work-based learning, apprenticeships, and other
recruitment, hiring, training, and transition services.

6. Our coordinated business services represent “the whole”
when in front of business. Follow up regularly includes
bringing in the partner/resources to address the solution.

① ②  ③  ④  ⑤   Where/How could this be strengthened? 
 RATE:  EXPLAIN  HERE:

 

210





5 

Overall Ratings:  Fill in the bubbles that best describe your level of partnership, 1 – 5. ❶ = “Not at all”      ❺ = “We’re high-flying”

Notes & Overall Rating 

1. There is an adopted shared message for
communicating to the business community the vision
and strengths of the state’s/region’s integrated
business services system

2. Services being presented to businesses—from across
partners—are not siloed or menu-driven, but focus on
delivering solutions to expressed business needs

3. Messaging centers around concepts important to
businesses including how these services will impact
profitability and productivity

4. There is a consolidated brand and it is embraced by all
partners serving businesses

① ②  ③  ④  ⑤   Where/How could this be strengthened? 
 RATE:  EXPLAIN  HERE:

 

211





6 

Overall Ratings:  Fill in the bubbles that best describe your level of partnership, 1 – 5. ❶ = “Not at all”      ❺ = “We’re high-flying”

Notes & Overall Rating 

1. Coordinated cross-partnership measures (i.e.
quantifiable goals that likely go beyond WIOA
measures) have been developed around engaging and
serving businesses

2. A regional structure is in place (e.g. cross-partner
committees, dedicated teams) to guide, implement and
sustain this work

3. An effective staffing structure exists to support both
industry sector partnerships (i.e. regional industry-wide
business engagement) and the day-to-day business
outreach operations. For some this may mean the use
of ‘industry navigators’ to support industry-wide work

4. Cross-agency training is in place to ensure all partners
are aware of the solutions inherent in this type of
approach

5. Leadership buy-in exists across partnerships for
demand-driven, coordinated services and shared
performance goals & outcomes

① ②  ③  ④  ⑤   Where/How could this be strengthened? 
 RATE:  EXPLAIN  HERE:

 

212



Page 1 of 37 

    Attachment D 

ADA Accessibility Checklist 
Table of Contents 

Introduction: ADA Accessibility Checklist .......... 1 
Parking Area .................................................... 2 
Pathways ......................................................... 5 

Accessible Route........................................... 5 
Entrance ........................................................... 7 

Interior Pathways ........................................ 11 

ADA Accessibility Checklist 

This accessibility checklist has been provided to assist in identifying 
key aspects of accessibility for site locations. It is based on the earlier 
accessibility checklist used for Oklahoma Works office locations and 
conforms to the latest accessibility guidelines contained in the 2010 
ADA Standards for Accessible Design. It has additional information to 
help guide individuals utilizing it to accurately assess a given location for 
compliance with the 2010 Standards. 

There is a provision in the 2010 Standards that allows for inchessafe 
harbor inches protections for facilities that were designed according to, 
and in compliance with, the earlier 1991 Standards. These safe harbor 
protections allow a facility that was built or altered in accordance with 
the 1991 Standards prior to March 15, 2012 to be considered compliant 
even if the elements in question do not meet the newer Standards. 
Therefore, it is necessary to have a complete history of the design of 
the facility and of the scope and dates of any alterations made to the 
facility. The safe harbor provisions you will be most concerned with in 
conducting your survey will likely be about inchesreach ranges inches 
and bathroom clear floor space measurements. 

Reach ranges specify how high, or low, elements need to be in order 
to be accessible to people using mobility devices. The 2010 ADA 
Standards require a uniform high end maximum of 48 inches and a low 
end minimum of 15 inches for any element within a facility that is not 
obstructed by having to reach across a counter, desk, cabinet or other 

Bathrooms ..................................................... 15 
Bathroom #1 ............................................... 15 
Bathroom #2 ............................................... 22 
Bathroom #3 ............................................... 28 

Additional Access ........................................... 34 
Water Fountains .......................................... 34 
Public Telephones ......................................... 35 
Fire Alarm Systems ..................................... 37 

Notes ............................................................. 37 

object. Examples of elements you will find include dispensers, hand 
dryers, light switches, etc. on the high end of the range, and electrical 
outlets, cabinets, shelves, etc. on the low end. The 1991 Standards 
permitted a high reach maximum of 54 inches for unobstructed elements 
that can be accessed from the side by an individual in a mobility device. 
Likewise, the 1991 Standards allowed a minimum of 9 inches for a 
side reach. The side reach ranges have been eliminated from the 2010 
Standards and now any unobstructed elements must be within the 48 
to 15 inch range. The 1991 Standards required 1 Van Accessible space 
for each 8, or fraction of 8, accessible spaces. The 2010 Standards 
changed that to 1 for each 6 or fraction thereof. 

While elements such as hand dryers and various dispensers will be 
encountered in bathrooms, the most critical safe harbor provision that 
will need to be considered is the measurement of clear space required 
around a toilet. The 2010 ADA Standards specify the requirement of a 
space, free of any obstructions, measuring 60 inches minimum from 
the side wall and 56 inches minimum from the back wall, be available 
at an accessible toilet to facilitate an individual feets ability to transfer 
to the toilet from a mobility device. The 1991 Standards allowed for a 
minimum of 48 inches from the side wall at a toilet and also permitted a 
sink to be placed a minimum of 36 inches from the side wall. The 2010 
Standards have eliminated the provision for having a sink installed within 
the transfer space and now requires the 60 inch minimum measurement 
from the side wall. 

213



Page 2 of 37 

    Attachment D 

# Facility: Location: Reviewer: 

# Parking Yes No # Images Comments 
1 Is there ADA 

Compliant Accessible 
Parking? 

Note: Van spaces can be 8 feet wide 
if there is an 8 foot access aisle. This 
is not preferred because some will 
park in this wider access aisle. Parking 
spaces and access aisles must have 
no slope greater than 1:48 (2%) in 
any direction. Width measurements of 
parking spaces and access aisles are 
to centerlines. 

2 Total number of 
parking spaces 
available? 

Total # of available spaces = # accessible spaces needed 
1 to 25 = 1 accessible 

26 to 50 = 2 accessible 

3 Number of accessible 
parking spaces? 

51 to 75 = 3 accessible 
76 to 100 = 4 accessible 
101 to 150 = 5 accessible 

4 Number of van 
accessible parking 
spaces? 

Note: There must be 1 van accessible 
space for each 6, or fraction of 6, 
accessible spaces. 

5 Do the accessible 
parking spaces 
have signs marked 
with the universal 
symbol indicating 
accessibility? 

Note: Signs are required by both the 
ADA Standards and Oklahoma Statute. 
Painted symbols on the ground are not 
compliant markings. 

214



Page 3 of 37 

    Attachment D 

# Facility: Location: Reviewer: 

# Parking Yes No # Images Comments 
6 Are there signs 

indicating Van 
Accessible spaces? 

Note: Signs designating van spaces 
are informative, not restrictive. 

7 Is the bottom of the 
sign at least 60 inches 
high? 

8 Are accessible parking 
spaces adjacent to 
ADA Compliant access 
aisles? 

Note: Two spaces can be served by a 
single access aisle. Angled van spaces 
must have the access aisle located 
on the passenger side of the vehicle. 
Changes in level, such as curb ramps, 
are not allowed in access aisles or 
parking spaces. 

215



Page 4 of 37 

                            Attachment D 

 

# Facility: Location: Reviewer: 
 

# Parking Yes No # Images Comments 
9 Does the access aisle 

lead to an accessible 
route to the entrance? 

  
 

 

Note: It is acceptable for the accessible 
route to pass behind parked cars but it 
is not preferable. 

10 Is there an accessible 
route to the entrance 
from other site arrival 
points, i.e. bus stops, 
sidewalks, public 
streets? 

    

216



Page 5 of 37 

    Attachment D 

# Facility: Location: Reviewer: 

Pathways 

There are several different terms that are used in referring to pathways 
in ADA accessibility. “Accessible route,” “circulation path,” “path of 
travel,” and “accessible means of egress” are the ones most commonly 
used. There is also some confusion about exactly what those terms 
signify. Generally, an Inchaccessible routeInch is the route that an 
individual with a disability will use to gain entrance to the facility. The 
Inchcirculation pathInch is where pedestrians move from one place to 
another and does not necessarily need to be accessible. A Inchpath of 
travelInch concerns pedestrian passage to altered areas. If an area has 
been altered it must comply with the ADA Standards for accessiblity and 
so must the path of travel leading to that area. The requirement to meet 

accessibility standards will also incude any restrooms, phones, drinking 
fountains, etc. along the path of travel. Finally, an Inchaccessible means 
of egress,Inch as its name implies, refers to a continuous way of travel 
from within a building that provides an accessible route to an area of 
refuge or exit, and to the public way. 

Any interior hallways serving offices must provide enough maneuvering 
room for an individual using a mobility device to enter the office. The 
required amount of space required is determined by whether or not the 
door swings in or out and whether it has a closer or latch. 

# Accessible Route Yes No # Images Comments 
1 Is there an 

accessible route 
from the accessible 
parking area to front 
entrance? 

2 Is the accessible route 
at least 36 inches 
wide? 

Note: The accessible route can narrow 
to no less than 32 inches but only for  
a maximum distance of 24 inches. 
There must also be at least 48 inches 
of distance between any narrowed 
sections. 

217



Page 6 of 37 

    Attachment D 

# Facility: Location: Reviewer: 

# Accessible Route Yes No # Images Comments 
3 Is the accessible route 

surface smooth? 
4 Is the accessible route 

surface firm? 
5 Is the accessible route 

surface slip resistant? 
6 Can a person with a 

visual disability detect 
objects protruding into 
the path with a cane? 

Note: Objects should be within 27 
inches of ground or higher than 80. 
inches. Any objects within that range 
can protrude no more than 4 inches. 
Also, be aware that sloping beams, 
walls, curved archways, or open 
stairways can be a protruding object 
hazard. 

7 Is the accessible 
route free of obstacles 
that interfere with 
accessibility? 

Note: Any changes in level greater 
than 1/4 inch (or 1/2 inch with a 1/4 
inch bevel at the top) or horizontal 
gaps wider than 1/2 inch are not 
allowed. 

218



Page 7 of 37 

    Attachment D 

# Facility: Location: Reviewer: 

# Entrance Yes No # Images Comments 
1 If there is more than 

1 entrance, is the 
accessible entrance 
marked with a sign? 

2 Do non-accessible 
entrances have 
signage directing 
people to accessible 
entrances? 

3 Force required to open 
door? 

Note: There is no specific force 
requirement for exterior doors. 
However, if the force required to open 
exterior doors is so great that it is a 
barrier to entry for individuals with 
disabilities, it must be adjusted to a 
lesser force that will allow entry. 

219



Page 8 of 37 

                            Attachment D 

 

# Facility: Location: Reviewer: 
 

# Entrance Yes No # Images Comments 
4 When fully open, 

does the door have a 
minimum clear width 
of at least 32 inches? 

  
 

 

Note: With the door open at least 90°, 
measure the distance from the stop to 
the face of the door. 

5 If the door has a 
closer, does it take 
at least 5 seconds to 
close? 

    

6 Is there at least 18 
inches of clear wall 
space on the pull side 
of the door, next to the 
handle? 

  
 

 

Note: Doors can only be recessed a 
maximum of 8 inches. There can be 
no obstructions greater than 8 inches 
in the clear wall space anywhere up to 
the full height of the door (80 inches). 

7 Is door handle no 
higher than 48 inches? 

   Note: Any other inchesoperable parts 
inches i.e. card readers, call buttons, 
door opener activation buttons, etc. are 
also required to be no higher than 48 
inches. 

220



Page 9 of 37 

    Attachment D 

# Facility: Location: Reviewer: 

# Entrance Yes No # Images Comments 
8 Can door handle be 

operated with one 
hand, with no tight 
grasping, pinching, or 
twisting of the wrist? 

Note: Door hardware also cannot 
need more than 5 pounds of force to 
operate. 

9 Is the carpet pile 
height of doormats no 
higher than 1/2 inch? 

Note: This 1/2 inch maximum applies 
to any carpet anywhere within the 
facility. 

10 Height of threshold? Note: The height of the threshold 
cannot be greater than 1/4 inch or 1/2 
inch with a 1/4 inch bevel. 

11 Does the door have 
a level landing 60 
inches deep and at 
least as wide as the 
door(s) plus required 
clear wall space on 
either side of the 
door? 

Note: a level landing can have up to 
a maximum slope of 1:48 (2%) in any 
direction. 

12 Does the accessible 
entrance have a power 
door opener? 

13 Are there stairs at the 
main entrance? 

221



Page 10 of 37 

    Attachment D 

# Facility: Location: Reviewer: 

# Entrance Yes No # Images Comments 
14 If there are stairs, 

is there a ramp or 
elevator? 

Note: A ramp is any walking surface 
with a slope greater than 1:20. 5% 
slope. 

15 Is the slope of the 
ramp no greater than 
1:12? 

Note: For each 1 inch of rise--there is 
12 inches of ramp length. 8.3% slope. 

16 Is the cross slope of 
the ramp no greater 
than 1:48? 

Note: Maximum 2% slope. 

17 Does the ramp have a 
non-slip surface? 

18 Do ramps with a rise 
greater than 6 inches 
have handrails? 

Note: Handrails are required on both 
sides of the ramp. 

19 Are handrails between 
34 inches and 38 
inches high? 

20 Is there edge 
protection on the sides 
of the ramp? 

Note: The placement and design of the 
railings can provide edge protection or 
the ramp concrete can be poured with 
edge protection as part of the design of 
the ramp. 

222



Page 11 of 37 

    Attachment D 

# Facility: Location: Reviewer: 

# Entrance Yes No # Images Comments 
21 Is the width between 

the ramp railings at 
least 36 inches 

22 Does the ramp have a 
level landing 60 inches 
deep and at least as 
wide as the ramp at 
both top and bottom? 

Note: a level landing can have up to 
a maximum slope of 1:48 (2%) in any 
direction. 

# Interior Pathways Yes No # Images Comments 
1 Is there an accessible 

circulation path? 
Note: The accessible path can narrow 
to no less than 32 inches but only for 
a maximum distance of 24 inches. 
There must also be at least 48 inches 
of distance between any narrowed 
sections. 

2 Is there a service 
counter no more than 
36 inches high? 

3 Is there a hallway 
leading to offices or 
other spaces? 

223



Page 12 of 37 

    Attachment D 

# Facility: Location: Reviewer: 

# Interior Pathways Yes No # Images Comments 
4 Wall sconces, fire 

extinguishers, wall- 
mounted TV feets, etc. 

Note: Objects should be within 27 
inches of ground or higher than 80. 
inches Any objects within that range 
can protrude no more than 4 inches. 
Also, be aware that sloping beams, 
walls, curved archways, or open 
stairways can be a protruding object 
hazard. 

5 When fully open, do 
the office doors have 
a minimum clear width 
of at least 32 inches? 

Note: With the door open at least 90°, 
measure the distance from the stop to 
the face of the door. Doors can only be 
recessed a maximum of 8 inches. 

224



Page 13 of 37 

                            Attachment D 

 

# Facility: Location: Reviewer: 
 

# Interior Pathways Yes No # Images Comments 
6 Can the office feets 

door handles be 
operated with one 
hand, with no tight 
grasping, pinching, or 
twisting of the wrist? 

  
 

 

 

7 Is the force required 
to open doors 5 lbs. or 
less? 

    

8 Do the office doors 
open inward (into the 
office)? 

    

9 If the doors open 
inward, is the hallway 
at least 42 inches 
wide? 

  
 

  

Note: If the doors are equipped with a 
closer, the hallway must be at least 48 
inches wide with appropriate clear wall 
space. 

10 If the doors open 
outward, is the hallway 
at least 54 inches 
wide with clear wall 
manevering space of 
at least 42 inches? 

  
 

 

Note: If the clear wall space is only 36 
inches the hallway width must be at 
least 60 inches 

225



Page 14 of 37 

    Attachment D 

# Facility: Location: Reviewer: 

# Interior Pathways Yes No # Images Comments 
11 If there is an interior 

ramp with a rise 
greater than 6 inches, 
are there handrails? 

Note: Minimum 36 inch width between 
handrails and the gripping surfaces of 
the handrails minimum 34 inches and 
maximum 38 inches above the floor on 
both sides of the ramp. 

12 Can a person with a 
visual disability detect 
objects protruding into 
the path with a cane, 
i.e. wall sconces, fire
extinguishers, wall- 
mounted TV feets,
etc.?

Note: Objects should be within 27 
inches of ground or higher than 80. 
inches Any objects within that range 
can protrude no more than 4 inches. 
Also, be aware that sloping beams 
or walls or curved archways can be a 
protruding object hazard. 

226



Page 15 of 37 

    Attachment D 

# Facility: Location: Reviewer: 

Bathrooms 

Bathrooms are often the most difficult to survey for accessibility. There 
are numerous measurements that need to be taken and in older facilities 
the bathrooms may have been reconfigured to try to make them more 
accessible. Determining whether these reconfigured spaces meet all 
necessary requirements can sometimes be difficult to determine. 

Also, consider any safe harbor provisions that might be applicable. 
When was the facility constructed or last altered? If it was before March 
25, 2012, then any dispensers, paper towel, hand soap, hand sanitizer, 
etc. that an individual in a mobility device can pull up alongside can have 
a maximum measurement of 54 inches for a side reach. Also, the side 
transfer space at the accessible toilet can be 48 inches and a sink can 
be installed a minimum of 36 inches within the space. 

Consider protruding object obstructions and maneuvering space at 
doors. Often, the bathroom was constructed to meet the Standards 
but when dispensers, hand dryers, trash cans, and other amenities 
in the bathroom are installed they are placed with no consideration 
of the Standards. If anything protrudes more than 4 inches, does it 
extend at least 27 inches from the floor or is it above 80 inches? If not, 
an individual using a cane for travel may run into it. If placed next to 
an inward swinging door, does it extend greater than 8 inches from 
the wall? If it does an individual in a mobility device will have difficulty 
opening the door. 

# Bathroom #1 Yes No # Images Comments 
1 Does the facility 

indicate they have an 
accessible bathroom? 

Note: Either one for each sex or one 
unisex. Braille is required. 

2 Are there signs at the 
inaccessible restrooms 
that give directions to 
accessible restrooms? 

227



Page 16 of 37 

    Attachment D 

# Facility: Location: Reviewer: 

# Bathroom #1 Yes No # Images Comments 
3 Do any doors 

(entrance, toilet stall) 
swing into the clear 
floor space required at 
fixtures? 

Note: Clear space at lavatory or urinal 
= 30 inches wide by 48 inches deep; 
clear space at toilet = 60 inches wide 
by 56 inches deep. 

4 Does the sign include 
the International 
symbol for accessibility 
and is it mounted on 
latch side of door? 

Note: Can also be placed on the push 
side of the door if there is not enough 
wall space on latch side. 

5 Is the doorway at 
least 32 inches clear 
and have 18 inches 
clearance on latch 
side of door on the pull 
side? 

6 Can the accessible 
bathroom door 
handles be operated 
with one hand, with 
no tight grasping, 
pinching, or twisting of 
the wrist? 

7 Force required to 
open/close doors? 

Note: Must be 5 lbs. or less to open, 5 
seconds or more to close if fitted with 
closer 

228



Page 17 of 37 

    Attachment D 

# Facility: Location: Reviewer: 

# Bathroom #1 Yes No # Images Comments 
8 Does the entry 

configuration provide 
maneuvering space for 
wheelchair access? 

Note: 36 inches clear width for forward 
movement and 5 feet diameter space 
or t-shaped space to make turns 

9 Are the paths in the 
bathroom at least 36 
inches wide? 

10 Does at least one 
lavatory have clear 
floor space of 30 
inches wide by 48 
inches long  in front? 

229



Page 18 of 37 

                            Attachment D 

 

# Facility: Location: Reviewer: 
 

# Bathroom #1 Yes No # Images Comments 
11 Is the lavatory rim no 

higher than 34 inches? 
  

 

 

 

12 Is there at least 27 
inches from floor to 
bottom of lavatory and 
at least 8 inches pipe 
clearance? 

  
 

 

 

13 Are the pipes 
underneath the 
lavatory wrapped or 
covered in some way 
to protect against 
contact? 

    

230



Page 19 of 37 

                            Attachment D 

 

# Facility: Location: Reviewer: 
 

# Bathroom #1 Yes No # Images Comments 
14 Can the faucet handle 

be operated with one 
hand, with no tight 
grasping, pinching, or 
twisting of the wrist? 

    

15 Is there clearance 
around the toilet 
measuring 60 
inches minimum 
perpendicular from 
the side wall and 
56 inches minimum 
perpendicular from the 
rear wall for the most 
accessible stall? 

  
 

 

Note: These are the dimensions 
required in the most recent version 
of the Standards, the 2010 ADA 
Standards. Other configurations 
may be encountered and may 
be acceptable under safe harbor 
provisions. 

16 Does the centerline 
of the toilet measure 
from 16 inches to 18 
inches from the side 
wall? 

  
 

 

 

231



Page 20 of 37 

                            Attachment D 

 

# Facility: Location: Reviewer: 
 

# Bathroom #1 Yes No # Images Comments 
17 In the most accessible 

stall is there a 42 inch 
minimum long grab 
bar on the side wall 
nearest the toilet, 
installed minimum 33 
inches and maximum 
36 inches above the 
floor? 

  
 

 

Note: The grab bar should be 
installed 12 inches maximum and 54 
inchesminimum from the rear wall. 

18 In the most accessible 
stall is there a 36 inch 
minimum long grab 
bar behind the toilet, 
installed minimum 33 
inches and maximum 
36 inches above the 
floor? 

  
 

 

Note: The grab bar should extend 
from the centerline of the toilet 12 
inches minimum on one side and 24 
inchesminimum on the other side. 

19 Are there no 
dispensers or other 
fixtures installed within 
the space 12 inches 
above and 1 1/2 
inches below the grab 
bars? 

   Note: Vertical grab bars can be 
installed within the 12 inches space 
above the grab bar. 

232



Page 21 of 37 

                            Attachment D 

 

# Facility: Location: Reviewer: 
 

# Bathroom #1 Yes No # Images Comments 
20 Is the toilet paper 

dispenser located 48 
inches maximum and 
15 inches minimum 
above the floor and 7 
inches to 9 inches in 
front of the toilet? 

  
 

 

Note: The body of the dispenser 
cannot be located in the space 12 
inches above and 1 1/2 inches below 
the grab bar. 

21 In the accessible stall 
is the toilet seat height 
between 17 inches 
and 19 inches? 

    

22 Can the accessible 
stall door handle be 
operated with one 
hand, with no tight 
grasping, pinching, or 
twisting of the wrist? 

    

23 Can the toilet flush 
control be operated 
with one hand, with 
no tight grasping, 
pinching, or twisting of 
the wrist? 

   Note: The toilet flush control must be 
located on the side away from the wall. 

233



Page 22 of 37 

                            Attachment D 

 

# Facility: Location: Reviewer: 
 

# Bathroom #2 Yes No # Images Comments 
1 Does the facility 

indicate they have an 
accessible bathroom? 

  
 

 

Note: Either one for each sex or one 
unisex. Braille is required. 

2 Are there signs at the 
inaccessible restrooms 
that give directions to 
accessible restrooms? 

  
 

 

 

3 Do any doors 
(entrance, toilet stall) 
swing into the clear 
floor space required at 
fixtures? 

   Note: Clear space at lavatory or urinal 
= 30 inches wide by 48 inches deep; 
clear space at toilet = 60 inches wide 
by 56 inches deep. 

4 Does the sign include 
the International 
symbol for accessibility 
and is it mounted on 
latch side of door? 

   Note: Can also be placed on the push 
side of the door if there is not enough 
wall space on latch side. 

234



Page 23 of 37 

                            Attachment D 

 

# Facility: Location: Reviewer: 
 

# Bathroom #2 Yes No # Images Comments 
5 Is the doorway at 

least 32 inches clear 
and have 18 inches 
clearance on latch 
side of door on the pull 
side? 

  
 

  

 

6 Can the accessible 
bathroom door 
handles be operated 
with one hand, with 
no tight grasping, 
pinching, or twisting of 
the wrist? 

   

 

 

7 Force required to 
open/close doors? 

   Note: Must be 5 lbs. or less to open, 5 
seconds or more to close if fitted with 
closer 

8 Does the entry 
configuration provide 
maneuvering space for 
wheelchair access? 

  
 

 

Note: 36 inches clear width for forward 
movement and 5 feet diameter space 
or t-shaped space to make turns 

235



Page 24 of 37 

    Attachment D 

# Facility: Location: Reviewer: 

# Bathroom #2 Yes No # Images Comments 
9 Are the paths in the 

bathroom at least 36 
inches wide? 

10 Does at least one 
lavatory have clear 
floor space of 30 
inches wide by 48 
inches long  in front? 

11 Is the lavatory rim no 
higher than 34 inches? 

236



Page 25 of 37 

    Attachment D 

# Facility: Location: Reviewer: 

# Bathroom #2 Yes No # Images Comments 
12 Is there at least 27 

inches from floor to 
bottom of lavatory and 
at least 8 inches pipe 
clearance? 

13 Are the pipes 
underneath the 
lavatory wrapped or 
covered in some way 
to protect against 
contact? 

14 Can the faucet handle 
be operated with one 
hand, with no tight 
grasping, pinching, or 
twisting of the wrist? 

15 Is there clearance 
around the toilet 
measuring 60 
inches minimum 
perpendicular from 
the side wall and 
56 inches minimum 
perpendicular from the 
rear wall for the most 
accessible stall? 

Note: These are the dimensions 
required in the most recent version 
of the Standards, the 2010 ADA 
Standards. Other configurations 
may be encountered and may 
be acceptable under safe harbor 
provisions. 

237



Page 26 of 37 

                            Attachment D 

 

# Facility: Location: Reviewer: 
 

# Bathroom #2 Yes No # Images Comments 
16 Does the centerline 

of the toilet measure 
from 16 inches to 18 
inches from the side 
wall? 

  
 

 

 

17 In the most accessible 
stall is there a 42 
inches minimum long 
grab bar on the side 
wall nearest the toilet, 
installed minimum 33 
inches and maximum 
36 inches above the 
floor? 

  
 

 

Note: The grab bar should be installed 
12 inches maximum and 54 inches 
minimum from the rear wall. 

18 In the most accessible 
stall is there a 36 
inches minimum 
long grab bar behind 
the toilet, installed 
minimum 33 inches 
and maximum 36 
inches above the 
floor? 

  
 

 

Note: The grab bar should extend from 
the centerline of the toilet 12 inches 
minimum on one side and 24 inches 
minimum on the other side. 

238



Page 27 of 37 

                            Attachment D 

 

# Facility: Location: Reviewer: 
 

# Bathroom #2 Yes No # Images Comments 
19 Are there no 

dispensers or other 
fixtures installed within 
the space 12 inches 
above and 1 1/2 
inches below the grab 
bars? 

   Note: Vertical grab bars can be 
installed within the 12 inches space 
above the grab bar. 

20 Is the toilet paper 
dispenser located 48 
inches maximum and 
15 inches minimum 
above the floor and 7 
inches to 9 inches in 
front of the toilet? 

  
 

 

Note: The body of the dispenser 
cannot be located in the space 12 
inches above and 1 1/2 inches below 
the grab bar. 

21 In the accessible stall 
is the toilet seat height 
between 17 inches 
and 19 inches? 

    

22 Can the accessible 
stall door handle be 
operated with one 
hand, with no tight 
grasping, pinching, or 
twisting of the wrist? 

    

23 Can the toilet flush 
control be operated 
with one hand, with 
no tight grasping, 
pinching, or twisting of 
the wrist? 

   Note: The toilet flush control must be 
located on the side away from the wall. 

239



Page 28 of 37 

                            Attachment D 

 

# Facility: Location: Reviewer: 
 

# Bathroom #3 Yes No # Images Comments 
1 Does the facility 

indicate they have an 
accessible bathroom? 

  
 

 

Note: Either one for each sex or one 
unisex. Braille is required. 

2 Are there signs at the 
inaccessible restrooms 
that give directions to 
accessible restrooms? 

  
 

 

 

3 Do any doors 
(entrance, toilet stall) 
swing into the clear 
floor space required at 
fixtures? 

   Note: Clear space at lavatory or urinal 
= 30 inches wide by 48 inches deep; 
clear space at toilet = 60 inches wide 
by 56 inches deep. 

4 Does the sign include 
the International 
symbol for accessibility 
and is it mounted on 
latch side of door? 

   Note: Can also be placed on the push 
side of the door if there is not enough 
wall space on latch side. 

240



Page 29 of 37 

                            Attachment D 

 

# Facility: Location: Reviewer: 
 

# Bathroom #3 Yes No # Images Comments 
5 Is the doorway at 

least 32 inches clear 
and have 18 inches 
clearance on latch 
side of door on the pull 
side? 

  
 

  

 

6 Can the accessible 
bathroom door 
handles be operated 
with one hand, with 
no tight grasping, 
pinching, or twisting of 
the wrist? 

   

 

 

7 Force required to 
open/close doors? 

   Note: Must be 5 lbs. or less to open, 5 
seconds or more to close if fitted with 
closer 

8 Does the entry 
configuration provide 
maneuvering space for 
wheelchair access? 

  
 

 

Note: 36 inches clear width for forward 
movement and 5 feet diameter space 
or t-shaped space to make turns 

241



Page 30 of 37 

                            Attachment D 

 

# Facility: Location: Reviewer: 
 

# Bathroom #3 Yes No # Images Comments 
9 Are the paths in the 

bathroom at least 36 
inches wide? 

    

10 Does at least one 
lavatory have clear 
floor space of 30 
inches wide by 48 
inches long  in front? 

  
 

 

 

11 Is the lavatory rim no 
higher than 34 inches? 

   

 

 

242



Page 31 of 37 

    Attachment D 

# Facility: Location: Reviewer: 

# Bathroom #3 Yes No # Images Comments 
12 Is there at least 27 

inches from floor to 
bottom of lavatory and 
at least 8 inches pipe 
clearance? 

13 Are the pipes 
underneath the 
lavatory wrapped or 
covered in some way 
to protect against 
contact? 

14 Can the faucet handle 
be operated with one 
hand, with no tight 
grasping, pinching, or 
twisting of the wrist? 

15 Is there clearance 
around the toilet 
measuring 60 
inches minimum 
perpendicular from 
the side wall and 
56 inches minimum 
perpendicular from the 
rear wall for the most 
accessible stall? 

Note: These are the dimensions 
required in the most recent version 
of the Standards, the 2010 ADA 
Standards. Other configurations 
may be encountered and may 
be acceptable under safe harbor 
provisions. 

243



Page 32 of 37 

                            Attachment D 

 

# Facility: Location: Reviewer: 
 

# Bathroom #3 Yes No # Images Comments 
16 Does the centerline 

of the toilet measure 
from 16 inches to 18 
inches from the side 
wall? 

  
 

 

 

17 In the most accessible 
stall is there a 42 
inches minimum long 
grab bar on the side 
wall nearest the toilet, 
installed minimum 33 
inches and maximum 
36 inches above the 
floor? 

  
 

 

Note: The grab bar should be installed 
12 inches maximum and 54 inches 
minimum from the rear wall. 

18 In the most accessible 
stall is there a 36 
inches minimum 
long grab bar behind 
the toilet, installed 
minimum 33 inches 
and maximum 36 
inches above the 
floor? 

  
 

 

Note: The grab bar should extend from 
the centerline of the toilet 12 inches 
minimum on one side and 24 inches 
minimum on the other side. 

244



Page 33 of 37 

    Attachment D 

# Facility: Location: Reviewer: 

# Bathroom #3 Yes No # Images Comments 
19 Are there no 

dispensers or other 
fixtures installed within 
the space 12 inches 
above and 1 1/2 
inches below the grab 
bars? 

Note: Vertical grab bars can be 
installed within the 12 inches space 
above the grab bar. 

20 Is the toilet paper 
dispenser located 48 
inches maximum and 
15 inches minimum 
above the floor and 7 
inches to 9 inches in 
front of the toilet? 

Note: The body of the dispenser 
cannot be located in the space 12 
inches above and 1 1/2 inches below 
the grab bar. 

21 In the most accessible 
stall is toilet seat 
height between 17 
inches and 19 inches? 

22 Can the accessible 
stall door handle be 
operated with one 
hand, with no tight 
grasping, pinching, or 
twisting of the wrist? 

23 Can the toilet flush 
control be operated 
with one hand, with 
no tight grasping, 
pinching, or twisting of 
the wrist? 

Note: The toilet flush control must be 
located on the side away from the wall. 

245



Page 34 of 37 

                            Attachment D 

 

# Facility: Location: Reviewer: 
 

# Addl. Access – 
Water Fountain Yes No # Images Comments 

1 Does at least 1 
drinking fountain have 
a clear floor space of 
30 inches wide x 48 
inches long centered 
in front--for forward 
reach? 

    

2 If there is a forward 
approach, do no less 
than 17 inches & no 
greater than 25 inches 
of clear floor space 
extend under the 
fountain? 

    

3 If fountain is no deeper 
than 20 inches, are  
the operable parts no 
higher than 48 inches 
above the floor? 

    

4 If the drinking fountain 
is between 20 inches 
and 25 inches deep, 
are operable parts no 
higher than 44 inches 
above floor? 

    

5 Can the fountain 
control be operated 
with one hand, with 
no tight grasping, 
pinching or twisting of 
the wrist? 

    

6 Is the force to activate 
the control no more 
than 5 pounds? 

    

246



Page 35 of 37 

    Attachment D 

# Facility: Location: Reviewer: 

# Addl. Access – 
Water Fountain Yes No # Images Comments 

7 Is the spout: At least 
15 inches from rear of 
drinking fountain? No 
more than 5 inches 
from front of drinking 
fountain? 

8 If more than 1 
fountain, is there at 
least one for standing 
persons? Spout outlet 
no lower than 38 
inches & no higher 
than 43 inches above 
floor? 

9 If bottom edge of 
fountain is higher than 
27 inches above floor, 
does the front of the 
fountain protrude no 
more than 4 inches 
into circulation path? 

# Addl. Access - 
Public Telephones Yes No # Images Comments 

1 Does at least 1 
telephone have clear 
floor space at least 30 
inches wide x at least 
48 inches long for a 
parallel or forward 
approach? 

247



Page 36 of 37 

                            Attachment D 

 

# Facility: Location: Reviewer: 
 

# Addl. Access - 
Public Telephones Yes No # Images Comments 

2 Is the highest operable 
part of the telephone 
no higher than 48 
inches above the 
floor? 

    

3 Is bottom edge of 
telephone higher than 
27 inches above the 
floor, does the front of 
the telephone protrude 
no more than 4 inches 
into circulation path? 

    

4 Does at least 1 
telephone have a 
volume control? 
Is the volume 
control identified 
by a pictogram of a 
telephone handset 
with radiating sound 
waves? 

    

5 Does at least 1 
telephone have a 
TTY? 

    

6 Is the touch surface 
of the TTY keypad at 
least 34 inches above 
the floor? 

    

7 Is TTY identified by the 
International symbol of 
TTY? 

    

248



Page 37 of 37 

    Attachment D 

# Facility: Location: Reviewer: 

# Addl. Access - 
Public Telephones Yes No # Images Comments 

8 Do signs that provide 
directions to public 
telephones also 
provide direction to 
TTY? 

9 Do telephones that 
do not have a TTY 
provide direction to the 
TTY? 

# Addl. Access – 
Fire Alarm Systems Yes No # Images Comments 

1 If there are fire alarm 
systems, do they have 
both flashing lights 
and audible alerts? 

Notes: 

249



ATTACHMENT A TO OWDI #01-2019: 
Evaluation Summary for Oklahoma Works 
AJC Certification 

Center Information 

Local Area Name: 

Oklahoma Works AJC Name 
& Address: 

Type of center:  Comprehensive    Affiliate   Specialized 

Date of On-Site Evaluation: 

Certification Team 

Evaluator Name: 

Evaluator Email: 

Evaluator Phone Number: 

Scoring 

# Items 
Met 

# Items 
Not Met 

Avg. Section 
Score 

Customer Focus 

Operations & Infrastructure 

Equal Opportunity & Accessibility 

Continuous Improvement 

Personnel 

Per OWDI #: 
● Full certification may be awarded if 100% met/not met criteria and an average score of

“2” or higher for each category is achieved.
● Provisional certification may be awarded if 75-99.99% of met/not met criteria and an

average score of “1.5” or higher is achieved for each category of certification.
● Not certified or decertified is achieved if less than 75% of the met/not met criteria

and/or the average score for each category is less than “1.5”.

250



Oklahoma Works AJC Certification Checklist (for Affiliate & Comprehensive Centers) 

Customer Focus 

Local Area Name: 

Oklahoma Works AJC Name 
& Address: 

Type of center:  Comprehensive    Affiliate   Specialized 

Date of On-Site Evaluation: 

Evaluator Name: 

Must Meet Criteria 

Met Not Met 

CF.1 The AJC provides access to customers for skill development and training 
opportunities in a wide range of skill levels and levels of experience.     

CF.2 Customers have access to both on-site and virtual services including: basic and 
individualized career services, training services, education services, employment 
services, supportive services, and business services at/through the one-stop 
center.     

CF.3 Center hours are easily identifiable.  The center ensures that customers are 
provided access to services in normal business hours and is able to assist 
customers outside of regular business hours to accommodate customers' work, 
child care, or transportation needs.  Discussions regarding business hours are 
conducted periodically within the center meetings.    

CF.4 A customer satisfaction feedback process is in place and issues are addressed 
regularly.      

CF.5 The center implements the veteran's preference and priority of service 
requirements.   

CF.6 The one-stop is striving to meet the Oklahoma Works Workforce Access for All 
Standards and/or there is an active EEAAP plan in place for continuous 
improvement.  Technology is available to assist all customers. 

CF.7 The one-stop center regularly identifies areas of needed technical assistance to 
improve business results and taps available resources to obtain needed 
assistance.   

251



Oklahoma Works AJC Certification Checklist (for Affiliate & Comprehensive Centers) 

CF.8 The one-stop center actively conducts outreach and provides access to non-co-
located partner customers to participate in one-stop center-based services such 
as workshops and recruitment events.    

CF.9 Staff can explain the circumstances when individuals with disabilities receive 
separate or different services and that they are ensured to be as effective as 
services provided to others.    

Scored Criteria 

Score 

CF.10A The one-stop center has a system in place to promptly 
greet all customers, identify their needs and reason for 
their visit, and quickly connect them to appropriate 
services. 

3 - Exceeds 
expectations 

2 - Meets 
expectations 

1 - Meets 
minimum 
expectation 

CF.11B One-stop center staff is readily available to assist 
customers and staff are integrated in the one-stop 
system (and not just their specific program).  All staff 
contribute to providing a positive experience for every 
customer.       

3 - Exceeds 
expectations 

2 - Meets 
expectations 

1 - Meets 
minimum 
expectation 

CF.12C The one-stop center offers a wide range of one-stop 
center-based services for employers including referral of 
qualified candidates, on-site recruitment, pre-
employment testing, skills verification, and hiring and 
training subsidies.  All one-stop center staff are able to 
make knowledgeable referrals to partner programs. 

3 - Exceeds 
expectations 

2 - Meets 
expectations 

1 - Meets 
minimum 
expectation 

Evaluator Notes 

252



Oklahoma Works AJC Certification Checklist (for Affiliate & Comprehensive Centers) 

Operations and Infrastructure 

Local Area Name: 

Oklahoma Works AJC Name 
& Address: 

Type of center:  Comprehensive    Affiliate   Specialized 

Date of On-Site Evaluation: 

Evaluator Name: 

Must Meet Criteria 

Met Not Met 

OI.1 The “Oklahoma Works a proud partner of the American Job Center network” 
identifier is highly visible inside and outside of the facility and meets state 
criteria.    If Not: There is a plan in place for the center to display “Oklahoma 
Works a proud partner of the American Job Center network” inside and outside 
of the facility and meets state criteria. 

OI.2 Adequate parking (including accessible parking) is available for customers who 
drive to the facility. 

OI.3 Meeting rooms are available to meet partner and/or job seeker and business 
customer demands. 

OI.4 Safety and security precautions are in place to protect both customers and staff.  

OI.5 The resource area has workspace and computer stations available to meet 
customer needs.  Assistive technology, devices or other auxiliary aids are readily 
available to assist those with disabilities and those who are non-English 
speaking.     

OI.6 Resource areas include up-to-date information about the services and 
supportive services available.  The one-stop center’s resources include bilingual 
materials or an on-demand translation service, if needed.     

OI.7 Internet access is available at the center.  There is a policy in place to prevent 
abuse and misconduct of internet access.     

253



Oklahoma Works AJC Certification Checklist (for Affiliate & Comprehensive Centers) 

 

 

OI.8 All services are available on demand through a direct connection with the one-
stop center within a reasonable time, either through onsite staff or via real-time 
technology consistent with the “direct linkage” requirement.  Phone, real-time 
Web-based communications or other technology is physically present, enables 
real-time interaction (e.g., via Skype). (Comprehensive Center only)      

  

 

Scored Criteria 
 

   Score 

OI.9A The center reflects a professional and friendly 
environment.  The one-stop center has a system in 
place to promptly greet all customers, identify their 
needs and reason for their visit, and quickly connect 
them to appropriate services     

3 - Exceeds 
expectations 

2 - Meets 
expectations 

1 - Meets 
minimum 
expectation 

OI.10B The one-stop center strives to increase the number 
and percentage of all customers placed in high wage, 
sustainable employment. 

3 - Exceeds 
expectations 

2 - Meets 
expectations 

1 - Meets 
minimum 
expectation 

OI.11C The required one-stop partners meet on a regular 
basis to discuss the one-stop system and the one-stop 
center’s contribution to the system, and makes 
recommendations for continuous improvement.     

3 - Exceeds 
expectations 

2 - Meets 
expectations 

1 - Meets 
minimum 
expectation 

 

 Evaluator Notes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

254



Oklahoma Works AJC Certification Checklist (for Affiliate & Comprehensive Centers) 

Equal Opportunity & Accessibility 

Local Area Name: 

Oklahoma Works AJC Name 
& Address: 

Type of center:  Comprehensive    Affiliate   Specialized 

Date of On-Site Evaluation: 

Evaluator Name: 

Must Meet Criteria 

Met Not Met 

EOA.1 The physical and programmatic accessibility of the one-stop center has been 
assessed by the local board, as required in 20 CFR 679.370. 

EOA.2 The Emergency Action plan is up to date and easily accessible. (29 CFR Part 
1910.38; 29 CFR Part 1910.38) 

EOA.3 The one-stop is accessible consistent with Oklahoma’s Accessibility Initiative 
standards found on the ABLE Tech website and is accessible to the Web 
Content Accessibility Guidelines 2.0, AA. 

EOA.4 The Local Equal Opportunity Officer periodically reviews the one-stop center’s 
policies, procedures, and facility for accessibility and equal opportunity and 
provides recommendations and technical assistance. 

EOA.5 There are procedures in place to receive and respond to programmatic 
grievances and complaints. 

EOA.6 All program services are made available to and are accessible to all 
individuals, including those with disabilities as detailed in the Oklahoma 
Works Workforce Access for All initiative. 

EOA.7 Phone, real-time Web-based communications or other technology is 
physically present, enables real-time interaction (e.g., via Skype) and is 
accessible to the Web Content Accessibility Guidelines 2.0,AA 

255



Oklahoma Works AJC Certification Checklist (for Affiliate & Comprehensive Centers) 

 

 

 
 
Scored Criteria 
 

   Score 

EOA.8A Assistive technology devices or other auxiliary aids are 
readily available. 

3 - Exceeds 
expectations 

2 - Meets 
expectations 

1 - Meets 
minimum 
expectation 

EOA.9B The one-stop center’s resources include bilingual 
materials or an on-demand translation service and are 
tailored to the populations served. 

3 - Exceeds 
expectations 

2 - Meets 
expectations 

1 - Meets 
minimum 
expectation 

EOA.10C Program partner staff are able to demonstrate they 
know how to use assistive technologies and are aware 
of the available resources.     

3 - Exceeds 
expectations 

2 - Meets 
expectations 

1 - Meets 
minimum 
expectation 

 

 Evaluator Notes 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

256



Oklahoma Works AJC Certification Checklist (for Affiliate & Comprehensive Centers) 

 

 

Continuous Improvement 
  

Local Area Name:  

Oklahoma Works AJC Name 
& Address: 

 

Type of center:     Comprehensive          Affiliate          Specialized 

Date of On-Site Evaluation:  

Evaluator Name:  

 
Must Meet Criteria 
 

  Met Not Met 

CI.1 The policies, processes, and actions of the one-stop center support the 
achievement of all partners’ negotiated local levels of performance.     

  

CI.2 Performance data is tracked for daily operations and overall one-stop center 
performance and trends are identified.       

  

CI.3 Customer satisfaction survey records indicate regular data collection.  Customer 
satisfaction surveys are segmented by the type of customer (employer or job 
seeker) and allows for comments to be provided by customers.       

  

 
Scored Criteria 
 

   Score 

CI.4A The one-stop center regularly uses results from 
performance reports and customer satisfaction 
surveys to identify strategies and set goals in order to 
improve outcomes     

3 - Exceeds 
expectations 

2 - Meets 
expectations 

1 - Meets minimum 
expectation 

CI.5B A process is in place to receive and resolve customer 
complaints promptly and effectively.     

3 - Exceeds 
expectations 

2 - Meets 
expectations 

1 - Meets minimum 
expectation 

CI.6C The one-stop center strives to increase the number 
and percentage of all customers receiving skill 
development and training services.     

3 - Exceeds 
expectations 

2 - Meets 
expectations 

1 - Meets minimum 
expectation 

 Evaluator Notes 

257



Oklahoma Works AJC Certification Checklist (for Affiliate & Comprehensive Centers) 

 

 

Personnel 
  

Local Area Name:  

Oklahoma Works AJC Name 
& Address: 

 

Type of center:     Comprehensive          Affiliate          Specialized 

Date of On-Site Evaluation:  

Evaluator Name:  

 

Must Meet Criteria 
 

  Met Not Met 

P.1 Roles and responsibilities of the one-stop operator within the Oklahoma Works 
One-Stop Center are clearly defined.     

  

P.2 Professional Development is provided to all one-stop center staff, including 
customer service and customer-centered design training.     

  

P.3 Program partner staff trainings are regularly provided on Equal Opportunity 
practices. 

  

P.4 Staff at the one-stop center are cross-trained and provided information on all 
required programs, services, and activities in the one-stop center and have 
received an orientation to all partner programs and services     

  

P.5 There is evidence that career services are provided within the Oklahoma Works 
One-Stop Center.     

  

P.6 If there is at least one Wagner-Peyser ES staff physically located in the center, 
then there is at least one other system partner physically present in the center.    
(Comprehensive Center only) 

  

P.7 All one-stop center staff are able to make knowledgeable referrals to partner 
programs.     

  

P.8 The one-stop center has regular staff meetings with one-stop center staff to 
build relationships, provide updates on center activities, and discuss strategies 
for one-stop center improvement.     

  

258



Oklahoma Works AJC Certification Checklist (for Affiliate & Comprehensive Centers) 

P.9 Continuous improvement plans are developed when required partners or 
customers identify barriers to participation in services. 

Scored Criteria 

Score 

P.10A The center engages in an interactive process to 
identify and provide reasonable accommodations 
and meet individual’s needs, as necessary (e.g. - 
allowing an individual with cognitive disabilities 
extra time to complete forms).  The process 
includes a procedures for handling requests for 
accommodations. 

3 - Exceeds 
expectations 

2 - Meets 
expectations 

1 - Meets 
minimum 
expectation 

P.11B One-stop center staff are able to demonstrate on 
how they use labor market information to help 
customers identify career pathways, develop in-
demand skills and credentials, and find jobs. 

3 - Exceeds 
expectations 

2 - Meets 
expectations 

1 - Meets 
minimum 
expectation 

P.12C Program partner staff are able to effectively and 
appropriately communicate with individuals with 
disabilities. 

3 - Exceeds 
expectations 

2 - Meets 
expectations 

1 - Meets 
minimum 
expectation 

 Evaluator Notes 

259



Section-05 Compliance OP-0500101 Effective Date: 00/00/2021 
Ref: GCWDB P-0500100 Center Certification dated 00/00/2021 
Ref: OWDI 01-2019 dated 5/21/2019    

1 | P a g e

Center Certification Criteria and Process 

WIOA envisions high-quality one-stop systems that are business driven, customer-centered, 
integrated, and tailored to meet the needs of regional economies. The law emphasizes the 
need for partnerships and strategies that align workforce development, education, and 
economic development programs with regional needs. In an effort to ensure that the workforce 
one-stop system meets minimum quality standards, the Green Country Workforce 
Development Board (GCWDB) has adapted the criteria established by the Oklahoma Office of 
Workforce Development as outlined in OWDI 01-2019 entitled “Certification of comprehensive 
and affiliate Oklahoma Works (One-Stop) Centers, a proud partner of the American Job Center 
network, under the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act of 2014 (WIOA).” 

I. Designation:

A. Comprehensive:  The Green Country Workforce Development Board (GCWDB)
designates the Tulsa location as the area’s Comprehensive Center.

B. Affiliate:  The Sapulpa and Muskogee American Job Centers are designated as
Affiliate Centers.

C. Specialized Centers:  To meet the needs of outlying areas, Specialized Centers
will be developed as opportunity and need arise.  Current locations include Tahlequah,
Okmulgee, Eufaula, Sallisaw, Stilwell, and Wagoner.

II. Types of Centers:

A. Comprehensive Center:  A comprehensive one-stop center is a physical location
where job seeker and employer customers can access the programs, services, and
activities of all required one-stop partners.  A comprehensive one-stop center must
have at least one Title I staff person physically present.  The comprehensive one-stop
center  must provide:

1. Career Services

2. Access to Training Services

3. Access to Any Employment and Training Activities

4. Access to Programs and Activities Carried out by the One-Stop Partners,
including the Employment Service Program Authorized Under Wagner-Peyser
Act

260



Section-05 Compliance OP-0500101 Effective Date: 00/00/2021 
Ref: GCWDB P-0500100 Center Certification dated 00/00/2021 
Ref: OWDI 01-2019 dated 5/21/2019    

2 | P a g e

5. Workforce and Labor Market Information

6. Customers must have access to these programs, services, and activities during
regular business days and hours at a comprehensive center. GCWDB approves
other service hours being offered to accommodate the schedules of
individuals who cannot come in during regular business hours or days.

B. Affiliate Center:  An affiliated site, or affiliate one-stop center, is a site that makes
available to job seeker and employer customers one or more of the one-stop partners’
programs, services, and activities with a physical presence of combined staff more than
50% of the time the center is open. An affiliated site does not need to provide access
to all required one-stop partner programs.

1. The frequency of program staff’s physical presence in the affiliated site will be
determined by the one-stop operator and one-stop partner programs.

2. Affiliated sites are access points in addition to the comprehensive one-stop
centers.

3. Affiliate sites must be established in a manner that supplements and
enhances customer access to services.

4. All affiliated sites must be accessible to individuals with disabilities

5. If Wagner-Peyser Act employment services are provided at an affiliated site,
there must be at least one or more other partners in the affiliated site with a
physical presence and combined staff more than 50% of the time the center is
open. The other partner must not be the partner administering local veteran’s
employment representatives, disabled veterans outreach program specialists, or
unemployment compensation programs.

6. Customers must have access to these programs, services, and activities during
regular business days and hours at a comprehensive one-stop center.

a. Access within this procedure is defined as access in relation to each
partner program and its services. Access is defined as:

1) Having a program staff member physically present at the one- 
    stop center; 

2) Having a staff member from a different partner program
physically present at the one-stop center who is appropriately

261



Section-05 Compliance OP-0500101 Effective Date: 00/00/2021 
Ref: GCWDB P-0500100 Center Certification dated 00/00/2021 
Ref: OWDI 01-2019 dated 5/21/2019    

3 | P a g e

trained to provide information to customers about the programs, 
services, and activities available through partner programs or; 
3) Making available a direct linkage through real-time technology
use to  program staff who can provide meaningful information or
services.

b. Direct Linkage

1) Direct linkage is providing direct connection at the one-stop
center within a reasonable time, by phone, or through a real-time
Web-based communication to a program staff member who can
provide program information or services to the customer.
2) A direct linkage cannot exclusively be providing a phone
number or computer website to be used at an individual’s home.

a) A direct linkage cannot be exclusively providing
pamphlets, hand out materials, or making arrangements
for the customer to receive services at a later time or on a
different day.
b) If the direct linkage is provided via telephone, access
must be a phone line dedicated to serving one-stop
customers in a timely manner.

3) If the direct linkage is provided via technology, access must
enable trained staff to provide remote assistance through
technology such as live web chat (Skype, Facetime, etc.…), video 
conferencing, or other similar technology that involves a form of 
one-on-one assistance. 

III. Certification Criteria:  Objective criteria is set by the Oklahoma Office of Workforce
Development which includes:  Customer Focus, Operations and Infrastructure, Equal
Opportunity and Accessibility, Personnel, and Continuous Improvement.

A. Effectiveness:  These criteria evaluate the comprehensive and affiliate one-stop
center’s effectiveness in meeting the workforce development needs of participants and
the employment needs of businesses. They also evaluate whether  the center is
operating in a cost-efficient manner, coordinating services among partner
programs physically or through direct linkage on demand and in real time, and providing
maximum access to partner program services at times that meet participant needs,

262



Section-05 Compliance OP-0500101 Effective Date: 00/00/2021 
Ref: GCWDB P-0500100 Center Certification dated 00/00/2021 
Ref: OWDI 01-2019 dated 5/21/2019    

4 | P a g e

including providing services outside of regular business hours where there is a 
workforce need.  Effectiveness also means required partners focus on outcomes and 
have the capacity to measure attainment of goals and other outcomes. 

B. Physical Accessibility:  Minimum certification criteria are required by WIOA to
evaluate the comprehensive and affiliate one-stop center’s physical accessibility. This
includes ensuring that the center’s location and layout are  inclusive of individuals
regardless of their range of abilities and mobility, and that  reasonable
accommodations for access are provided, when appropriate. This also requires the
physical characteristics of the facility to conform to checkpoints found in  the
Oklahoma Works Access for All initiative Physical Accessibility Checklist
(https://www.okabletech.org/wpcontent/uploads/2017/08/PhysicalSite_Accessibility_
Checklist.docx).

C. Programmatic Accessibility Criteria and Technology:  These criteria evaluate the
comprehensive one-stop center’s programmatic accessibility, ensuring it provides
equal access to all required programs, services, and activities to eligible participants
and to employers regardless of their range of abilities, mobility, age, language, learning
style, intelligence, or education level. Essentially, services must be made available
without unlawful discrimination. Specific Technology criteria can be found on the
AbleTech website: https://www.okabletech.org/employmentservices/oklahomaworks-

 access-for-all/roadmap-for-accessibility-certification/information-and- 
 communication-technology-ict-checkpoints/ 

1. Programmatic Accessibility actions include, but are not limited to:

a. Making reasonable modifications to policies, practices, and
procedures where necessary to avoid discrimination against
any persons, including those with disabilities;

b. Administering programs in the most appropriate integrated setting;

c. Communicating with persons with disabilities as effectively as with
others;

d. Providing appropriate auxiliary aids and services, including assistive
technology devices and services, where necessary to afford individuals

263

https://www.okabletech.org/wpcontent/uploads/2017/08/PhysicalSite_Accessibility_%09Checklist.docx
https://www.okabletech.org/wpcontent/uploads/2017/08/PhysicalSite_Accessibility_%09Checklist.docx
https://www.okabletech.org/employmentservices/oklahomaworks-%09access-for-all/roadmap-for-accessibility-certification/information-and-%09%09communication-technology-ict-checkpoints/
https://www.okabletech.org/employmentservices/oklahomaworks-%09access-for-all/roadmap-for-accessibility-certification/information-and-%09%09communication-technology-ict-checkpoints/
https://www.okabletech.org/employmentservices/oklahomaworks-%09access-for-all/roadmap-for-accessibility-certification/information-and-%09%09communication-technology-ict-checkpoints/


Section-05 Compliance OP-0500101 Effective Date: 00/00/2021 
Ref: GCWDB P-0500100 Center Certification dated 00/00/2021 
Ref: OWDI 01-2019 dated 5/21/2019    

5 | P a g e

with disabilities an equal opportunity to participate in and  enjoy the 
benefits of, the program or activity. 

2. Technology:

a. Ensuring that the center’s website, social media, and other software
offered for use by Job Seekers is accessible. Such technology must
adhere to the Web Content Accessibility Guidelines 2.0, Level AA.  The
center must conform to the Oklahoma Works Access for All Information
and Communication Technology Checkpoints.

b. In instances where the center does not meet all the checkpoints,
the center will create an Equally Effective Alternative Access Plan.

D. Continuous Improvement:  These criteria evaluate the comprehensive and affiliate
one-stop center’s continuous improvement, meaning the center has the mechanisms
and processes in place and has the capacity to assess and improve upon the
effectiveness, physical accessibility, and programmatic accessibility of the
center. This includes a regular process for identifying and responding to technical
assistance needs, a regular system of continuing professional staff development, and
having systems in place to capture and respond to specific customer feedback.
Continuous improvement also includes supporting the achievement of the negotiated
levels of performance for the local indicators of performance.

1. Detailed criteria are identified in Attachment A: Oklahoma Works (One-Stop)
Center  Certification Checklist

2. Certification evaluations must be documented on the Certification Checklist

IV. Center Evaluation and Certification Frequency

A. Center Evaluation and Certification Frequency: one-stop center sites will be
evaluated and certified no less than once every two years; however, the GCWDB may
direct “for-cause” site evaluation and certification as determined appropriate and/or
warranted, because of a complaint or a concern. This timeline occurs during
even numbered Program Years (2020, 2022, 2024, etc.). The Center Certification
Process will be as follows, unless otherwise directed by the Executive Director:

264



Section-05 Compliance OP-0500101 Effective Date: 00/00/2021 
Ref: GCWDB P-0500100 Center Certification dated 00/00/2021 
Ref: OWDI 01-2019 dated 5/21/2019    

6 | P a g e

December -  One-Stop Operator completes and submits to the GCWDB an 
application for certification  

January -  GCWDB convenes a Certification Team 
February -  Center Certification Team: 

Conducts audit 
Completes an Audit Report  
Conducts Exit Meeting with the one-stop operator 

March - One-stop operator submits a Correction Plan to the Center 
Certification Team 

April - Certification Team reviews for acceptance or revision the  
Correction Plan.  Once approved, the Certification Team will 
notify the one-stop operator and the GCWDB of the certification 
status 

May - Certification Team convenes for a Final Review and notifies the 
GCWDB of their decision for certification 

June - GCWDB approves certification 
CLEO signature 
Submit to OOWD 

B. Certification Teams:  Certification teams will be established by the Executive
Director and they will have discretion in forming the review teams’ size and
membership.

1. At a minimum, the certification team must include:

a. A minimum of two evaluators, be free of conflicts of interest in the
Center, not be compromised of the local board’s membership, its One-
Stop Operator, or its fiscal agent.

b. Certification teams may only include one GCWDB staff member.

c. A representative from the certification team should be identified at
the primary contact person.

d. Certification teams may include local experts who represent targeted
populations, experts from the state level, a third-party evaluator, or
experts from outside of the local area to ensure evaluations are
objective.

265



Section-05 Compliance OP-0500101 Effective Date: 00/00/2021 
Ref: GCWDB P-0500100 Center Certification dated 00/00/2021 
Ref: OWDI 01-2019 dated 5/21/2019    

7 | P a g e

V. Certification Process

A. Request:  Each comprehensive and affiliate center must file an application to the
GCWDB requesting certification.

Each Application should include:  
1. Organization name
2. Date
3. Primary Contact Person from Certifying Team
4. Phone
5. E-mail
6. Site to be certified
7. Website link
8. House of Operation
9. Current Certification Status
10. Desk Review Materials (including any written procedures, business plans,
Oklahoma Works Access for All Initiative certifications, Emergency Action Plans,
and other related items)

B. Desk Review:  The Certification Team’s primary point of contact person is
responsible for providing the Certification Team with the certification requests and
electronic materials to begin a desk review. The Certification Team members should
familiarize themselves with the materials provided, as they will be helpful during the
on-site reviews. The GCWDB is responsible for the certification process and activities.

C. On-Site Review:  The Certification Team will conduct an on-site review. Team
members will evaluate each met/not met and scored criteria, and after evaluation will
come to a consensus for each of the criteria evaluated.

D. Documentation:  The local review team must identify hard data and
documentation when making their determination. This data may include:

1. Reports
2. Minutes
3. Signed MOUs
4. Procedure manuals
5. Customer Satisfaction Data
6. Surveys
7. Questionnaires

266



Section-05 Compliance OP-0500101 Effective Date: 00/00/2021 
Ref: GCWDB P-0500100 Center Certification dated 00/00/2021 
Ref: OWDI 01-2019 dated 5/21/2019    

8 | P a g e

8. Interviews with Customers, Partners, and Staff
9. Performance Information

E. Exit Interview:  An exit interview will occur with the One-Stop operator and
relevant staff within two (2) weeks of the on-site review. The exit interview should
note and record any best practices by the one-stop system as well as any areas that
were not met.

F. Certification Determination:  Once the review has been completed, the
Certification Team will present within 30 days the completed certification checklist
and a letter signed by the Certification Team to the GCWDB recommending which of
the four determinations to assign to the center. Once the recommendation is
approved by the GCWDB, the board must obtain the signature of the CLEO(s) for final
approval. Once the GCWDB and CLEO(s) approve the certification of a comprehensive
or affiliate one-stop center, the GCWDB chair or designee will submit electronically all
executed letters and copies of the completed Certification Checklist and any other
necessary documentation to OOWD.

G. Re-Certification:  In order to be eligible to receive infrastructure funding under
the state infrastructure funding mechanism, the one-stop center must be certified
every 2 years.

H. Timeline for Certification:  Certification is a prerequisite for one-stop centers to be
eligible to receive infrastructure funding.  If the GCWDB is unable to certify all
comprehensive and affiliate one-stop centers by the deadline, the GCWDB must
submit electronically to OOWD by the same date a Certification Extension Plan that
must include:

1. A list of centers not yet certified

2. An explanation of why those centers are not yet certified

3. A plan using the timeline below for how the GCWDB has uncertified center
and will certify them, and a technical assistance request (if needed) to
complete the certification by the timeline below provided by OOWD.

267



Section-05 Compliance OP-0500101 Effective Date: 00/00/2021 
Ref: GCWDB P-0500100 Center Certification dated 00/00/2021 
Ref: OWDI 01-2019 dated 5/21/2019    

9 | P a g e

Per OOWD, as they pertain to the GCWDB, the deadlines for submission are as follows: 

Deadline Deliverable 
April 30th All Centers are notified of baseline requirements and certification criteria, 

so they may prepare to meet certification requirements. 
June 30th If unable to certify comprehensive and affiliate centers by August 31, 

GCWDB must submit to the State Board their Certification Extension Plan. 
August 31st GCWDB completes the certification process. 
September 
15th 

For those centers that did not meet certification requirements, the board 
must set target dates and action plans to be completed by October 31st . 

September 
30th 

GCWDB submits to the State Board the Board-approved certification 
decision with required continuous improvement plans. 

VI. Action:  The Executive Director is responsible for compliance of this operations
memorandum and for annual review and revisions if needed. Any exceptions will require prior
written approval from the Executive Director of the Green Country Workforce Development
Board.

This policy will be effective immediately upon approval of the GCWDB Executive Director. 

__________________________________________________________ 

Executive Director, Green Country Workforce Development Board / Date 

Attachment A:  Center Certification Checklist 

268



EQUAL OPPORTUNITY AND NONDISCRIMINATION: All providers must comply with WIOA’s Equal Opportunity and Nondiscrimination provisions 
which prohibit discrimination on the basis of race, color, religion, sex (including pregnancy, childbirth, and related medical conditions, transgender 
status, and gender identity), national origin (including limited English proficiency), age, disability, political affiliation or belief, or, for beneficiaries, 
applicants, and participants only, on the basis of citizenship status or participation in a WIOA Title-I financially assisted program or activity. 
Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities. 

Section-04 Training P-0400100 Effective Date: 00/00/2021 

Replaces TAWDB Demand Occupation Policy dated 06/18/2020 
Delaney Rea, GCWDB Chair 

Demand Occupations and Skills Policy 

The Green Country Workforce Development Board (GCWDB) establishes policy regarding 
the development of Demand Occupations, Skills, Eligible Training Providers, and criteria for 
self- sufficiency wages as it relates to training. These policies are linked and interconnect. 

GCWDB will follow the guidelines as established in state policy OWDI 09-2020 entitled 
Eligible Training Provider dated October 8,2020 and OWDI 06-2020, entitled Poverty 
Guidelines and LLSIL dated July 8, 2020. 

GCWDB and Service Provider staff shall comply with all federal and state policies that 
provide guidance for the development of the Demand Occupation List. 

I. Purpose: To establish a local policy regarding the development of a GCWDB Demand
Occupation list and its relationship to the creation and maintenance of Eligible Training
Providers (ETP) list.

II. Definitions:

A. In-demand occupations have a substantial current or potential impact (including
through jobs that lead to economic self-sufficiency and opportunities for
advancement) on the State, regional, or local economy, as appropriate, and that
contributes to the growth or stability of other supporting businesses, or the
growth of other industry sectors. Demand Occupations, as they are approved by
the TAWDB, shall be the only SOC Codes for which workforce investment dollars
are used to provide occupational skills training.

B. Demand Skills are skills identified by the GCWDB as necessary to support
employment in certain Demand Occupations. Development or instruction in
demand skills areas may be obtained through short-term pre-vocational services.

Short-term pre-vocational services are not tied to a specific occupation and do
not result in a certification or license. Services may include course-like services
designed to prepare individuals for unsubsidized employment or training.

269



EQUAL OPPORTUNITY AND NONDISCRIMINATION: All providers must comply with WIOA’s Equal Opportunity and Nondiscrimination provisions 
which prohibit discrimination on the basis of race, color, religion, sex (including pregnancy, childbirth, and related medical conditions, transgender 
status, and gender identity), national origin (including limited English proficiency), age, disability, political affiliation or belief, or, for beneficiaries, 
applicants, and participants only, on the basis of citizenship status or participation in a WIOA Title-I financially assisted program or activity. 
Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities. 

Section-04 Training P-0400100 Effective Date: 00/00/2021 

Replaces TAWDB Demand Occupation Policy dated 06/18/2020 
Delaney Rea, GCWDB Chair 

C. Eligible training provider is a state-approved entity which deliverers state- 
approved training programs. An eligible training provider (ETP) is the only type of
entity that may receive funding for training services through an individual
training account (ITA). (See P-0400100 entitled Eligible Training Providers).

D. Self-sufficiency is defined by how much families need to meet basic needs
without the help of public or private assistance. The Self-Sufficiency Standard
determines the amount of income required for working families to meet basic
needs at a minimally adequate level, taking into account family composition,
ages of children, and geographic differences in costs.

The 100% LLSIL is used to determine self- sufficiency as noted at Section 3
(36)(A)(ii) and Section 3 (36)(B) of WIOA. GCWDB has determined to use a rate
of 150% for our region. (See P-0300300 entitled Self Sufficiency).

III. Functions:

A. Demand Occupations Selected: The demand occupations selected by the local
workforce board are used in determining the priority of workforce development
funds for programs and training services that are linked to these workforce
needs.

1. Demand Occupations will be determined by reviewing identified occupations
from The Bureaus of Labor Statistics, EMSI, OESC, The Department of Labor and
the Oklahoma Department of Commerce and other industry related sources.
2. The Demand Occupations List will be certified as current at the first Program
Year meeting (July) and may be updated throughout the year as needed. This list
will be maintained in the GCWDB permanent files and distributed to the service
provider.

B. Demand skills should:

1. Support economic development priorities;
2. Focus on industrial sectors and clusters, whether present or emerging;

270



EQUAL OPPORTUNITY AND NONDISCRIMINATION: All providers must comply with WIOA’s Equal Opportunity and Nondiscrimination provisions 
which prohibit discrimination on the basis of race, color, religion, sex (including pregnancy, childbirth, and related medical conditions, transgender 
status, and gender identity), national origin (including limited English proficiency), age, disability, political affiliation or belief, or, for beneficiaries, 
applicants, and participants only, on the basis of citizenship status or participation in a WIOA Title-I financially assisted program or activity. 
Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities. 

Section-04 Training P-0400100 Effective Date: 00/00/2021 

Replaces TAWDB Demand Occupation Policy dated 06/18/2020 
Delaney Rea, GCWDB Chair 

3. Address industry-specific or general shortages;
4. Enhance workplace literacy, including vocational English as a second
language.

C. Demand Skills Identified for GCWDB area include:

1. Literacy
2. Educational Attainment (may be addressed through GED Preparation and

Adult Basic Education)
3. Technology Familiarity
4. Communication Skills
5. Workforce Readiness

IV. Equal Opportunity and Nondiscrimination Statement: All recipients, and
subrecipients/subgrantees must comply with WIOA’s Equal Opportunity and Nondiscrimination
provisions which prohibit discrimination on the basis of race, color, religion, sex (including 
pregnancy, childbirth, and related medical conditions, transgender status, and gender identity), 
national origin (including limited English proficiency), age, disability, political affiliation or belief, 
or, for beneficiaries, applicants, and participants only, on the basis of citizenship status or 
participation in a WIOA Title-I financially assisted program or activity.   

V. Action:  The Executive Director is responsible for compliance of this policy. The Executive
Director is responsible for annual review and revisions if needed. Any exceptions to this policy
statement will require prior written approval from the Executive Director and/or chair of the 
Green Country Workforce Development Board. 

This policy will be effective immediately upon approval of the GCWDB membership. 

Chair, Green Country Workforce Development Board / Date 

Attachment: PY 21- 22 Demand Occupations List 

271



Section-01 Organization and Administration P-0100400 Effective Date:  00/00/2021 
Replaces TAWDB P-0100400 Fraud and Incident Reporting Policy dated 8/13/2020 and EWDB Fraud 
Risk  Assessment and Fraud and Abuse Incident Reporting 
Delaney Rea, GCWDB Chair  

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY AND NONDISCRIMINATION: All providers must comply with WIOA’s Equal Opportunity and Nondiscrimination provisions 
which prohibit discrimination on the basis of race, color, religion, sex (including pregnancy, childbirth, and related medical conditions, transgender 
status, and gender identity), national origin (including limited English proficiency), age, disability, political affiliation or belief, or, for beneficiaries, 
applicants, and participants only, on the basis of citizenship status or participation in a WIOA Title-I financially assisted program or activity. 
Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities. 

Fraud and Incident Reporting 

The Green Country Workforce Development Board (GCWDB) sets expectations and 
requirements for immediately reporting information and complaints involving criminal fraud, 
waste, abuse or other criminal activity. The GCWDB and its subrecipients are required to report 
information or complaints regarding fraud, waste, abuse, or mismanagement of funds.  State 
guidance is outlined in OWDI 03-2020 entitled Fraud and Incident Reporting, dated May 20, 
2020. 

I. Definitions:

A. Fraud, Misfeasance, nonfeasance, or Malfeasance:  Fraud, misfeasance, and
nonfeasance or malfeasance should be considered broadly as any alleged deliberate
action, which is apparently in violation of federal statutes and regulations. This
category includes, but is not limited to, indications of bribery, forgery, extortion,
embezzlement, theft of participant checks, kickbacks from participants, intentional
payments to a contractor without the expectation of receiving services, payments to
ghost enrollees, misuse of appropriated funds, and misrepresenting information in
official reports.

B. Misapplication of Funds:  Misapplication of funds should be considered as any alleged
use of funds, assets, or property not authorized or provided for under the WIOA  or
regulations, grants, or contracts. This category includes, but is not limited to, nepotism,
political patronage, and use of participants for political activities, ineligible participants,
and conflict of interests, failure to report income from Federal funds, violation of
contract/grant procedures, and the use of Federal funds for other than specified
purpose.

C. Gross Mismanagement: Gross mismanagement should be considered as actions or
situations arising out of management ineptitude or oversight, leading to major
violations of WIOA processes, regulations, or contract/grant provisions, which could
severely hamper the accomplishment of program goals. These include situations that
lead to waste of government resources and could jeopardize future support for a
particular project. This category includes, but is not limited to, un-auditable records,

272



Section-01 Organization and Administration P-0100400 Effective Date:  00/00/2021 
Replaces TAWDB P-0100400 Fraud and Incident Reporting Policy dated 8/13/2020 and EWDB Fraud 
Risk  Assessment and Fraud and Abuse Incident Reporting 
Delaney Rea, GCWDB Chair  

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY AND NONDISCRIMINATION: All providers must comply with WIOA’s Equal Opportunity and Nondiscrimination provisions 
which prohibit discrimination on the basis of race, color, religion, sex (including pregnancy, childbirth, and related medical conditions, transgender 
status, and gender identity), national origin (including limited English proficiency), age, disability, political affiliation or belief, or, for beneficiaries, 
applicants, and participants only, on the basis of citizenship status or participation in a WIOA Title-I financially assisted program or activity. 
Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities. 

unsupported costs, highly inaccurate fiscal and/or program reports, payroll 
discrepancies, payroll deductions not paid to the Internal Revenue Service, and the lack 
of good internal control procedures. 

D. Employee/Participant Misconduct: Employee/participant misconduct should be
considered as actions occurring during or outside work hours that reflect negatively
GCWDB. It may include, but is not limited to, conflict of interest or the appearance of
conflict of interest involving outside  employment, business, and professional activities,
the receipt of giving of gifts, fees, entertainment, and favors, misuse of federal property,
misuse of official information, and such other activities as might adversely affect the
confidence of the public, as well as serious violations of Federal and State laws.

II. Standards of Conduct: Identification processes for violations of terms of conditions are
required. A violation is considered evident when the following General Assurances are not met.

A. Every reasonable course of action has been taken in order to maintain the integrity of
expenditures of public funds and avoid favoritism, questionable activity, or improper
conduct.

B. Federal funds have been administered in an impartial manner, free from personal,
financial, or political gain.

C. Executive staff and employees avoided situations, which give rise to a suggestion that
any decision was influenced by prejudice, bias, or special interest or personal gain.

III. Fraud Risk Assessment: Fraud Risk assessments will be performed to mitigate any area
of real or potential fraud and systems will be monitored to ensure controls are in place to
prevent the occurrence of fraud.

IV. Internal controls: In order to prevent the possibility of fraudulent activity within the
organizations of GCWDB and its subrecipients, internal controls must be in place. However, if
the known or suspected activity of fraud is related to the organization, this information should
be immediately reported to the Oklahoma Office of Workforce Development (OOWD).

273



Section-01 Organization and Administration P-0100400 Effective Date:  00/00/2021 
Replaces TAWDB P-0100400 Fraud and Incident Reporting Policy dated 8/13/2020 and EWDB Fraud 
Risk  Assessment and Fraud and Abuse Incident Reporting 
Delaney Rea, GCWDB Chair  

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY AND NONDISCRIMINATION: All providers must comply with WIOA’s Equal Opportunity and Nondiscrimination provisions 
which prohibit discrimination on the basis of race, color, religion, sex (including pregnancy, childbirth, and related medical conditions, transgender 
status, and gender identity), national origin (including limited English proficiency), age, disability, political affiliation or belief, or, for beneficiaries, 
applicants, and participants only, on the basis of citizenship status or participation in a WIOA Title-I financially assisted program or activity. 
Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities. 

V. Reporting Requirements:

A. Incidents involving possible or suspected fraudulent or criminal use of WIOA Title
I-B funds must be reported to the OIG by utilizing the online Submission Form at the
Department of Labor’s Incident Reporting System, found at the website:
www.oig.dol.gov/hotlinecontact.htm, via telephone, or U.S. mail. Reports must also be
sent concurrently to the Oklahoma Office of Workforce Development (OOWD).

B. Reporting procedures do not supersede the responsibility to safeguard WIOA funds
by taking prompt and appropriate corrective action. Whenever the entity  reporting the
allegation of an incident believes that immediate action to prevent further financial loss
or other damage is necessary, or recovery of funds or property may be impeded if
immediate action is not taken, the reporting entity has the responsibility to take any
action it deems appropriate, including contacting the local law enforcement agency.

C. Sub-recipients of WIOA funds must report allegations, suspicions and complaints
of possible fraud, program abuse and criminal activities involving WIOA Title I-B Funds
to the Oklahoma Office of Workforce Development (OOWD) and to U.S. Department of
Labor (DOL) Office of Inspector General (OIG).

D. Where possible, employees are encouraged to document and communicate
suspected violations to the Executive or Deputy Director (ED/DD)  first so a proper
internal investigation can be conducted, and any process clarifications or changes can be
communicated. In those cases, the ED/DD assumes the responsibility for reporting to
OIG/OOWD, based on their internal findings.

E. Suspected fraud can include misapplication of funds, gross mismanagement, or abuse
of authority. Fraud can be, but not limited to, bribery, forgery, extortion, embezzlement,
theft, kickbacks, misuse of funds, or misrepresentation of information.

1. Employees should report  any suspected fraud or abuse by contacting one of the
two following individuals:

Rachel Hutchings, Executive Director 
907 S. Detroit, Suite 1325 

Cherie Stierwalt, Deputy Director & Equal 
Opportunity Officer 

274



Section-01 Organization and Administration P-0100400 Effective Date:  00/00/2021 
Replaces TAWDB P-0100400 Fraud and Incident Reporting Policy dated 8/13/2020 and EWDB Fraud 
Risk  Assessment and Fraud and Abuse Incident Reporting 
Delaney Rea, GCWDB Chair  

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY AND NONDISCRIMINATION: All providers must comply with WIOA’s Equal Opportunity and Nondiscrimination provisions 
which prohibit discrimination on the basis of race, color, religion, sex (including pregnancy, childbirth, and related medical conditions, transgender 
status, and gender identity), national origin (including limited English proficiency), age, disability, political affiliation or belief, or, for beneficiaries, 
applicants, and participants only, on the basis of citizenship status or participation in a WIOA Title-I financially assisted program or activity. 
Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities. 

Tulsa, OK  74120 
918-438-7941
RHutchings@greencountryworks.org

907 S. Detroit, Suite 1325 
Tulsa, OK  74120 
918-438-7946
cstierwalt@greencountryworks.org

2. If the employee is not comfortable reporting suspected fraud or abuse to
either of the two named individuals, they can contact the current GCWDB
Chair.

VI. Assurance Requirements:  No action, including retaliation, will be taken against any
individual who discloses information concerning suspected or actual abuse, improper activities,
or makes a good faith complaint to proper authorities regarding WIOA Title I-B programs.

VII. Submission Requirements:

Contact information for the DOL OIG and the Oklahoma Office of Workforce Development is as 
follows: 

U.S. DOL/Office of Inspector General 
Attention: Office of Inspector 
200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20210 
Hotline number 1-800-347-3756 
www.oig.dol.gov/hotlinecontact.htm 

Oklahoma Office of Workforce Development 
900 N. Portland Avenue 
Oklahoma City, Ok 73107 
Phone: 405-815-6552 
Toll-Free: 800-879-6552 
E-mail: workforce@okcommerce.gov

275

http://www.oig.dol.gov/hotlinecontact.htm
http://www.oig.dol.gov/hotlinecontact.htm
mailto:workforce@okcommerce.gov
mailto:workforce@okcommerce.gov


Section-01 Organization and Administration P-0100400 Effective Date:  00/00/2021 
Replaces TAWDB P-0100400 Fraud and Incident Reporting Policy dated 8/13/2020 and EWDB Fraud 
Risk  Assessment and Fraud and Abuse Incident Reporting 
Delaney Rea, GCWDB Chair  

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY AND NONDISCRIMINATION: All providers must comply with WIOA’s Equal Opportunity and Nondiscrimination provisions 
which prohibit discrimination on the basis of race, color, religion, sex (including pregnancy, childbirth, and related medical conditions, transgender 
status, and gender identity), national origin (including limited English proficiency), age, disability, political affiliation or belief, or, for beneficiaries, 
applicants, and participants only, on the basis of citizenship status or participation in a WIOA Title-I financially assisted program or activity. 
Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities. 

VIII. Equal Opportunity and Nondiscrimination Statement:  All recipients, and
subrecipients/subgrantees must comply with WIOA’s Equal Opportunity and Nondiscrimination
provisions which prohibit discrimination on the basis of race, color, religion, sex (including
pregnancy, childbirth, and related medical conditions, transgender status, and gender identity),
national origin (including limited English proficiency), age, disability, political affiliation or belief,
or, for beneficiaries, applicants, and participants only, on the basis of citizenship status or
participation in a WIOA Title-I financially assisted program or activity.

IX. Action:  The Executive Director is responsible for compliance of this policy. The
Executive Director is responsible for annual review and revisions if needed. Any exceptions to
this policy statement will require prior written approval from the Executive Director or chair of
the Green Country Workforce Development Board.

This policy will be effective immediately upon approval of the GCWDB membership. 

________________________________________________ 

Chair, Green Country Workforce Development Board/Date 

276



Section-05 Compliance P-0500200 Effective Date: 00/00/2021 
Replaces TAWDB P-0500200 dated 06/18/2020 and EWDB Monitoring Policy and Procedure revised 
2016 
Delaney Rea, GCWDB Chair  

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY AND NONDISCRIMINATION: All providers must comply with WIOA’s Equal Opportunity and Nondiscrimination provisions which 
prohibit discrimination on the basis of race, color, religion, sex (including pregnancy, childbirth, and related medical conditions, transgender status, 
and gender identity), national origin (including limited English proficiency), age, disability, political affiliation or belief, or, for beneficiaries, applicants, 
and participants only, on the basis of citizenship status or participation in a WIOA Title-I financially assisted program or activity. Auxiliary aids and 
services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities. 

Monitoring Policy 

It is the policy and commitment of the Green Country Workforce Development Board (GCWDB) 
that our programing be compliant with federal, state, and local area policy while ensuring robust 
programing for the clients we serve and creating outcomes that change the trajectory of a 
person’s life and increase the economic prosperity of the communities we serve.  Additional 
guidance may be found in OWDI 11-2017, Change 1  entitled “Governor’s Oversight and 
Monitoring Plan” dated May 20, 2020. 

GCWDB and the designated fiscal agent are responsible for overseeing and monitoring their WIOA 
and other federal grant-funded activities and those of their subrecipients in order to:  

A. Determine that expenditures have been made against the cost categories and
within the cost limitations specified in the Act and the regulations in this part

B. Determine whether or not there is compliance with other provisions of the Act and
the WIOA regulations and other applicable laws, regulations, and contracts

C. Provide technical assistance as necessary and appropriate

I. Monitoring:  GCWDB is committed to a policy of monitoring that is not only focused on the
review process to identify weaknesses and areas of non-compliance, but also to provide an
opportunity for technical assistance and training, identify best practices, implementing corrective
action, and ensuring corrective action is completed. Staff designated by the GCWDB shall conduct
regular and periodic monitoring to determine compliance with federal regulations, state policies,
and GCWDB policies as well as procedures. Monitoring activities shall be conducted with such
frequency and in such detail, both quantitative and qualitative, to provide reasonable assurance of
compliance and effective program operations.  Monitoring activities shall include, but are not
limited to:

A. Administrative and Financial Activities
B. Customer File Reviews
C. Worksite Interviews
D. Data Validation
E. Performance Evaluation

277



Section-05 Compliance P-0500200 Effective Date: 00/00/2021 
Replaces TAWDB P-0500200 dated 06/18/2020 and EWDB Monitoring Policy and Procedure revised 
2016 
Delaney Rea, GCWDB Chair  

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY AND NONDISCRIMINATION: All providers must comply with WIOA’s Equal Opportunity and Nondiscrimination provisions which 
prohibit discrimination on the basis of race, color, religion, sex (including pregnancy, childbirth, and related medical conditions, transgender status, 
and gender identity), national origin (including limited English proficiency), age, disability, political affiliation or belief, or, for beneficiaries, applicants, 
and participants only, on the basis of citizenship status or participation in a WIOA Title-I financially assisted program or activity. Auxiliary aids and 
services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities. 

II. Monitoring Schedule: Reports will be generated from regular monitoring data to present a
timely, accurate and appropriate vehicle for staff reporting of program and overall operations
efficiencies/deficiencies.

A. Client files will be reviewed on a monthly basis.
B. Performance measures will be reviewed on a continual basis.
C. Client interviews will be conducted on a continual basis.  A minimum of 10% of

clients will be interviewed in a program year.
D. Active worksite interviews will be conducted on a continual basis.
E. All other areas will be reviewed once a program year
F. Service providers will be monitored at least sixty (60) days prior to expiration of the

service provider or subrecipients’ contract with its subrecipient and submit
monitoring reports and resolutions to the OOWD Policy and Program team when
they are issued.

III. Components of Monitoring:

A. Compliance may include a review of:

1. Eligibility determination
2. Needs determination
3. Progression towards performance achievement
4. Other areas of service provision
5. Administrative controls
6. Personnel
7. Civil rights & ADA compliance
8. Audit and audit resolution
9. Facilities
10. Review of participant records for assessment and employability plan
11. Review of contracts (i.e., on-the-job training, customized training, and

worksite agreements
12. For providers of WIOA youth, adult and dislocated worker services, proper

delivery of services consistent with the GCWDB’s integrated service delivery
design

278



Section-05 Compliance P-0500200 Effective Date: 00/00/2021 
Replaces TAWDB P-0500200 dated 06/18/2020 and EWDB Monitoring Policy and Procedure revised 
2016 
Delaney Rea, GCWDB Chair  

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY AND NONDISCRIMINATION: All providers must comply with WIOA’s Equal Opportunity and Nondiscrimination provisions which 
prohibit discrimination on the basis of race, color, religion, sex (including pregnancy, childbirth, and related medical conditions, transgender status, 
and gender identity), national origin (including limited English proficiency), age, disability, political affiliation or belief, or, for beneficiaries, applicants, 
and participants only, on the basis of citizenship status or participation in a WIOA Title-I financially assisted program or activity. Auxiliary aids and 
services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities. 

13. Compliance with local established policies
14. Contract performance compliance

B. Fiscal may include a review of:

1. Review of the payment determination process
2. Source documentation
3. Traceability for all transactions
4. Match and leveraged resources
5. Budget control
6. Cash management
7. Program income
8. Cost allocation
9. Allowable costs
10. Financial reporting
11. Training resource management
12. Procurement
13. Equipment
14. Intangible property
15. Sustainability
16. Preparing and administering contracts and ensuring contract compliance
17. Responding to monitoring financial findings
18. Maintaining proper accounting records and adequate documentation in

accordance with uniform administrative requirements;
19. Disbursing funds for salaries, contracts, wages, and vouchers
20. Ensuring independent audits of all contracted entities receiving seven

hundred fifty thousand dollars ($750,000.00) or more in DOL grant funds (A
Non-Federal entity that expends $750,000 or more during the non-Federal
entity’s fiscal year in Federal awards must have a single or program specific
audit conducted

C. Performance may include the review of:

1. Client outcomes information

279



Section-05 Compliance P-0500200 Effective Date: 00/00/2021 
Replaces TAWDB P-0500200 dated 06/18/2020 and EWDB Monitoring Policy and Procedure revised 
2016 
Delaney Rea, GCWDB Chair  

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY AND NONDISCRIMINATION: All providers must comply with WIOA’s Equal Opportunity and Nondiscrimination provisions which 
prohibit discrimination on the basis of race, color, religion, sex (including pregnancy, childbirth, and related medical conditions, transgender status, 
and gender identity), national origin (including limited English proficiency), age, disability, political affiliation or belief, or, for beneficiaries, applicants, 
and participants only, on the basis of citizenship status or participation in a WIOA Title-I financially assisted program or activity. Auxiliary aids and 
services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities. 

2. Other factors directly affecting the achievement of negotiated
performance standards and other local performance indicators

3. Data validation
4. Other measures as required

D. Satisfaction may include the review by obtaining feedback, data, and outcomes of clients,
worksites,  partners, and other stakeholders to determine the quality, scope and satisfaction
level of services offered and provided.

IV. Equal Opportunity and Nondiscrimination Statement: All recipients, and
subrecipients/subgrantees must comply with WIOA’s Equal Opportunity and Nondiscrimination
provisions which prohibit discrimination on the basis of race, color, religion, sex (including
pregnancy, childbirth, and related medical conditions, transgender status, and gender identity),
national origin (including limited English proficiency), age, disability, political affiliation or belief,
or, for beneficiaries, applicants, and participants only, on the basis of citizenship status or
participation in a WIOA Title-I financially assisted program or activity.

V. Action:  The Executive Director is responsible for compliance of this policy. The Executive
Director is responsible for annual review and revisions if needed. Any exceptions to this policy
statement will require prior written approval from the GCWDB Executive Director or chair of the
Green Country Workforce Development Board.

This policy will be effective immediately upon approval of the GCWDB membership. 

_________________________________________________ 
Chair, Green Country Workforce Development Board / Date  

280



Section-01 Organization and Administration P-0100600 Effective Date: 
This is a new policy 
Delaney Rea, TAWDB Chair  

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY AND NONDISCRIMINATION: All providers must comply with WIOA’s Equal Opportunity and Nondiscrimination provisions 
which prohibit discrimination on the basis of race, color, religion, sex (including pregnancy, childbirth, and related medical conditions, transgender 
status, and gender identity), national origin (including limited English proficiency), age, disability, political affiliation or belief, or, for beneficiaries, 
applicants, and participants only, on the basis of citizenship status or participation in a WIOA Title-I financially assisted program or activity. 
Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities. 

Policy Development and Revisions 

The Green Country Workforce Development Board (GCWDB) establishes policy according to 
needs of the organization and guidance from the Oklahoma Office of Workforce Development 
(OOWD), the Governor’s Council for Workforce and Economic Development (GCWED), and the 
Department of Labor. 

I. Policy:  In the absence of specific local board policy, Green Country Workforce
Development Board will defer local guidance to the appropriate state approved policy
issuances.

II. Guidance:  As a result of the merger of the Tulsa Area Workforce Development Board
and the Eastern Workforce Development Board as approved by the Local Elected Officials on
January 6, 2021, GCWDB will review and revise all active local policies in accordance with
Oklahoma Employment and Training Issuances (OETIs), Oklahoma Workforce Development
Issuances (OWDIs), the 2014 Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act, and GCWDB
P-0100200, Systems of Manuals, Handbooks and Monitoring Procedures.

All policies will be developed in consultation with subject matter expert workgroups, as 
determined necessary. Subject matter experts may be drawn from the workforce development 
board members and staff, service providers, workforce development partners, and 
stakeholders, as appropriate.  

III. Equal Opportunity and Nondiscrimination Statement: All recipients, and
subrecipients/subgrantees must comply with WIOA’s Equal Opportunity and Nondiscrimination
provisions which prohibit discrimination on the basis of race, color, religion, sex (including
pregnancy, childbirth, and related medical conditions, transgender status, and gender identity),
national origin (including limited English proficiency), age, disability, political affiliation or belief,
or, for beneficiaries, applicants, and participants only, on the basis of citizenship status or
participation in a WIOA Title-I financially assisted program or activity.

281



Section-01 Organization and Administration P-0100600 Effective Date: 
This is a new policy 
Delaney Rea, TAWDB Chair  

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY AND NONDISCRIMINATION: All providers must comply with WIOA’s Equal Opportunity and Nondiscrimination provisions 
which prohibit discrimination on the basis of race, color, religion, sex (including pregnancy, childbirth, and related medical conditions, transgender 
status, and gender identity), national origin (including limited English proficiency), age, disability, political affiliation or belief, or, for beneficiaries, 
applicants, and participants only, on the basis of citizenship status or participation in a WIOA Title-I financially assisted program or activity. 
Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities. 

V. Action:  The Executive Director is responsible for compliance of this policy. The
Executive Director is responsible for annual review and revisions if needed. Any exceptions to
this policy statement will require prior written approval from the Executive Director and/or
chair of the Green Country Workforce Development Board.

This policy will be effective immediately upon approval of the GCWDB membership. 

__________________________________________________ 

Chair, Green Country Workforce Development Board /Date 

Source Documents: 

OWDI #01-2016 entitled “Oklahoma Governor’s Council for Workforce and Economic 
Development Policy Issuance Process” dated March 28, 2016 

OOWD Memorandum # 02-2016 entitled “Policy Development and Revisions”, dated July 15, 
2016  

OOWD Memorandum # 01-2017 entitled “Types of Oklahoma Office of Workforce 
Development Issuances, Memorandums, Technical Assistance, and Guidance”, dated February 
6, 2017 

OOWD TA-01-2017 in reference to Memorandum 01-2017: “Types of Oklahoma Office of 
Workforce Development Issuances, Memorandums, Technical Assistance, and Guidance FAQs”, 
dated February 9, 2017 

282



Description

Taken Date Uploaded By

2021/04/02 14:27:03 Jeff Duff

Upload Date File Name

2021/04/02 14:27:59 ADC25DA4-BA82-4F6A-9160-CF2…

Description

Taken Date Uploaded By

2021/04/02 13:53:30 Jeff Duff

Upload Date File Name

2021/04/02 13:54:46 F9E63C97-59FB-4348-BC80-F537…

Description

Taken Date Uploaded By

2021/04/02 13:53:09 Jeff Duff

Upload Date File Name

2021/04/02 13:54:48 B965D230-D420-4D5F-A064-93B…

Description

Taken Date Uploaded By

2021/04/02 13:43:50 Jeff Duff

Upload Date File Name

2021/04/02 13:52:08 3B01A442-2AC8-4B2A-877F-A53…

Greyson Construction

Printed on Fri Apr 2, 2021 at 03:01 pm CDT

Job #: 21-0001 Workforce _Eastgate (Coke Vacant Space)
14002 E. 21st Street

Oklahoma

Page 1 of 8283

https://storage.procore.com/v4/d/us-east-1/pro-core.com/prostore/20210402192759_production_2758585644.jpeg?sig=9e5cb43693980ab84a290268ae5e2d61272afb6010448ecd8cf0ba1b68ef2525
https://storage.procore.com/v4/d/us-east-1/pro-core.com/prostore/20210402185445_production_2758513618.jpeg?sig=5582b13d562a118819912de7507ed5f5f8cff1c19fb7533e5aca7bc240255eb5
https://storage.procore.com/v4/d/us-east-1/pro-core.com/prostore/20210402185448_production_2758513676.jpeg?sig=8a9e42c49f7651a57222cfe5005cbe6ac38f39cb94047c27d053731da263dfd2
https://storage.procore.com/v4/d/us-east-1/pro-core.com/prostore/20210402185208_production_2758507938.jpeg?sig=ddd17f164cca0ff8d77a07665861dc72e84cc2398d90fe2c0838bf5c23ec84ee


Description

Taken Date Uploaded By

2021/04/02 13:43:20 Jeff Duff

Upload Date File Name

2021/04/02 13:52:09 0B86E518-FD55-4EA9-9BAA-5A5…

Description

Taken Date Uploaded By

2021/04/02 13:43:08 Jeff Duff

Upload Date File Name

2021/04/02 13:52:10 168BFBEA-9E34-4168-A9F7-4E60…

Description

Taken Date Uploaded By

2021/04/02 13:42:50 Jeff Duff

Upload Date File Name

2021/04/02 13:52:11 B5E40DF5-A33F-4989-BE93-ECE8…

Description

Taken Date Uploaded By

2021/04/02 13:42:38 Jeff Duff

Upload Date File Name

2021/04/02 13:52:13 3C48C484-1A46-4522-B8C4-042…

Greyson Construction

Printed on Fri Apr 2, 2021 at 03:01 pm CDT

Job #: 21-0001 Workforce _Eastgate (Coke Vacant Space)
14002 E. 21st Street

Oklahoma

Page 2 of 8284

https://storage.procore.com/v4/d/us-east-1/pro-core.com/prostore/20210402185209_production_2758507982.jpeg?sig=7bb60b1d190ef82ee8554bcce54f12eb6f0510353408d424e348dad0309a5634
https://storage.procore.com/v4/d/us-east-1/pro-core.com/prostore/20210402185210_production_2758508024.jpeg?sig=ea50fa2b81f03e58cf8488592548ccbeae2b264b6a71b3cb32e7740c79ea946b
https://storage.procore.com/v4/d/us-east-1/pro-core.com/prostore/20210402185211_production_2758508053.jpeg?sig=21894c53a44c6ef67a3fa0d1974cc852955e9eb1346e9070b5b76a8a6393114e
https://storage.procore.com/v4/d/us-east-1/pro-core.com/prostore/20210402185213_production_2758508094.jpeg?sig=078ee3285ac658bfcb3c97cf7974ed0acc5ed68d6e8add774fb2e733a46ac5c9


Description

Taken Date Uploaded By

2021/04/02 13:42:21 Jeff Duff

Upload Date File Name

2021/04/02 13:52:16 BAA79A0F-1E4D-434C-B98D-F1A…

Description

Taken Date Uploaded By

2021/04/02 13:42:11 Jeff Duff

Upload Date File Name

2021/04/02 13:52:17 B174A826-0C9A-4388-9962-D6E…

Description

Taken Date Uploaded By

2021/04/02 13:41:54 Jeff Duff

Upload Date File Name

2021/04/02 13:52:15 7F52AA20-BA03-4FC0-91C1-BDB…

Description

Taken Date Uploaded By

2021/04/02 13:40:54 Jeff Duff

Upload Date File Name

2021/04/02 13:54:57 76B6F6ED-D04C-4154-A4E9-673…

Greyson Construction

Printed on Fri Apr 2, 2021 at 03:01 pm CDT

Job #: 21-0001 Workforce _Eastgate (Coke Vacant Space)
14002 E. 21st Street

Oklahoma

Page 3 of 8285

https://storage.procore.com/v4/d/us-east-1/pro-core.com/prostore/20210402185216_production_2758508184.jpeg?sig=aedeed05cca33969c55acf899e2078725a72bfae2058e59cd82e0de4b4cba8f2
https://storage.procore.com/v4/d/us-east-1/pro-core.com/prostore/20210402185217_production_2758508218.jpeg?sig=365e8f5b728984364b079267fa04e5deffd9695d3cee38235b1f8a9137d0372c
https://storage.procore.com/v4/d/us-east-1/pro-core.com/prostore/20210402185215_production_2758508144.jpeg?sig=402d973bd5dbcd53a95007c0d1e8534b7abc2f8d7263d19adddc9724d0a308ef
https://storage.procore.com/v4/d/us-east-1/pro-core.com/prostore/20210402185457_production_2758513929.jpeg?sig=be76b40cce6c85ebed5c7ba0e8a56799591d3286d265f3272487229ad1af9b64


Description

Taken Date Uploaded By

2021/04/02 13:40:46 Jeff Duff

Upload Date File Name

2021/04/02 13:54:59 CC65DFEC-970C-480B-8451-F51…

Description

Taken Date Uploaded By

2021/04/01 15:18:59 Jeff Duff

Upload Date File Name

2021/04/01 15:21:26 8F33CDF8-3C19-4213-B405-DAB…

Description

Taken Date Uploaded By

2021/03/31 14:06:01 Taylor Hamburger

Upload Date File Name

2021/03/31 14:06:04 EF4DB0FF-C626-4E22-8831-205D…

Description

Taken Date Uploaded By

2021/03/31 14:05:54 Taylor Hamburger

Upload Date File Name

2021/03/31 14:05:58 451EDA4B-C13C-466D-8570-B1B…

Greyson Construction

Printed on Fri Apr 2, 2021 at 03:01 pm CDT

Job #: 21-0001 Workforce _Eastgate (Coke Vacant Space)
14002 E. 21st Street

Oklahoma

Page 4 of 8286

https://storage.procore.com/v4/d/us-east-1/pro-core.com/prostore/20210402185459_production_2758513971.jpeg?sig=dfb156c14f8ebdeab474d0dc4031bdb8c46bd59f49d68c54148d722eede234dc
https://storage.procore.com/v4/d/us-east-1/pro-core.com/prostore/20210401202126_production_2757194959.jpeg?sig=21bb36ed90fea2a34856e69abb1dabb124b455296185e41fd7ee9f70ef78a486
https://storage.procore.com/v4/d/us-east-1/pro-core.com/prostore/20210331190604_production_2755077082.jpeg?sig=17f074902bd8e64db351c85b778ba9ca0d1af4be76a62141d57c6a9bc094691a
https://storage.procore.com/v4/d/us-east-1/pro-core.com/prostore/20210331190558_production_2755076705.jpeg?sig=4e51d5879f7554b356523c8466fdf500fad8822925d19b8dbd09ab14d25bd207


Description

Taken Date Uploaded By

2021/03/30 12:53:28 Taylor Hamburger

Upload Date File Name

2021/03/30 12:53:45 92D8357A-206B-47DF-B491-840…

Description

Taken Date Uploaded By

2021/03/30 07:07:20 Taylor Hamburger

Upload Date File Name

2021/03/30 07:07:23 80BBA28E-F5E3-4B13-8631-291A…

Description

Taken Date Uploaded By

2021/03/30 07:06:15 Taylor Hamburger

Upload Date File Name

2021/03/30 07:06:18 445C83B6-660A-4D38-98FC-A1A…

Description

Taken Date Uploaded By

2021/03/30 07:06:08 Taylor Hamburger

Upload Date File Name

2021/03/30 07:06:13 8C1E2103-0B8A-4136-B361-4E64…

Greyson Construction

Printed on Fri Apr 2, 2021 at 03:01 pm CDT

Job #: 21-0001 Workforce _Eastgate (Coke Vacant Space)
14002 E. 21st Street

Oklahoma

Page 5 of 8287

https://storage.procore.com/v4/d/us-east-1/pro-core.com/prostore/20210330175345_production_2752768949.jpeg?sig=9760db9d157187b60ee39366296ae8d12757f39e7a9a10b5fa529a289481a76b
https://storage.procore.com/v4/d/us-east-1/pro-core.com/prostore/20210330120723_production_2751888386.jpeg?sig=f609835b016dc3f5cb123de52e46f8d87cdcdc8bd593a7fcedd79348c8d95fae
https://storage.procore.com/v4/d/us-east-1/pro-core.com/prostore/20210330120618_production_2751887083.jpeg?sig=aa6f9ba5f183203331e1321b4ea81c66805f104c4a0a47f7b15d6dff42bf62ba
https://storage.procore.com/v4/d/us-east-1/pro-core.com/prostore/20210330120613_production_2751887005.jpeg?sig=d8392c1f796757523eb6442b25fec22de821ad3dd0fa715aed2ee41c5f5ba6e0


Description

Taken Date Uploaded By

2021/03/30 07:06:06 Taylor Hamburger

Upload Date File Name

2021/03/30 07:06:11 76369A5C-0306-4686-9F73-C31C…

Description

Taken Date Uploaded By

2021/03/26 15:39:13 Jeff Duff

Upload Date File Name

2021/03/26 15:39:41 5453D13D-412A-45BB-9141-529…

Description

Taken Date Uploaded By

2021/03/26 15:38:53 Jeff Duff

Upload Date File Name

2021/03/26 15:39:47 63EA2E81-990D-4017-8378-E96E…

Description

Taken Date Uploaded By

2021/03/26 15:38:48 Jeff Duff

Upload Date File Name

2021/03/26 15:39:48 C4EDE496-B733-43D9-9EF3-5D1…

Greyson Construction

Printed on Fri Apr 2, 2021 at 03:01 pm CDT

Job #: 21-0001 Workforce _Eastgate (Coke Vacant Space)
14002 E. 21st Street

Oklahoma

Page 6 of 8288

https://storage.procore.com/v4/d/us-east-1/pro-core.com/prostore/20210330120611_production_2751886942.jpeg?sig=c1f09b93871d31644a55c31a4e8fb7216f2de39093d3f2ac274c97fa2de5f6a7
https://storage.procore.com/v4/d/us-east-1/pro-core.com/prostore/20210326203941_production_2748636971.jpeg?sig=a718482a88b06288b034552ec857fb7f7e53bee802ac1933f1a21d6449f943b3
https://storage.procore.com/v4/d/us-east-1/pro-core.com/prostore/20210326203947_production_2748637207.jpeg?sig=fb9dbf950d078f4a4a0fb18fcf94edc3fbb52f543f259d7b79940d12ed0654e7
https://storage.procore.com/v4/d/us-east-1/pro-core.com/prostore/20210326203948_production_2748637243.jpeg?sig=b7260ddac42e740015a96cd9db99fa24d30406829da09d06d35dd8f24e72c639


Description

Taken Date Uploaded By

2021/03/26 15:38:45 Jeff Duff

Upload Date File Name

2021/03/26 15:39:51 2AD86289-68B2-4C51-ACA6-08D…

Description

Taken Date Uploaded By

2021/03/26 13:17:38 Taylor Hamburger

Upload Date File Name

2021/03/26 13:17:41 E546FAC7-5405-4F29-8051-AAF0…

Description

Taken Date Uploaded By

2021/03/26 13:17:07 Taylor Hamburger

Upload Date File Name

2021/03/26 13:17:22 5E0FAE0B-5DDC-40E1-BFC2-2FD…

Description

Taken Date Uploaded By

2021/03/25 15:16:05 Jeff Duff

Upload Date File Name

2021/03/25 15:18:28 FCD1145D-2BD0-4153-8792-9D6…

Greyson Construction

Printed on Fri Apr 2, 2021 at 03:01 pm CDT

Job #: 21-0001 Workforce _Eastgate (Coke Vacant Space)
14002 E. 21st Street

Oklahoma

Page 7 of 8289

https://storage.procore.com/v4/d/us-east-1/pro-core.com/prostore/20210326203951_production_2748637317.jpeg?sig=c9b247362a53d6d1672c132150f7330f9cb7cfa50ba0c6a706a8e8c40812882e
https://storage.procore.com/v4/d/us-east-1/pro-core.com/prostore/20210326181741_production_2748253429.jpeg?sig=3f1c7df252b416d8658da040d8e3bcf18259d040c2e3f380e71640fe553ac425
https://storage.procore.com/v4/d/us-east-1/pro-core.com/prostore/20210326181722_production_2748252463.jpeg?sig=34d4e0a37cf3fb1f138a7148ad4a5167d96f0528b3a9f692334b905b26a6403c
https://storage.procore.com/v4/d/us-east-1/pro-core.com/prostore/20210325201828_production_2746678879.jpeg?sig=20eabd7e630bc2a808affcdb8078dee3435412bfe5c9610fd4f8c0d0c58eca95


Description

Taken Date Uploaded By

2021/03/25 15:15:24 Jeff Duff

Upload Date File Name

2021/03/25 15:18:31 E53D6A24-5EA8-4DAF-996D-A70…

Description

Taken Date Uploaded By

2021/03/25 15:15:22 Jeff Duff

Upload Date File Name

2021/03/25 15:18:33 20A1C954-0F96-46A8-87DE-853…

Description

Taken Date Uploaded By

2021/03/25 15:14:46 Jeff Duff

Upload Date File Name

2021/03/25 15:18:41 88383FE7-7956-4D14-BE22-BC22…

Greyson Construction

Printed on Fri Apr 2, 2021 at 03:01 pm CDT

Job #: 21-0001 Workforce _Eastgate (Coke Vacant Space)
14002 E. 21st Street

Oklahoma

Page 8 of 8290

https://storage.procore.com/v4/d/us-east-1/pro-core.com/prostore/20210325201830_production_2746679016.jpeg?sig=9c9b1062381e0da155bbfc07657e750da2782ab364bf656c547700bda8093848
https://storage.procore.com/v4/d/us-east-1/pro-core.com/prostore/20210325201832_production_2746679247.jpeg?sig=f580c240ae70e4d22c337763dadb39c6ea2c7547a69f78a714414ebe23329ae5
https://storage.procore.com/v4/d/us-east-1/pro-core.com/prostore/20210325201841_production_2746679533.jpeg?sig=f7b9903df0406f656429e6087d2a4450dda61e3fc6808a23f9b234f247657734

	003_BD_SpecialMeetingMinutes_20210301
	004_RFP Service Provider RFP-21-GCWDB-01
	005b_Draft P-0500100 Center Certification Policy
	005b1_A-Guide-to-Improving-One-Stops
	005b2_ChecklistforCompliancewithSection503_508c
	005b3_Integrated Business Services Self Assessment
	Introduction
	( Vision (
	①  ②  ③  ④  ⑤   (   Where/How could this be strengthened?

	( Sustainability & Continuous Improvement (
	①  ②  ③  ④  ⑤   (   Where/How could this be strengthened?

	( Outreach & Communication (
	①  ②  ③  ④  ⑤   (   Where/How could this be strengthened?

	( Engaging with Businesses & Delivering Solutions (
	①  ②  ③  ④  ⑤   (   Where/How could this be strengthened?

	( Demand Planning (
	①  ②  ③  ④  ⑤   (   Where/How could this be strengthened?


	005b4_Physical Site Accessibility Checklist
	ADA Accessibility Checklist
	Pathways
	Bathrooms

	005b5_OWDI #1-2019 Evaluation Summary for OK AJC Certification
	Center Information
	Certification Team
	Scoring
	Per OWDI #:

	Customer Focus
	Operations & Infrastructure
	Equal Opportunity & Accessibility
	Continuous Improvement
	Personnel
	Customer Focus
	Must Meet Criteria
	Scored Criteria
	Evaluator Notes

	Operations and Infrastructure
	Must Meet Criteria
	Scored Criteria

	Equal Opportunity & Accessibility
	Must Meet Criteria
	Scored Criteria

	Continuous Improvement
	Must Meet Criteria
	Scored Criteria

	Personnel
	Must Meet Criteria
	Scored Criteria


	005b6_Draft OP-0500101 Center Certification Criteria and Process
	III.  Certification Criteria:  Objective criteria is set by the Oklahoma Office of Workforce Development which includes:  Customer Focus, Operations and Infrastructure, Equal Opportunity and Accessibility, Personnel, and Continuous Improvement.
	A.  Effectiveness:  These criteria evaluate the comprehensive and affiliate one-stop  center’s effectiveness in meeting the workforce development needs of participants and  the employment needs of businesses. They also evaluate whether  the center is...
	A.  Effectiveness:  These criteria evaluate the comprehensive and affiliate one-stop  center’s effectiveness in meeting the workforce development needs of participants and  the employment needs of businesses. They also evaluate whether  the center is...
	d.  Certification teams may include local experts who represent targeted     populations, experts from the state level, a third-party evaluator, or     experts from outside of the local area to ensure evaluations are      objective.
	V.  Certification Process
	A.  Request:  Each comprehensive and affiliate center must file an application to the GCWDB requesting certification.
	Each Application should include:
	1.  Organization name
	2.  Date
	3.  Primary Contact Person from Certifying Team       4.  Phone
	5.  E-mail
	6.  Site to be certified
	7.  Website link
	8.  House of Operation
	9.  Current Certification Status
	10. Desk Review Materials (including any written procedures, business plans,    Oklahoma Works Access for All Initiative certifications, Emergency Action Plans,    and other related items)
	B.  Desk Review:  The Certification Team’s primary point of contact person is responsible for providing the Certification Team with the certification requests and electronic materials to begin a desk review. The Certification Team members should fami...
	C.  On-Site Review:  The Certification Team will conduct an on-site review. Team members will evaluate each met/not met and scored criteria, and after evaluation will come to a consensus for each of the criteria evaluated.
	D.  Documentation:  The local review team must identify hard data and documentation when making their determination. This data may include:
	1.  Reports
	2.  Minutes
	3.  Signed MOUs
	4.  Procedure manuals
	5.  Customer Satisfaction Data
	6.  Surveys
	7.  Questionnaires
	8.  Interviews with Customers, Partners, and Staff
	9.  Performance Information
	E.  Exit Interview:  An exit interview will occur with the One-Stop operator and relevant staff within two (2) weeks of the on-site review. The exit interview should note and record any best practices by the one-stop system as well as any areas that w...
	F.  Certification Determination:  Once the review has been completed, the Certification Team will present within 30 days the completed certification checklist and a letter signed by the Certification Team to the GCWDB recommending which of the four de...
	G.  Re-Certification:  In order to be eligible to receive infrastructure funding under
	the state infrastructure funding mechanism, the one-stop center must be certified
	every 2 years.

	005c_Draft P-0400100 Demand Occupation and Skills
	II. Definitions:
	III. Functions:

	005d_Draft P-0100400 Fraud and Incident Reporting
	III. Fraud Risk Assessment: Fraud Risk assessments will be performed to mitigate any area of real or potential fraud and systems will be monitored to ensure controls are in place to prevent the occurrence of fraud.
	IV. Internal controls: In order to prevent the possibility of fraudulent activity within the organizations of GCWDB and its subrecipients, internal controls must be in place. However, if the known or suspected activity of fraud is related to the organ...
	V. Reporting Requirements:
	A.  Incidents involving possible or suspected fraudulent or criminal use of WIOA Title  I-B funds must be reported to the OIG by utilizing the online Submission Form at the  Department of Labor’s Incident Reporting System, found at the website:  www....
	B. Reporting procedures do not supersede the responsibility to safeguard WIOA funds  by taking prompt and appropriate corrective action. Whenever the entity  reporting the  allegation of an incident believes that immediate action to prevent further f...
	C.  Sub-recipients of WIOA funds must report allegations, suspicions and complaints  of possible fraud, program abuse and criminal activities involving WIOA Title I-B Funds  to the Oklahoma Office of Workforce Development (OOWD) and to U.S. Departmen...
	D.  Where possible, employees are encouraged to document and communicate  suspected violations to the Executive or Deputy Director (ED/DD)  first so a proper  internal investigation can be conducted, and any process clarifications or changes can be  ...
	E.  Suspected fraud can include misapplication of funds, gross mismanagement, or abuse  of authority. Fraud can be, but not limited to, bribery, forgery, extortion, embezzlement,  theft, kickbacks, misuse of funds, or misrepresentation of information.
	1. Employees should report  any suspected fraud or abuse by contacting one of the  two following individuals:
	2. If the employee is not comfortable reporting suspected fraud or abuse to     either of the two named individuals, they can contact the current GCWDB    Chair.
	VI. Assurance Requirements:  No action, including retaliation, will be taken against any individual who discloses information concerning suspected or actual abuse, improper activities, or makes a good faith complaint to proper authorities regarding WI...
	VII. Submission Requirements:
	Contact information for the DOL OIG and the Oklahoma Office of Workforce Development is as follows:
	U.S. DOL/Office of Inspector General
	Attention: Office of Inspector
	200 Constitution Avenue, N.W.
	Washington, D.C. 20210
	Hotline number 1-800-347-3756
	31TUwww.oig.dol.gov/hotlinecontact.htmU31T
	Oklahoma Office of Workforce Development
	900 N. Portland Avenue
	Oklahoma City, Ok 73107
	Phone: 405-815-6552
	Toll-Free: 800-879-6552
	E-mail: 31Tworkforce@okcommerce.gov31T

	005e_Draft P-0500200 Monitoring Policy
	015f_Draft P-0100600 Policy Development
	I. Policy:  In the absence of specific local board policy, Green Country Workforce Development Board will defer local guidance to the appropriate state approved policy issuances.

	Workforce Progress Photos



